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DEERFIELD CAPITAL CORP.
6250 North River Road, 9th Floor
Rosemont, lllinois 60018
(773) 380-1600

May 11, 201
Dear Stockholder:

On behalf of the Board of Directors (thBdard") of Deerfield Capital Corp. (theCompany"), | cordially invite you to attend the Annual
Meeting of Stockholders (theMeeting") of the Company, which will be held on June 91@0at 10:00 a.m. EDT, at the offices of SchultehR%
Zabel LLP, 919 Third Avenue, New York, New York X The matters to be considered by our stockhsldethe Meeting are described in
detail in the accompanying materials. Among thetenathat you will be considering are: (i) the authkation of the issuance of shares of our
common stock in connection with our proposed adgoirs(the "Acquisition”) of Columbus Nova Credit Investments Managemkb€ from
Bounty Investments, LLC Bounty") and the potential issuance of additional shafesur common stock upon the conversion of $25iamlin
aggregate principal amount of senior subordinatetvertible notes (the Convertible Note§) that Bounty has agreed to purchase and (ii) the
election of two Class Il director3his proxy is solicited on behalf of the Board.

We are seeking stockholder approval ofitkeance of shares of our common stock in conneetith the proposed Acquisition and the
potential issuance of additional shares of our comstock upon the conversion of the ConvertibleeNdb satisfy NASDAQ Listing Rule 5635
(a), which requires stockholder approval priortte issuance of securities in connection with thgesition of the stock or assets of another
company if the issuance would constitute more @@ of the total number of shares of common statktanding before the issuance. As a
result, the issuances of our common stock musppeoaed by our stockholders holding a majoritytaf votes cast on the proposal (provided that
a quorum is present in person or by proxy at thetiig). Stockholder approval of the issuance ofehaf our common stock in connection with
the Acquisition and the potential issuance of addil shares of our common stock upon the convermsidhe Convertible Notes is required to
complete the Acquisition and Bounty's purchasénef@onvertible Notes which are conditioned on eghblr. We will not complete one
transaction without the other.

Stockholders of record at the close of hess on April 19, 2010 (theRecord Date') are entitled to receive notice of and vote a&tltheeting
and any adjournment or postponement thereof.

After careful consideration, including consideration of the unanimous recommendation of a special conittee of the Board compriset
solely of disinterested directors, our Board recommnds that you vote "FOR" the proposal to authorizethe issuances of our common stock
and "FOR" the other proposals set forth in the Notice of Annual Meeting of Stockholders and the Proxgtatement.
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It is very important that you be represented at theMeeting regardless of the number of shares you owrEven if you plan to attend the
Meeting, | urge you to submit your vote prompthol¥may vote your shares via a toll-free telephamalver, over the Internet, or by marking,
signing and dating your proxy card and returning the envelope provided, as described in furttetail herein. Voting by phone, over the

Internet or by proxy card will not prevent you fromting in person, but will ensure that your vateounted if, for whatever reason, you are
unable to attend.

Your continued support and interest in@wmpany are sincerely appreciated.

Sincerely,

o F Btk 2\

Peter H. Rothschild
Interim Chairmar

These proxy materials are being maileddoldholders of record on or about May 14, 2010.




DEERFIELD CAPITAL CORP.
6250 North River Road, 9th Floor
Rosemont, lllinois 60018
(773) 380-1600

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS
To Be Held on June 9, 2010

Dear Stockholder:

You are cordially invited to attend the AmhMeeting of Stockholders (theMeeting") of Deerfield Capital Corp. (theCompany'), to be
held on June 9, 2010, at 10:00 a.m. EDT, at theesffof Schulte Roth & Zabel LLP, 919 Third Avenddew York, New York 10022.

At the Meeting, you will be asked to corsidnd vote upon proposals to:

1. Approve (i) the issuance of 4,545,4Bares of common stock, par value $0.001 peegtiae "Common StocK), of the Company (the
Acquisition Share") in connection with the Company's proposed adtiais(the "Acquisition") of Columbus Nova Credit Investments
Management, LLC (CNCIM") from Bounty Investments, LLC Bounty") pursuant to an Acquisition and Investment Agreetr(the "
Acquisition Agreemer"), dated as of March 22, 2010, by and among thagzmy, Bounty and CNCIM and (ii) the potential msce of 4,132,2:
shares of Common Stock (as such amount may betedjirscertain events or increased in connectidh thie payment of PIK Interest (as defir
herein)) (the '‘Conversion Share§ upon the conversion of $25 million in aggregatimcipal amount of senior subordinated convertidées (the
" Convertible Note$§) that Bounty has agreed to purchase pursuatiet&enior Subordinated Convertible Notes Purchageeinent (the "
Convertible Notes AgreemeNt dated as of March 22, 2010, between the CompaidyBounty (the issuance of the Acquisition Sh&rgsther
with the potential issuance of the Conversion Shate "Stock Issuance$;

2. Elect two Class Il directors tosepn the board of directors of the Company (tB®ard") for a three-year term and until their
successors have been duly elected or appointeduaiiied;

3. Ratify the appointment of DeloitteT&uche LLP as our independent registered pubbioaating firm for the fiscal year ending
December 31, 2010; and

4. Approve any adjournment or postpoaehof the Meeting, if necessary or appropriatesdiicit additional proxies in the event that there
are not sufficient votes at the time of the Meetimgpprove Proposal Nos. 1 or 2.

We will also conduct such other businessag properly come before the Meeting or any adjment thereof.
These items of business are describedrthdtidetail in the Proxy Statement accompanyiig fotice of Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

After careful consideration, including consideration of the unanimous recommendation of a special comnittee of the Board comprise(
solely of disinterested directors, our Board recommnds that you vote "FOR" Proposal Nos. 1, 2, 3 and.

Your vote is important. You should read #teached Proxy Statement and the information pmated by reference into the Proxy Statement
carefully. Whether or not you plan to attend the Meeting, yolare urged to vote your shares promptly either by teephone, by Internet or by
mail as described in further detail herein.You may revoke your proxy at any time before igxercised at the Meeting by giving written notice
to our Corporate Secretary, by attending the Megedimd voting in person or by submitting a proxyrbega later date.




These proxy materials are being maileddoldolders of record on or about May 14, 2010.
Thank you very much for your continued sanpp

By order of the Boarc

Nl (==

Robert A. Contreras
Senior Vice President, General Counsel & Secre

Rosemont, lllinois
May 11, 2010

Important Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials for the Annual Meeting of Stockholdersto be Held on June 9, 2010.

In accordance with the rules issued by the Securés and Exchange Commission, we are providing acceesour proxy materials both by
sending you this full set of proxy materials, inclding a proxy card, and by notifying you of the avdability of our proxy materials on the
Internet. We encourage you to access and review alf the important information contained in the proxy materials before voting.

The Company's Proxy Statement and Annual Report ofform 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, PO are available at
http://www.deerfieldcapital.com
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SUMMARY TERM SHEET

This summary highlights selected information frbiis Proxy Statement, the annexes attached heretdhendocuments referred to or
incorporated by reference herein, and may not coradl of the information that is important to yoBelow is a summary of the terms of the
Acquisition (as defined below) and the issuanab®fAcquisition Shares (as defined below), the €dible Notes Agreement (as defined
below) and the potential issuance of the ConverSbares (as defined below), the Senior Notes Digeh@s defined below), the Trust
Preferred Exchange (as defined below) and the DREStructuring (as defined below) (collectively, tiieansactions”) and the proposals
we are asking you to consider at the Annual Meatin§tockholders (the "Meeting"). To better undemstthe Transactions and the
proposals we are asking you to consider, you shoedd this entire Proxy Statement carefully, ad aglthose additional documents to
which we refer. Each item in this summary incluagsmge reference directing you to a more completedption of that topic. You may
obtain the information incorporated by referenctoithis Proxy Statement by following the instrusticet forth in the section entitled
"Where You Can Find More Information”. Unless othise noted or the context otherwise requires, vier® Deerfield Capital Corp. as

the "Company," "DFR," "we," "us," "our" or "our Cqoany."

The Companies (Page 31)
Deerfield Capital Corp.

We are a Maryland corporation with an Irtrent Management segment that manages approxing@eybillion of client assets (as of
January 1, 2010), including bank loans and othgrarate debt, residential mortgage-backed secsiitiRMBS"), government securities
and asset-backed securitieABS"). In addition, we have a Principal Investing seginthat has an investment portfolio comprised>afd
income investments, including bank loans and otbeporate debt and RMBS. On December 21, 2007 orgteted our acquisition of
Deerfield & Company LLC (D&C "), pursuant to a merger agreement, dated as ofkeer 17, 2007 (theMerger Agreement), among
us, DFR Merger Company, LLC (our wholly-owned sdligsiy that was merged into D&C), D&C and Triarc Quamnies, Inc. (as sellers'
representative) (theMerger"). As a result of the Merger, each of D&C and Dieddl Capital Management LLC @CM "), our investment
manager, became our indirect, wholly-owned subs&iaand we became internally managed. Histogicale had elected to be taxed as a
real estate investment trustREIT"). However, our status as a REIT terminated in@@ben we converted to a C corporation.

Bounty Investments, LLC ("Bounty")

Bounty is an investment vehicle manage&bgova U.S. Management LLCRUSM," " Columbus Novd or " CN"). Founded in
2000, Columbus Nova is a privately-held investnmaahagement firm with offices in New York, New Yakd Charlotte, North Carolina.
Bounty is controlled indirectly by Viktor Veksellggrthe Chairman of the Supervisory Committee ofRkeaova Group.

Columbus Nova Credit Investments Management, LLGCNCIM™)

CNCIM, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Bounty,an investment manager specializing in bankdo&s of December 31, 2009, CNCIM
manages approximately $1.8 billion in bank loand stnuctured product assets in Columbus Nova CL®D 2006-I, Columbus Nova
CLO Ltd. 2006-11, Columbus Nova CLO Ltd. 2007-l aBdlumbus Nova CLO Ltd. 2007-II (collectively, th& NCIM CLOs"). Founded in
2006, CNCIM is based in Charlotte, North Carolina.
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Summary of the Transactions

The Company has entered into a seriesrafeagents which provide for (i) the acquisition ddCIM in consideration for the issuance
of the Acquisition Shares, (ii) the issuance of @mnvertible Notes (as defined below) and the paikissuance of the Conversion Shares
pursuant to the Convertible Notes Agreement, tii§ payment and discharge of 100% of the prin@pabunt of outstanding Senior Notes 4
an aggregate discount of 25.6% from the face amaiutiie Senior Notes plus accrued interest, (ig)ékchange of $95 million of the
$120 million of outstanding Trust Preferred Sedesi{as defined below) for $95 million of New Suttioated Notes (as defined below),
which, among other things, results in the decresiee amount of interest payable by the Compamy(ahthe DPLC Restructuring
pursuant to which, among other things, outstandiagants issued to the Pegasus Parties (as ddfeled) to purchase three million sharesg
of Common Stock have been cancelled. See "Pringigahs of the Transactions.”

Principal Reasons for the Transactions (Page 31)

The Board and the Company's managemergvegelhat the Transactions, of which the Stock Isses are a part, are very compelling
as they offer the best opportunity to meet the ipleltobjectives of the Company's operating strat®egind should increase stockholder
value. The Acquisition will provide a significamtdrease in assets under managemeAt\ ") and management fee income, and the
related Transactions will result in the eliminatimithe Company's near-term debt maturities, redweeotal debt and remove a number of
restrictive debt covenants. As a result of thedaations with Bounty, we believe the ongoing relaship between the Company and Bount
will result in opportunities for the Company to groth organically and via acquisitions that may mave otherwise been available to the
Company.

Since March 2008, the Board and the Comgangnagement have been focused on executing opesatategies to increase
stockholder value by growing the Company throughabquisition of management contracts for collditerd debt obligations (CDOs")
(including collateralized loan obligationsCLOs")) and the consolidation of CDO managers. Theeatyias also included the exploration of
strategic transactions that could improve the Camjgeoverall position in the asset management imguSubsequent to the formulation of
the strategies, the Company was able to consoltdetecDO management contracts, Robeco CDO Il Lichéted Mayfair Euro
CDO I B.V., in July 2008 and February 2009, respety. The Company also engaged in discussions muitltiple potential strategic
partners in an effort to best position the Compiamyprofitable growth. None of these discussiorsuled in consummated transactions
because we did not believe the opportunities wensistent with the Company's strategic objectivebsaccordingly were not in the best
interests of the Company or its stockholders. Havethe Company has successfully negotiated thesi&itipn and related Transactions
which will add AUM, refinance the Company's capgalicture with long-term capital and should allitln@ Company the flexibility to fund
additional acquisitions and support organic grothtiough raising additional AUM from existing andute clients.

While the Company successfully returnegrfitability for each quarter of 2009, significasttallenges face the Company in future
years. Prominent among them is the 2012 maturith@fSenior Notes, the increasing interest ratalpi@yon the Senior Notes and the
restrictive covenants associated with the SenidedloAn important aspect of the Transactions isrtireediate retirement of the Senior
Notes at a significant discount through the isseasfche Convertible Notes with less restrictiveemants and a longer maturity, which
significantly increases the Company's financiatifidity going forward. If the holders of the Contible Notes elect to convert them to
Common Stock, the Company's balance sheet willeblewkred significantly and it will have no neamtedebt maturity or refinancing
issues.

In order to satisfy conditions of the Traciions, the Company was able to negotiate sigmifieconomic benefits relating to the
exchange of $95 million of the Trust Preferred 3ities for the New

—
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Subordinated Notes. These benefits include a sogmf reduction in our interest expenses for figang upon the satisfaction of certain
conditions and the elimination of restrictive fiéal covenants.

Taken as a whole, the Transactions arsfwamative for the Company in that we believe tebguld allow for growth in AUM and
revenue, a reduction in interest expense and disgmtly stronger balance sheet going forward. Mgéeve these actions create value for
the Company's stockholders while providing a fiouridation for future growth and value enhancement.

Principal Terms of the Transactions (Page 32)
The Acquisition and Issuance of the Acquisition Stes

On March 22, 2010, the Company enteredantécquisition and Investment Agreement (thcquisition Agreemeri) with Bounty
and CNCIM, pursuant to which the Company has agteedquire all of the outstanding equity intereft€NCIM from Bounty (the "
Acquisition") for a total purchase price of $32.5 million cimtimg of (i) the issuance of 4,545,455 shareafamplied price of $5.50 per
share) (the Acquisition Share¥) of the Company's common stock, par value $0@€1share (the Common Stoc¥, and (ii) deferred
payments totaling $7.5 million in cash payableive fequal annual installments beginning six morttter the closing date of the
Acquisition and the issuance of the Convertiblegddthe "Closing Dat€'). The Acquisition Shares would represent appratety 40.2%
of the issued and outstanding Common Stock aseoReicord Date on a fully diluted basis.

The Company has agreed to pay the cosao$ferring the operations of CNCIM as estimatedhenClosing Date, which are currently
estimated to be approximately $1.2 million. Bouh&s agreed to pay the costs in excess of such anBuumty has also agreed to
indemnify the Company for losses relating to CNGldperating liabilities arising prior to the ClogiDate (other than liabilities under
certain employment agreements, liabilities relatm¢he CNCIM CLOs' management agreements, ligslitelating to actions taken
pursuant to the Transition Services Agreement édimeld below) and the expenses of the transfepefations described above) for one yea
from the Closing Date, as well as certain pre-ciggax liabilities for three years from the Closibgte, up to $5 million in the aggregate.

The Acquisition Agreement contains custgnmrapresentations and warranties by CNCIM, limitegresentations and warranties by
Bounty with respect to CNCIM and customary représtions and warranties by the Company. The Acdaisifgreement also contains
customary covenants of CNCIM and the Company, dtialy with respect to the operation of their respedbusinesses between the date of
the Acquisition Agreement and the Closing Date.

The consummation of the transactions coptatad by the Acquisition Agreement (th€lbsing") is subject to several closing
conditions, including, among other things, the appt by the Company's stockholders of the Stockdsses (as defined below), the
consummation of the Senior Notes Discharge (aseéfbelow), the absence of certain governmentatcaints and the absence of a
material adverse effect on the business of CNCIltherCompany.

The Acquisition Agreement contains certaimmination rights for the Company and Bounty aravjles that, upon the termination of
the Acquisition Agreement under specified circumsts, the Company will be required to pay to Bountgrmination fee in the amount of
$1.5 million, plus Bounty's reasonable and docuetout-of-pocket legal fees and expenses in commmeeith the Acquisition Agreement,
the transactions contemplated by the Acquisitione&gent and the negotiations leading up to the i&agqn Agreement. At the Closing,
the Company will pay Bounty's (i) reasonable andusheented out-of-pocket legal fees and expensegiiamdasonable and documented
out-of-pocket financial advisor fees and expensemiamount not to exceed $500,000 in connectitim e Acquisition Agreement, the
transactions contemplated by the Acquisition Agreenand the negotiations leading up to the AcqaisiAgreement and the transactions
contemplated by the Acquisition Agreement.

=
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Pursuant to a Stockholders Agreement (tBtkholders Agreemeftto be entered into between the Company and Boomthe
Closing Date, the Company has agreed to increassizk of its board of directors (th®&bard") to nine members, and Bounty will have the
right to designate three of our directors (one bbm must qualify as an independent director if ssagy to ensure that a majority of the
members of the Board are independent) so long astBa@wns at least 25% of the outstanding CommoxlS{calculated assuming all
Conversion Shares (as defined below) then issyablant to the Convertible Notes (as defined bepkoe outstanding (theOutstanding
Common Stock), two directors so long as Bounty owns at €& of the Outstanding Common Stock and one direxidong as Bounty
owns at least 5% of the Outstanding Common StookinBy will also have the right to appoint one Boabderver so long as Bounty owns
at least 15% of the Outstanding Common Stock. 8deration on Our Board of Directors and Its Cortisés—Bounty Designees."
Pursuant to the Stockholders Agreement, for so EmBounty owns at least 5% of the Outstanding Com8tock, the Company will
adopt, and continue to maintain, a majority votiytaw (the "Majority Voting Bylaw") substantially in the form attached as Annex D to
this Proxy Statement requiring that, in uncontestiedtions, each nominee for election to the Boaudt be elected by a majority of the
votes cast at a meeting called for the electiodir@ictors. Bounty would own approximately 40.2%tof Company's Common Stock issued
and outstanding on the Record Date on a fully dduiasis as a result of the issuance of the Adoprisshares (and approximately 56.2% of
the Company's Common Stock if, in addition, althed Convertible Notes to be purchased by Bountii@Closing are converted), and will
therefore have substantial ability (or the absohaeer) to block the election of any director noatad by the Nominating & Corporate
Governance Committee of our Board (thddminating Committe® as a result of the Majority Voting Bylaw. Seaférmation on our
Board of Directors and its Committees—Majority fagiBylaw."

Pursuant to the Stockholders AgreementBiterd will establish a strategic committee of Bward (the "Strategic Committe®,
which will continue to exist for so long as Boumtwns at least 25% of the Outstanding Common Sfble&. Strategic Committee will
initially consist of four members: two directorssifnated by Bounty and two directors designatethbge independent directors of the
Company not designated by Bounty. The Strategic i@ittee will report and make recommendations toBbard regarding implementing
certain strategic initiatives. None of Bounty'shtigwith respect to the Board or the Strategic Cdtemare transferable, including in
connection with any sale by Bounty of its Commoac&tor Convertible Notes.

Pursuant to the Stockholders Agreementsdédong as Bounty owns at least 5% of the Outsgn@ommon Stock, if the Company
proposes to issue any securities (subject to spdafceptions), including shares of Common Stottker capital stock or convertible
securities, then Bounty will have a preemptive tighpurchase securities in such issuance up frdétsata portion of such securities
(calculated based solely on the Common Stock issuésuable to Bounty upon conversion of the Catilsle Notes as a percentage of the
then-outstanding Common Stock prior to the issuarficeich securities) at the same purchase pritdeecaSompany's proposed issuance to
other purchasers.

Pursuant to the Stockholders AgreementnBohas agreed that, until the earlier of the tlindiversary of the Closing or the date on
which Bounty owns less than 15% of the Outstan@ogimon Stock, Bounty will not, either alone or tthgee with others, engage in any
proxy contest for the election of the Company'sdirs or make any stockholder proposals with r@dspethe Company. Bounty has also
agreed that as a condition precedent to any saitedbyCommon Stock representing 15% or more ofGhestanding Common Stock, Bounty
will require the buyer of such Common Stock to agieabide by these restrictions. Pursuant to tbekBolders Agreement, Bounty has
agreed that, until the earlier of the third annsaey of the Closing or the date on which Bounty s\ass than 10% of the Outstanding
Common Stock, Bounty will not engage in Short Séesdefined in the Stockholders Agreement) orrente any swap or other
arrangement that transfers
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to another person any of the economic consequaiaasnership of the Common Stock or Convertible é$ot

In connection with the Acquisition Agreememe entered into a Transition Services Agreenfiiet " Transition Services Agreement
with Bounty and CNCIM, pursuant to which we areypding services to CNCIM in connection with CNCIMtsnagement of the CNCIM
CLOs.

The Convertible Notes Agreement and Potential Issoa of the Conversion Shares

On March 22, 2010, the Company enteredanBenior Subordinated Convertible Notes Agreerfteet” Convertible Notes Agreement
") with Bounty pursuant to which Bounty has agréegurchase for cash $25 million in aggregate ppalcamount of our senior
subordinated convertible notes (th€dnvertible Notes), convertible into 4,132,231 shares of Commorcki@s such amount may be
adjusted in certain events or increased in conoeetith the payment of PIK Interest (as definecg) (the "Conversion Sharey at an
initial conversion price of $6.05 per share, subje@djustment. Together with the Acquisition Stsathe Conversion Shares would
represent approximately 56.2% of the issued anstading Common Stock as of the Record Date aftepetion of the Transactions. The
issuance of the Acquisition Shares and the potideisance of the Conversion Shares are collegtineferred to as the Stock Issuance$
We may issue and sell up to an additional $25 omlbf Convertible Notes under the Convertible Na&tgseement, subject to Bounty's
approval, although we have no agreement with réspeany such additional issuances at this time Adlders of Convertible Notes will
have the right, at any time, to convert the priatgmount of the Convertible Notes held by sucldé into Conversion Shares at the
conversion rate, which will initially be approxinedf 165.29 shares per $1,000 principal amount afv@dible Notes (the Conversion Rate
") (equal to a conversion price of $6.05 per shae)l is subject to adjustment from time to timesjoecified events.

The total number of shares of Common Stsslable upon conversion of the Convertible Notag increase from time to time due to
any one or more of the following factors:

. the issuance of up to $25 million in aggregategpal amount of additional Convertible Notes;
. the payment of interest in-kind PIK Interest") on the Convertible Notes then outstanding (aswhsed below); and
. adjustments to the Conversion Rate due to custoaraidilution adjustments and a price protectioovision set forth in the

Convertible Notes Agreement.

Stockholders are being asked to approvésthance of all Conversion Shares then issualskupnt to the Conversion Rate as the
same may be adjusted throughout the term of thev€rthle Notes Agreement pursuant to the foreggirayisions.

We intend to close the issuance and safleeo€onvertible Notes to Bounty simultaneouslyhwifte closing of the Acquisition on the
Closing Date. All Convertible Notes issued on thesthg Date or thereafter will mature on the datst is seven years and six months
following the Closing Date. Interest on the Coniset Notes will be payable to the holders of then@artible Notes quarterly in arrears on
each January 1, April 1, July 1 and October 1. Thepany will pay interest in cash at a per annuie starting at 8% and increasing to
11% depending on the interest period in which ggers due and payable; provided, that the Compaay; in its sole discretion and upon
notice to the holders of the Convertible Notesctete pay up to 50% of the interest payment dusntpholder of the Convertible Notes in
PIK Interest, so long as the payment of PIK Intevasuld not be prohibited by, or constitute a défander, any other indebtedness or
preferred stock (if outstanding) of the Company asdubsidiaries (aPIK Election™). To the extent that the Company has made a PIK
Election, then the Company will pay interest akagnnum rate (thePIK Interest Raté) ranging from 10% to 12% depending upon the
interest period in which interest is due and pagalblthe




Table of Contents

Company makes a PIK Election, then the PIK InteRage will apply to the calculation of all interekte (in cash or in-kind) on the date
upon which interest is due and payable to the lsldethe Convertible Notes and for all subseqpentods for which interest is paid.

We may not redeem the Convertible Notesrga the second anniversary of the Closing Dalter&after, the Company may redeem a
or a part of the Convertible Notes upon not lesstBO nor more than 60 days' notice to the holdktise Convertible Notes at a redemption
price equal to 100% of the principal amount of @@vertible Notes plus (i) if the redemption daen or prior to the third anniversary of
the Closing Date, a premium equal to the interast then in effect as an additional percentagein€ipal amount and (ii) if the redemption
date is after the third anniversary of the Cloddaie but on or prior to the fourth anniversaryh## Closing Date, a premium equal to one-
half of the interest rate then in effect as an tolakl percentage of principal amount, in each cpkes accrued and unpaid interest on the
Convertible Notes redeemed to the applicable retiempate. The Company is not required to makeraagdatory redemption or sinking
fund payments in respect of the Convertible Notes.

The Convertible Notes Agreement contairgt@mary representations, warranties and covengridobnty and the Company, including
negative covenants that restrict the Company'#tyhil effect a consolidation or merger, or sethnisfer, lease or otherwise dispose of all o
substantially all of its assets. The consummatioth® transactions contemplated by the Convertilées Agreement is subject to several
closing conditions, including, among other thinte approval of the Stock Issuances by the Compatgtkholders, the consummation of
the Acquisition, the consummation of the Senioréds$dDischarge and the absence of certain governhuamtstraints.

The Convertible Notes Agreement contairenéyv of default customary for agreements of it tfgpith customary grace periods, as
applicable) and provides that, upon the occurrefi@m event of default arising from certain evesftbankruptcy or insolvency with respect
to the Company and its material subsidiaries, @t$t@nding Convertible Notes will become due angapte immediately without further
action or notice. If any other type of event ofaléf occurs and is continuing, then the holderatdéast 33/ 3% in principal amount of the
then outstanding Convertible Notes may declarefélhe outstanding Convertible Notes to be due@mdble immediately.

The Senior Notes Discharge

On March 22, 2010, the Company and D&C hally-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered amf@ayment Agreement and
Release (the Senior Notes Discharge Agreemé&ntvith the holders of the Series A Senior SecMetkes issued by D&C (theSeries A
Notes") and the holders of the Series B Senior SecuregNissued by D&C (theSeries B Notesand, together with the Series A Notes,
the "Senior Note$), pursuant to which we have agreed with the haldé the Senior Notes to discharge all of the apipnately
$48.9 million in aggregate principal amount of 8srA Notes outstanding at approximately 64.1% efthincipal amount thereof plus
accrued interest, and all of the approximately $2illion in aggregate principal amount of the 8eB Notes outstanding at approximately
94.5% of the principal amount thereof plus accrierest, or an aggregate discount of approximablg% from the face amount of the
Senior Notes plus accrued interest (tt&ehior Notes Dischardd. The Company is required to consummate the $éhites Discharge if
the Company completes one or more debt or equignfiing transactions or recapitalization transasti@r any combination of debt or
equity financing and recapitalization transactiomg)ich result in cash proceeds to the Company&Ch an aggregate amount of at least
$25 million on or prior to July 31, 2010. The iseoa of the Convertible Notes would trigger thisuiegment. The Company intends to use
the proceeds of the issuance of the Convertible®dbgether with other available funds, to effaetSenior Notes Discharge. Upon
consummation of the Senior Notes Discharge, alpakibns and liabilities of the Company and D&C anthe Senior Notes will be released
and the intercreditor agreement related to thed@éwtes will be terminated.
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Effective upon the date of the Senior N@éscharge Agreement, the Company released cenfdire holders of the Senior Notes from
their obligation to indemnify the Company for losselated to certain matters pursuant to the tefitise Merger Agreement (which
indemnification obligations would otherwise havenegned in effect until June 30, 2010).

The Trust Preferred Exchange

On March 4, 2010, the Company enteredamt@xchange agreement (thEXchange Agreemehtwith Taberna Preferred Funding
V, Ltd., Taberna Preferred Funding VII, Ltd., TatePreferred Funding VIII, Ltd. and Taberna Preféffunding IX Ltd. (collectively, "
Taberna"), to exchange $95 million of the $120 million aggate outstanding principal amount of trust preféisecurities (the Trust
Preferred Securitie®) previously issued by three wholly-owned indireabsidiaries of the Company, Deerfield CapitalstiyDeerfield
Capital Trust Il and Deerfield Capital Trust I1§rf$95 million aggregate outstanding principal amtaaf junior subordinated notes (the "
New Subordinated Noté&kissued by the Company (thtust Preferred Exchandg®. The Trust Preferred Exchange was completed on
March 4, 2010. An aggregate of $25 million in pipat amount of Trust Preferred Securities issue®bgrfield Capital Trust | were not
exchanged and remain outstanding.

The New Subordinated Notes are governed joyior subordinated indenture (thdléw Indenture), dated March 4, 2010, between
the Company and The Bank of New York Mellon Trustpany, National Association, as trustee. Purstgatite New Indenture, the New
Subordinated Notes bear a fixed interest rate@¥%. per annum commencing on April 30, 2010, payghkaterly through April 30, 2015
or an earlier date upon which certain specifiecheveccur (the Modification Period"). Thereafter, the New Subordinated Notes will be
subject to a variable interest rate equal to LIB@S 2.58% per annum, payable quarterly on the thestanding principal amount of the
New Subordinated Notes until maturity on OctoberZuB5. The Company may redeem the New Subordinddées on or after October 30,
2010 at par for cash or replacement securitiespaabke to the holders.

The New Indenture contains certain restectovenants including, among other things, @paenant that requires all asset
management activities to be conducted by the Cognpad its subsidiaries, and which permits the Cama sell equity and material
assets of DCM only if all asset management feegpanckeeds from equity and asset sales are subj#ue fimits on restricted payments set
forth in the New Indenture, (ii) a debt covenaratthermits the Company and DCM to incur indebtedmedy if the proceeds of such
indebtedness are subject to the limits on resttipeyments set forth in the New Indenture and diiigstricted payments covenant that
restricts the ability of the Company to pay divideror make distributions in respect of its equégLgities, subject to a number of
exceptions and conditions. If the Company failsdamplete one or more transactions that in the aggeeresult in the repayment or
refinancing of the Senior Notes upon terms thatrowe the credit position of the holders of the N&wbordinated Notes by satisfying all of
the following conditions: (i) increased pro fornmadrest coverage; (ii) reduced pro forma debt-toigqatio; (iii) the aggregate principal
amount of any permitted refinancing indebtednesteuthe New Indenture is less than the aggregateipal amount of the Senior Notes;
and (iv) after such transaction(s), the pro forr#A® consolidated net worth of the Company is eithesitive or has improved (aCredit
Enhancing Transactiol) within certain time periods, then the Modifiaati Period will terminate and certain exceptionth®restricted
payments covenant will no longer be available e@ompany. We currently expect that the issuant¢keo€onvertible Notes and
consummation of the Senior Notes Discharge wilk§athe requirement that the Company completeedi€Enhancing Transaction.
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Deerfield Pegasus Loan Capital LP ("DPLC") Restruating

The Company announced on March 22, 201f0tteatered into a Termination Agreement (thEetmination Agreemerij with
Pegasus Deerfield (AlV), LLC, (thePegasus Investd?), PGS Management, LLC, M ", and together with the Pegasus Investor, the "
Pegasus Partie¥, DPLC, DCM, DPLC General Partner LLC,PLC GP"), Deerfield Loan Manager LLC (OLM " and together with the
Company, DCM and DLM, theDeerfield Parties’) and Jonathan Trutter, pursuant to which (i) Bregasus Parties waived certain rights
with respect to the Stock Issuances and (ii) therfiedd Parties and the Pegasus Parties termimatathended certain provisions of
agreements related to DPLC and cancelled warrargarchase three million shares of Common Stockghwis all of the warrants
previously issued to the Pegasus Parties (DBLC Restructuring). Pursuant to the Termination Agreement, (i) DG@ and DPLC
released all partners of DPLC from their unfundegi@l commitments to DPLC as of the date of theniieation Agreement, (ii) DPLC
will make distributions of $9.0 million to the Pesyss Investor and an amount equal to his entirgalaagcount balance to Jonathan Trutter
and (iii) on or after the date the Pegasus Invasieives the distribution described in clause P)C GP will be permitted to withdraw an
amount equal to the entire portion of its capitalaunt attributable to DLM's investment in DLC GRialistribute such amount to DLM.
Additionally, the Company will grant the Pegasusdstor and certain of its associates warrants tchase an aggregate of 250,000 shares
of Common Stock at an exercise price of $4.25 pares

Selected Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Fincial Data (Page 92)

The following selected unaudited pro formeadensed combined financial data was prepared tisenpurchase method of accounting,
with the Company treated as the acquirer. The wamaudited pro forma condensed combined statsmépperations for the year ended
December 31, 2009 data gives effect to the Traimsects if they had occurred on January 1, 2008.ufaudited pro forma condensed
combined balance sheet data at December 31, 2088 gifect to the Transactions as if they had secuon December 31, 2009.

The unaudited pro forma condensed combiimedicial data is provided for illustration purpssanly and does not purport to represent
what the actual combined results of operationsnaniial position of the Company would have beeththe Transactions occurred at the
beginning of the period presented or on the datieated, nor is it necessarily indicative of futegerating results or financial position. The
selected unaudited pro forma condensed combineddial data as of and for the for the year endezkBer 31, 2009 is derived from the
unaudited pro forma condensed combined financiaéstents included elsewhere in this Proxy Statemetiishould be read in conjunction
with those statements and the related notes. Seautlited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financiatrirdtion."

Selected Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined $taments of Operations Data:

Year Ended
December 31, 2009

(in thousands)

Net interest incom $ 32,64¢
Provision for loan losse 20,11«
Investment advisory fee 26,10(
Total net revenu 38,63
Total expensi 37,71(
Net other income and ga 74,92¢
Net income 73,88
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Selected Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Balce Sheet Data:

As of
December 31, 2009

(in thousands)

Cash and cash equivalel $ 20,70¢
Total asset 701,10:
Long-term debi 354,62!
Total stockholders' equit 27,47(

Regulatory Approvals To Be Obtained in Connection \th the Transactions(Page 63)

We do not believe that the Company, Boumt&NCIM are required to obtain any U.S. federastate regulatory approvals to
complete the Transactions described herein. ItJthieed States, we must comply with applicable fatland state securities laws and the
Listing Rules of the NASDAQ Stock Market LLC ASDAQ") in connection with the Stock Issuances. The Canyphas applied to have
the Acquisition Shares and the Conversion Shasesdlion NASDAQ.

Interests of Certain of our Directors and ExecutiveOfficers in the Transactions (Page 63)

Peter W. May, a member of the Board, isr@ctbr of and, indirectly, a significant stockhetdn Wendy's/Arby's Group, Inc., which

owns approximately $48.9 million in principal amowh Series A Notes that are expected to be diggthby the Company for an aggregaté

amount of approximately $30.8 million plus all uitband accrued interest in cash as of the closaig df the Transactions. Mr. May has
indicated that he intends to resign from the Bdalldwing the consummation of the Transactions thelBoard intends to fill the vacancy
created thereby with an individual who qualifiesaasindependent director.

Jonathan W. Trutter, our Chief Executivdicf and a member of the Board, owns approximakél7,000 in principal amount of
Series A Notes that are expected to be dischargéidebCompany for an aggregate amount of approxin&408,000 plus all unpaid and
accrued interest in cash as of the closing dateeof ransactions.

On March 22, 2010, we entered into a letgreement (the 2010 Rothschild Compensation Agreenigntith Peter H. Rothschild
setting forth the fees payable to him for his sagias Interim Chairman of the Board for the yealireg December 31, 2010. The 2010
Rothschild Compensation Agreement provides forseliae during 2010 of $41,667 per month and anresgeeimbursement of $10,000
per month for expenses relating to office spadeyimation technology and other items which Mr. Rathild pays to his firm which
provides him with office space and related infasture. This agreement is subject to cancellatjpomuB0 days' notice at the discretion of
the Compensation Committee of the Board (t@®impensation Committéeas well as upon the occurrence of certain osipecified
events. The 2010 Rothschild Compensation Agreemdsatprovides for two discretionary fees, a "Cdpitansaction Success Fee" not to
exceed $1 million and a "Non-Capital Transactioec®ss Fee" not to exceed $500,000, which may lkifpegrtain specified conditions
are met. The conditions for payment of the disoretry fees include, but are not limited to, Mr. IRathild playing an instrumental role in
arranging and completing a strategic transactiahghbstantially increases shareholder value. Tdreg@nsation Committee has complete
discretion over whether to award the Capital Tratisa Success Fee and the Non-Capital TransactioneSs Fee and over the amount of
the fees and the portion payable as cash or ndnemampensation, and the Compensation Committeadtaget finally determined the
amount of such fees to be paid in connection withdonsummation of the Transactions.

In consideration of their services rendeasdnembers of the special committee of the Bahrd"(Special Committe®, Robert E.
Fischer and Stuart I. Oran are each entitled topsorsation in an amount equal to $15,000 per morttht¢ exceed $90,000 total) and
Robert B. Machinist, as

D
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Chairman of the Special Committee, is entitleddmpensation in an amount equal to $45,000 per mwtto exceed $180,000 total).

The Compensation Committee has discusseddiyet finally determined to award special basus officers and directors of the
Company upon consummation of the Transactions.Spfeeial Committee has advised Bounty that such $es)uf paid, together with any
discretionary fees paid pursuant to the 2010 Rbills€ompensation Agreement, would not exceed #iillon in the aggregate.

Impact of the Stock Issuances on Existing Stockhotds (Page 64)
The Stock Issuances will significantly ddihe Common Stock ownership percentages of astimx stockholders.

. Assuming the issuance of the 4,545,455 Acquisiibares and no other issuances of shares as cdtthefdapproval by our
stockholders, Bounty would own approximately 40.@P6ur Common Stock issued and outstanding aseoRécord Date on
a fully diluted basis.

. Assuming the issuance of the Acquisition Shares, éddition Bounty elects to convert the entir® $2illion in aggregate
principal amount of the Convertible Notes and weehaot elected to pay PIK Interest, we expectdaésapproximately
4,132,231 Conversion Shares. In such event Bountydwown approximately 56.2% of our Common Stockiedd and
outstanding as of the Record Date on a fully dduiesis.

. Assuming the issuance of the Acquisition Shares, @ddition Bounty elects to convert the entirmgipal amount of the
Convertible Notes and we have elected to pay théman permitted amount of PIK Interest, we woulghest the maximum
amount of Conversion Shares to be issued to beozippately 5,208,869. In such event Bounty would approximately
59.1% of our Common Stock issued and outstandiraf e Record Date on a fully diluted basis.

The actual number of Conversion Sharesatdsunay vary due to the adjustment provisionsi@éGonvertible Notes, including in
respect of the issuance of shares of our Commark$toother equity securities by the Company, mexrge sales of assets by the Compan
dividends or distributions of cash or property bg Company, spin-offs or tender or exchange offsssa result of the Stock Issuances,
Bounty will become a significant stockholder of iempany with substantial influence (or even cdhwger matters submitted to a vote of
our stockholders, including the election of direst@mendment of our organizational documents, iaitiuns or other business
combinations involving the Company and potentidtly ability to prevent extraordinary transactionstsas a takeover attempt.

The Stockholders Agreement provides thBoifinty holds at least 25% of the Outstanding Com&tock (including shares issuable
upon conversion of the Convertible Notes), Bounily lmave the right to designate three out of niirectors to the Board (one of whom
must qualify as an independent director if necgstkaensure that a majority of the members of tharl are independent). If Bounty holds
less than 25% but 15% or more of the Outstandingi@on Stock, then Bounty will have the right to desite two out of nine directors to
the Board, and if Bounty holds less than 15% butds%more of the Outstanding Common Stock, Bounty lave the right to designate one
director out of nine directors to the Board. Upemsummation of the Transactions, the Board wilhlelth the Strategic Committee
consisting of two directors designated by Bountgt amo directors designated by those independeattdirs of the Company not designated
by Bounty. The Strategic Committee will report andke recommendations to the Board regarding imphimge certain strategic initiatives.
As a result, the directors elected to the Boar@bynty may exercise significant influence on matieonsidered by the Board. Bounty may
have interests that diverge from, or even conflith, those of the Company and its other stockhslde

y
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As of December 31, 2009, the Company hadperating losses (NOLs") of approximately $209.0 million, which will begito expire
in 2028 if not used, and net capital losseNCLs") of approximately $422.8 million, which will bagito expire in 2012 if not used. The
issuance of the Acquisition Shares will resultim"®wnership Change" for purposes of Sections 382383 of the Internal Revenue Code
of 1986, as amended (th€€bde"). As a result of the occurrence of the Ownergbliange, our ability to use our NOLs, NCLs and ¢erta
built-in losses to reduce our taxable income intarke year would generally be limited to an anrambunt (the 'Section 382 Limitatiot)
equal to the fair market value of the Common Stoukediately prior to the Ownership Change multigli®y the long term tax-exempt
interest rate in effect in the month of the Owngrsbhange, which for the month of April 2010 is 2%6.

Our Charter currently contains transfetrieions to prevent investors from aggregating evghip of our Common Stock and
triggering an Ownership Change. Since the issuahtiee Acquisition Shares will result in an Owneps@hange, our Board has exempted
the Stock Issuances from the restrictions set fortrticle 1X of the Charter. If the Transactioase consummated and the Acquisition
Shares are issued to Bounty, our Board has agogednhinate the restrictions on ownership and fearontained in Article IX of the
Charter.

Dissenters' or Appraisal Rights of Existing Stockhtiers (Page 65)

Under applicable Maryland law, the Comparsgbckholders do not have dissenters' or appnagges in connection with the Stock
Issuances, and we do not plan to independentlyiggatockholders with any such rights.

Vote Required and Recommendation of the Special Camittee and the Board (Page 65)

For the approval of the Stock Issuances,may vote in favor of the proposal, against th@ppsal or abstain from voting. If a quorum
is present, approval of the proposal requires tfieretive vote of a majority of all votes cast thre proposal.

In developing its recommendation to thekltmlders to vote in favor of the Stock Issuantes,Special Committee and the Board
considered many factors, including the positive aadative factors described in the section of Bisxy Statement entitled "Proposal
No. 1—Approval of the Stock Issuances—Vote Requiared Recommendation of the Special Committee am@tard"”, and concluded that]
the Stock Issuances are advisable and in the ttesests of the Company and its stockholders. @ard@believes that the Company's
financial position, capital structure and businegkbe strengthened as a result of the Acquisitiowl the Stock Issuances and the use of
proceeds thereof.

After careful consideration, including cafesation of the unanimous recommendation of thecg& Committee, our Board, other than
Peter W. May who because of a conflict of inteteek no part in the consideration of the Acquisitar the Stock Issuances, recommends
that the Company's stockholders voteOR " Proposal No. 1.

Election of Class Il Directors (Page 70)

The term of the Class lll directors, JomathV. Trutter and Robert B. Machinist, expireshat Meeting. Those directors have been
nominated for re-election to serve as directorsaftarm expiring at our annual meeting in 2013 amidl their successors are duly appointed
or qualified.

For the election of directors, you may viotéavor of one or both of the nominees or withlthgbur vote as to one or both of the
nominees. You will be voting with respect to themioees that were nominated by our Board basedrenanmendation from the
Nominating Committee and you will not be able taevfor more than two persons. If a quorum is pregben the nominees receiving a
plurality of all of the votes cast at the Meetinil e elected.
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Our Board recommends a voteOR " the election as directors of each of Jonatham ktter and Robert B. Machinist.

Ratification of Deloitte (Page 72)

The Audit Committee of our Board (thAudit Committe&) has appointed Deloitte & Touche LLP¥Eloitte") to audit the financial
statements of the Company for the fiscal year enfiacember 31, 2010. Deloitte was our independ®gistered public accounting firm for
our 2008 and 2009 fiscal years. Deloitte represmemare expected to attend the Meeting and, thierewill have the opportunity to make 4
statement and be available to respond to questiorise event of a negative vote on such ratifaatthe Audit Committee will reconsider
its selection.

For the proposal to ratify the appointmeibDeloitte as our independent registered publepaating firm for the fiscal year ending
December 31, 2010, you may vote in favor of theopsal, vote against the proposal or abstain frotimgolf a quorum is present, approval
of the proposal requires the affirmative vote ofiajority of all votes cast on the proposal.

Our Board recommends a voteOR " ratification of the appointment of Deloitte asrandependent registered public accounting firm
for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2010.

12
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QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THE MEETING AND VOTING

The following are some of the questions, and ansteethose questions, that you as a stockholdéreo€ompany may have regarding the
Acquisition, the Stock Issuances and the otherarsltieing considered at the Meeting to which thisx? Statement relates. The informatior

this section does not provide all of the informatibat may be important to you with respect torttaters being considered at the Meeting.
Therefore, you should read this Proxy Statemergfadly, as well as the full contents of the othecwiments to which this Proxy Statement refers
or incorporates by reference. These documents goirttormation that may be important to you in detging how you will vote on the matters
be considered at the Meeting. See "Where You Qah More Information” beginning on Page 132.

Q: When is the Meeting and where will it be hel@d

A:

The Meeting will be held on June 9, 2010, at 1&00. EDT, at the offices of Schulte Roth & ZabelR,1919 Third Avenue, New York,
New York 10022. The date, time and place of anp@atiment or postponement of the Meeting will beleshed in accordance with our
governing documents and applicable law. Directionthe Meeting are posted on the "DFR Stockhold&r"Isection of our website,
http://www.deerfieldcapital.comand may also be obtained by contacting our LBgglartment, in writing, at Deerfield Capital Corp.,
Attn: General Counsel, 6250 North River Road, 9toF Rosemont, lllinois 60018 or by phone at (738)-1600. Information on our
website is not incorporated into this Proxy Statetne

Why am | receiving these proxy materials?

You are receiving a Proxy Statement because yoa weecord owner of shares of the Company's ConBtack on the Record Date, and
that entitles you to vote on the matters being ictmmed at the Meeting. This Proxy Statement isgiesd to assist you in voting and
provides the information that we are required tovjte to you under the rules of the Securities Brchange Commission (theSEC").

What am | being asked to vote on?

You are being asked to vote on the following matter

1.

Approval of (i) the issuance 4,545,455 shares ah@on Stock (at an implied price of $5.50 per shar€pnnection with the
Company's proposed Acquisition of CNCIM from Bouaty (ii) the potential issuance of 4,132,231 shafecCommon Stock (as
such amount may be adjusted in certain eventscoeased in connection with the payment of PIK ked€rupon the conversion of
$25 million in aggregate principal amount of Coril®e Notes that Bounty has agreed to purchaseeaCtosing (if converted at
the initial Conversion Rate). As described in maetail in this Proxy Statement, the Company inteindsse the proceeds of the
sale of the Convertible Notes, together with ofineds, to pay and discharge all of the approxinya@é million in aggregate
principal amount of Senior Notes outstanding fomggregate purchase price of $55 million plus aadiinterest, which is an
aggregate discount of approximately 25.6% fromrtfegie amount. The reduction to the interest ren$ and the modification to
the restricted payment covenant in the New SubatdihNotes issued in the Trust Preferred Exchanija@at remain in place
unless we complete a Credit Enhancing Transadonsummation of the Senior Notes Discharge wilk§athis requirement.
(See "Proposal No. 1—Approval of the Stock IssuaneRrincipal Terms of the Transactions");

Election of two Class Il directors to serve on Bward for a three-year term and until their susoes have been duly elected or
appointed and qualified;

Ratification of the appointment of Deloitte as mutependent registered public accounting firm Far fiscal year ending
December 31, 2010; and
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4, Approval of any adjournment or postponement ofNteeting, if necessary or appropriate, to solictitidnal proxies in the event
that there are not sufficient votes at the timéhefMeeting to approve Proposal Nos. 1 and 2.

We will also conduct such other business as mayggstp come before the Meeting or any adjournmeeitetf.
Q: Why is stockholder approval of the Stock Issances described in Proposal No. 1 required?

A: Under NASDAQ Listing Rule 5635(a), stockholder apl is required prior to the issuance of a listethpany's common stock when the
aggregate number of shares to be issued in copnegtith the acquisition of stock or assets of aabttompany exceeds 20% of the total
outstanding shares of common stock of such compafore the issuance.

Pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement, we haveedjte issue 4,545,455 shares of our Common StoBlotmty in connection with our
acquisition of CNCIM. Pursuant to the Convertibletés Agreement, we have also agreed to issue ##6min aggregate principal
amount of Convertible Notes to Bounty for cash. Tuavertible Notes are convertible at the holdapson into Common Stock of the
Company at any time at the Conversion Rate, whidlhinitially be approximately 165.29 shares per,®&I0 principal amount of
Convertible Notes (equal to a conversion price@0$ per share) subject to adjustment in certaémesv Accordingly, the Convertible
Notes will initially be convertible into 4,132,23hares of Common Stock (as such amount may betedjirscertain events or increase!
connection with the payment of PIK Interest). Then@ertible Notes bear interest at rates rangingn 886 to 11%, and the Company may
elect to pay 50% of the interest on the Convertibdges in-kind as PIK Interest (in which case iagtrates will range from 10% to 12%).
To the extent that we pay PIK Interest, additistedres of Common Stock will be issuable to the érotd the Convertible Notes at the
Conversion Rate on the full amount of such PIK iesé

The number of shares to be issued in the Acquisjtias the number of shares initially issuable uponversion of the Convertible Notes
equals approximately 56.2% of our Common Stockedsand outstanding on the Record Date.

Q: Will the Stock Issuances described in Proposélo. 1 dilute the existing stockholders' percentag of ownership in the Company?

A: Yes. The issuance of the Acquisition Shares an€tveversion Shares will significantly dilute yowigting holdings of our Common
Stock.

. Assuming the issuance of the 4,545,455 Acquisiibares and no other issuances of shares as cdtthefdapproval by our
stockholders, Bounty would own approximately 40.@6ur Common Stock issued and outstanding aseoRécord Date
on a fully diluted basis, and your ownership wiMe been diluted by that amount.

. Assuming the issuance of the Acquisition Shares, éddition Bounty elects to convert the entir® $2illion in aggregate
principal amount of the Convertible Notes and weehaot elected to pay PIK Interest, we expectsagsapproximately
4,132,231 Conversion Shares. In such event Bountydwown approximately 56.2% of our Common Stoduéd and
outstanding as of the Record Date on a fully dduiesis.

. Assuming the consummation of the issuance of thguisition Shares, if in addition Bounty elects tmeert the entire

$25 million in aggregate principal amount of then@ertible Notes and we have elected to pay the maixi permitted
amount of PIK Interest, we would expect the maximammount of Conversion Shares to be issued to bezippately
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Q:

Q:

5,208,869. In such event Bounty would own approx@iya59.1% of our Common Stock issued and outstands of the
Record Date on a fully diluted basis.

What will happen if our stockholders vote toapprove the Stock Issuances described in ProposabN1?

If the Stock Issuances are approved, and subjeheteatisfaction or waiver of the other closingditions, we expect the Acquisition and
the issuance of the Convertible Notes to be coraglen the day after the Meeting or shortly theeraft

What will happen if our stockholders do not wte to approve the Stock Issuances described in Rrasal No. 1?

If the Stock Issuances are not approved, we willogoable to complete the Acquisition, and theasse of the Convertible Notes, whict
contingent upon the completion of the Acquisitiai) not occur. Additionally, the restrictions caimed in Article IX of the Charter will
remain in effect.

We intend to use the proceeds of the sale of threv€tible Notes, together with other funds, to effdtne Senior Notes Discharge. If we are
unable to complete the sale of the Convertible Blote will not be able to complete the Senior N@e&sharge.

Certain of the benefits of the Trust Preferred Exae, including the reduction to the interest tatms and the modification of the
restricted payment covenant in the New Subordinkitetgs, will not become permanent unless we cora@éetredit Enhancing

Transaction. The issuance of the Convertible Natesconsummation of the Senior Notes Dischargequilify as a Credit Enhancing
Transaction. If we do not complete the issuandd®Convertible Notes and Senior Notes Dischargeaae not able to complete another
Credit Enhancing Transaction (i) by August 31, 2ah@n certain exceptions to the restricted payrnem¢nant in the New Subordinated
Notes will revert to the terms contained in theskdareferred Securities and (ii) by December 2122then the interest rate terms of the
New Subordinated Notes will revert to the termstaored in the Trust Preferred Securities, whickach case are less advantageous to the
Company. See "Proposal No. 1—Approval of the Steskances—Principal Terms of the Transactions."

Q: Why is the Company engaging in the Acquisitio and the Stock Issuances?

A:

Since March 2008, the Board and the Company's nesmegt have been focused on executing operatinggies to increase stockholder
value by growing the Company through the acquisitbCDO management contracts. The strategiesimtbade the exploration of
strategic transactions that could improve the Camiseoverall position in the asset management imgughe Acquisition and related
transactions enable us to satisfy both objectiyesxpanding our management fee base at a faséeamdtlower cost than we would
otherwise be able to do through internal growtmelaspecially considering the challenges facing@@vestment managers in the curr
financial and credit markets, and improve the Comyfsacapital structure.

The Acquisition and the Stock Issuances, togetlitr thve Senior Notes Discharge, the Trust PrefeEechange and the DPLC
Restructuring, will de-lever our capital structureduce our interest expense, increase our boale\aid enhance overall stockholder
value, including by completing the Senior Notesdbarge at a discount to the face value of the $&ites and terminating covenants in
the Senior Notes and Trust Preferred Securitieistkee exchanged that place restrictions on ouilfiity to manage and conduct our
business. By reducing the principal amount of debbur balance sheet and extending the maturitgdfieeliminating certain restrictive
covenants and adding to our AUM, the Transactidwsil allow us the flexibility to
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Q:

Q:

Q:

A:

fund additional acquisitions and support organmwgh through raising additional AUM from existingdfuture clients.

Is there a break-up fee under the AcquisitiomPAgreement?

Yes. Under certain circumstances, we are requogay Bounty a termination fee of $1.5 million aetmburse Bounty's legal expenses in
connection with the Acquisition Agreement, the sactions contemplated by the Acquisition Agreenaemt the negotiations leading up to
the Acquisition Agreement and the transactionsempiated by the Acquisition Agreement upon termaraof the Acquisition

Agreement.

Why does the Board recommend | vote "FOR" Prposal No. 1?

In developing its recommendation to the stockhadervote in favor of the Stock Issuances, our Baansidered many factors, including
the positive and negative factors described irstation of this Proxy Statement entitled "Propd$al 1—Approval of the Stock
Issuances—Vote Required and Recommendation of Phei@ Committee and The Board" and concludedttieBtock Issuances are
advisable and in the best interests of the Companyour stockholders. Our Board believes that e @any's financial position, capital
structure and business will be strengthened asudt ref the Acquisition and the Stock Issuancesthedise of proceeds thereof. After
careful consideration, including considerationted tinanimous recommendation of the Special Comanitter Board, other than Peter W.
May who because of a conflict of interest took aotjin the consideration of the Acquisition or teeuance of the Convertible Notes,
recommends that the Company's stockholders vB@R " Proposal No. 1.

Do | have dissenters' or appraisal rights i object to the Stock Issuances described in PropakNo. 1?

No. Under applicable Maryland law, the Companyldholders do not have dissenters' or appraishlgign connection with the Stock
Issuances or the other matters being voted uptihed#leeting, and we do not plan to independenthyigie stockholders with any such
rights.

Q: What is the impact upon the Company's existig NOLs and NCLs if the stockholders vote to approvénhe Stock Issuances described in
Proposal No. 1?

A:

As of December 31, 2009, the Company had NOLs pfapgmately $209.0 million, which will begin to exp in 2028 if not used, and
NCLs of approximately $422.8 million, which will i to expire in 2012 if not used. The Companymtid recognize for financial
statement purposes any net assets associated @Itk &hd NCLs and believes it is unlikely that then@any would have generated
sufficient income to utilize a substantial amouhth® NOLs and NCLs. The issuance of the Acquisitghares will result in an
"Ownership Change" for purposes of Sections 3823a®lof the Code. As a result of the occurrench@fOwnership Change, our ability
to use our NOLs, NCLs and certain recognized builbsses to reduce our taxable income in a fuyesr would generally be limited to 1
Section 382 Limitation. NOLs, NCLs and certain rgeized built-in losses that exceed the Sectionl3B#tation in any year will continue
to be allowed as carryforwards for the remaindehefcarryforward period, and such NOLs, NCLs awbgnized built-in losses can be
used to offset taxable income for years withinedheyforward period subject to the Section 382 ttaton in each year. However, if the
carryforward period for any such tax attributesevier expire before that loss is fully utilized, tieused portion of that loss would be lost.
We believe that the Section 382 Limitation imposedhe Company due to the Ownership Change wiksgy limit the Company's abili
to use existing NOLs and NCLs to offset future t@gancome. Our Charter currently contains tranedstrictions to prevent investors
from aggregating ownership of our Common Stock taiggiering an Ownership Change.
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Since the issuance of the Acquisition Shares wilit in an Ownership Change, our Board has exahthteStock Issuances from the
restrictions set forth in Article 1X of the Chartéf the Transactions are consummated and the Aitopn Shares are issued to Bounty, our
Board has agreed to terminate the restrictionsvamecship and transfer contained in Article IX oftGharter.

How does our Board recommend | vote on Propa$Nos. 2, 3 and 4?

Our Board recommends a vot&EOR " Proposal No. 2—Election of DirectorsFOR " Proposal No. 3—Ratification of Independent
Public Accounting Firm, andFOR " Proposal No. 4—Approval of the Adjournment or pamement of the Meeting.

What other matters may arise at the Meeting?

Other than Proposal Nos. 1, 2, 3 and 4 describédsrProxy Statement, we do not expect any ottadtars to be presented for a vote a
Meeting. If any other matter is properly broughtdve the Meeting, your proxy gives authority to firexies named therein to vote on s
matters in their discretion.

Do | need to vote to approve the Acquisitioor the sale of the Convertible Notes?

No. However, stockholder approval of the Stock émes is a condition to consummation of the Actjaisiand the issuance of the
Convertible Notes.

Who is entitled to vote at the Meeting?

Only those stockholders who owned Common Stocketlose of business on the Record Date, whichApais 19, 2010, are entitled to
vote at the Meeting. At the close of business @Rbcord Date, we had 6,455,357 shares of Comnumk $titstanding entitled to cast a
vote on the proposals presented in this Proxy S, which were held by 1,555 stockholders of récBach outstanding share of our
Common Stock entitles its holder to one vote.

How do | vote?

Stockholders can vote in person at the Meetingygerbxy. There are three ways to vote by proxy:

. By Telephone—uvisihttps://secure.amstock.com/voteproxy/login2 fasyiew our proxy materials and obtain the tolkfre
number to call;

. By Internet—visitwww.voteproxy.corand follow the on-screen instructions; or

. By Mail—if you received your proxy materials by rhaiou can vote by mail by marking, signing, datartd returning the
proxy card in the envelope provided.

Telephone and Internet voting for stockholderseafrd will close at 11:59 p.m. EDT on June 8, 2010.

If you properly complete, sign and return a proayd; your shares will be voted as you specify. Hmvgif you sign and return a proxy
card but do not specify a vote with respect toptaposal, your shares will be voted as our Boacdmemends with respect to the proposal
and in the proxy's discretion with respect to atheo matter that may be properly considered aMhbeting.

If you are a beneficial owner (that is, your shaaesheld in "street name" by a bank, broker oeottominee or intermediary, which we
collectively refer to as "brokers"), you will regeivoting
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instructions or a voting information form from thelder of record. You must follow the instructiohte holder of record in order for yo
shares to be voted.

If you plan to attend the Meeting, you must preseentification containing a photograph, such asiger's license or passport. If you are a
stockholder of record, your name will be verifieghmst the list of stockholders of record on thedtd Date prior to your being admitted
to the Meeting. If you are not a stockholder oforelc but hold shares in "street name" through &daoou should provide proof of
beneficial ownership on the Record Date, such as gmwst recent account statement prior to April2®,0, a copy of the voting

instruction card provided to you by your brokeotier similar evidence of ownership. If you do potvide photo identification or comp
with the procedures outlined above, you will notaloknitted to the Meeting.

Q: How can I revoke my vote?

Q:

Q:

You may revoke your vote at any time before itiereised at the Meeting by:

. Delivering written notice of such revocation to dorporate Secretary prior to the Meeting at thdresk listed below;

. Submitting a telephone vote, an Internet vote progerly executed proxy card bearing a later deewe receive before ti
polls close at the Meeting; or

. Attending the Meeting and voting in person.

If you hold your shares in "street name" (thathispugh a broker), you may revoke a previous volg by following the procedures
established by the broker.

You may provide written notice to our Corporate r@tary at Deerfield Capital Corp., Attention: Corgi® Secretary, 6250 North River
Road, 9th Floor, Rosemont, Illinois 60018.

What is a "quorum™?

A "quorum" is a majority of the outstanding shasé€ommon Stock, which may be present in persdheaMeeting or represented by
proxy. The presence of a majority of the votestlertito be cast, represented in person or by pmklconstitute a quorum for the
transaction of business at the Meeting. Your shaitt®e counted for purposes of determining a gumoif you attend the Meeting and v
in person or if you vote by telephone, by intermeby submitting a properly executed proxy carchimil. Abstentions and withheld votes
will be counted for determining whether a quorurpriesent for the Meeting. The presence at the Mggith person or by proxy, of the
holders of at least 3,227,679 shares of our Com&took will be required to establish a quorum.

What vote is required for approval of each poposal?

With respect to Proposal No. 1 for the approvahef Stock Issuances, you may vote in favor of tiog@sal, against the proposal or abs
from voting on the proposal. Approval of the proplagquires the affirmative vote of a majority df\ates cast on the proposal (provided
that a quorum is present at the Meeting). Abstestare not considered votes cast and will therdfaxe no effect on the outcome of the
vote on this proposal.

With respect to Proposal No. 2 for the electiomlioéctor nominees, you may vote in favor of onéath of the nominees or withhold your
vote as to one or both of the nominees. You willbtng with respect to the nominees that were mateid by our Board based on a
recommendation from the Nominating Committee, aoal will not be able to vote for more than two p&sorhere is no cumulative
voting in the election of directors. If a quorunpigsent,
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Q:

A:

then the nominees receiving a plurality of alllué t/otes cast at the Meeting will be elected. "&ity" means that the individuals who
receive the greatest number of votes cast "FORElaaed as directors. Withheld votes will haveeffect in the election of directors
because the directors will be elected by a plyralitall of the votes cast at the Meeting.

With respect to Proposal No. 3 for the ratificat@frthe appointment of Deloitte as our independegistered public accounting firm for
the fiscal year ending December 31, 2010, you nuag in favor of the proposal, against the proposalbstain from voting on the
proposal. Approval of the proposal requires theratitive vote of a majority of all votes cast o hroposal (provided that a quorum is
present). Abstentions are not considered votesacaswill therefore have no effect on the outcorhthe vote on this proposal.

With respect to Proposal No. 4 for the approvedmf adjournment or postponement of the Meetingedessary or appropriate, you may
vote in favor of the proposal, against the proposalbstain from voting on the proposal. Approviaihe proposal requires the affirmative
vote of a majority of all votes cast on the propdpeovided that a quorum is present). Abstentiaresnot considered votes cast and will
therefore have no effect on the outcome of the watthis proposal.

If my shares of Common Stock are held in "steet name" by my broker, will my broker automatically vote my shares for me?

Other than with respect to certain routine matterskers holding shares of our Common Stock forefieral owners must vote those shz
according to the specific instructions they recdieen the beneficial owners, unless the brokersHasen given discretionary voting po\
by the beneficial owners. In certain circumstanbeskers holding shares for a beneficial owner matyhave discretionary voting power
and may not have received voting instructions ftbmbeneficial owner of the shares. In such casbspker may not vote on a proposal,
which is known as a "broker non-vote." Broker naxtes will be counted for purposes of determiningthler a quorum is present at the
Meeting, but are not counted as votes cast.

Proposal No. 1, approval of the Stock Issuancamdal No. 2, election of Class Il directors, &rdposal No. 4, approval of adjournm
or postponement of the Meeting, are not "routinattars. Accordingly, if you do not provide votingstructions to your broker with
respect to Proposal Nos. 1, 2 or 4, your broker n@yexercise discretion and is prohibited fromirgiva proxy to vote your shares with
respect to such proposals. With respect to Propéssl 1, 2 and 4, broker non-votes will have ne&fbn the approval of such proposals.

Proposal No. 3, ratification of the appointmenD&foitte as the Company's independent registerbtigpaccounting firm, is a "routine"
matter. Accordingly, even if you do not provide imgtinstructions to your broker, your broker mageeise discretion and may give a
proxy to vote your shares with respect to such esap

You should follow the directions provided by youoker regarding how to instruct your broker to vebeirr shares. If you give instructions
on how to vote to your broker, you may later revthe instructions by taking the steps describettiéninformation that you receive from
your broker.

Q: Who counts the votes?

A:

American Stock Transfer & Trust CompanyXST") will receive and tabulate the proxies. AST vaitlt as the independent inspector of
election and will certify the results.
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Q: Who will solicit and pay the cost of solicitig proxies?

A: The Company will pay the cost of soliciting proxiexluding the expenses related to the printing m@iling of this Proxy Statement. In
addition to solicitation by mail, proxies may bdisited personally, or by telephone or other elecic means, by our directors, officers or
other employees without additional compensatiorstah services. We will also pay approximately $9,fplus reimbursement of out-of-
pocket expenses) to Georgeson, In&GG€brgesori) to assist with the solicitation of proxies. Ggeson may solicit proxies by telephone
other electronic means or in person. The Compatiaisbd reimburse Georgeson for routine outpof:ket expenses in connection with 1
proxy solicitation. The Company will also requdsttbanking institutions, brokerage firms, custadjdrustees, nominees, fiduciaries and
other like parties forward the solicitation matésito the beneficial owners of Common Stock heldeabrd by such persons, and the
Company will, upon request of such record holdezisnburse forwarding charges and out-of-pocket egps. In addition, the Company
will indemnify Georgeson against any losses arisingof the firm's proxy soliciting services on daghalf.

Q: Wil representatives of Deloitte be presentiahe Meeting and available to answer questions?

A: Yes. We expect that representatives of Deloitté vélpresent at the Meeting, will be given the apydty to make a statement if they
desire to do so and will be available to answeistjaes.

Q: When is this Proxy Statement and Notice beinmailed?

A: This Proxy Statement, proxy card and Notice ast fieing mailed to the Company's stockholders aabout May 14, 2010.

Q: Where can | obtain access to these proxy matels?

A: A copy of this Proxy Statement, proxy card and biotivill be mailed to each stockholder of the Comypamtitied to vote at the Meeting.

addition, this Proxy Statement is availablé@p://www.deerfieldcapital.comThe Notice contains instructions on how to acteissProxy
Statement and our other proxy materials onlineteowd to vote your shares.

Q: Who can help answer my questions, and whereu | get additional information about matters descibed in this Proxy Statement and
additional information about the Company?

A: If you have questions about the matters describéki$ Proxy Statement, or how to submit your praxyif you need additional copies of
the Proxy Statement or the enclosed proxy caradting instructions, you should contact Georgesain pooxy solicitor, at 1-800-280-
0857. If you would like additional information aklidhe Company, please refer to our annual, qugrgertl current reports, proxy
statements and other information on file with ti&CS

IMPORTANT NOTE

No person is authorized to make any remtasien with respect to the matters described i Pinoxy Statement other than those containe
incorporated by reference, in this Proxy Statenael, if given or made, such representation musbaatlied upon as having been authorized by
us or any other person or entity. This Proxy Statetmand the information incorporated herein, ptesiyou with detailed information about the
proposals to be considered and voted upon at thedile The information in this Proxy Statementusrent as of the date of this Proxy Statem
Stockholders are urged to carefully review thisxyrStatement, which discusses each of the proptséls voted upon at the Meeting, including
the accompanying annexes containing the agreemalating to the Acquisition and the issuance of@omvertible Notes, the text of the Majority
Voting Bylaw and the information incorporated hetei

This Proxy Statement does not constitute the soliaition of a proxy from any person in any jurisdiction where it is unlawful to make
such proxy solicitation. The delivery of this ProxyStatement shall not, under any circumstances, implthat there has not been any change
in the information set forth herein since the dateof this Proxy Statement.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The Private Securities Litigation ReformtA¢ 1995 (the "Act™) provides a safe harbor for forward-looking stagsts made by or on behalf
of the Company. Certain statements made in thigyP8tatement may constitute forward-looking statetaéwithin the meaning of Section 27.A
of the Securities Act 1933, as amended (tBecurities Act), and Section 21.E of the Securities ExchangeoAdi934, as amended (the "
Exchange Ac")) regarding the expectations of management vatipect to revenues, profitability, and adequadyids from operations, among
other things. All statements containing a projetid revenues, income (loss), earnings (loss) pares capital expenditures, dividends, capital
structure or other financial items, a statemenhahagement's plans and objectives for future op@sgtor a statement of future economic
performance contained in management's discussibmiaalysis of financial condition and results oérgiions, including statements related to
products, volume growth and statements encompageingral optimism about future operating result$ man-historical information, are forward-
looking statements within the meaning of the Act.

The following factors, among others, cocddise actual results to differ materially from #ndgscribed in the forward-looking statements:

Relating to the Acquisition and the Stock Issuanci

. The ability to integrate CNCIM into the businesstod Company successfully and the amount of tintkexpense spent and
incurred in connection with the integration;

. The failure to realize the economic benefits that €ompany anticipates as a result of the Acqarsiti

. The failure to uncover all risks and liabilitiesasiated with the Acquisition;

. The impact of the issuance of $25 million in aggttegprincipal amount of Convertible Notes and the of proceeds thereof,

including its impact on the Company's liquidity|léi to raise additional capital and financial abtion;

. The impact of the Stock Issuances on the Comp&urismon Stock, including dilution of the ownershiglee Company's
Common Stock;

. The failure to obtain any necessary third partysewrts or satisfy any of the other conditions ofAlkquisition;

. Adverse effects on the market price of our CommtmtiSand on our operating results because of aréatb complete the
Acquisition and the Stock Issuances;

. The impact of the Stock Issuances on our abilityge our NOLs, NCLs and certain recognized builbgses to offset future
taxable income and gains;

. The reduction in CNCIM CLO management fees or Aldduiting from payment defaults by issuers of theeulying collateral,
downgrades of the underlying collateral by thengithgencies or depressed market values of the lyimdgecollateral, all of which
may contribute to the triggering of certain struatyprovisions and/or events of default built i@bOs; and

. Significant transaction costs and/or unknown liéieB and general economic and business conditlmatsaffect the Company
following the completion of the Acquisition and tB#ock Issuances.

Relating to our Business Generally:
. Effects of the recent dislocation and weakneshémbortgage market and credit markets generally;
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. Effects of the recent global economic crisis armbssion;
. Effects of leverage and indebtedness on our aasétperformance;
. Failure to comply with covenants contained in theeaments governing our indebtedness and failuobtain waivers for future

non-compliance;

. Limitations and restrictions contained in instrunseand agreements governing our indebtedness;
. Our ability to maintain adequate liquidity, incladi our ability to raise additional capital and secadditional financing;
. Our ability to maintain compliance with the ListiRyles of NASDAQ and to maintain the listing of @arcurities on a national

securities exchange;
. Our ability to generate earnings or raise capdahaintain positive stockholders' equity;

. Rapid changes in the fair values of our assetsjngakdifficult for us to comply with our exemptiofrom registration under the
Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended,;

. Increases in borrowing costs relative to intereseived on our assets;

. The costs and effects of the current SEC investiganto certain mortgage securities trading prared in connection with which
the SEC has requested information from the CompawdyDCM regarding certain mortgage securities sadeurs;

. Changes in strategy, including investment strategy;

. Effect of the current market conditions on managerfees and equity cash flows from CDOs;
. Loss of key personnel, most of whom are not boundrbployment agreements;

. Our ability to enter into, and the effects of, aotential strategic transaction;

. Adverse changes in accounting principles, tax lamggal or regulatory requirements;

. Failure to comply with applicable laws and reguas;

. Liability resulting from actual or potential futuliéigation;

. The costs, uncertainties and other effects of lagdladministrative proceedings;

. The costs of obtaining, and the potential inabiiityobtain, necessary or prudent insurance to cowebusiness operations;
. The impact of competition; and

. Actions of domestic and foreign governments andefifect of war or terrorist activity.

Relating to our Investment Management Segment:

. Continued reductions in AUM and related reductiomsur investment advisory fee revenue, due to $actors as weak investme
performance, substantial illiquidity or price vdlig in the fixed income instruments in which wevest, loss of key portfolio
management or other personnel (or lack of avaitgtof additional key personnel if needed for exgan), reduced investor
demand for the types of investment products thatffier or loss of investor confidence due to waakestment performance,
volatility of returns, general declines in economdnditions and adverse publicity;

. Non-renewal or early termination of investment ngeraent agreements or removal of DCM as investmamtager pursuant to the
terms of such investment management agreements;
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. Pricing pressure on the advisory fees that we bange for our investment advisory services;
. Our ability to assume or otherwise acquire add#ld®DO management contracts on favorable termat all;
. Difficulty in increasing AUM, or efficiently managg existing AUM, due to marketlated constraints on trading capacity, inab

to hire the necessary additional or replacemergquerel or lack of potentially profitable tradingpmptunities;

. The reduction in CDO management fees or AUM resglfrom payment defaults by issuers of the undeglyiollateral,
downgrades of the underlying collateral by thengthgencies or depressed market values of the lymdgecollateral, all of which
may contribute to the triggering of certain struatyprovisions and/or events of default built iI@DOs;

. Our inability, due to market conditions, to laur€@BO or other investment vehicles, which providemith investment management
fee revenue,

. Liability relating to our failure to comply with irestment guidelines set by our clients or the miowis of the management and
other agreements; and

. Changes in laws, regulations or government poliaféscting our business, including investment mamagnt regulations and
accounting standards.

Relating to our Principal Investing Segment:

. Impact of changes in our strategy surrounding thaposition and decreased size of our investmerntqghior,

. A decrease in the value of our mortgage portfaisuiting in higher counterparty margin calls andrdased liquidity;

. Effects of defaults or terminations under repurehaansactions, interest rate swaps and long tebmhabligations;

. The impact on our investments and business strasgyting from conservatorship of the Federal dial Mortgage Association

Fannie Ma€") and the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporatidiréddie Mac"), and related efforts, along with any changes in
laws and regulations affecting the relationshipieetn Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac and the U.S. goant)

. Effects of having all of our repurchase transaciooncentrated with two counterparties;

. Higher or lower than expected prepayment ratehemtortgages underlying our RMBS portfolio;

. llliquid nature of certain of the assets in ourastment portfolio;

. Increased rates of default on our investment pliotfevhich risk rises as the portfolio seasons) dadreased recovery rates on

defaulted loans;

. Our inability to obtain the financing needed todeage our RMBS and other portfolios and our ingbtth obtain favorable interest
rates, margin or other terms on any such financing;

. Flattening or inversion of the yield curve (a desed differential between long and short term @sterates) reducing our net
interest income on our financed mortgage securitiesstions;

. Our inability to adequately hedge or our decismmat fully hedge our holdings that are sensitivehanges in interest rates;

. Narrowing of credit spreads, thus decreasing otimterest income on future credit investments lisas bank loans);
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. Concentration of investment portfolio in adjustatdée RMBS;
. Effects of investing in equity and mezzanine sdmsgiof CDOs; and
. Effects of investing in the debt of middle marketpanies.

These and other factors that could caus€timpany's actual results to differ materiallynfrthose described in the forward-looking
statements are set forth in the Company's annpatren Form 1 for the year ended December 31, 2009, filed withSEC on March 23, 20
(the "2009 Annual Repot) and in our other filings with the SEC, which @neorporated by reference herein. Readers oftffigy Statement are
cautioned to consider these risks and uncertaiatidsnot to place undue reliance on any forwardtitapstatements. We disclaim and do not

undertake any obligation to update or revise amydiod-looking statement in this Proxy Statemenegk@s required by applicable law or
regulation.
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RISK FACTORS

In addition to the other information included orcorporated by reference in this Proxy Statement, stoould carefully consider the matters
described below relating to the Transactions désaiin this Proxy Statement in deciding whethesote for the approval of the proposals
presented in this Proxy Statement. Additional reskd uncertainties not presently known to the Camgpgar that are not currently believed to
material, if they occur, also may adversely aftbet Transactions described in this Proxy Stateraedtthe results of operations of the Company
following the Transactions. For risks related t@ tbompany, please see "ltem—Risk Factors" of our 2009 Annual Report, which is
incorporated by reference herein.

Bounty may exercise significant influence (or eveontrol) over the Company, including through its dity to designate three of the nin
members of the Company's Board.

If the Transactions are completed, the Com®tock owned by Bounty would represent approxigat0.2% of the Company's Common
Stock issued and outstanding as of the Record @atefully diluted basis. Assuming Bounty electsdémvert the entire $25 million in aggregate
principal amount of the Convertible Notes and tleenPany has not elected to pay PIK Interest, the @omStock owned by Bounty would
represent approximately 56.2% of our Common Steskéd and outstanding as of the Record Date oltyalfluted basis. Assuming Bounty
elects to convert the entire principal amount ef @onvertible Notes and the Company has electpdytdhe maximum permitted amount of PIK
Interest, the Common Stock owned by Bounty willressent approximately 59.1% of the outstanding shaf¢he Company's Common Stock on a
fully diluted basis. There are no restrictions auBty's ability to vote the Common Stock ownedthyAs a result, Bounty may have the ability to
significantly influence (or even control) the outee of any matter submitted for the vote of the Canys stockholders, including the amendment
of our organizational documents, acquisitions dleobusiness combinations involving the Companygotdntially the ability to prevent
extraordinary transactions such as a takeover pttehs a result of its ownership of the Acquisiti8hares and the Conversion Shares, Bounty
therefore have substantial ability (or the absohaterer) to block the election of any director noatéd by the Nominating Committee as a result
of the Majority Voting Bylaw.

Pursuant to the Stockholders Agreementteritered into between the Company and Bounty @ €tbsing Date, the Company has agreed to
increase the size of the Board to nine membersBanhty will have the right to designate three of directors (one of whom must qualify as an
independent director if necessary to ensure thajarity of the members of the Board are indepetjdanlong as Bounty owns at least 25% of
Outstanding Common Stock, two directors so lonB@snty owns at least 15% of the Outstanding Com@imek and one director so long as
Bounty owns at least 5% of the Outstanding Commtorks Bounty will also have the right to appointeoBoard observer so long as Bounty o
at least 15% of the Outstanding Common Stock. Upmrsummation of the Transactions, the Board wtlilglish a Strategic Committee consis!
of two directors designated by Bounty and two dvexdesignated by those independent directoseo€ompany not designated by Bounty. The
Strategic Committee will report and make recomménda to the Board regarding the following and, rivaitters approved by the Board, will be
responsible for effectuating the following: (i) tlikentification and execution of merger and acduisiopportunities; (ii) setting direction for the
Company with our management, including new investnivatiatives and investment products; (iii) thieimg, dismissal and scope of responsibi
of senior management; and (iv) the integratiorhef €CLO platforms of CNCIM and the Company. As ailieshe directors elected to the Board
Bounty may exercise significant influence on mattesnsidered by the Board. Bounty may have intetéstt diverge from, or even conflict with,
those of the Company and its other stockholders.

Because our Board has passed a resolutemm@ing the Company from the Maryland Business Bioation Act and because our Bylaws
exempt the Company from the Maryland Control Share
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Acquisition Act, our stockholders will not enjoyetfbenefit of certain Maryland stockholder provisidhat may restrict the activities of large
stockholders under certain circumstances.

The Stock Issuances will have a substantial dil@ieffect on the Company's Common Stock, which mdyexsely affect the market price of tl
Company's Common Stock.

When the Transactions are completed, twédlde an additional 4,545,455 shares of Commarckstnd approximately 4,132,231 shares of
Common Stock issuable upon conversion of the CaitemMNotes, assuming the Company does not elggayoany PIK Interest (or approximat
5,208,869 shares assuming the Company elects tthpagaximum permitted amount of PIK Interest), ebhivill be entitled to participate with
respect to any dividends or other distributionsia the Common Stock. When the Transactions armplated, the Common Stock owned by
Bounty will represent approximately 40.2% of theuied and outstanding shares of the Company Commack 8s of the Record Date on a fully
diluted basis. Assuming Bounty elects to convegtahtire $25 million principal amount of the Cortilele Notes issued at the Closing and the
Company has not elected to pay PIK Interest, thmm@on Stock owned by Bounty will represent approxehe56.2% of the outstanding
Common Stock outstanding as of the Record Datefallyadiluted basis. Assuming Bounty elects to eert the entire principal amount of the
Convertible Notes and the Company has electedytdh@mamaximum permitted amount of PIK Interest, @mmmon Stock owned by Bounty
would represent approximately 59.1% of our CommtutiSissued and outstanding as of the Record Dafally diluted basis.

The market price of the Common Stock may declineaa®sult of the Stock Issuances.

We are unable to predict the potential@ffef the Stock Issuances on the trading actavity market price of our Common Stock. We have
granted registration rights to Bounty for the resafl both the Acquisition Shares and the ConverSioares. These registration rights would
facilitate the resale of such securities into thblig market, and any such resale would increasentimber of shares of our Common Stock
available for public trading. Sales by Bounty afudbstantial number of shares of our Common Stotkerpublic market, or the perception that
such sales might occur, could have a material agveifect on the price of our Common Stock.

If the Transactions are not completed, the pricetbE Company's Common Stock could decline and outufe business and operations cou
be harmed.

The Company's and Bounty's obligationsaimlete the sale of CNCIM to the Company and then@any's and Bounty's obligations to
complete the issuance of the Convertible Notesabgect to conditions, many of which are beyonddtetrol of the parties. If the Transactions
are not completed for any reason, the Company reaubject to a number of material risks, includimg following:

. The Company may be required under certain circumstato pay Bounty a termination fee of $1.5 milland to reimburse
Bounty's legal expenses in connection with the Agitjaon Agreement, the transactions contemplatethkyAcquisition Agreement
and the negotiations leading up to the Acquisif@neement and the transactions contemplated bpdthagisition Agreement;

. The price of our Common Stock may decline;

. The Company may be subject to litigation relatethtofailure to complete the Transactions, whichldwequire substantial time
and resources to resolve;

. Costs related to the Transactions, such as fineadiasory, legal, accounting, proxy solicitatiomdaprinting fees, must be paid
even if the Transactions are not completed;
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. Matters relating to the Transactions (including tlegotiation of terms and integration planning)uieed a substantial commitment
of time and resources by the Company managemeithwbuld otherwise have been devoted to other dppities that may have
been beneficial to the Company;

. The Company may not be able to realize the expdmtadfits of the Acquisition of CNCIM.

. If the Transactions are not completed, the Compaay be unable to find a partner willing to engagsimilar transactions on
terms as favorable as those set forth in the AdiprisAgreement and the Convertible Notes Agreemenéat all; and

. If the Company is unable to complete a Credit EclnTransaction in a timely fashion, then the Migdition Period relating to
the New Subordinated Notes will terminate and deraceptions to the restricted payments covenamtained in the New
Indenture relating to the New Subordinated Notdknmei longer be available to the Company.

Certain elements of the Transactions may discouramgber parties from entering into transactions withe Company.

While the Acquisition Agreement is in effesubject to limited exceptions, the Company @hisited from soliciting, initiating or
encouraging any inquiries or proposals from thiagtips that may lead to a proposal or offer fomequisition of or other significant transaction
with the Company. In addition, if the Board terntemthe Acquisition Agreement to accept an altéradtansaction proposal or if the Board
changes its recommendation of the proposal to appiee Stock Issuances in response to a mategal edevelopment or change in circumstance
that occurs, arises or becomes known to the Bélaed, the Company will be obligated to pay a tertiamafee of $1.5 million to Bounty and
reimburse Bounty for its legal expenses in conoectvith the Acquisition Agreement, the transactionatemplated by the Acquisition Agreem
and the negotiations leading up to the Acquisifigneement and the transactions contemplated bpteisition Agreement. These provisions,
alone or in combination, could discourage othetipafrom trying to acquire the Company even thotigise other parties might be willing to
offer greater value to the Company than that offdng the Transactions.

In addition, after the completion of theafsactions, the ownership position and governagbésrof Bounty could discourage a third party
from proposing a change of control or other striategnsaction concerning the Company.

Some of the Company's directors and executive @ficmay have interests in the Transactions that naiffer from the interests of th
Company's stockholders.

When considering the Board's recommenddtiorote in favor of the proposals presented ia Brioxy Statement, you should be aware that
the Company's directors may have interests in thasactions that may be different from, or in addito, your interests. Pursuant to the 2010
Rothschild Compensation Agreement, Peter Rothsabild Interim Chairman and a member of the Boaraly bve entitled to receive two
discretionary fees, a "Capital Transaction Sucéess not to exceed $1 million and a "Non-Capitarigaction Success Fee" not to exceed
$500,000, which may be paid if certain specifiedditions are met. The conditions for payment ofdfseretionary fees include, but are not
limited to, Mr. Rothschild playing an instrumentale in arranging and completing a strategic tratisa that substantially increases shareholder
value. The Compensation Committee has completeadisn over whether to award the Capital TransacBaccess Fee and the Non-Capital
Transaction Success Fee and over the amount édé¢kseand the portion payable as cash or non-caspamsation. The Compensation Committee
has not yet finally determined the amount of feebe paid in connection with consummation of thenBactions. Peter W. May, a member of the
Board, is a director of and, indirectly, a sigrdiit stockholder in Wendy's/Arby's Group, Inc., whic
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owns approximately $48.9 million in principal améwh Series A Notes that are expected to be diggthby the Company for an aggregate
amount of approximately $30.8 million plus all uighand accrued interest in cash as of the closatg df the Transactions. Jonathan W. Trutter,
our Chief Executive Officer and a member of the iBloawns approximately $637,000 in principal amoninBeries A Notes that are expected to
be discharged by the Company for an aggregate anod®408,000 plus all unpaid and accrued interesash as of the closing date of the
Transactions. In consideration of their serviceglezed as members of the Special Committee, R&bé&ischer and Stuart |. Oran are each
entitled to compensation in an amount equal to®&I&Gper month (not to exceed $90,000 total) andeRdb. Machinist, as Chairman of the
Special Committee, is entitled to compensatiomimaount equal to $45,000 per month (not to ex§d&®,000 total). The Compensation
Committee has discussed but not finally yet deteeahito award special bonuses to officers and dirsatf the Company upon consummation of
the Transactions. The Special Committee has ad8sedty that such bonuses, if paid, together with @iscretionary fees paid pursuant the 2
Rothschild Compensation Agreement, would not exdged million in the aggregate. See "Proposal NeAbproval of the Stock Issuances—
Interests of Certain of our Directors and Execu@fécers in the Transactions."

The Company may not be able to realize all of thenbfits of the Acquisition of CNCIM.

CNCIM derives its revenues from collatareinagement agreements with the CNCIM CLOs. Undectiiateral management agreements,
payment of CNCIM's management fees is generalljestito a "waterfall" structure providing that ell a portion of CNCIM's fees may be
deferred if, among other things, the CNCIM CLOsb generate sufficient cash flows to pay the nemglinterest on the notes they have issue
investors and certain expenses they have incuftad.could occur if the issuers of the collatenadlerlying the CNCIM CLOs default on or defer
payments of principal or interest relating to tiodlateral. If defaults and delinquencies on theetssanderlying the CNCIM CLOs occur, CNCIM
could experience declines in and deferrals of amagement fees.

Additionally, all or a portion of CNCIM'samnagement fees from the CNCIM CLOs that it managag be deferred if the CNCIM CLOs fall
to meet their over-collateralization requirememsrsuant to the "waterfall" structure discussedrabsuch failures generally require cash flows to
be diverted to amortize the most senior class t#sprior to paying a portion of CNCIM's managenfess. Defaulted assets, which in some
CLOs may include severely-downgraded assets, arerghty carried at a reduced value for purposeb@bver-collateralization tests. In some
CLOs, defaulted assets are required to be cartitttb market values for purposes of the overatetalization tests. In the event of defaults,
severe downgrades and depressed market values oblthteral underlying the CNCIM CLOs, the CNCINL@s could breach their over-
collateralization tests, which would result in deet in and deferrals of CNCIM's management fees.

The CNCIM CLOs generally contain structysedvisions including, but not limited to, over-taéralization requirements and/or market
value triggers that are meant to protect invedrors deterioration in the credit quality of the @mlying collateral pool. In certain cases, breaches
of these structural provisions can lead to evehtetault under the indentures governing the CN@MOs and, ultimately, acceleration of the
notes issued by the CNCIM CLO and liquidation af tmderlying collateral. In the event of a liquidatof the collateral underlying a CNCIM
CLO, CNCIM will lose client AUM and therefore maremgent fees, which could have a material and adweffeet on CNCIM's earnings.

CNCIM's collateral management agreememdsvahvestors that hold a specified amount of sitiesrissued by the CNCIM CLO to remove
CNCIM for "cause," which typically includes CNCIM#4olation of the management agreement or the CNCIMD's indenture, CNCIM's breach
of its representations and warranties under theeagent, CNCIM's bankruptcy or insolvency, frau@ariminal offense by CNCIM or its
employees, and the failure of certain of the CN@MO's
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performance tests. These "cause" provisions mdsidgered from time to time with respect to the ANICCLOs and as a result CNCIM could be
removed as the investment manager of a CNCIM Ch@hé case of certain CNCIM CLOs, CNCIM can alsagdraoved as the investment
manager upon its loss of specified key employees.

The Company will incur significant transaction casin connection with the Transactions.

The Company expects to incur a number ofregurring costs associated with combining theatens of two companies. The substantial
majority of non-recurring expenses resulting fréra Transactions will be comprised of transactiostgocosts of transferring CNCIM's
operations, facilities and systems transfer castd,costs related to formulating integration plariee Company expects that approximately
$3.5 million will be incurred to complete the Trantions (excluding costs relating to (i) the Triestferred Exchange, (ii) the transfer of CNCI
operations, and (iii) facilities and systems trangfosts). Additional unanticipated costs may loeiired in the integration of the two companies'
businesses. Although the Company expects thatithéation of duplicative costs, as well as theliision of other efficiencies related to the
integration of the businesses, should allow the amy to offset incremental transaction and tramsagtlated costs over time, this net benefit
may not be achieved in the near term, or at all.

The Company must continue to retain, motivate aretruit executive, experts and other key employedsch may be difficult in light of
uncertainty regarding the Transactions, and failut® do so could negatively affect the combined camp

For the Transactions to be successfulndutie period before the Transactions are complétedCompany must continue to retain, motivate
and recruit executives, experts and other key eyegl®. The Company must be successful at retairipgkployees following the completion of
the Transactions. Experienced experts and exesutirein high demand and competition for theimelean be intense. Employees of the
Company may experience uncertainty about theiréutale with the Company until, or even after, ttgées with regard to the combined
companies are announced or executed. These péttistractions of the Transactions may adversdigcafthe ability of the Company to keep
executives, experts and other key employees focoisegbplicable strategies and goals. A failurehey@ompany to retain and motivate
executives, experts and other key employees dinmgeriod prior to or after the completion of Fransactions could have a material and ad\
impact on our business.

Our existing stockholders will not receive any dfet proceeds from the sale of the Convertible Notes.

The net proceeds from the sale of the Cudiile Notes will be paid directly to the Comparie Company intends to use the proceeds of the
sale of the Convertible Notes, together with ofli@ds, to finance the Senior Notes Discharge.

The Company's obligation to pay a termination feader certain circumstances and the restrictions i@ ability to solicit or engage in
negotiations with respect to other proposals magadiurage other transactions which may be more faalge to our stockholders.

Until the Acquisition is completed or theduisition Agreement is terminated, with limitecceptions, the Acquisition Agreement prohibits
the Company from soliciting alternative proposalstfansactions. If the Board or the Special Corteritietermines that an unsolicited alternative
proposal from a third party is a superior propota, Company may terminate the Acquisition Agreeinag approve or recommend such sup
proposal to the Company's stockholders, or if tbarB changes its recommendation of the proposgbpoove the Stock Issuances in response
material change in circumstance, then Bounty mapiteate the Acquisition Agreement and in each ¢aseCompany will be obligated to pay a
termination fee of $1.5 million to Bounty and reianbe Bounty for its
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reasonable and documented out-of-pocket legaldrdsxpenses in connection with the Acquisitione®gnent, the transactions contemplated by
the Acquisition Agreement and the negotiationsilegdip to the Acquisition Agreement and the tratisas contemplated by the Acquisition
Agreement. These provisions could discourage abempanies from proposing alternative transactibas may be more favorable to the
Company's stockholders than the Transactions.

The Transactions will result in an Ownership Changmder Sections 382 and 383 of the Code.

The issuance of shares of the Company'sn@mntStock contemplated by the Acquisition Agreemveiitresult in an Ownership Change. As
a result of the occurrence of the Ownership Chaogeability to use our NOLs, NCLs and certain igguiaed built-in losses to reduce our taxable
income in a future year will generally be limitedhich could adversely affect the Company's liqyidéarnings per share and the trading price of
the Company's Common Stock.
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PROPOSAL NO. 1

APPROVAL OF THE STOCK ISSUANCES
The Companies
Deerfield Capital Corp

We are a Maryland corporation with an IrtmeEnt Management segment that manages approxing&getybillion of client assets as of
January 1, 2010, including bank loans and othegrarate debt, RMBS, government securities and AB&ddition, our Principal Investing
segment has an investment portfolio comprisedxefdfincome investments, including bank loans ahérotorporate debt and RMBS. On
December 21, 2007, we completed our acquisitidD&E pursuant to the Merger. As a result of the Mergach of D&C and DCM became our
indirect, wholly-owned subsidiaries, and we becambernally managed. Historically, we had electethéadaxed as a REIT. However, our status as
a REIT terminated in 2008 when we converted toa@@oration. We maintain our principal executivéagfs at 6250 North River Road,
9th Floor, Rosemont, lllinois 60018. Our telephonenber is (773) 380-1600.

Bounty Investments, LLC

Bounty is an investment vehicle manage@€blumbus Nova. Founded in 2000, Columbus Novaps\ately-held investment management
firm with offices in New York and Charlotte, Nor@arolina. Bounty is controlled indirectly by Viktdfekselberg, the Chairman of the
Supervisory Committee of the Renova Group. Thegpal executive offices of Bounty are located at &@xington Avenue, 58th Floor, New
York, New York 10022. Bounty's telephone numbg@is2) 418-9600.

Columbus Nova Credit Investments Management, LLC

CNCIM, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Bounty,an investment manager specializing in bankdo&s of December 31, 2009, CNCIM
manages approximately $1.8 billion in bank loans stnuctured product assets in the CNCIM CLOs. Eedrin 2006, CNCIM is based in
Charlotte, North Carolina. The principal executoffices of CNCIM are located at 200 South Tryore8tr 12th Floor, Charlotte, North Carolina
28202. CNCIM's telephone number is (704) 285-6500.

Principal Reasons for the Transactions

The Board and the Company's managemergveethat the Transactions, of which the Stock Isses are a part, are very compelling as they
offer the best opportunity to meet the multipleealtives of the Company's operating strategies hadld increase stockholder value. The
Acquisition will provide a significant increase AUM and management fee income, and the relatedsaions will result in the elimination of
the Company's near-term debt maturities, reduceatak debt and remove a number of restrictive delbenants. As a result of the transactions
with Bounty, we believe the ongoing relationshifpveen the Company and Bounty will result in oppoities for the Company to grow both
organically and via acquisitions that may not hatrerwise been available to the Company.

Since March 2008, the Board and the Comsangnagement have been focused on executing mgeséiategies to increase stockholder
value by growing the Company through the acquisitbmanagement contracts for CDOs (including CL&%8) the consolidation of CDO
managers. The strategies also included the exaraf strategic transactions that could improwe @ompany's overall position in the asset
management industry. Subsequent to the formulatidhe strategies, the Company was able to coratelilvo CDO management contracts,
Robeco CDO Il Limited and Mayfair Euro CDO | B.Vh, July 2008 and February 2009, respectively. Thenfany also engaged in discussions
with multiple potential strategic partners in afoefto best position the Company for
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profitable growth. None of these discussions reslilh consummated transactions because we didefiet/b the opportunities were consistent
with the Company's strategic objectives and acogtgiwere not in the best interests of the Compamiys stockholders. However, the Company
has successfully negotiated the Acquisition anateel Transactions which will add AUM, refinance @@mpany's capital structure with lobgrm
capital and should allow the Company the flexipitid fund additional acquisitions and support oigamowth through raising additional AUM
from existing and future clients.

While the Company successfully returnegrtfitability for each quarter of 2009, significactiallenges face the Company in future years.
Prominent among them is the 2012 maturity of thei@eNotes, the increasing interest rate payabltherSenior Notes and the restrictive
covenants associated with the Senior Notes. An itapbaspect of the Transactions is the immeditieement of the Senior Notes at a signific
discount through the issuance of the ConvertibleeBlavith less restrictive covenants and a longeuritg, which significantly increases the
Company's financial flexibility going forward. Ifi¢ holders of the Convertible Notes elect to contream to Common Stock, the Company's
balance sheet will be de-levered significantly @mdll have no near term debt maturity or refinangcissues.

In order to satisfy conditions of the Tracisons, the Company was able to negotiate sigmfieconomic benefits relating to the exchange of
$95 million of the Trust Preferred Securities foe New Subordinated Notes. These benefits incluslgraficant reduction in our interest expen
for five years upon the satisfaction of certainditions and the elimination of restrictive finanaiavenants.

Taken as a whole, the Transactions arasfoamative for the Company in that we believe tehguld allow for growth in AUM and revenue,
a reduction in interest expense and a significasttignger balance sheet going forward. We belipgsd actions create value for the Company's
stockholders while providing a firm foundation foture growth and value enhancement.

Principal Terms of the Transactions
The Acquisition and Issuance of the Acquisition Stes

We announced on March 23, 2010 that we lhgveed to acquire all of the outstanding equitgrests of CNCIM for the total purchase price
of $32.5 million consisting of (i) the issuancede$45,455 shares (at an implied price of $5.50spare) of Common Stock and (ii) $7.5 million in
cash payable in five equal installments beginnirgr®nths after the Closing Date. The Company lggeed to pay the cost of transferring the
operations of CNCIM as estimated on the ClosingeDahich are currently estimated to be approxinge&l2 million. Bounty has agreed to pay
the costs in excess of such amount. Bounty hasaglssed to indemnify the Company for losses rejaiinCNCIM's operating liabilities arising
prior to the Closing Date (other than the employhoasts from the signing date for the two CNCIM éoypes that the Company is hiring,
liabilities relating to CNCIM CLO management agrests, liabilities relating to actions taken purduarthe Transition Services Agreement and
the expenses of the transfer of operations destabeve) for one year from closing and pre-closagliabilities for three years from closing
subject to a $125,000 deductible and a $5 milliap. @he Acquisition Agreement contains represeamatand warranties made by the Company,
Bounty and CNCIM which will not survive the Closinghe Company and Bounty have also agreed to oditaitations on the operation of the
Company and CNCIM prior to the Closing and eachdgaeed not to solicit alternative proposals fansactions. The Closing of the Acquisition
is subject to several closing conditions, includiagiong other things, the approval by the Compasigskholders of the Stock Issuances, the
consummation of the Senior Notes Discharge, theradesof certain governmental constraints and tBerade of a material adverse effect on the
business of CNCIM or the Company. The Acquisitiogréement may be terminated in certain instancefjding by the Company to pursue a
superior proposal or by Bounty if the Board changesecommendation. In each case, the Comparegisined to pay Bounty a termination fee of
$1.5 million and reimburse
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Bounty's reasonable and documented out-of-pocket fees and expenses in connection with the AdtprisAgreement, the transactions
contemplated by the Acquisition Agreement and thgotiations leading up to the Acquisition Agreememd the transactions contemplated by the
Acquisition Agreement.

In connection with the Acquisition, the Coamy and Bounty have agreed to enter into the &tidlers Agreement. Pursuant the Stockhol
Agreement, Bounty will have the right to designidwiece of our nine directors (one of whom must duals an independent director if necessary to
ensure that a majority of the members of the Baaedndependent) so long as Bounty owns at led@ét@xhe Outstanding Common Stock
(calculated assuming all Conversion Shares theraide pursuant to the Convertible Notes are outdigtgh arising prior to the Closing Date, two
directors so long as Bounty owns at least 15% @fQhtstanding Common Stock, and one director sp &nBounty owns at least 5% of the
Outstanding Common Stock. Bounty will also haveribht to appoint one Board observer so long asmBoawns at least 15% of the Outstanc
Common Stock. See "Information on Our Board of Bioes and Its Committees—Bounty Designees."

In order to give effect to the Board desin rights contained in the Stockholders Agreetmewmr Board made an election under the
Maryland General Corporation Law to provide the Bloaith the exclusive right to fill vacancies orethoard, including vacancies resulting from
an increase in the size of the Board and to protridedirectors so elected to fill those vacansi&we for the balance of the unexpired term. See
"Description of Capital Stock—Subtitle 8."

Pursuant to the Stockholders AgreementnBohas agreed that, until the earlier of the thindiversary of the Closing or the date on which
Bounty owns less than 15% of the Outstanding Com8tork, Bounty will not, either alone or togethathwothers, engage in any proxy contest
for the election of the Company's directors, or enstockholder proposals with respect to the CompBoynty has also agreed that as a condition
precedent to any sale by it of Common Stock repitasg 15% or more of the Outstanding Common St&cynty will require the buyer of such
Common Stock to agree to abide by these restritiBarsuant to the Stockholders Agreement, Bouasydgreed that, until the earlier of the third
anniversary of the Closing or the date on whichgwwns less than 10% of the Outstanding CommonokSBounty will not engage in Short
Sales (as defined in the Stockholders Agreemerghtar into any swap or other arrangement thasteas to another person any of the economic
consequences of ownership of the Common Stock boi@linated Convertible Notes.

Pursuant to the Stockholders AgreementCitiapany has agreed to adopt (and maintain asdsi®punty owns at least 5% of the
Outstanding Common Stock) a Majority Voting Bylaubstantially in the form attached as Annex D ta fRioxy Statement providing that any
director who does not receive a majority of votastén an uncontested election is not elected. Bowill own approximately 40.2% of the
Company's Common Stock issued and outstanding e dtecord Date on a fully diluted basis as altesuhe issuance of the Acquisition
Shares (and approximately 56.2% of the Companysr@an Stock issued and outstanding and of the Re@ate on a fully diluted basis if in
addition all of the Convertible Notes to be purathby Bounty at the Closing are converted), andth@refore have substantial ability (or the
absolute power) to block the election of any divectominated by the Nominating Committee as a teduithe Majority Voting Bylaw.

The material terms of the Acquisition Agremnt are described in the section entitled "AcdgoisiAgreement” and the material terms of the
Stockholders Agreement are described in the seetiditled "Stockholders Agreement” below.

The Convertible Notes Agreement and Potential Isauoa of the Conversion Shares

On March 22, 2010, the Company enteredtimoConvertible Notes Agreement with Bounty purgua which Bounty has agreed to
purchase for cash $25 million in aggregate princpaount of
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the Convertible Notes, convertible into 4,132,23h@rsion Shares (as such amount may be adjustadtain events or increased in connection
with the payment of PIK Interest) at an initial ¥ension price of $6.05 per share, subject to adjast. Together with the Acquisition Shares, the
Conversion Shares would represent approximateBoo&f the issued and outstanding Common Stock eRttord Date on a fully diluted basis
after completion of the Transactions. We may issue sell up to an additional $25 million of Conitdet Notes under the Convertible Notes
Agreement, subject to Bounty's approval, althoughhave no agreement with respect to any such eddltissuances at this time. The holders of
Convertible Notes will have the right, at any tin@convert the principal amount of the Convertilligtes held by such holders into Conversion
Shares at the Conversion Rate, which will initiddly approximately 165.29 shares per $1,000 priheip@unt of Convertible Notes (equal to a
conversion price of $6.05 per share), and is stibjeadjustment from time to time for specified etge

The total number of shares of Common Stsslable upon conversion of the Convertible Notag increase from time to time due to any
one or more of the following factors:

. the issuance of up to $25 million in aggregate@pial amount of additional Convertible Notes;
. the payment of PIK Interest on Convertible Notemtbutstanding (as discussed below); and
. adjustments to the Conversion Rate due to custoaraiydilution adjustments and a price protectioovsion set forth in the

Convertible Notes Agreement.

Stockholders are being asked to approvéstumnce of all Conversion Shares then issualskupat to the Conversion Rate as the same may
be adjusted throughout the term of the Converfilées Agreement pursuant to the foregoing provision

We intend to close the issuance and safleeo€onvertible Notes to Bounty simultaneouslyhviite closing of the Acquisition on the Closing
Date. All Convertible Notes issued on the Closiragdor thereafter will mature on the date thakiges years and six months following the
Closing Date.

Interest on the Convertible Notes will lzyable to the holders of the Convertible Notes ®gulgrin arrears on each January 1, April 1, July 1
and October 1. The Company will pay interest irhcaisa per annum rate starting at 8% and incredsiid% depending upon the interest period
in which interest is due and payable; provided; tha Company may, in its sole discretion and upatice to the holders of the Convertible No
make a PIK Election to pay up to 50% of the intedes in PIK Interest, so long as the payment &f Bterest would not be prohibited by, or
constitute a default under, any other indebtedoegseferred stock (if outstanding) of the Company its subsidiaries. To the extent that the
Company has not made a PIK Election, the Compafliyp®ay interest in cash at a per annum rate inangefsom 8% to 12% depending upon the
interest period in which interest is due and pagabb the extent that the Company has made a Ri#btiBh, then the Company will pay interest at
a per annum rate ranging from 10% to 12% dependlogy the interest period in which interest is dne payable. Once the Company has made a
PIK Election, the PIK Interest Rate will apply ttb subsequent periods for which interest is paid.

On or after the second anniversary of tlwsi@g Date, the Company may redeem all or a dateConvertible Notes upon not less than 30
nor more than 60 days' notice to the holders ofXbevertible Notes at a redemption price equald@4 of the principal amount of the
Convertible Notes plus (i) if the redemption daten or prior to the third anniversary of the GhgsDate, a premium equal to the interest rate ther
in effect as an additional percentage of princgrabunt and (ii) if the redemption date is afterttiied anniversary of the Closing Date but on or
prior to the fourth anniversary of the Closing Dateremium equal to one-half of the interest thém in effect as an additional percentage of
principal amount, in each case, plus accrued apdidrinterest on the Convertible Notes redeemebda@pplicable redemption date. The
Company is not required to redeem the Convertilatebl

34




Table of Contents

The Convertible Notes Agreement contair@mary representations, warranties and covengriBobnty and the Company, including
negative covenants that restrict the Company'séahil effect a consolidation or merger, or setynisfer, lease or otherwise dispose of all or
substantially all of its assets. The consummatithe transactions contemplated by the Converfilées Agreement is subject to several closing
conditions, including, among other things, the appt of the Stock Issuances by the Company's stidkhs, the consummation of the
Acquisition, the consummation of the Senior NotéscbBarge and the absence of certain governmentatmaints.

The Convertible Notes Agreement contairenéy of default customary for agreements of it typith customary grace periods, as
applicable) and provides that, upon the occurrefiem event of default arising from certain evesftbankruptcy or insolvency with respect to the
Company and its material subsidiaries, all outstemonvertible Notes will become due and payatmiméediately without further action or
notice. If any other type of event of default oaccand is continuing, then the holders of at le8st/3 % in principal amount of the then
outstanding Convertible Notes may declare all efdhtstanding Convertible Notes to be due and gayaimediately.

The material terms of the Convertible Nodggeement are described in the section entitleahV@rtible Notes Agreement"” below.
The Senior Notes Discharge

In connection with the Merger complete@@07, Deerfield issued approximately $74 milliorpitncipal amount of Senior Notes. The
Series A Notes and the Series B Notes bear intatestariable rate based upon LIBOR and an iraiilitional margin of 5.0% per year.
Commencing January 1, 2010, such additional ammaadjin of the Senior Notes started to increasanbseiments of 0.50% per annum in each
three-month period for eighteen months and 0.258@peum for each three-month period thereafter. Séx@or Notes also contain various
restrictive covenants with respect to the Company/its subsidiaries incurring additional indebtesiner guarantees, creating liens on their assets
and certain other matters and in each case subjéibse exceptions specified in the note purchgseements with respect to the Senior Notes.

On March 22, 2010, the Company and D&C hally-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered theoSenior Notes Discharge Agreement
with the holders of the Senior Notes entitling @@mpany to pay and discharge all of the approxiln&48.9 million in aggregate principal
amount of Series A Notes outstanding at approxilp&#.1% of the principal amount thereof plus aettinterest, and all of the approximately
$25.1 million in aggregate principal amount of Beries B Notes outstanding at approximately 94.5#%eprincipal amount thereof plus accrued
interest, or an aggregate discount of approximé&blg% from the face amount of the Senior Notes plicrued interest. The purchase price for
each of the Series A Notes and Series B Note®isg$ult of negotiations between the Special Cotemiand the holders of Series A Notes and
the holders of Series B Notes, respectively. Them@any is required to consummate the Senior NotesHarge if the Company completes one or
more debt or equity financing transactions or réadipation transactions (or any combination of debequity financing and recapitalization
transactions), which result in cash proceeds tc&Citimpany or D&C in an aggregate amount of at [825tmillion on or prior to July 31, 2010.

The issuance of the Convertible Notes, as contasgblay the Convertible Notes Agreement, would ®igthis requirement. The Company inte
to use the proceeds of the issuance of the Coblefiotes, together with other available fundsffect the Senior Notes Discharge. Upon
consummation of the Senior Notes Discharge allgalibns and liabilities of the Company and D&C uniie Senior Notes will be released and
the intercreditor agreement related to the Senateslwill be terminated. Certain of our directonsl &xecutive officers own or are affiliated with
entities that own the Senior Notes. See "ProposallN-Approval of the Stock Issuances—Interestserta&n of our Directors and Executive
Officers in the Transactions."
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Effective upon the date of the Senior N@é&xharge Agreement, the Company released cestdahe holders of the Senior Notes from their
obligation to indemnify the Company for losses tediato certain matters pursuant to the terms oMbaeger Agreement (which indemnification
obligations would otherwise have remained in effetil June 30, 2010).

The Senior Notes Discharge Agreement costaiistomary representations and warranties ataceovenants made solely for the benel
the parties to the Senior Notes Discharge AgreenTdra Senior Notes Discharge will occur simultarstpwith the closing of the Acquisition a
the issuance of the Convertible Notes.

The Trust Preferred Exchange

On March 4, 2010, the Company enteredtimoExchange Agreement with Taberna, to exchanger#iion of the $120 million aggregate
outstanding principal amount of the Trust Prefei®edurities previously issued by three wholly-owiretirect subsidiaries of the Company,
Deerfield Capital Trust I, Deerfield Capital Trusand Deerfield Capital Trust I, for $95 millioaggregate outstanding principal amount of
junior subordinated notes issued by the Compang.Trast Preferred Exchange was completed on Mar2B40. An aggregate of $25 million
principal amount of Trust Preferred Securities éskby Deerfield Capital Trust | were not exchanged remain outstanding.

The New Subordinated Notes issued by thm@amy in connection with the Trust Preferred Exgjeaare governed by the New Indenture,
dated March 4, 2010, between the Company and Th& 8aNew York Mellon Trust Company, National Asgd®n, as trustee. Pursuant to the
New Indenture, the New Subordinated Notes beareal finterest rate of 1.00% per annum commencingpoti 30, 2010, payable quarter
through the Modification Period, which ends on A6, 2015 or an earlier date upon which certaigcdjed events occur. Thereafter, the New
Subordinated Notes will be subject to a variabterist rate equal to LIBOR plus 2.58% per annumabpke quarterly on the then outstanding
principal amount of the New Subordinated Notesluméturity on October 30, 2035. As of DecemberZQ9, prior to the Trust Preferred
Exchange, the interest rate for the $50 millioTafst | Trust Preferred Securities was 3.78% aedb0 million of Trust Il and Trust Il Trust
Preferred Securities was 2.53%. The $25 milliofmfst 11l Trust Preferred Securities not exchangethe Trust Preferred Exchange continue to
bear interest at a variable rate equal to threetmbiBOR plus 2.25%. The Company may redeem the Sabordinated Notes on or after
October 30, 2010 at par for cash or replacemenirgies acceptable to the holders.

The New Indenture contains certain resigctovenants including, among other things, @paenant that requires all asset management
activities be conducted by the Company and itsididrges, and which permits the Company to sellitggqand material assets of DCM, only if all
asset management fees and proceeds from equitgsaetisales are subject to the limits on restrigpégthents set forth in the New Indenture, (
debt covenant that permits the Company and DCMdariindebtedness only if that the proceeds of sndbbtedness are subject to the limits on
restricted payments set forth in the New Indeng&ume (iii) a restricted payments covenant that igstthe ability of the Company to pay dividends
or make distributions in respect of its equity sém@s, subject to a number of exceptions and dom. If the Company fails to complete a Credit
Enhancing Transaction within certain time peridtisn the Modification Period will terminate andteém exceptions to the restricted payments
covenant will no longer be available to the Compdssuance of the Convertible Notes and consummatidghe Senior Notes Discharge will
satisfy the requirement that the Company complé@eegit Enhancing Transaction. The New Indenturgaios other agreements, covenants,
events of default and conditions that are simiethe agreements, covenants, events of default@mditions contained in the indentures for the
Trust Preferred Securities. Unlike the indentumglie Trust Preferred Securities, the New Indentlges not contain a covenant requiring the
Company to maintain a minimum net worth.
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In connection with the Trust Preferred Eaqepe, the Company paid a transaction fee equ&36,800 and thirgharty fees and costs incurr
in connection with the exchange of approximatel®,$80. As a result of the Trust Preferred Exchamigie respect to $95 million in aggregate
principal amount of the Trust Preferred Securitiee, Company's obligation to pay approximately $200 in fees associated with a prior
amendment was extinguished.

Background of the Acquisition and the Issuance ofite Convertible Notes

The Company's Board and its managementdghiedlly review and evaluate potential strategipanunities to enhance stockholder value.
Beginning in early 2008, the Company began to abttipursue potential strategic opportunities ineprih maintain and grow its business and
increase its liquidity in response to the turmpithie credit markets and the broader financial etark

In March 2008, the Company's Board esthblisa Strategic Relations Committee, a non-stanchngmittee consisting of Peter H.
Rothschild, the interim Chairman of the Board, Rble Fischer, Robert B. Machinist and Howard Ruf@imirector of the Company until May
2009) to explore strategic opportunities to enhatoekholder value and advise the Board on strat@ggrnatives. In July 2008, the Company
engaged UBS Securities LLCUBS") to assist in that process. During 2008 and 2808 Strategic Relations Committee and the Company
evaluated a number of strategic opportunitiesuigiclg consolidation of the Company's business thighbusinesses of potential strategic partners
and a sale of the Company's business to a stradegidgror. The Strategic Relations Committee aedGbmpany's management engaged in
discussions and negotiations with a number of thigse parties, but determined that none of theptial strategic opportunities that it had
evaluated were in the best interests of the Compaiitg stockholders. In July 2009, the Compangzagement of UBS expired.

In November 2008, as part of the Compaotgping evaluation of potential investment andteyiz opportunities, Jonathan Trutter, the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company, and Aar@tk then a Managing Director of DCM, engaged gliprinary discussions with
representatives from Natixis North America, IncN@tixis"), the financial advisor to CNCIM, regarding thesgible acquisition of CNCIM's
business by the Company. Following receipt of dtnainproposal from the Company, representativeNatixis indicated to Mr. Trutter and
Mr. Peck that CNCIM had received other proposatsafpossible transaction and that CNCIM's managémas not, at that time, interested in
proceeding with a transaction with the Company.segbently, CNCIM did not enter into any transadionconnection with any proposals
received from potential acquirors.

In mid-September 2009, the Company and GMNf&newed their discussions regarding a potentiasaction involving CNCIM's business.
On September 14, 2009, Mr. Trutter met with Glenutffipand William Hayes, each a Managing DirectoiGNCIM, regarding a potential
transaction between the Company and CNCIM. On Sdpte 15, 2009, the Company executed a confidefytiaireement with CNCIM. On
September 16, 2009, Mr. Trutter, on behalf of tlkenPany, delivered to Messrs. Hayes and Duffy apiebry proposal for the Company to
acquire the management agreements of the CNCIM CRAObe time, CNCIM was evaluating several otheposals from third parties for the
acquisition of its business. The Company's managem&rmed members of the Board that it had beediscussions regarding a potential
transaction involving CNCIM and the Board membersated the Company's management to report to dadregularly regarding any
discussions or negotiations with CNCIM.

On October 6, 2009, Messrs. Hayes and Doffymed Mr. Trutter that the Company's proposakwne of three proposals that CNCIM was
evaluating at that time. Mr. Trutter then had salveonversations with Paul Lipari, a partner at@ubus Nova, during which Mr. Lipari indicated
that Columbus Nova would be interested in evalggdirstrategic transaction with the Company.
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On October 23, 2009, Mr. Trutter, on belodithe Company, submitted a written proposal to Mpari and other representatives of
Columbus Nova which contained proposals for thitgraative transactions: (i) the acquisition by @@empany of the outstanding membership
units of CNCIM, a fee sharing arrangement betwéendompany and Columbus Nova with respect to th€l®@Nmanagement fees and an equity
investment in the Company by Columbus Nova, (i€ $hme transaction but without an equity investriretite Company by Columbus Nova, ¢
(iii) a strategic combination of the Company's besis and CNCIM's business. At a meeting on Oct®e2009, Messrs. Trutter, Rothschild and
Machinist discussed the Company's proposals withLiyari and Jason Epstein, a partner at ColumbmgaNand other representatives of
Columbus Nova.

On November 2, 2009 and November 3, 2008549vk. Machinist, Rothschild and Trutter, Robemt@was, the Company's General Counsel,
and Frank Straub, the Company's Chief Financiak®ff met with Messrs. Lipari and Epstein and otlepresentatives of Columbus Nova. At 1
meeting, the Company's management made a presentatMessrs Lipari and Epstein regarding the Comijgébusiness. On November 5, 2009,
the Company's management made a presentation Botre regarding the status of negotiations withQIM and Columbus Nova and the Board
members directed the Company's management to repibre Board regularly regarding any such negotiat

On November 25, 2009, Mr. Lipari and othepresentatives of Columbus Nova delivered to the@any a preliminary proposal of terms for
a strategic transaction involving the Company, @dlus Nova and CNCIM. Columbus Nova's preliminaypmsal provided for, among other
things, (i) the acquisition by the Company of dlthee outstanding membership interests of CNCIMansideration of $25 million in Common
Stock to be issued to Columbus Nova at a pricespare based on the average closing stock pricetibee€0-day period prior to closing, and
(i) an investment in the Company by Columbus Nofap to $37.5 million in convertible debt or equfthe " Strategic Transactiot)). The
members of the Board and the Company's managemebetdéd that the proposed Strategic Transactiondvachieve the Company's goal of
acquiring a strategic business and simultaneous#yngthen the Company's balance sheet with a gignifcapital investment by a strategic
partner, and on such date, the Board establisi@mkaial Committee consisting of Messrs. Machinigt Bischer and Stuart I. Oran, each an
independent director of the Company, to considdreraluate the Strategic Transaction with Colunaga. Mr. Machinist was designated to
serve as the Chairman of the Special CommitteeD&@ember 1, 2009, the Special Committee retainddlfcRoth & Zabel LLP (‘'SRZ") as its
outside legal counsel in connection with the eviidureand potential negotiation of the StrategiciBaction. The Board granted the Special
Committee the exclusive power and authority toréspond to proposals and consider whether or noiiteue an offer with respect to the potel
Strategic Transaction and to review and evaluaddims and conditions, and determine the advigglof the potential Strategic Transaction,
(2) negotiate the terms and conditions of the g@kBtrategic Transaction, (3) if the Special Coittee deemed it appropriate, determine to reject
any proposal or not to pursue an offer, or ceagetiaions at any time, with respect to the potdr8irategic Transaction or, in the alternativet
subject to applicable law), approve the potenttedtBgic Transaction, (4) determine whether thepidl| Strategic Transaction is advisable to,
in the best interests of, the Company and its $tolders, (5) make a recommendation to the full Badrwhether or not the Board should approve
the potential Strategic Transaction taking intocant all appropriate considerations and (6) recondrte the full Board what other action, if any,
should be taken by the Company with respect tgdtential Strategic Transaction.
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On December 8, 2009, Latham & Watkins, I(lIPatham"), outside legal counsel to Columbus Naantacted Mr. Contreras to begin
preliminary discussions on the proposed Strategandaction.

On December 9, 2009, at a meeting of treclBpCommittee, SRZ reviewed with the memberdef$pecial Committee their duties under
applicable law as directors and members of the i@8p€ommittee in connection with the Strategic Teaction and outlined certain policies and
procedures for the Special Committee to use in tigijtg the Strategic Transaction. The Special Cdtterm authorized the Company's
management to provide due diligence informatiorualiee Company to Columbus Nova and its represeatand directed management to
prepare and present to the Special Committee faeweand approval a term sheet in response to GmlgnNova's proposal for the Strategic
Transaction reflecting input from the Special Cotes. The Special Committee authorized Mr. RotHddbi negotiate the terms of the proposed
Strategic Transaction together with a member ofSpecial Committee at all material negotiations.

Between December 10, 2009 and Decembe2@B, Messrs. Machinist and Rothschild had sedisalissions with Columbus Nova
regarding the terms of the potential Strategic $aation. At a meeting of the Special Committee eadnber 24, 2009, Messrs. Machinist and
Rothschild described their discussions with ColusNiova regarding the terms of the potential Stiat€gansaction. At the meeting, the Special
Committee reviewed a draft of the proposed ternesheepared, at the direction of the Special Cotemjtby the Company's management and
SRZ. The term sheet contained the principal terfitkeoproposed Strategic Transaction, includingstinecture of the transaction, the
consideration for the Common Stock, the terms efG@onvertible Notes, board representation and catp@overnance, closing conditions,
restrictions on the market activity of Columbus ldon the Company's Common Stock and break-up feg@egpenses. Following a discussion of
the proposed term sheet, the Special CommitteetditeSRZ to prepare a revised term sheet basdteafigcussion to be sent to Columbus Nova.
The term sheet sent to Columbus Nova provided 28riillion of Common Stock to be issued to Columblava at a price per share to be agr
and for Columbus Nova to purchase up to $37.5onilln senior subordinated convertible notes.

Throughout December 2009 and January 2080Company's management and its advisors conddatediligence of Columbus Nova, its
business principals and CNCIM and its managememteagents with respect to the CNCIM CLOs, and disedghe status and results of such
review with the Special Committee.

From December 24, 2009 to February 4, 2@idparties and their respective legal counsebtiagd the term sheet based on the principles
outlined in the Columbus Nova's proposal for that®gic Transaction and the parameters set fortheilDecember 24, 2010 draft of the term
sheet prepared at the direction of the Special Citteen During this time, Messrs. Machinist and Ruathild, the Company's management and
negotiated the term sheet with Messrs. Lipari apst&n, other members of Columbus Nova's manageamehtatham, including at three face-to-
face negotiating sessions. During this time, ColusmNova proposed that the parties enter into arleftintent in connection with the term sheet
which, among other things, would provide for anlesivity period for negotiating the Strategic Trangon and reimbursement of Columbus
Nova's transaction fees and expenses. After sedim@lssions among the parties, Columbus Nova véthdts request that the Company execi
letter of intent in connection with the proposedhag&tgic Transaction. Mr. Machinist and Mr. Roth&thégularly updated the Special Committee
regarding the status of negotiations with Columiosa and sought input and direction from the Spegemammittee on how to proceed with
negotiating the term sheet. The term sheet wasrmxezuted and no additional drafts were exchamhgédeen the Company and Columbus Nova
or their respective advisors after February 4, 201@ final draft of the term sheet provided fob$gillion of Common Stock to be issued to
Columbus Nova at a price per share to be agreedfoarColumbus Nova to purchase $25 million in sesubordinated convertible notes.
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On February 4, 2010 the Special Committeériicted SRZ to prepare drafts of the Acquisi\gmeement and the Stockholders Agreement
based upon, in part, the provisions containedeémtiost recent draft of the proposed term sheet.

On February 22, 2010, the Special Committeeto review drafts of the Acquisition Agreemantl the Stockholders Agreement prepare
SRZ. During the meeting, the Special Committee éskestions and received answers from Messrs. Misthkind Rothschild and SRZ regarding
the draft of the Acquisition Agreement, includirgtstructure of the Strategic Transaction, theesgmtations and warranties to be made by the
Company to Bounty, survival of key representatiand warranties made by Bounty and CNCIM, indematfan, the no shop covenant and the
provisions for break-up fees and expense reimbueaériihe members of the Special Committee alsodaglestions and received answers
regarding the draft of the Stockholders Agreemieistuding the restrictions on Bounty's ability taisfer Common Stock, Bounty's rights to
designate persons to be nominated to the Board;dhepany's requirement that the Board maintain janityaof independent directors following
the closing of the proposed Strategic Transacti@hgenerally the implication for control of the Cpamy under the proposed terms. Following
discussion, the members of the Special Committezid SRZ to prepare revised drafts of the ActiaisiAgreement and the Stockholders
Agreement based upon the discussion to be sergltor®us Nova and Latham.

On February 24, 2010, SRZ sent the drdfteeAcquisition Agreement and the Stockholderse®gnent to Columbus Nova and Latham. On
the same day Latham sent drafts of the Converibles Agreement and the Registration Rights Agreeiieethe Company and SRZ.

On March 1, 2010, Latham sent revised draffthe Acquisition Agreement and the Stockholdegseeement to the Company and SRZ.

On March 1, 2010 and March 2, 2010, atdinection of the Special Committee, Messrs. MaddtjriRothschild, Trutter, Contreras, Straub
SRZ met with Messrs. Lipari and Epstein, other meralof Columbus Nova's management and Latham totia¢g the drafts of the Acquisition
Agreement, the Stockholders Agreement, the Corblerblote Agreement, the Registration Rights Agremmaad the Transition Services
Agreement (the Principal Document$). During the meetings, the parties negotiatedomgnother things, (i) the scope and nature of the
representations and warranties to be made by BamtyCNCIM to the Company and to be made by thefamm to Bounty, (ii) the amount of
the termination fee payable by the Company to Bpupbn the occurrence of specified events, (ii§) albility of the Company to enter into
alternative transactions after the execution ofAbquisition Agreement, (iv) tax issues, (v) theymeent of deferred consideration to Bounty,
(vi) Bounty's right to designate persons to be matad as members of the Board, (vii) the paymeRiifinterest by the Company with respec
the Convertible Notes and (viii) anti-dilution pegtion with respect to the Convertible Notes.

During the first two weeks of March, ther@many, Columbus Nova and their respective legahselcontinued to review and negotiate the
Principal Documents. On March 17, 2010, the Sp&@ahmittee met to review the status of the Strat@&gansaction and the process for finali:
the documentation for the Strategic Transactiofioing the meeting of the Special Committee, Mesbtachinist and Rothschild, at the
direction of the Special Committee, discussed WM#ssrs. Lipari and Epstein the valuation of the @any's Common Stock proposed to be
issued to Bounty in connection with the StrategiariBaction. Messrs. Machinist and Rothschild inedahat the then-current valuation of the
Common Stock in the Strategic Transaction was vielyethe Special Committee as inadequate. Followhegliscussion, Columbus Nova and
Bounty agreed to increase the consideration for @omStock to an implied price of $5.50 per share.
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On March 19, 2010, at a joint meeting @& Board and the Special Committee, the Company®mgament presented its preliminary finan
analysis of the proposed Strategic Transactionuydieg the assumptions and methodology used ingpegjpn thereof and the rationale for
entering into the proposed Strategic Transaction.

At a meeting on March 21, 2010, the membéthe Special Committee received the final wntpgesentation of management's analysis of
the financial aspects of the Strategic Transadiwhits valuation. Prior to the meeting, the Sdege@nmittee had been furnished with written
summaries of the principal terms of the PrincipatDments and with the then-current drafts of athsdocuments. After discussion and
deliberation based upon the information presentedcansidered during its evaluation of the propdsdtegic Transaction, the Special
Committee, by unanimous vote, determined that eatihe Principal Documents and the transactionsesoplated thereby were advisable and in
the best interests of the Company and its stocldnsldnd recommended that the Board authorize egekraent and the transactions contemp
thereby and further recommended that the Boardmetend that the stockholders of the Company appttew&tock Issuances.

On March 21, 2010, the Board met to revile&/proposed terms and financial aspects of theegfic Transaction. Prior to the meeting, the
Board had been furnished with written summariethefprincipal terms of the Principal Documents waiith the then-current drafts of all such
documents. After discussion and deliberation bagexh the information presented and considered dutsnevaluation of the proposed Strategic
Transaction, the Board, by unanimous vote othar that of Peter W. May, who did not participatdhtie deliberations or vote in view of his
interest in the discharge of the Senior Notes,rdeteed that the Principal Documents and the traias contemplated thereby are advisable and
in the best interests of the Company and its stolddns and recommended that the stockholders dEtimepany approve the Stock Issuances.

On March 22, 2010, the Company enteredtimoAcquisition Agreement with Bounty and CNCIMdahe Convertible Notes Agreement
with Bounty.

Acquisition Agreement

The following is a summary of selected ps@mns of the Acquisition Agreement, pursuant taskithe Company will acquire all of the
outstanding equity interests of CNCIM in considierabf the issuance of shares of the Company's Gam&tock to Bounty. While the Company
believes this description covers the material teofrthe Acquisition Agreement, it may not contalhad the information that is important to you
and is qualified in its entirety by reference te thcquisition Agreement, which is attached as AnAdr this Proxy Statement. We urge you to
read the entire Acquisition Agreement carefully.

Consideration

Pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement, \agehagreed to acquire all of the outstanding edntgrests of CNCIM for the total purchase pi
of $32.5 million consisting of (i) the issuance4g$45,455 shares (at an implied price of $5.50spare) of Common Stock and (ii) deferred
payments totaling $7.5 million in cash payableivie fequal installments beginning six months afier €losing Date.

Following the consummation of the transatdi contemplated by the Acquisition Agreement,Gbenpany and Bounty will adjust the amo
of consideration paid by the Company at the ClogimgCNCIM to reflect the actual cost of transfagithe operations of CNCIM. If the actual
cost is less than the estimated cost at the Clp#ieg the Company will pay to Bounty an amountaddo such
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difference in cash. If the actual cost is greatantthe estimated cost at the Closing, then Bowiityay to the Company an amount equal to such
difference in cash.

Representations and Warrantie

The Acquisition Agreement contains représgons and warranties made by the Company, CNGIMBounty as of specific dates. The
representations and warranties contained in theuisitipn Agreement have been negotiated with thecfal purpose of establishing the
circumstances in which the parties may have th# rigt to complete the transactions contemplatethbyAcquisition Agreement, or a party may
have the right to terminate the Acquisition Agreetriéthe representations and warranties of angbhety prove to be untrue due to a change in
circumstance or otherwise, rather than establishiagers as facts. Some of these representatiahwamanties are subject to specified except
and qualifications, including exceptions and otinésrmation contained in confidential disclosuréaedules that the parties exchanged in
connection with signing the Acquisition Agreememhich are not included in this Proxy Statementadidition, some of these representations and
warranties are qualified as to "materiality" andaterial adverse effect." Moreover, information ceming the subject matter of such
representations and warranties may change aftetatecof the Acquisition Agreement, which subsegqugormation may or may not be fully
reflected in the Company's public disclosures. Adtwly, you should not look to such representatiand warranties for information about the
Company, Bounty or CNCIM.

The Acquisition Agreement contains custonmrapresentations and warranties by CNCIM, limitepresentations and warranties by Bounty,
and customary representations and warranties bg dingpany.

The representations and warranties by CN@el Bounty, relate to a number of matters, ineclgdhe following:

. Organization and good standing of Bounty and CNCIM,;

. Authority to enter into the Acquisition Agreememidathe documents related thereto and the enfordgadfithe Acquisition
Agreement and the documents related thereto agamsity and CNCIM;

. Bounty's ownership of CNCIM and the capitalizateffCNCIM;

. That the Acquisition Agreement and the documenttad thereto do not violate the organizationalutoents of Bounty, CNCIM
or the CNCIM CLOs; do not conflict with or violagmy laws applicable to Bounty, CNCIM or the CNCINML@s; do not require
consent under or conflict with any other agreenoéi@ounty, CNCIM or the CNCIM CLOs; and do not rlisno the creation of any
lien upon the properties or assets of Bounty, CN©Mthe CNCIM CLOs;

. Compliance with laws;

. Financial statements;

. Absence of certain changes and events since Dece8hp2009;

. Absence of undisclosed liabilities and no indebé&sdrfor borrowed money;

. Compliance with specific laws applicable to CNCl&garding the provision of investment managememices;
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. The CNCIM CLO management agreements and CNCIM CloD&hich CNCIM is the manager;

. Material contracts;

. Intellectual property owned or used by CNCIM,;

. Absence of undisclosed litigation;

. Tax matters;

. Affiliate transactions;

. Employee benefit plans;

. Employment matters;

. Absence of misleading or omissions of material imfation;

. Independent investigation; and

. Brokers' and finders' fees related to the transastcontemplated by the Acquisition Agreement.

The representations and warranties by tragany relate to a number of matters, includingfétiewing:

. Organization and good standing of the Company;

. Authority to enter into the Acquisition Agreememtdathe documents related thereto and the enfordgadfithe Acquisition
Agreement and the documents related thereto agam&ompany;

. The vote of the Company's stockholders necessappoove the Stock Issuances;

. Subsidiaries of the Company;

. Capitalization of the Company;

. Compliance with laws;

. That the Acquisition Agreement and the documenittad thereto do not violate the organizationaluoents of the Company; do

not conflict with or violate any laws applicablette Company; do not require consent under or minfith any other agreements
of the Company; and do not result in the creatioany lien upon the properties or assets of the @ and its subsidiaries;

. SEC filings and financial statements;

. Absence of certain changes and events since Dece3hb2009;

. Absence of undisclosed liabilities;

. Compliance with specific laws applicable to the @amy regarding the provision of investment manageémservices;
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. The Company's CLO management agreements and thassuérs for which it is the manager;
. Material contracts;

. Absence of undisclosed litigation;

. Tax matters;

. Employee benefit plans;

. Employment matters;

. Absence of misleading or omissions of material imfation;

. Issuance of shares of our Common Stock in conneegtith the Acquisition;

. Independent investigation;

. Absence of the granting of voting rights or regititin rights;

. Other investment advisory activities;

. Absence of investment adviser relationships regargrivate investment funds;

. Brokers' and finders' fees related to the transastcontemplated by the Acquisition Agreement; and
. Affiliate transaction.

Material Adverse Effec

A number of the representations and waiearity Bounty and CNCIM with respect to CNCIM areatified by a "Manager Material Adverse
Effect” standard. "Manager Material Adverse Effasttiefined to mean any effect, event, circumstamaghange that (i) is or would be reasonz
likely to be, individually or in the aggregate, maally adverse to the business, financial conditio results of operations of CNCIM, it being
agreed that in the event of a cancellation of,agotif cancellation of, termination of, removal f@use of CNCIM as the collateral manager
(including pursuant to any "key person" provisianger, or the acceleration, liquidation or optioredemption of securities issued by any CN(
CLOs with respect to management agreements bet@R€iM and such CNCIM CLOs, it shall be deemed torizerially adverse to CNCIM,
taken as a whole, only if the loss of the expefitagre revenue stream would decrease the net pgreakre of the management agreements
between CNCIM and the CNCIM CLOs in excess of $Bioni and for purposes of this calculation, the petsent value of the management fees
will be based upon a methodology set forth in a&dalte previously delivered to the Company or (iguld prevent the consummation of the
Transactions contemplated by the Acquisition Agreetnother than in the case of events in claug@éifollowing:

(@  Changes in general economic, political or finanmiakket conditions (including conditions in thectanarkets or other capital
markets and changes in interest or exchange rates);

(b) Changes resulting from a change in applicable laacoounting regulation or principle after the datt¢he Acquisition Agreement;
(c) Changes resulting from the failure of CNCIM to maey projections, forecasts, revenues or earniadigtions, estimates or
budgets for any period prior to, on or after theeda the Acquisition Agreement it being understdioat the underlying

circumstances, events or reasons giving rise tcsanll change can be taken into account in detemminhether a Manager
Material Adverse Effect has occurred or would readiy be expected to occur; or
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(d)  An outbreak or escalation of war, armed hostiljteegts of terrorism, political instability, naturedtastrophe or other calamity, crisis
or emergency.

In the case of (a), (b), and (d), such dearshall only be excluded to the extent that tteepot have a disproportionate adverse effect en th
business, financial condition or results of operadiof CNCIM as compared to other persons engagttiinvestment management business.

Additionally, a few of the representatiaml warranties of the Company are qualified by amifany Material Adverse Effect" standard. ~
definition of Company Material Adverse Effect ishstantially identical to the definition of Managdaterial Adverse Effect, except that the
quantifiable loss threshold for the Company is $lion.

Conduct of CNCIM's Business and the Company's Bus@s Pending Consummation of Transactions

CNCIM and the Company have each agreeddiilvig the period from the signing of the AcquitAgreement, until the earlier of the
closing or the termination of the Acquisition Agneent, CNCIM, on the one hand, and the Companyherother hand, will, among other things,
use commercially reasonable efforts to maintaiir thesinesses and duly comply with all applicalaled.

CNCIM has also agreed that, during thequefiom the signing of the Acquisition Agreementilthe earlier of the closing or the terminat
of the Acquisition Agreement, except as specificallowed under the Acquisition Agreement, any @ctdy the Company or one of its
subsidiaries taken on behalf of CNCIM pursuant® Transition Services Agreement or consented tariting by the Company (which consent
will not be unreasonably withheld or delayed), CNIG4ill not:

. Amend CNCIM's governing documents;
. Incur indebtedness or liens (other than permitieus);
. Issue, sell, authorize, pledge or otherwise encurabg equity interests of CNCIM or any class ofwséi®s convertible into equity

interests of CNCIM;

. Repurchase, redeem or otherwise acquire equitseistie of CNCIM;
. Acquire, purchase, license or lease any corporatiarther business organization or any materigdtass equity interests thereof;
. Transfer, sell, license, lease, abandon or otherdigpose of any of CNCIM's material assets othan hon-exclusive licenses or

intellectual property in the ordinary course of iness;
. Change in any material respect any method of ado@iprinciples or accounting practices;

. Terminate, enter into, amend, assign or waive aaterial rights or claims under any management ageeéwith a CNCIM CLO
or any material contract;

. Waive, reduce or defer any fee payable under amagement agreement with a CNCIM CLO or any indentatated to such
CNCIM CLOs;

. Consent to any amendment or supplement to any decuaf any CNCIM CLO;

. Merge or consolidate CNCIM with or into any corpiwa or business organization or have CNCIM enté&r any joint venture or

partnership agreement or similar contract;

. Except as required by law or existing benefit plgisadopt, terminate or amend any benefit plaaror other bonus, profit sharing,
deferred compensation, incentive or equity plarttierbenefit of employees, former employees, cdastd, members or directors
of CNCIM, (ii) grant any material increase in thmmpensation of CNCIM employees or any increasbéncompensation payable
or to become payable to any CNCIM member, offiqedicector,
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(iii) enter into, establish, amend, terminate aren® an employment, bonus, severance, terminatipnrpirement or other similar
agreement or arrangement that would trigger anynkay clauses in any agreement with a CNCIM CLGOwWraccelerate the
vesting or payment of compensation or benefits by any current or former employees, consultantmbers or directors of

CNCIM;
. Adopt or enter into a plan of liquidation, dissabut or other restructuring of CNCIM,;
. Settle litigation or commit to settle litigation @xcess of $50,000 so long as the settlement dutesaterially restrict the

Company's business (including CNCIM's business-plasing);

. Declare or pay dividends or distributions;

. Enter into any new line of business;

. Form any subsidiary; or

. Authorize, agree or commit to do any of the foregoi

The Company has also agreed that, duriagdhiod from the signing of the Acquisition Agremmhuntil the earlier of the closing or the
termination of the Acquisition Agreement, excepspscifically allowed under the Acquisition Agreamer consented to in writing by Bounty
(which consent will not be unreasonably withheldletayed), the Company will not, and will causesitbsidiaries not to:

. Amend the Company's governing documents;

. Incur indebtedness or liens (other than permitieak), except for (i) indebtedness incurred indhdinary course of business,
(i) indebtedness incurred in connection with teBrrancing of the subordinated notes issued by fizdeiCapital Trust I, and
(iii) indebtedness incurred in connection with fieng of investment positions in financial assetd eelated hedging activity;

. Issue, sell, authorize, pledge or otherwise encur@loenmon Stock or any equity interests in the Camyfsasubsidiaries or any
class of securities convertible into such interests

. Repurchase, redeem or otherwise acquire any Congtomk;

. Acquire, purchase, license or lease any corporatiarther business organization or any materisgdtass equity interests thereof
for consideration, individually or in the aggregateexcess of $250,000 (other than non-exclusoenkes or intellectual property
in the ordinary course of business);

. Transfer, sell, license, lease, abandon or otherdispose of any material assets other than finhassets in the ordinary course of
business, assets not being transferred to the Qoytgoaew leased premises and mxetusive licenses of intellectual property in
ordinary course of business;

. Change in any material respect any method of ado@uprinciples or accounting practices;

. Waive, reduce or defer any fee payable under amagement agreement with a CLO issuer managed b@dhgany or one of its
affiliates (the "Company CLO Issuet$ or any indenture related to the Company CLO dssexcept for a negotiated list of
agreements;

. Consent to any amendment or supplement to any deruofi any Company CLO Issuer;

. Terminate, enter into, amend, assign or waive aateral rights or claims under any management agee¢ with a Company CLO

Issuer or material contract;

. Merge or consolidate with or into any corporatigrother business organization or enter into anytjeénture or partnership
agreement or similar contract;
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. Except as required by law or existing benefit pland special bonuses that may be paid to officetlsdirectors of the Company
upon consummation of the Transactions (which banbsee not yet been finally determined or awardedmount not to exceed
$1.3 million in the aggregate (including any disitneary fees paid pursuant to the 2010 Rothschdth@ensation Agreement),

(i) adopt, terminate or amend any benefit planrgr ather bonus, profit sharing, deferred compensaincentive or equity plan for
the benefit of employees, former employees, coastdf members or directors of the Company, (iingeamy material increase in
the compensation of employees or any increasernrpeasation payable or to become payable to angeuféir director, (iii) enter
into, establish, amend, terminate or renew any eympént, bonus, severance, termination pay, retintmeother similar agreeme
or arrangement or (iv) accelerate the vesting gnpent of compensation or benefits payable to amyeot or former employees,
consultants, or directors of the Company;

. Adopt or enter into a plan of liquidation, dissabut or other restructuring of the Company;

. Settle litigation or commit to settle litigation @xcess of $50,000 so long as the settlement dutawaterially restrict the
Company's business;

. Declare or pay dividends or distributions othemticash dividends from any wholly-owned subsididrthe Company to the
Company or another wholly-owned subsidiary of tlenpany;

. Enter into any new line of business; or
. Authorize, agree or commit to do any of the foregoi

No Solicitation

Bounty will not, will not permit its direots, officers and employees to, and shall use cawially reasonable efforts to cause its investment
bankers, financial advisors, attorneys, accountamtsother representatives not to, directly orritly:

. Discuss, negotiate, undertake, initiate, authoregepmmend, propose or enter into, any alternaieposal;
. Solicit or knowingly encourage or facilitate, neigtibns or submissions of proposals or offers Bpeet of an alternative proposal;
. Furnish or cause to be furnished, to any personcanfidential information concerning the businegserations, properties or ast

of CNCIM or the CNCIM CLOs in connection with arteahative proposal; or

. Execute or enter into any agreement, understanfiittgr of intent or arrangement with respect t@kernative proposal.

The Company will not, will not permit itsrelctors, officers and employees to, and shallassemercially reasonable efforts to cause its
investment bankers, advisors, attorneys, accountart other representatives not to, directly oir@uody:

. Initiate, solicit, facilitate or encourage (incladi by way of providing information) the submissioinany inquiries, proposals or
offers or any other efforts or attempts that cansdti or may reasonably be expected to lead toaliagnative proposal or engage
participate in or continue any discussions or niegions with respect thereto or otherwise coopenatie or assist or facilitate any
such inquiries, proposals, offers, discussionsegotiations;

. Approve or recommend, or publicly propose to approvrecommend, any alternative proposal;
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. Furnish or cause to be furnished, to any personnan-public information concerning the businegsrations, properties or assets
of the Company or the Company CLO Issuers in caimreavith an alternative proposal,

. Withdraw, change, amend, modify or qualify, or pee publicly to withdraw, change, amend, modifyjoalify, in a manner
adverse to Bounty or CNCIM, or otherwise make a@ayesnent or proposal inconsistent with, the Boaretemmendation to the
Company's stockholders to approve the Stock Isasnc

. Enter into any agreement, understanding, lettémteht, agreement in principle or other agreementnalerstanding relating to an
alternative proposal or arrangement with respeantalternative proposal or enter into any agre¢meagreement in principle
requiring the Company to abandon, terminate ortéaidlomplete the transactions contemplated herebyeach its obligations
hereunder; or

. Resolve, propose or agree to do any of the forggoin
The Company may furnish information to axedjotiate with any person making an unsoliciteeraltive proposal if:

. The Board or the Special Committee has determingmod faith after consultation without its finasicand legal advisors that the
alternative proposal constitutes a superior proposa

. After consultation within its legal advisor, the &d determines in good faith that such action eaeary to comply with its
fiduciary duties to the Company's stockholders urggplicable law; and

The Company has informed Bounty prompthyd(@ no event later than 24 hours after) followihg taking of such action, and thereafter the
Company must keep Bounty reasonably informed oktatis and material terms and conditions of sltehnative proposal.

An "alternative proposal” means any inqupsoposal or offer from any person or group ofspes other than the parties to the Acquisition
Agreement relating to any direct or indirect:

. merger, consolidation, other business combinatraimilar transaction of either CNCIM or the Compan

. sale, lease or other disposition directly or incliseby merger, consolidation, business combinatgrare exchange, joint venture,
or otherwise, of assets of either CNCIM or the Camp

. issuance or sale or other disposition of equitgriests representing 10% or more of the voting pdimetuding equity interests
issuable upon conversion or exercise of any otbeurity) of either CNCIM or the Company;

. transaction or series of transactions in which pengson will acquire beneficial ownership or thehtitp acquire beneficial
ownership or any group (as defined in Section 18{dhe Exchange Act) has been formed which beiadifjcowns or has the right
to acquire beneficial ownership of, equity intesagtpresenting 10% or more of the voting poweritbiee CNCIM or the Company;
or

. any combination of the foregoing.
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A "superior proposal" means any unsolicitedten alternative proposal (except that refeemnio 10% shall be 30% for this purpose) with
respect to the Company that:

. The Board determines in good faith (after considtetvith its financial and legal advisors) is reaably likely to be consummated;
and
. Is on terms that the Board determines in good faifter consultation with its financial and legdvisors) is more favorable, from a

financial point of view, to the Company's stocktesklthan the consummation of the transactions oguitged by the Acquisition
Agreement after giving effect to all adjustmentstte terms thereof which may be offered by Bounty.

The Board may publicly withdraw, changerardify, in a manner adverse to Bounty, all or aogtipn of the Board's recommendation to the
Company's stockholders to approve the Stock Is&sincresponse to the Company's receipt of amalige proposal or a material development
other than an alternative proposal or superior @sapthat arises or becomes known to the BoarbdeBpecial Committee following the date of
the Acquisition Agreement and that has not occuoredas unknown to the Board or the Special Conemitts of the date of the Acquisition
Agreement, if the Board determines in good faiteraonsultation with its legal and financial adwssthat the failure to take such action would be
inconsistent with its fiduciary duties to the Compa stockholders and director duties under apipléckaw. If the Board or the Special Committee
determines in good faith, in response to an alterg@roposal, that such proposal is a superiop@sal, the Company may terminate the
Acquisition Agreement and approve or recommend suglerior proposal to the Company's stockholderds emter into an agreement with respect
to a superior proposal, or if the Board changeseitemmendation of the proposal that the Compastgtkholders approve the Stock Issuances in
response to a material development that arisee@bes known to the Board or the Special Committesy Bounty may terminate the
Acquisition Agreement and in each case the Compalhype obligated to pay a termination fee to Bauaf $1.5 million plus Bounty's reasonable
and documented out-of-pocket legal fees and exgansmnnection with the Acquisition Agreement, tr@nsactions contemplated by the
Acquisition Agreement and the negotiations leadipgo the Acquisition Agreement and the transasticontemplated by the Acquisition
Agreement.

The Board may not change its recommendatidhe proposal to approve the Stock Issuancésrorinate the Acquisition Agreement in
response to a superior proposal unless (i) the @osnpas not breached its non-solicitation covendiitshe Company has provided at least five
business days prior written notice of its intentioriake such action, which notice with respedetmination of the Acquisition Agreement will
specify the material terms and conditions of sugbesior proposal and include a copy of the relewartsaction agreement with the party making
such superior proposal, and which notice with resfiea change of recommendation will describentia¢erial development other than an
alternative proposal or superior proposal thatearis becomes known to the Board or the Specialmiitige following the date of the Acquisition
Agreement, and that has not occurred or was unkrmien to the date of the Acquisition Agreementd &iii) prior to changing its
recommendation of the proposal to approve the Strikances or terminating the Acquisition Agreeniemésponse to a superior proposal, the
Company will during such five business day periedatiate with Bounty in good faith, to the extemiuBty desires to negotiate, to make such
adjustments in the terms and conditions of the Agifjon Agreement so that the Board no longer deitmecessary to effect a change of
recommendation or such superior proposal ceadas sosuperior proposal, as applicable.

Stockholders Meeting

The Acquisition Agreement requires the Campto take all action necessary to call and hatteating of its stockholders to approve the
Stock Issuances. The Company is required to ha@drtbeting even if the Board has changed or withdrigswecommendation that stockholders
approve the
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Stock Issuances. However, the Company is not redua hold the meeting if the Acquisition Agreemisnterminated. The Board is required to
take all action that is reasonably necessary oisatlle to secure stockholder approval of the Steslances and, subject to its fiduciary duties
under applicable law, to recommend that the Comgastgckholders vote in favor of such issuances. Cbmpany may adjourn or postpone the
stockholders meeting to the extent necessary tplem@nt or amend the Proxy Statement, or if, ah@time for which the stockholders meeting
is originally scheduled, there are insufficientrgsaof Common Stock represented (either in persday @roxy) to constitute a quorum necessary
to conduct the business of the meeting.

Market Activity

Bounty agrees that from the date of theusitjion Agreement until the earlier of the ClosiDgte or termination of the Acquisition
Agreement, Bounty will not, and will not permit apgrson acting on behalf of Bounty to, engage ortséales, derivatives, participations, swaps
or other arrangements that transfer to anotheopeis whole or in part, any of the economic consagges of ownership of the Common Stock.

CNCIM CLOs

For so long as an affiliate of the Companthe collateral manager of a CNCIM CLO, Bountyi wot, and will cause its affiliates not to, take
on any action to:

. Cause the removal of an affiliate of the Compangateral manager of such CNCIM CLO or terminthie applicable CNCIM
CLO management agreement; or

. Vote in favor of an optional redemption of any s#éges issued by such CNCIM CLO.
Conditions to Closing
Conditions to the Obligations of the Company

The Company's obligation to complete t@sactions contemplated by the Acquisition Agregmaélhbe subject to the satisfaction of
conditions, any one or more of which may be waibgdhe Company, including:

. The Company's stockholders have approved the $$salnces;

. No order, injunction or decree has been issuedhlgycaurt or agency of competent jurisdiction, aodother legal restraint or
prohibition preventing the consummation of the sations contemplated by the Acquisition Agreemisnty effect;

. No law has been enacted, entered, promulgatedforcex by any governmental authority that prohibitsnakes illegal the
consummation of the transactions contemplated &Adguisition Agreement;

. All governmental approvals necessary for the comsation of the transactions contemplated by the Asitjion Agreement have
been obtained, except for those that, if not oleinvould not reasonably be expected to have arialaelverse effect;

. The representations and warranties of Bounty an@I@Nare true and correct as of the closing of tlogéisition Agreement,
without giving effect to "materiality” or "materialdverse effect” limitations except to the extdat the failure of the
representations and warranties to be so true amdat@s of the closing of the Acquisition Agreerneould not have, individually
or in the aggregate, a material adverse effectM@I®1, except that the following representations arairanties with respect to the
following matters shall be true and correct inralipects, in
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each case at and as of the date of the Acquishgreement and at and as of the Closing Date asiferat and as of such time (o
expressly made as of a specific date, as of tha).da

. Organization;
. Authorization; enforceability; and
. Title; capitalization and subsidiaries.
. Bounty and CNCIM have performed and complied imaditerial respects with all covenants and othezegents required to be

performed or complied with by them prior to or tve IClosing Date;

. No Manager Material Adverse Effect has occurrednftbe date of the Acquisition Agreement to the @lgDate;

. CNCIM shall not have received notice from any CNGIMO or investor in a CNCIM CLO that it may causéher individually or
collectively with others, a redemption of any sétes issued by such CNCIM CLO or termination off &@NCIM CLO
management agreement;

. The issuance of the Convertible Notes shall be d¢erag contemporaneously with the Closing exceplhéoextent that the failure to
consummate the issuance of the Convertible Notagdtssfrom a breach of the Convertible Notes Agreenty the Company or a
failure by the Company to satisfy any conditionsréin;

. Bounty shall have provided a certificate that ih@t a foreign person for purposes of Section 1gf4he Code;

. The Company shall have consummated or causeddorisimmated the Senior Notes Discharge in an aggregnount not great
than $55 million plus accrued interest thereorhtolosing Date;

. The Company shall have received executed copidedbtockholders Agreement and the RegistratiomtRiggreement; and

. The employment agreements between CNCIM and eadfilthm Hayes and Glenn Duffy shall be in full && and effect.
Conditions to the Obligations of Bounty and CNCIM

The obligation of Bounty and CNCIM to corefd the transactions contemplated by the Acquisitigreement will be subject to the
satisfaction of conditions, any one or more of wahicay be waived by Bounty, including:

. The Company's stockholders have approved the $$saklnces;

. No order, injunction or decree has been issuedhlgycaurt or agency of competent jurisdiction, aodother legal restraint or
prohibition preventing the consummation of the $&ations contemplated by the Acquisition Agreemisnty effect;

. No law has been enacted, entered, promulgatedforcea by any governmental authority that prohibitsnakes illegal the
consummation of the transactions contemplated &yAttguisition Agreement;

. All governmental approvals necessary for the comaation of the transactions contemplated by the Asitjon Agreement have
been obtained, except for those that, if not oledinvould not reasonably be expected to have ariakadelverse effect;

. The representations and warranties of the Companiri@e and correct as of the closing of the Adtjois Agreement, without
giving effect to "materiality" or "material adverséect"
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limitations and except for those representatiortsvaarranties that address matters only as of &pat date which must be true
and correct as of that date, and except to thenettiat the failure of the representations and arares to be so true and correct €
the closing of the Acquisition Agreement would hawe, individually or in the aggregate, a mateathterse effect on the
Company, except that the following representatenms warranties of the Company shall be true andecbin all respects, in each
case at and as of the date of the Acquisition Age and at and as of the Closing Date as if madadhas of such time (or if
expressly made as of a specific date, as of tha):da

. Organization;
. Authorization; enforceability;
. Capitalization;
. Federal taxes solely with respect to NOLs; and
. State taxes solely with respect to NOLs will beetaind correct in all material respects.
. The Company has performed and complied in all medterspects with all covenants and other agreesneqfuired to be performe

or complied with by it prior to or on the Closin@i®;

. No Company Material Adverse Effect has occurredftbe date of the Acquisition Agreement to the @igDate;

. The Company has obtained the consents relatirfiet@dompany CLO Issuers representing more than §3bemet present value
of Company CDO management fees in the aggregatec@lculation of which will be based upon the mdtilogy set forth in a
schedule delivered by the Company to Bounty);

. The issuance of the Convertible Notes shall haem lmempleted contemporaneously with the Closingeixto the extent that the
failure to consummate the issuance of the Converhllotes results from a breach of the Convertibb¢el Agreement by Bounty or
a failure by Bounty to satisfy any conditions there

. The Company shall have consummated or causeddorisimmated the Senior Notes Discharge in an agtg@gnount not great
than $55 million plus accrued interest thereorhtolosing Date;

. Bounty shall have received executed copies of tbekBolders Agreement and the Registration Riglgseament;

. The Common Stock and the Conversion Shares shadl been approved for listing on the NASDAQ, subjeatfficial notice of
issuance; and

. The Company shall have obtained all necessary peand qualifications, if any, or secured an exéomgherefrom, required by

any state securities laws prior to the issuanchafes of the Company's Common Stock, and suclbraation, approval, permit
qualification shall be effective at the closing.

Termination of the Acquisition Agreement and Ternation Fees

The Acquisition Agreement may be terminaedny time prior to the consummation of the teations contemplated by the Acquisition
Agreement in any of the following ways:

. By written consent of the Company and Bounty;
. By either the Company or Bounty if one or morets tonditions set forth in the Acquisition Agreernkeas not been fulfilled on «

before July 31, 2010; so long as the party seefdrigrminate has not failed to fulfill any obligati under the Acquisition
Agreement and such failure causes the closing tocrur on or before July 31, 2010;
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. By either the Company or Bounty if the Companyikholders do not approve the Stock Issuances;

. By the Company in accordance with and subjectéadhms and conditions of its ability to terminateonnection with the Board's
exercise of its fiduciary obligations to enter iatio agreement with respect to a superior propashalrey as the Company pays
Bounty a termination fee of $1.5 million plus Boystreasonable and documented out-of-pocket legal &nd expenses in
connection with the Acquisition Agreement, the s@actions contemplated by the Acquisition Agreenaemt the negotiations
leading up to the Acquisition Agreement and thegeztions contemplated by the Acquisition Agreement

. By either the Company or Bounty, if any court ofrqmetent jurisdiction or other governmental authyoissues a final order
permanently prohibiting the consummation of thasections contemplated by the Acquisition Agreement

. By either the Company or Bounty, if there has baémeach of any representation or warranty, covesraagreement, made by the
Company, on the one hand, or Bounty or CNCIM, andther hand, which breach (i) would give rise failre of a condition set
forth in the Acquisition Agreement and (ii) has beien cured by the party in breach prior to théezao occur of (x) 30 business
days after such party's receipt of written noti€ewxh breach and (y) July 31, 2010; or

. By Bounty if the Board changes or withdraws itsomaenendation to the Company's stockholders to agpitoer Stock Issuances in
which case the Company will be obligated to paympwa termination fee of $1.5 million plus Bountgssonable and documen
out-of-pocket legal fees and expenses in connegtitinthe Acquisition Agreement, the transactionatemplated by the
Acquisition Agreement and the negotiations leadipgo the Acquisition Agreement and the transasticontemplated by the
Acquisition Agreement.

Additionally, if (A) prior to terminationfdhe Acquisition Agreement the Company has reake alternative proposal and (B) within six
months of the date of such termination the Compartgrs into an agreement in respect of, or consuasnany alternative proposal, then the
Company will pay Bounty a termination fee in thecamt of $1.5 million plus Bounty's reasonable anduinented out-of-pocket legal fees and
expenses relating to the Acquisition Agreementtthesactions contemplated by the Acquisition Agreet and the negotiations leading up to the
Acquisition Agreement and the transactions contategl by the Acquisition Agreement if (i) either fyaierminates the Acquisition Agreement
because one or more of the conditions set forthénAcquisition Agreement has not been fulfilledarbefore July 31, 2010, provided that the
terminating party has not breached the Acquisifgneement, (ii) either party terminates the Acdiosi Agreement because the Company's
stockholders do not approve the Stock Issuancég)dBounty terminates the Acquisition Agreement breach of a representation, warranty or
covenant which gives rise to a breach of a conditi@t is not cured within 30 days of notice thématd provided that Bounty has not materially
breached the Acquisition Agreement.

Expenses

If the Closing occurs, then at the Closithg, Company will pay Bounty's (i) reasonable anduinented out-opocket legal fees and expen
and (ii) reasonable and documented out-of-pockeitial advisor fees and expenses in an amourbreotceed $500,000 in connection with the
Acquisition Agreement, the transactions contempldtg the Acquisition Agreement and the negotiatieasling up to the Acquisition Agreement
and the transactions contemplated by the Acquisifigreement.
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Other than as set forth in the immediapghceding sentence and in the section entitledfiirettion of the Acquisition Agreement and
Termination Fees" and the estimated costs of Hresterring the operations of CNCIM to be paid by @ompany (currently estimated to be
approximately $1.2 million), whether or not thensactions contemplated by the Acquisition Agreenaeatcompleted, all costs and expenses
incurred in connection with the Acquisition Agreaemand the consummation of the transactions byAtwpiisition Agreement will be paid by the
party incurring the expense.

Survival

None of the representations and warract@sained in the Acquisition Agreement survive thesing of the Acquisition Agreement. The
covenants and agreements contained in the Agreenikestrvive the closing of the Acquisition Agreemt and continue indefinitely, except for
covenants and agreements that by their terms cqfatera shorter survival period.

Indemnification

Bounty has agreed to indemnify the Comanyosses related to operating liabilities of CNCarising prior to the Closing Date (other than
liabilities under certain employment agreemengsilities relating to CNCIM's CLO management agreats, liabilities relating to actions taken
pursuant to the Transition Services Agreement hadkpenses of the transfer of operations descabede) for one year from closing and certain
pre-closing tax liabilities for three years fronosing subject to a $125,000 deductible and a $komitap.

Stockholders Agreement

In connection with the consummation of Tmansactions, the Company and Bounty will execléeStockholders Agreement. The following
is a summary of selected provisions of the Stodidisl Agreement. The description of the Stockholdgreement in this Proxy Statement has
been included to provide you with information regjag its terms. While the Company believes thiscdpion covers the material terms of the
Stockholders Agreement, it may not contain allhaf information that is important to you and is dfied in its entirety by reference to the
Stockholders Agreement, which is attached as Amhexthis Proxy Statement. We urge you to reacetiteée Stockholders Agreement carefully.

Board Compositior

Our Board has set the current size of carB at seven directors; the Board currently cesisissix directors and one vacancy. Upon the
consummation of the Transactions, the size of mard8 will be increased by two directors so thatBoard will consist of nine directors divided
equally among the three existing classes of directour Board will elect to fill the current Boavdcancy and the two vacancies created by the
expansion of the Board with the following threeiinduals designated by Bounty: Jason Epstein; Awdrérater; and Daniel Schrupp.

Mr. Schrupp qualifies as an independent directasyant to our corporate governance guidelines ppticable NASDAQ Listing Rules. Bounty
has the right to designate one observer to attaricjot vote at, all meetings of the Board and eachmittee of the Board for so long as Bounty
owns at least 15% of the Outstanding Common Steokinty has designated Paul Lipari as its obsenvéng Board. The Board will consist of not
more than nine directors and will be divided ifioee equal classes for so long as Bounty ownsaat % of the Outstanding Common Stock,
unless otherwise agreed by the Board (includinglttextors designated by Bounty).

So long as Bounty owns at least 25% ofQhéstanding Common Stock, the Company will, at eaeleting of stockholders of the Company
at which directors are elected, nominate and recentm
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for election to the Board three individuals destgdaby Bounty, one of whom will qualify as an indeplent director pursuant to our corporate
governance guidelines and applicable NASDAQ Listudes if necessary to ensure that a majority efntembers of the Board are independent.
If at any time Bounty owns less than 25% of thestartding Common Stock, Bounty will no longer havéght to designate, and the Company
will have no further obligation to nominate, thiedividuals designated by Bounty for election te Board, even if Bounty subsequently owns
more than 25% of the Outstanding Common Stocko8g &s Bounty owns at least 15% and 5% of the @uditg Common Stock, respectively,
the Company will, at each meeting of stockholdéhe Company at which directors are elected, nateimnd recommend for election to the
Board two individuals and one individual, respeelyy designated by Bounty. If at any time Bountynsvess than 15% and 5%, respectively, of
the Outstanding Common Stock, Bounty will no longave a right to designate, and the Company wileh@o further obligation to nominate, t
individuals and any individual, respectively, desited by Bounty for election to the Board, eveBafinty subsequently owns more than 15% and
5%, respectively, of the Outstanding Common Stéelch individual designated by Bounty for nominatésna director to the Board must be
reasonably satisfactory to the Company. None ofrBdsi rights to designate individuals to the Boarel transferable in connection with any sale
by Bounty of its Common Stock or the Convertibleté&o

In order to give effect to the Board desion rights contained in the Stockholders Agreetmewmr Board made an election under the
Maryland General Corporation Law to provide the Bloaith the exclusive right to fill vacancies oretBoard, including vacancies resulting from
an increase in the size of the Board and to protridedirectors so elected to fill those vacansi&we for the balance of the unexpired term. See
"Description of Capital Stock—Subtitle 8."

Strategic Committe:

In connection with the consummation of Tmensactions, the Board will establish the Strat€pmmittee, which will continue to exist for so
long as Bounty owns at least 25% of the Outstan@ogmmon Stock. The Strategic Committee will inltiatonsist of four members: two directc
designated by Bounty and two directors designajetthdse independent directors of the Company nsigdated by Bounty. The Strategic
Committee will report and make recommendationfieoBoard regarding the following and, for mattgypraved by the Board, will be responsi
for effectuating the following: (i) the identifigah and execution of merger and acquisition oppuoties; (ii) setting direction for the Company
with our management, including new investmentatities and investment products; (iii) the hiringgndissal and scope of responsibility of senior
management; and (iv) the integration of CLO platfsrof CNCIM and the Company. None of Bounty's righith respect to the Strategic
Committee are transferable in connection with aalg by Bounty of its Common Stock or Convertibleté&

Restrictions on Bount

Until the earlier of the third anniversarythe Closing or the date on which Bounty owns lggn 15% of the Outstanding Common Stock,
and unless unanimously approved by the indepertierdtors of the Company not designated by Bountyits affiliates, Bounty and its affiliate
including their respective directors, officers amdployees, will not, directly or indirectly (whiehill include any action taken on behalf of Bounty
or its affiliates):

. Engage in any proxy contests with respect to thetiein of individuals to the Board; or
. Seek, alone or in concert with others, to (i) abtilditional representation on the Board that tscoatained in the Stockholders

Agreement, (i) effect the removal of any direaborthe Board, except as set forth in the Stockhislédgreement, or (iii) make a
stockholder proposal or otherwise seek to amendbamyision of the Company's Charter and Bylawshange the
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size of the Board, the authority of the Nominat®gmmittee or the manner in which directors aretelc

Bounty has also agreed that as a conditienedent to any sale by it of Common Stock remtésg 15% or more of the Outstanding
Common Stock, Bounty will require the buyer of s@bmmon Stock to agree to abide by these restnistio

Market Activity

Until the earlier of the third anniversarfythe Closing or the date Bounty owns less tha# D0 the Outstanding Common Stock, Bounty will
not, directly or indirectly, nor permit its affili@s or any person acting on behalf of Bounty oaffiiates to, engage in Short Sales (as defimed i
the Stockholders Agreement), derivatives, parttidpe, swaps or other arrangements that transfandther person, in whole or in part, any of the
economic consequences of ownership of the Comp&uytemon Stock or Convertible Notes without transifegr title to or legal ownership of
such Common Stock and Convertible Notes.

Majority Voting Bylaw

So long as Bounty owns at least 5% of thés@nding Common Stock, the Company will adopd, @entinue to maintain, a Majority Voting
Bylaw substantially in the form attached as Annetolhis Proxy Statement that requires each nonfimeelection to the Company's Board to be
elected by a majority of the votes cast at a mgatailed for the election of directors, providegueorum is present in person or by proxy (a "
Majority Vote"). However, in the event the number of directomireees exceeds the number of vacant positions;tdiewill be elected by a
plurality of the votes cast at such meeting, predid quorum is present in person or by proxy. tfeofor any incumbent director to become a
nominee of the Board for further service on thepauch individual will submit an irrevocable mgsation, and such resignation will be
automatically effective if the incumbent directared not receive a Majority Vote in an election tisaiot a contested election. Bounty will own
approximately 40.2% of the issued and outstandioigu@on Stock on the Record Date on a fully dilutadi® as a result of the issuance of the
Acquisition Shares (and approximately 56.2% ofitiseied and outstanding Common Stock on the Recaté @n a fully diluted basis if in
addition all of the Convertible Notes to be purathby Bounty are converted), and will thereforeehaubstantial ability (or the absolute powel
block the election of any director nominated by @ninating Committee as a result of the Majoritytivig Bylaw.

Preemptive Right:

So long as Bounty owns at least 5% of thés@nding Common Stock, if the Company proposésstee any securities, including shares of
Common Stock, other capital stock or convertibleusigies, then Bounty will have the right to purskaup to its pro rata portion of such securities
(calculated based solely on the Common Stock issuétuable to Bounty upon conversion of the Cailvle Notes as a percentage of the then-
outstanding Common Stock prior to the issuancaich securities) at the same purchase price asdhgp@ny's proposed issuance to other
purchasers.

The foregoing rights do not apply to (Busnces of securities to officers, employees, ttire®r consultants of the Company pursuant to
arrangements approved by the Board or the Compensabmmittee; (ii) issuances of securities in caetion with a business combination or
acquisition involving the Company; (iii) issuanadssecurities pursuant to any rights or agreemsmisng as the Company has complied with the
preemptive rights provisions contained in the Shattters Agreement or such rights or agreementsezkwior to the consummation of the
Transactions; (iv) issuances of securities in catiop with any stock split, stock dividend, recafization, reclassification or similar event by the
Company; (v) issuances of securities upon the asive of the Convertible Notes;
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(vi) issuances of warrants in connection with detancings; (vii) securities registered under tiee8ities Act that are issued in an underwritten
public offering and (viii) any right, option or want to acquire any security convertible into thewities excluded pursuant to clauses (i) through
(vii) above.

Non-Solicit

So long as Bounty owns at least 5% of thés@nding Common Stock, and unless unanimouslyoapd by the Board, neither Bounty nor
affiliates will, directly or indirectly, solicit foemployment or hire any employee of the Compangnyr of its affiliates except for employees who
are terminated by the Company, who respond to argérolicitation of employment or who were empldys Bounty or its affiliates following
consummation of the Transactions prior to beingleyga by the Company or its affiliates followingmsummation of the Transactions.

Convertible Notes Agreement

The following is a summary of selected ps@mns of the Convertible Notes Agreement, in whtdhunty will purchase $25 million in
aggregate principal amount of Convertible NotethefCompany for cash on the Closing Date. WhileGbmpany believes this description cov
the material terms of the Convertible Notes Agreetnie may not contain all of the information thetimportant to you and is qualified in its
entirety to the Convertible Notes Agreement, whichttached as Annex C to this Proxy StatementuWje you to read the entire Convertible
Notes Agreement carefull

Principal Amount

The aggregate principal amount of Convégtithotes issuable under the Convertible Notes Ages# is limited to an amount equal to
$50 million plus the principal amount of all Contikle Notes issued in the form of PIK Interesté&spect of the Convertible Notes. At the
Closing, the Company will issue to Bounty $25 moifliin aggregate principal amount of Convertibledédor cash. Subject to compliance with
covenants contained in the Convertible Notes Agerenthe Company may from time to time issue aneggje of up to $25 million in principal
amount of additional Convertible Notes, excludirl hterest payable on any additional Convertiblet®, subject to Bounty's approval.

Maturity

The Convertible Notes will mature seven and-half years from the date of issuance (th&turity Date") and will be due and payable in
full in cash on the Maturity Date, except to théeet any of the Convertible Notes have been corddrtto Conversion Shares or redeemed by the
Company.

Interest

Interest on the Convertible Notes will lzyable to the holders of the Convertible Notes wgulgrin arrears on each January 1, April 1, July 1
and October 1. The Company may, in its sole dismretnd upon notice to the holders of the Convkrtitotes, pay up to 50% of the interest due
in PIK Interest, so long as the payment of PIK lest would not be prohibited by, or constitute &ad# under, any other indebtedness or prefe
stock of the Company and its subsidiaries.
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To the extent that the Company has not nealdiK Election, the Company will pay interest ash at a rate equal to ther annunrate
specified below:

Period Interest Rate
Closing Date to and including the day prior to set
anniversary of the Closing Da 8.0(%

Second anniversary of the Closing Date to and

including the day prior to third anniversary of th

Closing Date 9.0(%
Third anniversary of the Closing Date to and

including the day prior to fourth anniversary oé:

Closing Date 10.0(%
Fourth anniversary of the Closing Date and theee 11.0(%

To the extent that the Company has mad&&FRction, then the Company will pay interestla PIK Interest Rate equal to ther annum
rate specified below:

Period Interest Rate
Closing Date to and including the day prior to s&t
anniversary of the Closing Da 10.0(%

Second anniversary of the Closing Date to and

including the day prior to third anniversary of th

Closing Date 11.00%
Third anniversary of the Closing Date and there: 12.0(%

If the Company makes a PIK Election, thes PIK Interest Rate will apply to the calculatiwfrall interest due on the date upon which
interest is due and payable to the holders of threv€rtible Notes. Once the Company has made a Ri&i&n, the PIK Interest Rate will apply to
all subsequent interest periods for which inteiepid, whether in cash or in-kind. Any PIK Electimade will apply in the same percentage with
respect to each Convertible Note outstanding.

Conversion

The holders of Convertible Notes will hatkie right, at any time, to convert the principaleamt of the Convertible Notes held by such
holders into the number of Conversion Shares eguile Conversion Rate, which will initially be apgimately 165.29 shares per $1,000
principal amount of Convertible Notes (equal taawersion price of $6.05 per share), subject tastdjent in certain events. The Conversion
Rate is subject to adjustment from time to timei§suances of shares of Common Stock, optionsts;igiarrants or other equity securities of the
Company, cash distributions made by the Compangiagend or otherwise, tender offers or exchanifers by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries for shares of Common Stock, dividesrddistributions involving capital stock of the Cpamy's subsidiaries, reclassifications of the
Company's Common Stock and any merger or sald of albstantially all of the property or assetshaf Company. The total number of shares of
Common Stock issuable upon conversion of the CdivemMNotes may increase from time to time duertgp @ane or more of the following factors:

. the issuance of up to $25 million in aggregate@pial amount of additional Convertible Notes;
. the payment of PIK Interest on Convertible Notemtbutstanding; and
. adjustments to the Conversion Rate due to custoar@ndilution adjustments and a price protectioovsion set forth in the

Convertible Notes Agreement.

Stockholders are being asked to approvéstimnce of all Conversion Shares then issualskupat to the Conversion Rate as the same may
be adjusted throughout the term of the Converfilées Agreement pursuant to the foregoing provision
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Redemptior

The Company may not redeem the Converhloiges prior to the second anniversary of the Chp&ate. Thereafter, the Company may
redeem all or a part of the Convertible Notes upoiless than 30 nor more than 60 days' notickedblders of the Convertible Notes at a
redemption price equal to 100% of the principal antof the Convertible Notes plus, if the redemptitate is on or prior to the third anniversary
of the Closing Date, the interest rate then inatfées an additional percentage of principal amaumt (i) if the redemption date is after the third
anniversary of the Closing Date, but on or priothte fourth anniversary of the Closing Date, onK-tiathe interest rate then in effect as an
additional percentage of principal amount, in ecabe, plus accrued and unpaid interest on the CiilnleeNotes redeemed to the applicable
redemption date. Holders of Convertible Notes hheeright to refuse to surrender their Converti¥tges to the Company if the Company is not
in compliance with its obligations under the Ragibn Rights Agreement (as described below). Tom@any is not required to make any
mandatory redemption or sinking fund payments speet of the Convertible Notes.

Events of Defaull

The Convertible Notes Agreement contairenéy of default customary for agreements of it tjypith customary grace periods, as
applicable) and provides that, upon the occurrerfiem event of default arising from certain evesftbankruptcy or insolvency with respect to the
Company and its material subsidiaries, all outstap@€onvertible Notes will become due and payatmimediately without further action or
notice. If any other type of event of default oacand is continuing, then the holders of at le8st/3 % in principal amount of the then
outstanding Convertible Notes may declare all efdhtstanding Convertible Notes to be due and gayaimediately.

Covenants of the Company
The Company is making customary covenantbe holders of Convertible Notes, including tbkdwing:

. That the Company will timely pay the principal antkrest on the Convertible Notes;

. That, for so long as any Convertible Notes aretanting, the Company will provide the holders &f @onvertible Notes
information that would be required to be contaiired filing with the SEC on Forms 10-Q and KQwhether or nor the Company
subject to the reporting requirements of the Exgleafict;

. That the Company will not, and will not permit aofyits subsidiaries to incur any indebtedness ithaontractually subordinated in
right of payment to other indebtedness of the Comgpmless such indebtedness is also contractualiigrdinated in right of
payment to the Convertible Notes on substantiathilar terms;

. That the Company will not consolidate or merge waithinto another person or sell, transfer or othsevdispose of all or
substantially all of its assets to another persdeas (i) (A) either the Company is the survivimgporation, or (B) the surviving
entity is an entity existing under the laws of heited States or any state thereof, and if suchyeistnot a corporation, a cabligor
of the Convertible Notes is a corporation existimgler such laws, (ii) the surviving entity has assd all obligations of the
Company under the Convertible Notes Agreement hadRegistration Rights Agreement and (iii) immegliatfter such
transaction, no default or event of default untier€onvertible Notes Agreement has taken place;

. That, upon a change of control of the CompanyQbmpany will offer to repurchase all or any partief Convertible Notes of
each holder of Convertible Notes at a purchase pnicash
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equal to 100% of the aggregate principal amouth@fConvertible Notes repurchased, plus accruediapédid interest;

. That the Company will not lease all or substantiall of the assets of the Company and its subsétia

. That the Company will use its commercially reasdaa&fforts to keep the Conversion Shares listetlABDAQ or another
securities exchange on which the Common Stoclstiedior quoted; and

. That, for so long as any Convertible Notes remaitstanding, the Company will reserve and keep alghdlout of its authorized b
unissued Common Stock, the full number of ConverSbares.

Representations and Warrantie
The Convertible Notes Agreement contaira@mary representations and warranties by the Coynaad Bounty:

The representations and warranties by thragany relate to a number of matters, includingfétiewing:

. Organization and good standing of the Company enslibsidiaries;

. Authority to enter into the Convertible Notes Agmeent and the Registration Rights Agreement anettierceability of the
Convertible Notes Agreement and the RegistratiqghRi Agreement against the Company;

. The capitalization of the Company;

. Compliance with laws;

. That the Convertible Notes Agreement and the Regish Rights Agreement do not violate the orgatiizeal documents of the

Company; do not conflict with or violate any lawspdicable to the Company; do not require consedeuor conflict with other
agreements of the Company; and do not result icitbation of any lien upon the properties or asskttse Company;

. Timely filing of all documents required to be filedth the SEC;

. Absence of certain changes and events;

. No undisclosed liabilities;

. Compliance with specific laws applicable to the @amy regarding provision of investment managemenices;

. Material contracts;

. No litigation;

. Payment of taxes;

. Employee benefits matters;

. Employment matters;

. That the information supplied on or behalf of then@pany for inclusion in the Proxy Statement to &et $0 the stockholders of the

Company in connection with the Meeting will not &@in any statement that is false or misleading wepect to any material fact,
or omit to state any material fact necessary ireotd make the statements made in the Proxy Statemoé false
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or misleading; or omit to state any material fastessary to correct any statement in any earlimnoanication that has become
false or misleading;

Due authorization, issuance and delivery of thev@dible Notes by the Company to the holders, frem all liens;
Absence of registration rights or voting rightsiwiespect to the equity securities of the Company;
That the Company does not engage in the businesgefiding credit for the purpose of carrying margock;

That the Company has not engaged in a generaltatiio of investors with respect to offers or saté the Convertible Notes and
that, to the Company's knowledge, the sale of thiev€rtible Notes will not be integrated with anhet security;

No brokers fees are payable by the Company in aiimmewith the issuance of the Convertible Notew] a

That the Company and its subsidiaries do not managet as an investment adviser to any privatestment funds.

The representations and warranties by Borelate to a number of matters, including thedeihg:

Organization and good standing of Bounty;

Authority to enter into the Convertible Notes Agmeent and the Registration Rights Agreement anettierceability of the
Convertible Notes Agreement and the Registratiaghi®i Agreement against Bounty;

That the Convertible Notes Agreement and the Redish Rights Agreement do not violate the orgatimzreal documents of
Bounty; do not conflict with or violate any lawsmjgable to Bounty; do not require consent undecanflict with any agreement
relating to material indebtedness of Bounty; andhdoresult in the creation of any lien upon theparties or assets of Bounty;

That Bounty is acquiring the Convertible Notesiforestment purposes only and not with a view towardblic sale or distribution
thereof;

That Bounty is an "accredited investor" as defimeRule 501(a) of the Securities Act; and

That Bounty has completed its own investigatiothef Company.

Conditions to Closing

Conditions to the Obligations of the Company

The Company's obligation to complete tisactions contemplated by the Convertible Notegément is subject to the satisfaction of
conditions, any one or more of which may be waibgdhe Company, including:

No order, injunction or decree has been issuechlgycaurt or agency of competent jurisdiction orastlegal restraint or prohibition
preventing the issuance of the Convertible Notes;

No law has been enacted, entered, promulgatedforcea by any governmental authority that prohibitsnakes illegal the
consummation of the issuance of the Convertiblebiot
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. The representations and warranties of Bounty aednd correct of the issuance of the Convertildtes) and

. The transactions contemplated by the Acquisitione&gnent shall be consummated contemporaneouslthiétissuance of the
Convertible Notes.

Conditions to the Obligations of Bounty

The obligation of Bounty to complete thanisactions contemplated by the Convertible Notagément is subject to the satisfaction of
conditions, any one or more of which may be waikgdBounty, including:

. The Company will have obtained the approval of$tack Issuances by the affirmative vote of a majaf the total votes cast by
the Company's stockholders at the Meeting;

. The Company will have delivered the principal amtorfrthe Convertible Notes to Bounty;

. The Company has performed and complied in all medterspects with all covenants and other agreesnewfuired to be performe
or complied with by it prior to or on the Closin@i®;

. No order, injunction or decree has been issuechgycaurt or agency of competent jurisdiction orestlegal restraint or prohibition
preventing the issuance of the Convertible Notes;

. No law has been enacted, entered, promulgatedforoea by any governmental authority that prohibitsnakes illegal the
issuance of the Convertible Notes;

. The representations and warranties of the Compangriae and correct as of the issuance of the GtibleNotes;

. The Company shall have obtained, or secured an gti@mfrom, all necessary permits and qualificasioifiany, required by any
state or county prior to the offer and sale of@mmvertible Notes, and such authorization, apprgwimit or qualification shall be
effective at the Closing;

. The transactions contemplated by the Acquisitione&gnent shall be consummated contemporaneouslthiétissuance of the
Convertible Notes;

. Each of the Senior Notes Discharge Agreement amd ¢énmination Agreement will be in full force anffleet;
. Bounty will receive copies of the Registration RiglAgreement, duly executed by the Company;
. Bounty will receive true and correct copies of @@mpany's constituent documents and resolutiotisecoBoard authorizing the

execution, delivery and performance of the ConklrtNotes Agreement and the Registration Righteagrent, certified correct
and complete as of the Closing Date by the Compa®stretary;

. The shares of Common Stock issuable upon convedfitite Convertible Notes shall have been apprdoetisting on NASDAQ);
and

. Bounty will receive opinions from one or more legalinsels to the Company, reasonably satisfactoBotinty, dated as of the
Closing Date.

Registration Rights

Concurrently with the closing of the Acqtian and the issuance of the Convertible Notes,Gompany will grant registration rights to
Bounty with respect to the Common Stock issuedimection with the Acquisition and the Conversidra®s. Bounty and the holders of the
Conversion Shares will have a total of four demaghkits and unlimited piggyback rights, subject tstomary
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underwriter cutbacks and issuer blackout periaushé event that Company does not comply with #maahd rights under the Registration Rights
Agreement, the Company will pay special intere®aointy in an amount equal to 1.0% per annum optirecipal amount of Convertible Notes
held by Bounty that are affected by such defauie Tompany will pay all fees and expenses reldtirthe registration of the Common Stock and
the Conversion Shares.

Transition Services Agreement

In connection with the Acquisition Agreemiethe Company entered into the Transition Servig®ement, pursuant to which the Company
is providing services to CNCIM in connection with management of the CNCIM CLOs. The Company vatineceive a fee for providing such
transition services through the Closing, but maydar certain circumstances, receive a negotiatedbfea period of up to six months after the ¢
of termination of the Acquisition Agreement.

Regulatory Approvals To Be Obtained in Connection ith the Transactions

We do not believe that the Company, Boumt&NCIM are required to obtain any U.S. federastate regulatory approvals to complete the
Transactions described herein. In the United Statesmust comply with applicable federal and stateurities laws and the NASDAQ Listing
Rules in connection with the Stock Issuances. Toi@any has applied to have the Acquisition Shandstlae Conversion Shares listed on
NASDAQ.

Interests of Certain of our Directors and ExecutiveOfficers in the Transactions

Peter W. May, a director of the CompanygsiBecember 2007, is also a director and the \hegsman of the board of Wendy's/Arby's
Group, Inc., a holder of approximately $48.9 milliprincipal amount of the Company's Series A Ntlas are expected to be paid and dischargec
by the Company pursuant to the Senior Notes DigghAgreement for an aggregate amount of approxign@g&0.8 million plus all unpaid and
accrued interest in cash as of the Closing Date Mdy has indicated that he intends to resign ftoenBoard following the consummation of the
Transactions and the Board intends to fill the wagecreated thereby with an individual who quatifas an independent director. Mr. May tool
part in the consideration of the Acquisition or Steck Issuances.

Jonathan W. Trutter, our Chief Executivéicat and a member of the Board, owns approximaé7,000 in principal amount of Series A
Notes that are expected to be paid and discharngéiebCompany for an aggregate amount of approxin&408,000 plus all unpaid and accr
interest in cash as of the Closing Date.

Pursuant to the 2010 Rothschild Compensa&igreement, Peter Rothschild, our Interim Chairraad a member of the Board, is entitled to
two discretionary fees, a "Capital Transaction $8sd-ee" not to exceed $1 million and a "Non-Capitansaction Success Fee" not to exceed
$500,000, which may be paid if certain specifieddibons are met. The conditions for payment ofdieeretionary fees include, but are not
limited to, Mr. Rothschild playing an instrumentale in arranging and completing a strategic tratisa that substantially increases shareholder
value. The Compensation Committee has completeedisn over whether to award the Capital TransacBaccess Fee and the Non-Capital
Transaction Success Fee and over the amount édéseand the portion payable as cash or non-caspemsation, and has not yet finally
determined the amount of such fees to be paidmmection with consummation of the Transactions.

In consideration of their services rendeasanembers of the Special Committee, Robert EhErsand Stuart I. Oran are each entitled to
compensation in an amount equal to $15,000 perm@ot to exceed $90,000 total) and Robert B. Maishias Chairman of the Special
Committee, is entitled to compensation in an amegial to $45,000 per month (not to exceed $180OG().
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The Compensation Committee has discusseddiyet finally determined to award special baau officers and directors of the Company
upon consummation of the Transactions. The SpE€xaimittee has advised Bounty that such bonuspsjdf together with any discretionary fi
paid pursuant to the 2010 Rothschild Compensatigredment, would not exceed $1.3 million in the aggte.

None of the Company or, to the best oflmowledge, any of our directors, or executive @&if&; or any of their respective associates, ha:
contract, arrangement, understanding or relatignsfith any other person with respect to any seiesriof CNCIM at any time since the beginning
of the last fiscal year, including, but not limitem] any contract, arrangement, understandinglatioaship concerning the transfer or the voting of
any securities, joint ventures, loan or option Rgements, puts or calls, guaranties of loans, gtiasagainst loss or the giving or withholding of
proxies. Other than the negotiations that havertgitace with respect to the Transactions, there f@en no contacts, negotiations or transactions
since the beginning of the last fiscal year betwitaenCompany, any of our subsidiaries or, to thet bEour knowledge, any of our directors, or
executive officers, or any of their respective agses, on the one hand, and CNCIM or its affisaten the other hand, concerning a merger,
consolidation or acquisition, an exchange offeotbier acquisition of securities, an election oédiors, or a sale or other transfer of a material
amount of assets.

We have not effected any transaction inugges of CNCIM in the past 60 days. Except asfegh in this Proxy Statement, to our
knowledge, after reasonable inquiry, none of otealors, director nominees, executive officersamy of their respective associates or majority
owned subsidiaries, beneficially owns or has thhtrio acquire any securities of CNCIM or has @f#dany transaction in securities of CNCIM
during the past 60 days.

Impact of the Stock Issuances on Existing Stockhotals

The issuance of the Acquisition SharesthedConversion Shares will significantly dilute tiemmon Stock ownership percentages of our
existing stockholders.

. Assuming the issuance of the 4,545,455 AcquisiBbares and no other issuances of shares as dcdttefdapproval by our
stockholders, Bounty would own approximately 40.@Pthe Common Stock issued and outstanding aseoRétord Date on a
fully diluted basis.

. Assuming the issuance of the Acquisition Shares, éddition Bounty elects to convert the entir® $Zillion in aggregate principal
amount of the Convertible Notes and we have natedktto pay PIK Interest, we expect to issue apprately 4,132,231
Conversion Shares. In such event Bounty would oppraimately 56.2% of the Common Stock issued amdtanding as of the
Record Date on a fully diluted basis.

. Assuming the issuance of the Acquisition Shares, éddition Bounty elects to convert the entir® $Zillion in aggregate principal
amount of the Convertible Notes and we have eleictgéy the maximum permitted amount of PIK Intere® would expect the
maximum amount of Conversion Shares to be issuéé gpproximately 5,208,869. In such event Bourdyhds own
approximately 59.1% of the Common Stock issuedaurtdtanding as of the Record Date on a fully ddlasis.

As of December 31, 2009, the Company had $N@ approximately $209.0 million, which will begto expire in 2028 if not used, and NCLs
of approximately $422.8 million, which will begin e£xpire in 2012 if not used. The issuance of toguisition Shares will result in an Ownership
Change for purposes of Sections 382 and 383 oftue. As a result of the occurrence of the Ownpréiiange, our ability to use our NOLs,
NCLs and certain recognized b-in losses to reduce our taxable income in a fuyeder would generally be limited to the Section B&8itation.
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Our Charter currently contains transfetrieions to prevent investors from aggregating evehip of our Common Stock and triggering an
Ownership Change. Since the issuance of the Adiprisshares will result in an Ownership Change,Board has exempted the issuance of the
Acquisition Shares and the issuance of the CorblerNotes to be purchased by Bounty from the m@gtris set forth in Article IX of the Charter.
If the Transactions are consummated and the Adquisthares are issued to Bounty, our Board haesealgho terminate the restrictions on
ownership and transfer contained in Article IX lo¢ tCharter.

The actual number of Conversion Sharesatdsunay vary due to the adjustment provisionién@onvertible Notes, including in respect of
issuances of shares of Common Stock, options,s;igbdrrants or other equity securities of the Camgpaash distributions made by the Compi
tender offers or exchange offers by the Compargngrof its subsidiaries for shares of Common Stdekdends or distributions involving capital
stock of the Company's subsidiaries, reclassificetiof the Company’'s Common Stock and any merggalerof all or substantially all of the
property or assets of the Company. As a resuh®ftock Issuances, Bounty will become a signitistmckholder of the Company with
substantial influence (or even control) over matwrbmitted to a vote of our stockholders, inclgdime election of directors, amendment of our
organizational documents, acquisitions or otheirmss combinations involving the Company and paéntthe ability to prevent extraordinary
transactions such as a takeover attempt.

The Stockholders Agreement provides thBbifinty holds at least 25% of the Outstanding Comi®tock (including shares issuable upon
conversion of the Convertible Notes), then Bounily ave the right to designate three out of niimectors to the Board (one of whom must
qualify as an independent director if necessamgntsure that a majority of the members of the Baaedndependent). If Bounty holds less than
25% but more than 15% of the Outstanding CommonokSthen Bounty will have the right to designate teut of nine directors to the Board and
if Bounty holds less than 15% but more than 5%hef®utstanding Common Stock, then Bounty will hiaeeright to designate one director ou
nine directors to the Board. Upon consummatiorheffransactions, the Board will establish the 8griatCommittee consisting of two directors
designated by Bounty and two directors designajetthdse independent directors of the Company nsigdated by Bounty. The Strategic
Committee will report and make recommendationfieoBoard regarding implementing certain strategjitatives. None of Bounty's rights with
respect to the Board or the Strategic Committedransferable in connection with any sale by Bowftits Common Stock or Convertible Notes.
As a result, the directors elected to the Boar@Bbynty may exercise significant influence on matonsidered by the Board. Bounty may have
interests that diverge from, or even conflict withgse of the Company and its other stockholders.

Dissenters' or Appraisal Rights of Existing Stockhlalers

Under applicable Maryland law, the Comparsgbckholders do not have dissenters' or appnaggab in connection with the issuance of the
Acquisition Shares or the issuance of the ConvarSisares, and we do not plan to independently geosiockholders with any such rights.

Vote Required and Recommendation of the Special Camittee and the Board

For the approval of the Stock Issuances,may vote in favor of the proposal, against theppsal or abstain from voting. If a quorum is
present, approval of the proposal requires thenadfiive vote of a majority of all votes cast on glreposal.

The Board established the Special Committeesisting of Robert B. Machinist (Chairman), RdlE. Fischer and Stuart I. Oran, to evaluate
and negotiate the Transactions in consultation with
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management of the Company and the Special Comtsifiaancial advisors and legal counsel. The Sp&iamittee:

. determined that the Transactions, including thelStssuances, are advisable and in the best itseséthe Company and its
stockholders and unanimously approved the Acqarsifigreement, Convertible Notes Agreement, Senitebl Discharge
Agreement, Termination Agreement and the Stockalsses;

. unanimously recommended that the Board approvAtheisition Agreement, Convertible Notes Agreem&anior Notes
Discharge Agreement, Termination Agreement andstbek Issuances; and

. unanimously recommended that the Board recommaeatdtir stockholders approve the Stock Issuances.

In reaching these decisions, the Speciah@ittee consulted with its financial advisors aeddl counsel and with management, and
considered many factors, including without limitettithe following, each of which they believed sugped their decision:

. The issuance of the Acquisition Shares is requinezbmplete the Acquisition;

. The issuance of the Convertible Notes and the nhatraitioning of the issuance of the Convertibletés and the Acquisition
upon each other;

. The use of proceeds of the issuance of the Cobletiotes, together with other funds, to complete$enior Notes Discharge for
$55 million plus accrued interest or an aggregaté® discount from the face amount of such Senmteb| which will eliminate
approximately $74 million of debt that matures oecBmber 21, 2012, reducing our indebtedness arahtioeint of interest we will
be required to pay going forward and eliminating tovenants in the Senior Notes that significarg$trict the Company's
flexibility;

. The Senior Notes Discharge will satisfy the requieat of the Trust Preferred Exchange that we compleCredit Enhancing
Transaction, thereby allowing us to pay a signiftbalower interest rate on the New Subordinatededhat the Company issued
in exchange for the Trust Preferred Securitiesipusly issued by subsidiaries of the Company fa@ragimately the next five
years;

. The fact that the Company has been exploring vetaating transactions for over a year, includingaging an investment banker
to explore other strategic alternatives, withoutcass;

. Management's view that the Acquisition of CNCIMg fksuance of the Convertible Notes and the Sé&ites Discharge would
enhance our capital structure;

. The Company's stockholders will benefit from aniioyed capital structure that commits fewer longreesources to the payment
of interest on debt obligations of the Company amgroves the Company's debt to equity ratio;

. Our ability to use the Common Stock as currencypmared to the cost of capital that would be reqlfog us to achieve the same
expansion of our business through internal growth;

. The management fee streams from the CNCIM CLOsimirove the profitability of the Company and sgteasts of our
operations over a larger portfolio of assets umdanagement;

. The potential issuance of the Conversion Shareas tlmconversion of the Convertible Notes wouldusdour costs, including
legal and accounting costs related to the maintmahthe Convertible Notes;
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. Historical and current information concerning thenpany's and CNCIM's respective businesses, ingduiends in financial
performance, financial condition, operations anahpetitive position;

. The opportunity for the Company's stockholdersddipipate in the potential future value of the Gamy, which includes CNCIN
and as a result of such inclusion the belief ofSpecial Committee that the Company is positioegkow faster than without the
Acquisition;

. The terms and conditions of the Acquisition Agreatmacluding: (a) the conditions to the closingtloé Acquisition, including the

receipt of stockholder approval, and the simultaisedosing of the issuance of the Convertible Nades the likelihood of those

conditions being satisfied; and (b) the beliefrad Special Committee that the termination fees lplayia the circumstances set fc
in the Acquisition Agreement are reasonable incibretext of termination fees that were payable reotomparable transactions
and would not be likely to preclude another paronf making a superior proposal with respect toGbenpany;

. Our prospects if the Transactions are not compjeted

. The Company's historical stock price and the patcehich the Common Stock is being issued to Boimtyonnection with the
Acquisition and the Conversion Rate of the Conwer$hares;

. The addition of two key employees of CNCIM and ¢hdirectors and one Board observer designated ytgavho we expect to
bring additional knowledge and expertise to the fany; and

. The timing and amount of the cash deferred purchdase payments.

In the course of their deliberations, tipe@al Committee also considered a variety of regkd other potentially negative factors concerning
the Transactions, including the following:

. The fact that Bounty would hold approximately 40.8¢%the issued and outstanding of our Common Sascéf the Record Date on
a fully diluted basis upon consummation of the Aisijion (and approximately (i) 56.2% and (ii) 59.1&ssuming the Company
elects not to pay the maximum permitted amountikfiRterest) of the issued and outstanding shafesioCommon Stock as of
the Record Date on a fully diluted basis upon issaaf the Conversion Shares upon the conversitimeo€onvertible Notes) and,
accordingly, the substantial influence Bounty woliéve over corporate governance;

. The substantial dilution to the Company's stockbiddis a result of the Stock Issuances;

. The risk that the Acquisition and the issuancehef€onvertible Notes might not be completed inreety manner or at all due to
failure to satisfy the closing conditions, a numbgwhich are outside of the Company's control;

. If the Acquisition is not completed, the potentalverse effect of the public announcement of thaitetion of the Acquisition on
our business;

. The risk that the Company may need additional ftivag and be unable to raise such additional clegitd that such additional
capital, even if available, will be further diluévto our stockholders and may be at a lower valndtian reflected in the issuance
the Acquisition Shares and the issuance of the &wmin Shares upon conversion of the Convertible$jo

. The restrictions that the Acquisition Agreement @s@s on soliciting competing acquisition proposals;
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. The fact that the Company would be obligated to gigwificant termination fees under certain spediftircumstances;

. The possible volatility, at least in the short teohthe trading price of the Common Stock resglfirom the announcement and
pendency of the Acquisition and the issuance ofabmevertible Notes;

. The consents required by the Company and theHatiftthe required level of consents are not olgdia condition to the
consummation of the Acquisition and the issuandil®fConvertible Notes will not be satisfied,;

. The fact that under the Stockholder Agreement, Boisngranted the right to appoint up to three clives and one observer to the
Board depending on the amount of Common Stock ovageBounty;

. The fact that Bounty's large ownership stake, togretvith the contractual rights that we have agteegtant Bounty, may make it
more difficult and expensive, or impossible, fahad party to pursue a strategic transaction whth Company in the future,
including a change of control of the Company, e¥anich a transaction would generally benefit trmmpany's stockholders;

. The limitation on our ability to use our NOLs, NCasd certain recognized built-in losses in thereitas a result of the issuance of
the Acquisition Shares;

. The possibility that the financial and strategiodiits expected to be achieved by the Transactitight not be obtained on a tim
basis or at all, which would have a detrimentalactpon our ability to become more profitable anéutad our debt obligations;

. The fact that the restrictions imposed on Bounthwespect to engaging in proxy contests and stades of the Common Stock ¢
Convertible Notes terminate on the earlier of threars from closing and when Bounty's ownershiga@ihmon Stock and
Conversion Shares is less than 15% of the outstgridommon Stock (calculated assuming that all @fGbnvertible Notes have
been converted);

. The interests that certain members of our Boardnaadagement have in the consummation of the Tréinsacand

. The risks and costs that could be borne by usiffitansactions are not completed, including therdion of management and
employee attention prior to completion of the Tast®ns, and the potential adverse effect on osiness. Also, under the
Acquisition Agreement, we must conduct our busiriegbe ordinary course, subject to a variety dieotrestrictions on the conduct
of our business prior to closing of the transadioantemplated by the Acquisition Agreement or teation of the Acquisition
Agreement, which may delay or prevent us from utadkéng business opportunities that may arise.

The Special Committee also considered abmurof risks involved with the Transactions which described under the section entitled "Risk
Factors" in this Proxy Statement.

The Board, other than Peter W. May, whaabise of a conflict of interest took no part in toasideration of the Acquisition or the Stock
Issuances, based its determination to approveridies@ictions and recommend that our stockholdem®agphe Stock Issuances primarily on the
factors that were considered by the Special Coremitiescribed above, the unanimous recommendatitve &pecial Committee and the
extensive arm's length negotiations of the Spéiahmittee with representatives of Bounty, the hdagf Senior Notes and the Pegasus Parties.

The foregoing discussion of the informateamsidered by the Special Committee and the Bisamdt exhaustive, but includes the material
factors that the Special Committee and the Boangicered
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in approving the Acquisition Agreement, Convertibletes Agreement, Senior Notes Discharge Agreeimeah(lermination Agreement and
recommending approval of the Stock Issuances b trepany's stockholders. In view of the wide vagrigitfactors considered by the Special
Committee and the Board in connection with thealeation of the Transactions and the complexitthete factors, the Special Committee and
the Board did not consider it practical to, nor thidy attempt to, quantify, rank or otherwise assigy specific or relative weights to the specific
factors that it considered in reaching its decislarconsidering the factors described above, iddial directors may have assigned different
weights to different factors. The Special Commitee the Board did not reach any specific conclusio each factor considered, but instead
conducted an overall analysis of the totality @&f benefits and risks relating to the Transactidhg Special Committee and the Board discussed
the factors described above, including asking dgoestof senior management and legal and finandikars, and determined that the
Transactions were advisable and in the best inteofthe Company and its stockholders.

AFTER CAREFUL CONSIDERATION, INCLUDING CONSIDERATIO N OF THE UNANIMOUS RECOMMENDATION OF THE
SPECIAL COMMITTEE, OUR BOARD, OTHER THAN PETER W. M AY, WHO BECAUSE OF A CONFLICT OF INTEREST TOOK
NO PART IN THE CONSIDERATION OF THE ACQUISITION OR THE STOCK ISSUANCES, RECOMMENDS THAT THE
COMPANY'S STOCKHOLDERS VOTE "FOR" PROPOSAL NO. 1 TO APPROVE THE STOCK ISSUANCES.
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PROPOSAL NO. 2

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
Our Board of Directors

Our Bylaws provide that a majority of ound@d may establish, increase or decrease the nushb@ectors at a regular or special meeting
called for that purpose, provided that the numbetirectors may not be less than five nor more thanAt each annual stockholders meeting, one
class of directors is elected by our stockholdetsald office for a term of three years and uhtdit successors have been duly elected or
appointed and qualified. Our Board has set theeotisize of our Board at seven directors; howabherBoard has voted to increase the size of the
Board to nine directors pursuant to the Stockhaldgreement if the Acquisition is consummated. fore information, see "Proposal No. 1—
Approval of the Stock Issuances—Stockholders Agergm-Board Composition." Our Board currently corssist six directors and one vacancy.

Information Concerning Director Nominees

Our Charter divides our Board into thresssks, designated as Class |, Class Il and Cla3$id current Board consists of two Class |
members, two Class Il members and two Class Il bem In addition, there is one existing vacancgliamss I. The terms of the Class Il
directors, Jonathan W. Trutter and Robert B. Mashiexpire at the Meeting. Those directors havenbeominated for re-election to serve as
directors for a term expiring at our annual meetm8013 and until their successors are duly eteoteappointed and qualified. Our Class |
directors will be up for election at our next anhu@eting, expected to be held in 2011, and ous<ladirectors will be up for election at our
annual meeting expected to be held in 2012.

If Proposal No. 1 is approved and the Asijioin and the issuance of the Convertible Notescampleted, we have agreed to expand the size
of the Board by two directors so that the Board @ohsist of nine directors divided equally amohg three existing classes. As a result of the
existing vacancy on the Board, there will be thopen directorships following the expansion of theagl to nine directors. Upon consummatio
the Acquisition, three designees of Bounty, Jaspstéin, Andrew Intrater and Daniel Schrupp willdzled to the Board, and Paul Lipari will
become an observer of the Board. In addition, dreupcurrent directors, Peter W. May, has indidéteat he will resign as a Class | director
following the consummation of the Transactions, t@Board intends to fill the vacancy createdebgrwith an individual who qualifies as an
independent director.

If any nominee becomes unavailable or umgilto serve as a director for any reason, the@e named as proxies in the proxy card are
expected to consult with our Board, which would@bh recommendation from our Nominating Committeevoting the shares represented by
them. Our Board has no reason to doubt the avhilabf any nominee, and each nominee has indichteavillingness to serve as a director if
elected by the stockholders at the Meeting.
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The name, age, term of office, busines&dpaeind and specific individual qualifications asidlls of each of the nominees, is as follows:

Name Age Biography

Jonathan W. Trutter 52 Mr. Trutter is our Chief Executive Officer and ammger of our Board. Mr. Trutter has been a membeuof
Board since November 2004 and our Chief Execultiffee€¥ since December 2004. Mr. Trutter is also @Gteef
Executive Officer and Chief Investment Officer oE® and Co-Head of DCM's bank loan investment team.
Mr. Trutter joined DCM in 2000. From 1989 to 200@ was a Managing Director of Scudder Kemper
Investments, an investment manager, where he did¢be Bank Loan / Private Placement Departmendr @e
last ten years Mr. Trutter has held leadershipsralihin the Company through which he has obtameétailed
knowledge and valuable perspective and insightaotobusiness and strateg

Robert B. Machinist 57 Mr. Machinist has been a member of our Board sibeeember 2004. He is currently Chairman of the Badr
Advisors of MESA, a leading merchant bank spediadjzn media and entertainment industry transastion
Mr. Machinist also runs a private family investmenmpany. In addition, he is a member of the boafds
directors of United Pacific Industries, a publitisted Hong Kong company, and Maimonides Medicaht€e
He was the Chairman of Atrinsic, a publicly-listeteractive media company, through 2008. From 1898
December 2001, Mr. Machinist was managing direatat head of investment banking for the Bank of New
York and its Capital Markets division. From Januz®86 to November 1998, he was president and otieeof
principal founders of Patricof & Co. Capital Cofpnd its successor companies), a multinationalstment
banking business, until its acquisition by the Bahlew York. Mr. Machinist has extensive capitadnkets an
investment banking expertise and financial skibtained through leadership positions with investnzem
merchant banking firms and service on the boardirettors of other public companie

Our Board has determined that Robert B.iNtast is independent, as that term is definedun®@orporate Governance Guidelines and the
general independence standards of the NASDAQ Iggtales.

Vote Required and Board Recommendation

For the election of directors, you may viotéavor of one or both of the nominees or wittthgbur vote as to one or both of the nominees.
You will be voting with respect to the nomineesttivare nominated by our Board based on a recomntiendaom the Nominating Committee,
and you will not be able to vote for more than fpessons. There is no cumulative voting in the @acdf directors. If a quorum is present, then
the nominees receiving a plurality of all of theescast at the Meeting will be elected.

OUR BOARD RECOMMENDS A VOTE "FOR" THE ELECTION AS D IRECTORS OF EACH OF THE NOMINEES LISTED ABOVE.
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PROPOSAL NO. 3

RATIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Audit Committee has appointed Delditt@udit the financial statements of the Compamytte fiscal year ending December 31, 2010.
Deloitte was our independent registered public anting firm for our 2008 and 2009 fiscal years. @ieé representatives are expected to attend
the Meeting and, therefore, will have the oppottuto make a statement and be available to resppgdestions. In the event of a negative vote
on such ratification, the Audit Committee will rexider its selection.

Principal Accounting Firm Fees

For the fiscal years ended December 319 200@ 2008, all of the services performed by Dioitere approved by the Audit Committee. The
following table sets forth the services provided &yd aggregate fees paid to, Deloitte for eachefast two fiscal years:

Fee Year Amount Description of Services

Audit Fees 200¢ $ 771,72¢ Audit of our 2009 financial statements and revidwur financial statements in our Quarterly
Reports on Form 1@, including an assessment of the effectivenessiointernal controls ovi
financial reporting

200¢ $ 1,208,561 Audit of our 2008 financial statements and revidwur financial statements in our Quarterly
Reports on Form 1@, including an assessment of the effectivenessiointernal controls ov:
financial reporting

Audit-Related Fees 200¢ $  87,60( Services relating to certain agreed upon procegdprespective consulting and consulting on
potential strategic transactior

200¢ $  46,31¢ Services relating to certain agreed upon procedaresnnection with a revolving warehouse
facility.

Tax Fees 200¢ $ 154,42: Preparation of our federal and state income taxmst other compliance reporting and
consultation and discussion on-related issues

200¢ $ 201,53 Preparation of our federal and state income taxmet other compliance reporting, consultation
and discussion on tax-related issues, calculatiagaxable income on certain of our investments
and review of our 2008 taxable income and REIT ifjoation test calculations

All Other Fees 200¢ $ — N/A
200¢ $ — N/A
Total Fees 200¢ $ 1,013,74:

200¢ $ 1,456,40

Pre-Approval of the Independent Registered Public Acounting Firm's Services

The Audit Committee has adopted policied procedures for pre-approving all audit and nodiagervices provided by our independent
registered public accounting firm and its affiliat&hese policies require the specific pre-approfany such services that have not received the
Audit
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Committee's general pre-approval or have exceddedtdit Committee's pre-approved fee levels. Theseedures include monitoring the
independent registered public accounting firm'sises to determine whether they comply with the gperoval policies and the independent
registered public accounting firm's submission efatement to the Audit Committee that any servicpsrforms that require separate pre-
approval comply with the rules of the SEC on auditdependence.

The Audit Committee pre-approved 100% ef dludit-related, tax and other fees describeddriahle above for 2008 and 2009.
Vote Required and Board Recommendation

For the proposal to ratify the appointmeihbeloitte as our independent registered publ@oaating firm for the fiscal year ending
December 31, 2010, you may vote in favor of theppeal, vote against the proposal or abstain frotimgolf a quorum is present, approval of the
proposal requires the affirmative vote of a majooi all votes cast on the proposal. The Audit Cdtter will reconsider Deloitte's appointment if
it is not ratified by our stockholders.

OUR BOARD RECOMMENDS A VOTE "FOR" RATIFICATION OF T HE APPOINTMENT OF DELOITTE AS OUR
INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM FOR T HE FISCAL YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2010.
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PROPOSAL NO. 4
APPROVAL OF THE ADJOURNMENT OR POSTPONEMENT OF THE MEETING
Adjournment or Postponement

If it becomes necessary to solicit addiigoroxies to approve Proposal Nos. 1 or 2, a matiay be made to adjourn or postpone the
Meeting to a later time to permit further solicitet of proxies. If such a motion to adjourn or paste is made, it will require the affirmative vote
of the holders of a majority of all votes cast ba proposal, provided that a quorum is present.Bded believes this proposal to be advisable
in the best interests of the Company's stockholdecause it gives the Company the flexibility td@bthe vote of additional holders of the
Company's voting securities to vote on matterBiard deems important to the Company.

Vote Required and Board Recommendation

For the proposal to approve the adjournrmepostponement of the Meeting, you may vote iofaf the proposal, vote against the proposal
or abstain from voting. If a quorum is present,rappl of the proposal requires the affirmative vote majority of all votes cast on the proposal.

THE BOARD RECOMMENDS A VOTE "FOR" PROPOSAL NO. 4.
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DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK

The following summary description of our capitalcit does not purport to be complete and is sulbgeand qualified in its entirety by
reference to the Maryland General Corporation Lamdaur Charter and Bylaws, copies of which havenfded as exhibits to our Form 1Qfor
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008, filed thi¢hSEC on March 16, 2009, our Quarterly ReporForm 10-Q for the quarterly period
ended June 30, 2008, filed with the SEC on Audglis2008, and our Current Report on Form 8-K, filgith the SEC on March 25, 2010, and are
incorporated by reference in this Proxy Statem&ntobtain copies of these and other filings, plesesethe section entitled "Where You Can Find
More Information” in this Proxy Stateme

General

Our Charter provides that we may issueoup0i0,000,000 shares of stock, consisting of 5@)MD shares of Common Stock, par value
$0.001 per share, and 100,000,000 shares of Redf8tock, $0.001 par value per share (tReeferred StocK). As of the Record Date, 6,455,3
shares of Common Stock were issued and outstanaimbno shares of Preferred Stock were issued atsthading. Our Board, with the approval
of a majority of the entire Board and without amyi@n on the part of our stockholders, may amendCharter from time to time to increase or
decrease the aggregate number of shares of stdhk aumber of shares of stock of any class oeséhat we have authority to issue. Under
Maryland law, our stockholders generally are naspeally liable for our debts and obligations spia$ a result of their status as stockholders.

Common Stock

All shares of our Common Stock have eqigdits as to earnings, assets, dividends and vatidg when they are issued, will be duly
authorized, validly issued, fully paid and nonasaéte. Distributions may be paid to the holderswof Common Stock if, as and when authorized
by our Board and declared by us out of funds Iggatailable therefor. Shares of our Common Stoalehre preemptive, appraisal, preferential
exchange, conversion, sinking fund or redemptights and are freely transferable, except where thaisfer is restricted by federal and state
securities laws, by contract or by restrictionsfegth in our Charter. Each share of our Commorcistmtitles its holder to one vote. In the event
of our liquidation, dissolution or winding up, easlare of our Common Stock would be entitled taeshatably in all of our assets that are legally
available for distribution after payment of or adate provision for all of our known debts and othedrilities and subject to any preferential rig
of holders of our Preferred Stock, if any Prefer&dck is outstanding at such time.

Subject to any restrictions on the tranafed ownership of our capital stock that may bdah in our Charter, from time to time and except
as may otherwise be specified in the terms of dayscor series of Common Stock, each share of oom@bn Stock entitles the holder thereof to
one vote on all matters submitted to a vote ofldtotders, including the election of directors. Excas provided with respect to any other class or
series of stock, the holders of our Common Stodkpessess exclusive voting power. Our Board issifeed, and there is no cumulative voting in
the election of directors, which means that hol@és majority of the outstanding shares of Comr8tack can elect all of our directors, and
holders of less than a majority of such shareshellunable to elect any director. However, uporsaammation of the Transactions, pursuant tc
Stockholders Agreement, for so long as Bounty oatrieast 5% of the Outstanding Common Stock, thegzmy will maintain a Majority Voting
Bylaw. See "Proposal No. 1—Approval of the Stocdubnces—Majority Voting Bylaw."

Under Maryland law, a Maryland corporatgenerally cannot dissolve, amend its charter, mexgjeall or substantially all of its assets,
engage in a share exchange or engage in similesactions
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outside the ordinary course of business, unlessmaended by the Board and approved by the affinaatdte of stockholders holding at least
two-thirds of the shares entitled to vote on the maklewever, a Maryland corporation may provide endharter for stockholder approval of th
matters by a lesser percentage, but not less thaajarity of all of the votes entitled to be casttbe matter. Our Charter generally provides for
approval of Charter amendments and extraordinanstctions, which first have been declared adwdaplour Board, by the stockholders enti
to cast at least a majority of the votes entitetdé cast on the matter. An affirmative vote ofivivds of all votes entitled to be cast on theterat
is required for approval of amendments to our Giraslated to (i) removal of directors from our Ba&(ii) the authority of our Board to classify
and reclassify certain unissued shares of capitaksand (iii) restrictions on ownership and tramsklating to our prior status as a REIT that are
no longer effective.

Preferred Stock

Our Board may authorize the issuance ofeshaf any class or series of Preferred Stock, stitth terms, preferences, conversion or other
rights, voting powers, restrictions, limitationstagdividends or other distributions, qualificatoand terms or conditions of redemption for each
class or series as it may determine. Prior to issei@f shares of each class or series of Pref&teak, our Board will be required by Maryland
law and our Charter to fix the terms, preferenceayersion or other rights, voting powers, resits, limitations as to dividends or other
distributions, qualifications and terms or condismf redemption for each class or series. ThusBoard could authorize the issuance of shar
Preferred Stock with terms and conditions that ddave the effect of delaying, deferring or preirant transaction or a change of control that
might involve a premium price for holders of ourf@mon Stock or otherwise be advisable and in thest mterests. As of April 19, 2010, no
shares of Preferred Stock were outstanding. Whildhawe no present plans to issue any Preferred,Stecmay determine to issue Preferred
Stock at any time in the future.

Power to Reclassify Shares of Our Capital Stock

Our Charter authorizes our Board to clgsaifd reclassify any unissued shares of stockattter classes or series of stock, including
Preferred Stock. Prior to issuance of shares df elass or series, our Board is required by Ma/liam and by our Charter to set the terms,
preferences, conversion or other rights, voting gmyrestrictions, limitations as to dividends tves distributions, qualifications and terms or
conditions of redemption for each class or sefiésis, our Board could authorize the issuance afeshaf Common Stock or Preferred Stock with
terms and conditions which could have the effectedlying, deferring or preventing a transactiom change in control that might involve a
premium price for holders of our Common Stock drestvise be advisable and in their best interests.

Power to Issue Preferred Stock and Additional Share of Common Stock

We believe that the power of our Boardrteead our Charter without stockholder approval toéase the total number of authorized shar
our capital stock or any class or series of ouitabgtock, to issue additional authorized but sned shares of our Common Stock or Preferred
Stock and to classify or reclassify unissued shafesir Common Stock or Preferred Stock and thézesd cause us to issue such classified or
reclassified shares of stock provides us with iasee flexibility in structuring possible future dimcings and acquisitions and in meeting other
needs which might arise. The additional classesnes, as well as our Common Stock, will be abldor issuance without further action by our
stockholders, unless stockholder action is requiedpplicable law or the rules of any stock exgjeaar automated quotation system on which
our securities may be listed or traded. Our Boandd authorize us to issue a class or series thdtcdepending upon the terms of such class or
series, delay, defer or prevent a transactionabtraamge in control of us that might involve a premiprice for holders of our Common Stock or
otherwise be advisable and in their best interests.
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Restrictions on Ownership and Transfer

We were formed as a REIT in 2004 and cotegleur initial public offering in June 2005. Effae January 1, 2008, we elected to terminate
our status as a REIT when we converted to a C catipo for federal income tax purposes, at whicimpthe restrictions on ownership and
transfer of our capital stock set forth in Artidlé of our Charter ceased to have any effect.

We have available NOLs, NCLs and certaheptax attributes to offset our future taxableome. NOLs and NCLs benefit us by offsetting
future taxable income, if any, dollar-for-dollardathereby eliminating (subject to an alternativeimium tax) the U.S. federal corporate income
tax to the extent such income is offset. The béwéfihe NOLs, NCLs and certain other tax attrilsutan be reduced or eliminated if we undergo
an Ownership Change, as defined in the Code. Gignateere is an Ownership Change if, at any timme or more 5% stockholders (as defined in
the Code) have aggregate increases in their owipdarsthe corporation of more than 50 percentagatpdooking back over the relevant testing
period, which can occur as a result of acquisitiamg certain dispositions of common stock by 5%ildtolders. As a result of an Ownership
Change, our ability to use our NOLs, NCLs and d¢enmtacognized built-in losses to reduce our taxatdeme in the future will generally be
limited to the Section 382 Limitation.

On May 20, 2009, we amended our Charteestrict certain acquisitions and dispositions wf gecurities with the intention of reducing the
likelihood of an Ownership Change and preservimglténefit of our NOLs, NCLs and certain other tdxlautes for tax purposes. Article 1X of
the Charter generally prohibits any direct or iedirsale, transfer, assignment, exchange, issugrang, redemption, repurchase, conveyance,
pledge or other disposition of shares of our Comi®@tmtk or rights or options to purchase our Comi@tatk or any other interests that would be
treated as our capital stock under the incomedgulations promulgated under the Code, if as dtreSguch sale, transfer, assignment, exchange,
issuance, grant, redemption, repurchase, conveypletge or other disposition, any person or greegomes a 5% stockholder (as defined in the
Code) or the percentage of our Common Stock alreadied by an existing 5% stockholder (as definetthénCode) increases. The Board has the
ability to grant waivers from the restrictions cainied in Article IX of the Charter. Since the issc@ of the Acquisition Shares will result in an
Ownership Change, our Board has exempted the issu#rthe Acquisition Shares and the issuanceeoCihnvertible Notes to be purchased by
Bounty from the restrictions set forth in Articl¥ bf the Charter. If the Transactions are consunachaind the Acquisition Shares are issued to
Bounty, our Board has agreed to terminate the ostigrand transfer provisions contained in Artictedf the Charter.

Our Board has by resolution exempted thean@any from the provisions of the Maryland Busin€ssnbination Act, and our Bylaws exempt
the Company from the Maryland Control Share AcdjiaisiAct. These statutory provisions, if applicaldeuld also dissuade stockholders from
acquiring a significant amount of our Common Stock.

Subject to stockholder approval, we couttead our Charter to implement new restrictions wnership and transfer of our capital stock in
the future. Any such ownership limitations that niieycontained in our Charter could delay, defgsrevent a transaction or a change in control
that might involve a premium price for the commawck or might otherwise be in the best interestswfstockholders.

Warrants

Pursuant to the Termination AgreementGbepany has agreed to grant the Pegasus Invest@anisato purchase an aggregate of 200,000
shares of Common Stock and has agreed to graettairc associates of the Pegasus Investor wart@pisrchase an aggregate of 50,000 shar
Common Stock, in each case at an exercise pri$d.8b per share, expiring on April 9, 2014. Eachrara may be exercised, in whole or in part,
at the applicable exercise price at any time gaor
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April 9, 2014. The warrants provide for the adjustrof the exercise price and the number of shafr€@mmon Stock issuable upon exercise
pursuant to customary anti-dilution provisions,tsas upon stock splits or distributions of Commawock or options to purchase Common Stock
to the Company's stockholders. The warrants dentitie the holders to any voting or other righisage accorded to the Company's stockholders.
The warrants will be granted to accredited investora private placement exempt from registratiorspant to Section 4(2) of the Securities Act.
Neither the warrants nor any shares of Common Ststlkable upon exercise of the warrants are sutgesnty contractual restrictions on trans

No registration rights have been granted by the @om with respect to the warrants or the shar€oafimon Stock issuable upon exercise of
warrants.

Transfer Agent and Registrar
The transfer agent and registrar for oum8mn Stock is AST.
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IMPORTANT PROVISIONS OF MARYLAND LAW AND OUR CHARTE R AND BYLAWS
Removal of Directors

Our Charter provides that a director maydyaoved only for cause by the affirmative votableast twahirds of the votes entitled to be ¢
in the election of directors. For purposes of real@f a director, "cause" means conviction of aifiglor entry of a final court judgment holding
that the director caused demonstrable, materiah tarour company through bad faith or active anibdeate dishonesty. This provision, when
coupled with the provisions in our Charter and Bydayiving our Board the exclusive power to fill @t directorships, precludes stockholders
from removing incumbent directors except for caga substantial affirmative vote and filling thacancies created by the removal with their
own nominees.

Business Combinations

Under Maryland law, "business combinatiobstween a Maryland corporation and an interegtatkiolder or an affiliate of an interested
stockholder are prohibited for five years after thest recent date on which the interested stoclendddcomes an interested stockholder. These
business combinations include a merger, consadidathare exchange or, in circumstances specifidiiki statute, an asset transfer or issuance or
reclassification of equity securities. An interessgtockholder is defined as:

. any person who beneficially owns 10% or more ofib#ng power of the corporation's shares; or

. an affiliate or associate of the corporation wharsy time within the two-year period prior to ttigte in question, was the
beneficial owner of 10% or more of the voting powéthe then outstanding voting stock of the cogpion.

A person is not an interested stockholdeten the statute if the board of directors apprametivance the transaction by which he otherwise
would have become an interested stockholder. How@veapproving a transaction, the board of direstoay provide that its approval is subject
to compliance, at or after the time of approvathvainy terms and conditions determined by the bo&directors.

After the five-year prohibition, any busésecombination between the Maryland corporationamihterested stockholder generally must be
recommended by the board of directors of the cafmm and approved by the affirmative vote of aste

. 80% of the votes entitled to be cast by holdersut§tanding shares of voting stock of the corporatand

. two-thirds of the votes entitled to be cast by lkoddof voting stock of the corporation other thharss held by the interested
stockholder with whom or with whose affiliate thesiness combination is to be effected or held bgffiiate or associate of the
interested stockholder.

These super-majority vote requirements atcapply if the corporation's common stockholdeseive a minimum price, as defined under
Maryland law, for their shares in the form of castother consideration in the same form as preWopaid by the interested stockholder for its
shares.

The statute permits various exemptions fitsnprovisions, including business combinatioret #ire exempted by the board of directors be
the time that the interested stockholder becomeéstarested stockholder. Our Board has adoptedauton providing that any business
combination between us and any other person is ptezhirom the provisions of the Maryland BusinessnBination Act, provided that the
business combination is first approved by the BoAsda result, such parties may be able to enterinsiness combinations with us that may not
be in the best
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interest of our stockholders, without compliancéwthe super-majority vote requirements and themphovisions of the statute. This resolution,
however, may be altered or repealed in whole @air at any time. If this resolution is repealedoor Board does not otherwise approve a
business combination, the statute may discourdgg®from trying to acquire control of us and irmge the difficulty of consummating any offer.

Control Share Acquisitions

Maryland law provides that control sharéa Maryland corporation acquired in a control ghacquisition have no voting rights except to
extent approved by a vote of two-thirds of the gaatitled to be cast on the matter. Shares owpeldebacquiror, by officers or by directors who
are employees of the corporation are excluded Bbares entitled to vote on the matter. Controleshare voting shares of stock which, if
aggregated with all other shares of stock ownethbyacquiror or in respect of which the acquircale to exercise or direct the exercise of vc
power (except solely by virtue of a revocable pipxyould entitle the acquiror to exercise votingveo in electing directors within one of the
following ranges of voting power:

. one-tenth or more but less than one-third,
. one-third or more but less than a majority or
. a majority or more of all voting power.

Control shares do not include shares tlyeigiag person is then entitled to vote as a resfuitaving previously obtained stockholder
approval. A control share acquisition means theuetipn of control shares, subject to certain gtimms.

A person who has made or proposes to makatol share acquisition may compel the boardii@ctors of the corporation to call a special
meeting of stockholders to be held within 50 daydeamand to consider the voting rights of the skafde right to compel the calling of a special
meeting is subject to the satisfaction of certainditions, including an undertaking to pay the ewges of the meeting. If no request for a meeting
is made, the corporation may itself present thestjoie at any stockholders meeting.

If voting rights are not approved at theetirgy or if the acquiring person does not deliveaaquiring person statement as required by the
statute, then the corporation may redeem for falner any or all of the control shares, except tHosghich voting rights have previously been
approved. The right of the corporation to redeemtrab shares is subject to certain conditions amétations. Fair value is determined, without
regard to the absence of voting rights for the iidrshares, as of the date of the last controleshaquisition by the acquiror or of any meeting of
stockholders at which the voting rights of the slsaare considered and not approved. If voting siffiit control shares are approved at a
stockholders meeting and the acquiror becomedeghtit vote a majority of the shares entitled tteyall other stockholders may exercise
appraisal rights. The fair value of the sharesedsrehined for purposes of appraisal rights maybedess than the highest price per share paid by
the acquiror in the control share acquisition.

The control share acquisition statute dugsapply (a) to shares acquired in a merger, dfsmn or share exchange if the corporation is a
party to the transaction or (b) to acquisitionsrappd or exempted by the charter or bylaws of tmparation. Accordingly, the control share
acquisition statute does not apply to the Stoclasses.

Our Bylaws contain a provision exemptingnfrthe control share acquisition statute any ahacagjuisitions by any person of shares of our
stock. This provision may be amended or eliminatieainy time in the future. However, we will amena Bylaws to be subject to the control
share acquisition statute only if our Board deteesithat it would be in our best interests.
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Subtitle 8

Subtitle 8 of Title 3 of the Maryland Geak€orporation Law permits a Maryland corporatioithve class of equity securities registered
under the Exchange Act and at least three indepelilectors to elect to be subject, by provisioits charter or bylaws or a resolution of its
board of directors and notwithstanding any contgayision in the charter or bylaws, to any orddlfive provisions:

. a classified board of directors;

. a two-thirds stockholder vote requirement for remg\a director;

. a requirement that the number of directors be fixelg by vote of the directors;

. a requirement that a vacancy on the board of dirsdie filled only by the remaining directors andthe remainder of the full term

of the class of directors in which the vacancy ocd; and

. a majority requirement for the calling of a specraeting of stockholders.

Through provisions in our Charter and Bydamrelated to Subtitle 8, we already (a) haveaasified Board, (b) require a two-thirds
stockholder vote for the removal of any directanfrthe Board, as well as require such removal tiobeause, (c) vest in the Board the exclusive
power to fix the number of directorships and (djuiee, unless called by our chairman of the Boata,president, our chief executive officer or
the Board, the request of holders of a majoritputstanding shares to call a special meeting. OreMa5, 2010, the Company filed Articles
Supplementary in the State of Maryland reflecting Board's election that the Board will have thelasive power to fill vacancies on the Board,
by a vote of the remaining directors, and such neies will be filled until the end of the term diet class of directors in which the vacancy
occurred.

Advance Notice of Director Nominations and New Busiess

Our Bylaws provide that, with respect toaamual meeting of stockholders, nominations ofpes for election to the Board and the proposal
of business to be considered by stockholders maygdue only (a) pursuant to our notice of the meetih) by or at the direction of the Board or
(c) by a stockholder who was a stockholder of rédmth at the time of giving of notice by such &taalder as provided for in our Bylaws and at
the time of the annual meeting and who is entittedote at the meeting and who has complied wighativance notice procedures of the Bylaws.
With respect to special meetings of stockholdemsy the business specified in our notice of the tingemay be brought before the meeting.
Nominations of persons for election to the Board apecial meeting may be made only (a) pursuamtitmotice of the meeting, (b) by or at
direction of the Board or (c) provided that the Bbhas determined that directors will be electethatmeeting, by a stockholder who was a
stockholder of record both at the time of givinghotice by such stockholder as provided for in Bylaws and at the time of the annual meeting
and who is entitled to vote at the meeting and W&® complied with the advance notice provisionthefBylaws.

Anti-Takeover Effect of Certain Provisions of Maryland Law and of Our Charter and Bylaws

The business combination provisions antheafapplicable provision in our Bylaws is rescitdidéne control share acquisition provisions of
Maryland law, the provisions of our Charter relgtio removal of directors and filling vacanciesaur Board and the advance notice provisior
our Bylaws could delay, defer or prevent a trarisaatr a change in the control of us that mighbiwe a premium price for holders of our
Common Stock or otherwise be in their best interest
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA OF THE COMPANY

The selected historical consolidated finanoformation of the Company for the years enBestember 31, 2009, 2008, 2007, 2006 and 200=
is set forth in the Company's 2009 Annual Repohictv is incorporated by reference herein. The famannformation incorporated herein by
reference should be read in conjunction with, anglualified in its entirety by reference to thetRerItem 8. Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data" and "Part Il—Item 7. Managefsddiscussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiowl &esults of Operations" included in
the Company's 2009 Annual Report.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C ONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS OF CNCIM

CNCIM is a wholly-owned subsidiary of BoynBoth CNCIM and Bounty are managed by RUSM. Usiletherwise noted or the context

otherwise requires, we refer to CNCIM, Bounty andS¥M as "we," "us," "our" or "our company."

We consider all statements regarding ingustitiook, the future performance of our businessl other non-historical statements, forward-
looking statements as permitted by the Private @@ssiLitigation Reform Act of 1995. These inclustatements regarding future results or
expectations. Forward-looking statements can batiiitd by forward-looking language, including warduch as "believes," "anticipates,"
"expects,” "estimates," "intends," "may," "planftojects,” "will" and similar expressions, or thegative of these words. Such forward-looking
statements are based on facts and conditions yexie at the time such statements are made. Fdfleaking statements are also based on
predictions as to future facts and conditions,abeurate prediction of which may be difficult andalve the assessment of events beyond our
control. Forward-looking statements are furtherelolagn various operating assumptions. Caution mausixercised in relying on forward-looking
statements. Due to known and unknown risks, acasallts may differ materially from expectationgpoojections. We do not undertake any
obligation to update any forward-looking statemevttether written or oral, relating to matters dssed in this Proxy, except as may be required
by applicable securities laws. All future writtemdaoral forward-looking statements attributableisoor any person acting on our behalf are
expressly qualified in their entirety by the cantoy statements contained or referenced above.dfdrileoking statements are subject to
numerous risks and uncertainties, including, batlinuted to, the risks and uncertainties describetiForward-Looking Statementsheginning
on page 21 andRisk Factors' beginning on page 25.You should read the follgdiscussion together with our consolidated finahsfatement
and notes thereto beginning on page F-1.

CNCIM is not a publicly traded companynit registering any securities and had annual ige®of less than $50 million for the year ended
December 31, 2009. Accordingly, CNCIM is a "smatkgporting company” as defined in Rule 405 underSbcurities Act.

Overview

CNCIM is a Delaware limited liability compgaformed in January 2006 and based in Charlott&, GNCIM holds collateral management
agreements to provide collateral management seryicgervices') to four CLO Issuers with combined AUM of $1.8linn as of December 31,
2009: ColumbusNova CLO Ltd. 2006-12006-1"); ColumbusNova CLO Ltd. 2006-Il €006-11"); ColumbusNova CLO Ltd. 2007-1 ¢007-1");
and ColumbusNova CLO Ltd. 2007-11 2007-11"). Reported AUM generally reflects the aggregateqgipal or notional balance of the collateral
of the CLO and, in some cases, the cash balandeéblgghe CLOs and is as of the date of the lastérireport received for each CLO prior to
January 1, 2010.

Upon completion of the Transactions, ougragions will be merged into DFR's operations. @orent with the Transactions, DFR has
negotiated employment agreements with certain leeggnnel of CNCIM, including our portfolio managergilliam Hayes and Glenn Duffy (the
Portfolio Managers").

History of Operations

In January 2006, RUSM helped Bounty cr&&IM, a CLO asset-management company with thra®sasset managers, William Hayes,
Glenn Duffy and Nicholas Combs (théartners"). The Partners collectively owned 50% of CNCIMtmBounty holding the other 50%, until
October 31, 2007 when they sold their interestdaay. Upon completion of that transaction, Williddayes and Glenn Duffy remained as
Portfolio Managers of the business, while Nichdlasnb left the business.
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In 2006, CNCIM contracted with Morgan Stanto assist in the securitization of up to thré€6. For a fee, Morgan Stanley provided short-
term warehouse financing and assisted in the madkainderwriting and securitizations of three CLi®&ling $1.4 billion AUM, as follows:

Initial AUM
CLO (in millions) Closing Date
200¢-1 $ 400.5  August 200¢€
200¢-11 $ 500.C December 200
20071 $ 500.C March 2007

In 2007, CNCIM contracted with UBS to asgisthe securitization of up to three CLOs. Fde@, UBS provided short-term warehouse
financing and assisted in the marketing, undemgitind securitization of one CLO with $450 milliohAUM in November 2007. Subsequently,
CNCIM and UBS terminated the agreement and anyirement to pursue the securitization of the renmgjrtivo CLOs.

As of December 31, 2009, CNCIM managed fou®s with $1.8 billion of AUM, as follows:

AUM
Initial AUM December 31, 2009
CLO Closing Date Underwriter (in millions) (in millions)
200¢€- August 200¢ Morgan Stanler $ 400t $ 387.1
200¢-11 December 2000 Morgan Stanle 500.( 486.5
20071 March 2007 Morgan Stanle 500.( 478.¢
200711 November 200° UBS 450.( 426.¢
Total $ 1,850¢ $ 1,779.¢

The Deerfield Transaction

On March 22, 2010, Bounty entered intoAleguisition Agreement with DFR, pursuant to whick® agreed to acquire 100% of Bounty's
interest in CNCIM. In connection with the Acquisiti, DFR entered into the Transition Services Agrermtmvith Bounty and CNCIM, where DFR
will provide Services to the four CLOs without cher until the Acquisition is completed. In the etvire transaction is terminated by DFR (under
certain defined circumstances), DFR will continagtovide the Services, without charge for up f¥orsonths. In the event the transaction is
terminated by Bounty (under certain defined circtanses), DFR is obligated to provide Services ffgeaequal to 50% of the senior management
fees (or 10 basis points) (th& SA Rate) for up to six months. In either case, CNCIM wiflen be required to hire a third party to provide
Services for the four CLOs. For further discussiplease see page 41 under the heading "Acquigitizaement” and page 63 under the heading
"Transition Services Agreement.”

We anticipate the termination of all ourgdayees on or around April 30, 2010 other thanaierkey employees, including William Hayes
and Glenn Duffy, who have executed employment agess with DFR and will assist in the managemertufbusiness under the terms of the
Transition Services Agreement. In addition, otheerating expenses will be discontinued and in #ee ©f subscribed services, those services
not be renewed. As part of the Acquisition, opagtxpenses after April 30, 2010 up to $1.1 mildaming the remainder of 2010 and
$0.1 million for 2011 will be paid by CNCIM. Expegsincurred above those limits will be paid ding&ty Bounty.

Our Business

Our business involves earning contractwatstment advisory fees for managing each CLO.dIh@ investments include bank loans and
other corporate debt, consisting of senior secloads (first
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lien and second lien term loans), senior suborduhdebt facilities and other junior securities,i¢ally in middle market companies across a range
of industries (collectively referred to a€brporate Loans).

Collateralized Loan Obligations

The term CLO generally refers to a spegiapose vehicle that owns a portfolio of investrsearid issues various tranches of debt and equity
securities to fund the purchase of those investsadiite debt tranches issued by the CLO are typicaled by one or more of the principal rating
agencies based on portfolio quality, diversificatand structural subordination. The equity se@sitssued by the CLO represent the first loss
piece of the capital structure and are generaliijled to all residual amounts available for distrion after the CLO's obligations to the debt
holders and certain other parties have been satisfis of December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, we geghfour CLOs that invest mainly in
Corporate Loans and did not hold any investme@L® debt or equity securities.

Investment Advisory Fee

For the Services provided, we receive geamal subordinate management feeBges"), generated and paid quarterly, calculated as a
percentage of AUM for the respective CLO. In adudfitto the Fees, we are entitled to receive a pedace incentive fee equal to 20% of the
income above the performance goal. The performgnaéfor this calculation is determined as CLO imeorequired to provide the CLO equity
investor an internal rate of returnlRR") of 12% on their net invested capital.

A summary of contractual investment adwdees is as follows:

Senior Subordinate Performance
Management Management Incentive
CLO Fees Fees Fees
200¢-1 0.2% 0.2% 20%
200¢-11 0.2% 0.2% 20%
2007%-1 0.2% 0.2% 20%
2007%-11 0.2% 0.2% 20%

For 2007-Il, we agreed to temporarily wadwg right to the subordinate management fee teease the overall profitability and cash flow of
this CLO during a period of unstable market comwdisi following the global credit crisis which beganjuly of 2007. For the years ended
December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, we waived $dI®mi$0.9 million and $0.1 million respectivelfis the markets have begun to stabilize we
do not anticipate the need to continue waivingdHegs, and there is no provision requiring DFR/&dve this fee upon the successful
consummation of the Acquisition.

Services Contract

Our results of operations depend largelyev@nue earned under our investment managememactswith CLOs, and we had four contracts
outstanding as of December 31, 2009. Those costcactently expire between 2018 and 2021, and reagtminated early under certain
circumstances. Each CLO generally has the rightttove CNCIM as the investment advisor of that Glr@er certain conditions. Currently, we
have not received any indication leading us todweliwve may be removed as investment advisor umgeca@ntract, including as a result of the
Acquisition. In the event of any such removal antimation, it would have a material impact on cesults of operations.

Employees
As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, we hadntD13 employees, respectively.
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Trends
We have identified the following trendstth@ay affect our business:

Credit market dislocation. The well-publicized disruptions in the finaraiaarkets that began in 2007 and escalated thraug@D8
significantly diminished through the second hal2609. The numerous programs implemented by thedd®rnment aimed at stabilizing credit
markets and improving overall financial system iitity show signs of having the desired effect. Amahe signs of returning stability and
confidence in financial markets was a strong ineega equity markets with the Dow Jones Industkiadrage and the S&P 500 advancing by 2z
and 21%, respectively, during the second half @2@nother sign that markets may be resuming morenal operations was an increased pace
of mergers and acquisitions. Further contributim@ sense of returning normalcy was the relatiability of treasury yields. On balance, rates
along the yield curve moved by 31 basis pointeses from June 30, 2009 to December 31, 2009, Wvittshorter end of the curve (3 years or less)
moving less than 16 basis points. The trailing da8g volatility on the 10 year Treasury bond dedifiom 52.5% at June 30, 2009 to 27.2% by
the end of the year. While we certainly cannot jutettie long-term effect that these programs walvé on financial markets or our business, we
have observed that the massive liquidity providgdhe government via the numerous programs it impleted had the effect of raising prices and
lowering risk premiums.

Corporate credit performance. Corporate default rates have increased ovepdbtyear as the U.S. economy weakened and fadanci
markets deteriorated. As noted above, stock phiegs recently risen, and corporate earnings refartmany companies point to improving
economic conditions. Although there may be somthéurcyclical increase in corporate defaults oherdcoming months, we expect government
stimulus programs and improving economic condititnBegin moderating the pace of such defaulthdfstimulus packages are not effective in
promoting growth, it is possible that recent sighsmprovement will give way to renewed economicakmeess. A further weakening of the U.S.
economy would likely result in further increasesarporate default rates. Such increases wouldylikether reduce the returns associated with
the Corporate Loans held in our CLOs. Increasetefaults could also cause us to trigger or profihregeffects of certain structural provisions in
our CLOs that we manage. These structural provésioclude, but are not limited to, overcollateratinn requirements that are meant to protect
investors from deterioration in the credit quabifythe underlying collateral pool.

CLO financing and managementThe reduction in liquidity and widening of ciespreads have resulted in significant downwaebspure
on the market values of assets typically held ith fimanced by CLOs. These decreased market vadilmsy with increased default rates on assets
held in CLOs and significant rating agency downgsadf the collateral underlying certain of our CL.@ave caused our CLOs to trigger certai
their structural provisions and potentially everitslefault, either of which reduce our managemeasfand AUM.

There was a substantial increase in poof&orporate Loans throughout 2009. This priceease, coupled with moderating loan defaults,
helped to repair some of the structural provisionsur four CLOs, which has increased the cashildigton of management fees we earn on our
CLOs. We expect these structural provisions toinomstto repair, which would be expected to resuttigher cash distribution of management
fees in 2010 when compared to the trend we wereréqring during 2009.

The improving economic environment raigespossibility that new CLO issuances may resumig2010. For newly formed CLOs we
would also expect the relative size of the equdstipn of the capital structure to be a larger patage of the overall deal when compared to the
CLOs we currently manage. While we do expect nev@€Lo be launched in 2010, it is very difficultdetermine when or how these new CLOs
will be structured. While overall conditions in theedit markets appear to be
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improving, there has been a significant reductiothe number of banks willing to provide warehofisancing for collateral and, in those cases
where financing is available, the banks are chargignificantly higher fees and interest ratesddigon to requiring more capital from borrowe
Similarly, potential investors are demanding siigaifitly higher interest rates on CLO liabilities The extent that we are successful in creating
new CLOs, the management fees we earn from manégsg new CLOs may be significantly lower and vagy fipe required to invest our capital
into a new CLO, which may negatively affect ourliépto grow our AUM and revenue.

During 2008 and 2009, the CLO managememket&xperienced some consolidation, evidencedlly ®anagement contracts being
transferred to or acquired by other investment mara We expect this consolidation trend to comtiimithe near term, and we will continue to
evaluate our options in regards to the acquisiiot assumption of management contracts.

Critical Accounting Policies

Our financial statements are prepared @oaance with accounting principles generally atagéjn the United States of AmericaGAAP").
These accounting principles require us to make smomgplex and subjective decisions and assessn@uatsnost critical accounting policies
involve decisions and assessments that could afteateported assets and liabilities, as well aseported revenues and expenses. We believe
that all of the decisions and assessments inharenir financial statements were reasonable, baped information available to us. We rely on
management's experience and analysis of hist@i@makturrent market data in order to arrive at whabelieve to be reasonable estimates. Under
varying conditions, we could report materially diftnt amounts arising under these critical accogrblicies. We have identified our most
critical accounting policies to be the following:

Revenue Recognition

Revenues, which include various forms ohagement and incentive fees, are received fronCti@s managed by CNCIM. These fees, paid
quarterly in accordance with the individual managatragreements between CNCIM and the CLO, are giybased upon the aggregate
collateral amount of the CLOs as defined in theviddial management agreements. Management fegs@rgnized as revenue when earned. In
accordance with Accounting Standards CodificatioA$C") 605— Revenue RecognitigtCNCIM does not recognize these fees as reventile un
all contingencies have been removed, includinggiveeration of sufficient cash flows by the CDOp#y the fees under the terms of the related
management agreements.

Incentive fees may be earned from the Ciasaged by CNCIM. These fees are paid periodigaliccordance with the individual
management agreements between CNCIM and the CLeDararbased upon the performance of the underlgiestment vehicles. Incentive fees
are recognized as revenue when the amounts abdix@ determinable upon the close of a performpeded for the achievement of performa
targets for the CLOs.

Structuring fees are earned for serviceprgided to CLOs or placement agents for the CLEMCIM recognizes these fees as income 1
the rendering of such services.

Income Taxes

The Company is a limited liability compaauyd is treated as a partnership for income taxqaap. Because its income or loss is allocated to
the individual members for tax reporting purposegrovision for income taxes was recorded.
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Recent Accounting Updates

In May 2009, the FASB issued amendmenS€ Topic 855—Subsequent Event®r ASC Topic 855. The amendments to ASC Topic 855
establish general standards of accounting for,disalosure of, events that occur after the balaheet date but before financial statements are
issued or are available to be issued. In partictih@ amendments set forth: (i) the period afterltalance sheet date during which managemer
reporting entity should evaluate events or trangastthat may occur for potential recognition asdalibsure in the financial statements, (ii) the
circumstances under which an entity should recageiznts or transactions occurring after the balaheet date in its financial statements and
(iii) the disclosures that an entity should makeuglevents or transactions that occurred aftebéti@nce sheet date. We adopted the amendments
to ASC Topic 855 and included the required disalesun our notes to the consolidated financiakestents.

In June 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. A&Tendments to FASB Interpretation No. 46(R), orSRA. 167 In December 2009, the
FASB issued ASU 2009-17 to revise the Codificatimimclude SFAS No. 167 within ASC Topic 810. IrbReary 2010, the FASB issued
ASU 2010-10Amendments for Certain Investment Funtisdefer the effective date of the amendmenthaaonsolidation requirements of
Topic 810 resulting from the issuance of SFAS N&¥. for reporting entities with interests in enstiwith all the attributes of an investment
company but specifically excluding interests inwséization entities. This statement was issuedddress concerns about financial statement
preparers' ability to structure transactions toideonsolidation, balanced with the need for medevant, timely and reliable information about an
entity's involvement in a VIE. This statement reggian enterprise to perform an analysis to determhether the enterprise's variable interest or
interests give it a controlling financial inter@sta VIE. This analysis identifies the primary b&ciary of a VIE as the enterprise that has both th
power to direct the activities of a VIE that mogisficantly impact the entity's economic perfornsarand the obligation to absorb losses of the
entity that could potentially be significant to théE or the right to receive benefits from the gnthat could potentially be significant to the VIE
Additionally, an enterprise is required to assekstiver it has an implicit financial responsibilityensure that a VIE operates as designed when
determining whether it has the power to directabgvities of the VIE that most significantly imgache entity's economic performance. SFAS
No. 167 also amends FIN 46(R) to eliminate the tjtetive approach to determining the primary begiafy of a VIE and requires ongoil
reassessments of VIE status. SFAS No. 167 is eféefdr our interim and annual reporting periodatthegin after November 15, 2009. We are
currently evaluating the effects that ASU 2009-1If ave on our consolidated statements and discéssincluded in those consolidated financial
statements.

Results of Operations

The following section provides a comparatiliscussion of our consolidated results of openatas of and for the years ended December 31,
2009, or 2009, December 31, 2008, or 2008, and mkee31, 2007, or 2007.

The following table summarizes selectedahnisal consolidated financial information:

(in $US Millions) 2009 2008 2007
Revenue! $ 77 $7¢ $ 8C
Operating expense¢ 6.€ 54 5.2
Income from operation $11 $ 2t $ 28
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2009 Results of Operations vs. 2008 Results of @pens

Revenue decreased by $0.2 million, or 3427 million for the year ended December 31, 200 $7.9 million for the year ended
December 31, 2008 caused by a slight decrease iantftount of AUM.

As a general rule, Fees are payable qirfgovided certain financial and collateral cogantests (the Tests") on each CLO are sufficient
to permit the distribution of Fees. During 2009 time to time, certain of the Tests were not roatising the deferral of CLO cash flow from
junior debt investors and equity holders to pay Gddior debt investors, limiting the free CLO cashilable to pay our Fees in a timely mani
During 2009, those conditions existing with sufici frequency leading to an increase in unpaid.Feesf December 31, 2009, deferred fees
amounted to $2.8 million, an increase of $1.4 wrillfrom December 31, 2008.

Operating expenses increased by approxiynéie? million or 22%, to $6.6 million for the yeanded December 31, 2009 from $5.4 million
for the same period ended December 31, 2008. Tihmpr reason for the increase in operating expewsasthe increase in management fees
to RUSM. Management fees increased $0.9 milliof2® million for the year ended December 31, 2098anpared to the same period ended
December 31, 2008, primarily as a result of thekymrformed by RUSM in connection with the Acquit In addition, staff costs increased
$0.6 million due to one-time bonuses paid to owr pertfolio managers of $1.0 million, partially eét by $0.4 million in savings from the
reduction in the number of full time employees frafhat December 31, 2008 to 10 at December 31,.20@®remaining decrease of $0.3 million
was a result of a net reduction in other operatixgenses.

2008 Results of Operations vs. 2007 Results of @pens

Revenue for the year ended December 318 @66reased $0.1 million or 1%, to $7.9 milliorrfr $8.0 million for the year ended
December 31, 2007. This decrease was the resal$afO million decrease in securitization placensemt structuring fees earned during the year
ended December 31, 2007 compared to zero earnadydhe year ended December 31, 2008; partiallyedfby a $0.9 million increase in CLO
Fees to $7.9 million during the year ended Decer8heP008 compared to $7.0 million during the yeaded December 31, 2007 as a result of
higher AUM.

Operating expenses for the year ended DieeeB1, 2008 increased $0.2 million or 4%, to $&illion, from $5.2 million for the same peri
ended December 31, 2007. This increase is primatitibuted to the increase of $1.1 million in mgament fees paid to RUSM as a result of
increased monitoring and management services peefbr This increase was partially offset by a dex@éa staff costs of $1.0 million incurred
during the year ended December 31, 2008 as compatbd same period ended December 31, 2007 dogver employee bonuses.
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Contractual Obligations and Commitments
The table below details our significant tantual obligations and the timing of paymentstfiousands):

Payment due by period

Less than One to three Three to five More than
Contractual Obligations one year years years five years
Severance and other employee related ¢ $ 88t $ — % — 3 —
Operating lease 19¢ 17C — —
Service and outsource contra 137 10 — —
Totals $ 122 % 18C $ — $ —

CNCIM rents its office pursuant to an opierg lease that requires fixed monthly rental pagtagplus other common charges including a
share of real estate taxes. In addition, we hak&eta portion of our office to Columbus Nova REatate Acquisition Group, LLC CRAG"), a
related party. The lease and the sublease expi@ctober 31, 2011. Rent expense and rental incomeeaognized on a straight-line basis over
the terms of the respective leases. Minimum futargal commitments under the non-cancelable lestef sublease rental income in each
subsequent year are as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31 Lease Lease Lease
2010 $ 19¢ $ (43) $ 15€
2011 17¢  (37) 132
Totals $ 365 $ (80) $ 28¢

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

There were no off-balance sheet arrangesresnbf December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of December 31, 2009, CNCIM had cashe@ash equivalents of $0.3 million. We believe that current cash and cash equivalents
together with cash flows from operations are adgteameet anticipated liquidity requirements oer next twelve months. The consolidated
statements of cash flows for the year ended DeceBhe2009 is summarized below:

(In Thousands)

Cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 2C $ 51
Net change in cash due 1

Operating activitie: 12

Investing activities —

Financing activitie: 254
Net change in cash and cash equival 25€
Cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 2C $ 317

Cash and cash equivalents increased to &8 b¥ December 31, 2009, compared with $51 asseEber 31, 2008. The increase in cash
during the year ended December 31, 2009 is at&ibtd net contributions received from Bounty.
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Cash flows from operations declined $98%12 as of December 31, 2009, compared with $98thfoyear ended December 31, 2008. This
decrease was the result of lower net income angcesticash flows from management fees receivabtgalhaoffset by increased cash flows frc
due from related party and accounts payable andied@xpenses.

Cash flows provided by (used in) investagivities increased $20 to zero as of DecembeB@9, compared with $(20) for the year ended
December 31, 2008. Fixed asset additions amouateerd during the year ended December 31, 200®rimparison to $(20) during the year
ended December 31, 2008.

Cash flows provided by (used in) financaagivities increased $1,277 to $254 for the yealedrDecember 31, 2009, as compared to $(1
for the same period ended December 31, 2008. mbisase was primarily related to lower distribusiaf $922 and less loan repayments of $105,
partially offset by an increase in contributions$@t0.

CNCIM's sources of cash are from Fees catefor Services provided to CLOs, and contrilngiérom Bounty. Throughout the years ended
December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, CNCIM had nosloamdvances outstanding except as follows. Thep2oy has entered into a loan with
Bounty which provides the Company with up to $5iliom to be used for its working capital needseTlban bears interest at LIBOR plus 1,000
basis points, is due in January 2013 and can begiteat any time without penalty. There was n@beé outstanding as of December 31, 2009
and 2008. As of December 31, 2007, the balanceamdimg was $105,000. CNCIM's principal uses ohdaes been for operating expenses,
distributions to Bounty, and capital expendituriesl(ding expenditures for software developmenigdi asset purchases and other items). For the
years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 CN@tyenerated sufficient cash flows from operattorfand all of its operating and
financing needs, including distributions to Bounty.

Net distributions to Bounty for the yearsled December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 were asviliim thousands):

Year Ended December 31 Distributions Contributions Net Distributions
2009 $ 93¢ $ (500) $ 43€
2008 1,16¢ (250 91¢
2007 — — —
Totals $ 2,10¢ $ (750 $ 1,35¢

As provided in the Acquisition, CNCIM is hanger permitted to make any further distributie@®8ounty subsequent to the execution of the
Acquisition Agreement, and the working capital lascribed above will be terminated upon closinthefAcquisition. See "The Deerfield
Transaction" on page 84 for a discussion of adatisignificant changes to our operations that affiéct our liquidity and capital resources.

We estimate the effect of inflation on operations will not be material. However, changesierest rates, including those changes that may
be attributable to increases and decreases irtiorflacan indirectly influence our financial penfioance by altering Fees which are derived as a
percentage of our AUM.

Our results of operations are not subjesetasonal effects, although the timing of recefpevenue and payments of operating expenses
affect our financial condition and results of opienas on an interim-period basis.
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UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED
COMBINED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The Company, Bounty and CNCIM have enténéalthe Acquisition Agreement pursuant to which @ompany will acquire CNCIM from
Bounty. In addition, the Company entered into (8 Convertible Notes Agreement with Bounty; (2) 8enior Notes Discharge Agreement with
the holders of the Series A Notes and Series BN @8} the Exchange Agreement with the holderhefTirust Preferred Securities; and (4) the
Termination Agreement with respect to the DPLC Restiring.

The following unaudited pro forma condensethbined financial information reflects all pratita adjustments related to the aforementic
agreements and is based upon the audited finastai@iments of the Company and the audited finastaséments of CNCIM and the related n¢
thereto. The unaudited pro forma amounts have Heeeloped from and should be read in conjunctiah i) the audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2008i@ed thereto of the Company included in the Camiss2009 Annual Report and (2) the
audited consolidated financial statements for #eryended December 31, 2009 and notes thereto 611@Keginning on page F-1 of this Proxy
Statement.

The unaudited pro forma condensed combiineticial statements are prepared using the puectmethod of accounting, with the Company
treated as the acquirer. The Company was deterntinee the acquirer for accounting purposes asgtining control of CNCIM, as well as other
qualitative factors. For a summary of the Acquisitisee "Proposal No. 1—Approval of the Stock Iasea."

The unaudited pro forma condensed combétetgment of operations for the year ended DeceBthe2009, give effect to the Transactions
as if they had occurred on January 1, 2009. Thedited pro forma condensed combined balance sh®staember 31, 2009 gives effect to the
Transactions as if they had occurred on Decembge?2(®19.

The Company has not completed all of thaitisl valuation studies necessary to arrive ateheired estimates of the fair market value o
CNCIM assets to be acquired and the CNCIM liakeiitto be assumed and the related allocations ohpse price. As indicated in the notes to the
unaudited pro forma condensed combined financfatination, the Company has made certain estimdtdedair values necessary to prepare
these unaudited pro forma condensed combined fialestatements. The excess of the purchase prieetbe historical net assets of CNCIM, as
adjusted to reflect estimated fair values, willdllecated among goodwill and definite- and indeérived intangibles.

The unaudited pro forma condensed combiimaticial information is provided for illustratiqmurposes only and does not purport to repre
what the actual combined results of operationsnamicial position of the Company would have beedhth@ Transactions occurred at the
beginning of the period presented or on the datie@ted, nor is it necessarily indicative of futegeerating results or financial position.

The unaudited pro forma condensed combiineticial statements include estimates for potéatigustments for events that are (1) directly
attributable to the Transactions; (2) factually soppable and (3) with respect to the statemenipefations, expected to have a continuing impact
on the combined company's results.

The pro forma adjustments are describetléraccompanying notes. Actual results may diffemfthe unaudited pro forma condensed
combined financial statements as the Company uoésrgdditional studies necessary to evaluate, amthreg things, the purchase price
allocation, the impact of the Ownership Changejefed in Section 382 of the Code, and the Comgaaryd CNCIM's conformance to critical
accounting policies. There can be no assurancestitdt evaluation will not result in a material chan
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ASSETS
Cash and cash equival

Due from broke

DEERFIELD CAPITAL CORP.

UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED

COMBINED BALANCE SHEET

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

DECEMBER 31, 2009

Restricted cash and cash

equivalents

Investments at fair valt

Other investment
Derivative asset
Loans held for sal
Loans

Allowance for loan losse
Loans, net of Allowance fi

loan losse:
Interest receivabl
Investment advisory
receivable
Other receivabli
Prepaid and other ass:

Fixed asset
Intangible assel
Goodwill

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Repurchase agreemel
Due to broke|
Derivative liabilities
Interest payabl
Accrued and other

liabilities

Long term deb

TOTAL LIABILITIES
STOCKHOLDERS'
EQUITY
Preferred stoc
Common stocl

Additional paic-in capital

Accumulated other
comprehensive los

(Accumulated deficit)
Retained earningc

Members' equit
TOTAL
STOCKHOLDERS'
EQUITY

Noncontrolling interest i
consolidated entit

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND

STOCKHOLDERS'
EQUITY

Historical Pro Forma
DFR
DFR CNCIM Recapitalization Note Acqguisition Note Combined
le $ 48,71 % 317 $ 3,16( 31 % — $ 20,70¢
24,46¢ 3.2
(55,000 3.3
(950 34
14,60¢ — 14,60¢
19,29¢ — (4,555 3.1 14,74:
326,81( — (17,139 3.1 309,67:
4,287 — (2,947) 34 1,34t
74 — 74
53€ — 53€
278,58! — 278,58!
(15,889 — (15,889
262,69¢ — — — 262,69¢
3,42( — 3,42(
2,115 2,86¢ (58) 3.1 4,92:
2,89( — 2,89(
7,042 22 (5) 3.1 (229) 3.8 8,164
532 3.2
(161) 3.3
75E 34
6,50¢ 20z (202) 3.8 6,50¢
21,23 — 12,66 3.6 33,89¢
— — 11 3.2 16,91¢ 3.7 16,93(
$ 720,22 $ 3606 $ (51,889 $ 29,15¢ $ 701,10
$ 29146. $ — % — $ — $ 291,46
80z — (803) 3.1 —
45( — 8,45¢ 3.2 8,90¢
1,102 — 1,102
6,21¢ 531 91 3.1 2,83¢ 3.9 17,53¢
(19¢) 3.4 7,12¢ 35
1,115 3.11
413,32¢ — (2,947) 34 354,62¢
16,55: 3.2
(72,319 3.3
713,36: 531 (51,339 11,07¢ 673,63!
6 — 5 3.5 11
866,55 — 52¢ 3.1 25,95¢ 35 893,04(
(87) — (87)
(877,15)) 2,32¢ (693) 3.1 (3,179 3.8 (865,49
17,15« 3k (2,83¢) 3.9
3 3.4 (1,117 3.11
— 75C (750) 3.8 —
(10,679 3,07t 16,99: 18,08: 27,47(
I
17,53¢ (17,539 3.1 —
$ 720,22 $ 3,606 $ (51,889 $ 29,15¢ $ 701,10

See notes to the unaudited pro forma condensedinethfinancial statements.

93




Table of Contents

DEERFIELD CAPITAL CORP.

UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED STATEMENT OF

REVENUES
Net interest income
Interest income
Interest expens

Net interest incom
Provision for loan losse

Net interest incom
after provision for
loan losse:

Investment advisory fee

Total net revenue

EXPENSES
Compensation and
benefits
Professional service
Insurance expens
Other general and
administrative
expense:

Depreciation and
amortization

Occupancy

Management fe

Cost savings initiativ:

Impairment of intangible
assets

Total expense

OTHER INCOME AND

GAIN (LOSS)

Net loss on availab-for-
sale securitie

Net gain on investmen
at fair value

Net gain on loan

Net gain on derivative

Dividend income and
other net los

Net loss on th
deconsolidation of
Deerfield Loan
Managet

Net gain on the
deconsolidation of
Market Square CL(

Net other income an
gain (loss]
Income before income tax
expense
Income tax expens

NET INCOME
Net loss attributable t
noncontrolling interes

Net income attributable
to Deerfield Capital
Corp .

Net income per shar—
basic:

Common stocl

Net income per shar—
diluted:

Common stocl

Weighted—average
number of shares
outstanding—basic

Weighted—average
number of shares
outstanding—diluted

OPERATIONS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

(IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT SHARE AND PER SHARE AMOUNTS)

Historical Pro Forma
DFR
DFR CNCIM Recapitalization Note Acquisition Note Combined
$ 48,84¢ 65 (492) 31 — $ 48,42:
19,95¢ — 3,641 3.2 15,77¢
(5,009 3.3
(2,829 34
28,89( 65 3,69¢ — 32,64¢
20,11« — 20,11«
8,77¢ 65 3,69¢ — 12,53t
17,88( 7,741 (426) 31 90t 3.12 26,10(
26,65¢ 7,80€ 3,26¢ 90% 38,63t
12,14« 3,83( (2,399 3. 13,58(
3,01¢ 19 (149) 3.1 (19) 3.8 2,87%
3,08¢ 3,08¢
7,621 487 (3,419 31 97 3.1C 4,30€
(487) 3.8
7,904 151 (153) 3.8 9,394
1,49( 816
2,402 18€ (18€) 3.8 2,40z
972 1,99( (972) 31 (1,990 3. —
23€ — 23€
1,82¢ — 1,82¢
39,22( 6,66 (4,539 (3,640 37,71
(14) — (14
9,79¢ — (1,347) 31 8,451
35,30: — 35,30:
2,547 — 2,547
(287) — (82 31 (499)
(130) 34
— — (409) 31 (409)
29,55! — 29,55!
76,891 — (1,96¢) 74,92¢
64,33¢ 1,14 5,83¢ 4,54¢ 75,85¢
29 — 807 3.1z 1,131 3.1z 1,967
64,30« 1,14: 5,02¢ 3,414 73,887
2,59/ (2,599 31 —
$ 66,89¢ 1,14 2,43: 3,414 $ 73,887
$ 9.8¢ $ 6.52
$ 9.8¢ $ 4.9t
6,763,08: 4,545 45! 3.14 11,308,54
6,763,08! 8,684,93! 3.14 15,448,02



See notes to the unaudited pro forma condensedinethfinancial statements.
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DEERFIELD CAPITAL CORP.

NOTES TO UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FIN ANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 1—Basis of Presentation

The unaudited pro forma condensed combiimaticial statements give effect to the Transastias if they had been completed on January 1,
2009 for statement of operations purposes and @ember 31, 2009 for balance sheet purposes. Thaigitign is accounted for as a purchase
business combination, with the Company treateth@deigal and accounting acquirer. In addition,Gleenpany entered into (1) the Convertible
Notes Agreement with Bounty; (2) the Senior NotéscBarge Agreement with the holders of the Seridéofes and Series B Notes; (3) -
Exchange Agreement with the holders of the TrusfdPred Securities; and (4) a Termination Agreemtit respect to the DPLC Restructuring
collectively referred to as theRecapitalizatiori'.

The unaudited pro forma combined finandeth is presented for illustrative purposes only iamot necessarily indicative of the operating
results or financial position that would have ocedrif the Transactions had been consummated e dfeginning of the period or as of the dates
for which the pro forma data is presented, not iecessarily indicative of future operating reswlt financial position of the Company.

The Company's purchase price for CNCIMlhesn allocated to the assets acquired and thétlebassumed based upon management's
preliminary estimate of their respective fair valaes of the date of acquisition. Definitive allaoas will be performed and finalized after the
completion of the Acquisition. Accordingly, the phase price allocation pro forma adjustments agbrpinary, have been made solely for the
purpose of providing unaudited pro forma condersedbined financial data and are subject to revibiased on a final determination of fair
value.

As of December 31, 2009, the Company had $N@ approximately $209.0 million, which will begto expire in 2028 if not used, and NCLs
of approximately $422.8 million, which will begin e&xpire in 2012 if not used. The Transactions redlult in an Ownership Change as defined in
Sections 382 and 383 of the Code. As a resultebtiturrence of the Ownership Change, the Compabhilisy to use its NOLs, NCLs and certi
other built-in losses to reduce our taxable incama future year would generally be limited to amaal amount equal to, among other possible
limits, the fair market value of our Common Stooiniediately prior to the Ownership Change multipligcthe long term tax-exempt interest rate
in effect for the month of the Ownership Changeicltor the month of April 2010 is 4.03%.

In preparation of these unaudited pro foomadensed combined financial statements, managewaluated whether there are any
differences in the accounting principles of the @amy and CNCIM. As a result of this evaluation, agement has concluded that there are no
significant differences in the accounting policadthe Company and CNCIM.
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DEERFIELD CAPITAL CORP.

NOTES TO UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FIN ANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Note 2—Purchase Price of CNCIM

For the purpose of preparing the accompanyhaudited pro forma condensed combined balarest sis of December 31, 2009, the
purchase price was calculated as follows:

(In thousands, except share information

Shares issue 4,545,45!
Multiplied by $ 5.75@)
Value of share $  26,13¢
Less estimated cost to issue and register sl 177(b)
Total estimated equity compone 25,95¢
Excess estimated fair value of convertible ¢ 11(c)
Fair value of deferred purchase price paymentkd
seller 6,94¢(d)
Total estimated purchase considera $  32,91¢
(a) Represents the closing price of the Company's Cam&tock on April 15, 2010. The stock price to bedus

(b)

(©)

(d)

for the purchase consideration will be determinedhe Closing Date. Therefore, to provide someitieity
to changes in the overall purchase price, a 20%ghan the stock price upward or downward from $5@r
share would result in a change of $1.15 per shangh equates to an approximate $5.2 million changae
purchase consideration. This upward or downwareshgéan purchase consideration would result in an
increase or decrease to goodwill by that amount.

Represents estimated legal costs directly assdoigith the Company's issuance and registration of
4,545,455 shares of Common Stock in connection thighStock Issuances.

Represents the amount allocated to the purchase g@sia result of fair value of the Convertible éédbeing i
excess of the $25.0 million cash received.

Represents the fair value of deferred paymentotmBy per the Acquisition Agreement. The paymengsta
be paid in five equal annual installments of $1iiam, with the first payment being made six mosthfter
the Closing Date. These payments are not contingeany performance, but rather are due as a refsthie
passage of time and were discounted to arrive astimated fair value
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DEERFIELD CAPITAL CORP.
NOTES TO UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FIN ANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

The following is a summary of the prelimipallocation of the above purchase price as redtba the unaudited pro forma condensed
combined balance sheet as of December 31, 2009:

(In thousands)

Historical equity of CNCIM $ 3,07t
Estimated costs incurred to issue and register ti

Common Stocl 177
Adjustments to reflect the fair value of CNCIM's

prepaids and fixed asse¢ 42F
Excess estimated fair value of convertible ¢ 11
Estimated fair value of identifiable intangibles

asset: 12,66¢
Excess of purchase price over adjusted net ass

acquire—goodwill 16,91¢

s s

See Note 3.6 for a discussion of the methad to determine the fair value of CNCIM's idf&tile intangible assets.

Note 3—Pro Forma Adjustments

3.1 - Toreflect the Termination Agreement withpest to the DPLC Restructuring, which was negatisecontemplation of the
Acquisition and is part of the Recapitalizationrduant to the Termination Agreement, the Compamgets to receive an amount equal to
its entire capital account balance, after certdjustments for unamortized organizational costgubned in the Termination Agreement,
and cancelled warrants to purchase three milli@meshof Common Stock, which is all of the warrgr®viously issued to the Pegasus
Parties. In connection with the DPLC Restructurithg, Company will grant fully vested warrants taghase an aggregate of
250,000 shares of its Common Stock at an exercise pf $4.25 per share resulting in a $1.1 millatrarge to accumulated deficit and an
offsetting adjustment to additional pdideapital in the unaudited pro forma condensedhioad balance sheet. This charge is not incl
in the unaudited pro forma condensed combinedretaits of operations because it is non-recurringlidahally, this adjustment reflects
the expected distributions of all capital balantwethe respective members and partners of DPLDA@I GP and the termination of these
entities and resulting deconsolidation from the @any's unaudited pro forma condensed combineddiabstatements.
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DEERFIELD CAPITAL CORP.
NOTES TO UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FIN ANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

The following summarizes the impact of the elimioatand deconsolidation of the DPLC Restructuringhee unaudited pro forma
condensed combined balance sheet:

(In thousands)

Debit Credit
Cash and cash equivalel $ 3,16 $ =
Restricted cash and cash equivale — 4,55k
Investments at fair valt — 17,13¢
Interest receivabl — 58
Prepaid and other ass: — 5
Due to broke 802 —
Accrued and other liabilitie 91 —
(Accumulated deficit) Retained earnir 164 —
Noncontrolling interest in consolidated ent 17,53¢ $ —

$ 21,757 $ 21,75

The following summarizes the impact of the elimioatand deconsolidation of the DPLC Restructuringtee unaudited pro forma
condensed combined statement of operations:

(In thousands)

Debit Credit
Interest incom $ 49z $ —
Investment advisory fee 42€ —
Professional service — 143
Other general and administrative exper — 3,41¢
Management fe — 972
Net gain on investments at fair val 1,345 —
Dividend income and other net Ic 82 —
Net loss attributable to noncontrolling inter 2,59¢ —
Net loss on the deconsolidation of Deerfield Loaansge! 40¢ $ —

$ 5350 $ 4,53t

3.2 - Toreflect the issuance of Convertible Notéth a seven and one-half year maturity, whichamevertible into shares of Common
Stock of the Company at an initial conversion poé&6.05. The interest expense was calculatedsiraght line basis taking into account
the increasing stated annual interest rates. Bshance costs, estimated at $0.5 million, are amdrbased on the effective yield method
over the life of the debt resulting in additionalerest expense of $71,000 for the year ended Dese®1, 2009. The Company has
evaluated the terms and conditions of the converf@ature contained in the Convertible Notes artdrd@ned that certain of the anti-
dilution provisions of the conversion feature caiite be deemed an embedded derivative instrumnedér the provision of
ASC Topic 815, Derivatives and Hedging. Such priovis prevent the conversion feature from qualify@isgoeing indexed to the
Company's own stock. Therefore, the $25.0 millib€onvertible Notes have been recorded at theimaséd fair value of $16.5 million
and the Company has also recorded an embeddeditieiliability on the balance sheet at its estaddair value of $8.5 million. At each
subsequent balance sheet date, the embedded teriwét be marked to fair value with the
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3.4

DEERFIELD CAPITAL CORP.
NOTES TO UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FIN ANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

change in fair value being recorded in the statémEaperations as net gain (loss) on derivatifé® $8.5 million difference between the
recorded amount of the Convertible Notes and tieGillion principal amount of the Convertible Netwill be accreted to earnings
using the effective yield method of recognizingeieist expense over the maturity of the Convertilées. An adjustment of $1.1 million
has been reflected in interest expense in the uteglpro forma condensed combined statement ofatipass to reflect the accretion. In
addition, approximately $11,000 is being allocatethe purchase price as a result of fair valughnefConvertible Notes being in excess of
the $25.0 million cash received.

- To reflect the extinguishment of the Compargénior Notes pursuant to the Senior Notes DigghAgreement. The Company will
discharge all of the $73.9 million aggregate fac®ant of the outstanding Senior Notes for $55.0iomlor at an aggregate discount of
approximately 25.6%. This will result in a net gain$17.2 million, after eliminating the unamortizdiscount on the notes and prepaid
debt issuance costs. This net gain is not inclidélde unaudited pro forma condensed combinedmatateof operations because it is non-
recurring.

- To reflect the exchange of $95.0 million afit Preferred Securities for $95.0 million of jonsubordinated notes. As a result of the
exchange, $2.9 million of the $3.7 million of commgecurities, and a corresponding $2.9 millioneaiftdssued to the Company under the
applicable trust agreements were cancelled. Aneggge of $25.0 million in principal amount of Tréseferred Securities was not
exchanged and remains outstanding. The relatedksttexpense was calculated using the 1% per afirachrate pursuant to the New
Indenture. Debt issuance costs of $1.0 millionaan®rtized on a straight line basis over the lifé¢hef debt resulting in additional interest
expense of $35,000 for the year ended Decembe&(®B. The Company's obligation to pay $0.2 milliofiees associated with a prior
amendment was extinguished as a result of the $8Bi0n redemption of Trust Preferred Securitids.a result of the debt issuance costs
related to the exchange and the extinguishmereex,fa pro forma adjustment of $0.8 million was enadunamortized debt issue costs.

The pro forma adjustments were calculated as falow

Remaining
Trust Junior Trust
Preferred Subordinated Preferred Pro Forma
Securities Notes Securities Adjustments
(Dallars in thousands)
Long term deb $ (123,71) $ 95000 $ 2577F $ (2,947
Interest rate 3.51% 1.0(% 4.24%
Days outstandin 365/36( 365/36( 365/36(
Interest expens $ (4,409 $ 96z $ 1,10¢ $ (2,330
Amortization expense(] $ (66C) $ 3B $ 137 $ (48¢)
Dividend income(2 $ (163 $ — $ 33 % (130)
Unamortized debt issue co: $ (195 $ 95C $ — $ 75&

(1) Amortization expense is included in interest expeinghe unaudited pro forma condensed combingdmtnt of
operations

(2) Represents the elimination of interest expenséerCompany's ownership of the Trust Preferred Séesir
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DEERFIELD CAPITAL CORP.
NOTES TO UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FIN ANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

- To reflect the acquisition of CNCIM throudtetissuance of 4,545,455 shares of Common Stockhan®6.9 million fair value of the
deferred payments totaling $7.5 million of caslbéopaid in five equal annual installments of $1ibiom, with the first payment being
made six months after the Closing Date. The isstiand registration costs of the Common Stock dhected as a reduction to additional
paid-in capital.

- To reflect the estimated value of CNCIM'samgible assets at the acquisition date. The pnedingiallocations are as follows:

Estimated Average

Remaining Estimated Annual
Value Useful Life Amortization Expense
(In thousands) (In years) (In thousands)
Intangible asset class
Investment management contracts
CLOs $ 12,50( 9 % 1,457
Employment contraci 16E 5 33
Total $ 12,66¢ $ 1,49(

The investment management contracts were valuad tise income approach. This approach requiresjagiion of revenues and
expenses specifically attributable to the assetgrealued so that an estimated cash flow streanbeaterived. The income
approach indicates fair value based on the presdua¢ of the cash flows that the asset can be ¢agéc generate in the future.

The $1.5 million pro forma adjustment to depreciatand amortization expense for the year endeddeer31, 2009 corresponds
to the estimated annual expense outlined in theeatable.

- To reflect the difference between purchaseeptonsideration paid in excess of fair value nfthle and identified intangible net ass
acquired (goodwill). See Note 2 for further infotina.

- To reflect the estimated fair value of CNCéMeéported assets, liabilities and equity. Addiibn this adjustment reflects the
termination of nearly all CNCIM employees on orwand April 30, 2010 as a result of entering intortgration agreements with all
employees except two that are being retained atl@N{S part of the Acquisition, as well as the seegi agreement entered into between
the Company and CNCIM, effective March 22, 2010.

- To reflect the Company's estimated transacttated expenses that have not been paid. Tlsteare not included in the unaudited
pro forma condensed combined statement of opesbtienause they are non-recurring. Additionaljhaigh not reflected in the
adjustments because it is at the discretion oCii@pensation Committee, a payment of special baniesthe Company's officers and
directors in connection with the Transactions otai$1.3 million in the aggregate is permitted unitie Acquisition Agreement.

- To reflect the expense associated with a reeease of two directors to DFR's Board, resultimgnf Bounty's right to appoint three new
directors, one of which will be independent, if essary, and the expected resignation of one egiEtfR director. Additionally, in
connection with the Termination Agreement, two diogs have resigned from the board of DCM. Theexpense of the above actions is
reflected in this adjustment.
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DEERFIELD CAPITAL CORP.
NOTES TO UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FIN ANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3.11 - To reflect the costs of transferring the operet of CNCIM estimated to be $1.1 million by CNCIkkt will be borne by the Company.
These costs are not included in the unauditedgrod condensed combined statement of operatiormibecthey are non-recurring.

3.12 - Toreflect the estimated resulting income teowjsion as a result of an Ownership Change asddfin Sections 382 and 383 of the
Code. The Company previously had significant NOhd BICLs that were available to offset taxable ineoifhe pro forma income tax
provision is based on the estimated income taxresg@ef DFR combined (which takes into account lfprma adjustments), which is
based on an estimated tax rate of 40% for the greded December 31, 2009. In addition, the adjustsrtake into account various
assumptions with regard to built-in loss values smlgistantially limit the amount of available NOLslaNCLs pursuant to the Section 382
Limitation resulting from the occurrence of the Gasship Change.

3.13 - To reflect the impact of reinstating the sulioated management fee of $0.9 million for Columblava CLO 2007-11, which was
temporarily waived during 2009 by CNCIM. There @sprovision requiring DFR to waive this fee upoe Buccessful consummation of
the Acquisition.

3.14 - The below table summarizes both the adjustmerttse weighted-average number of shares outstgradid the effect on our earnings
per share calculation as a result of issuing thea@on Stock and the dilutive impact of the grantvafrants and issuance of Convertible

Notes:
Year ended

(In thousands, except share information December 31, 2009
Computation of DFR combined common stock net incomper share—

basic:
DFR combined net income attributable to commonldtolders $ 73,88
Calculation of DFR combined common stock shares ostianding:
DFR historical common stock shares outstan—basic 6,763,08:
Issuance of common stor 4,545,45!
Weighted average common stock shares used in tasiputatior 11,308,54
Net income per common sh—basic $ 6.5¢
Computation of DFR combined common stock net incomper share—

diluted:
DFR combined net income attributable to commonldtolders $ 73,88
Add back of interest expense on Convertible Ni 2,197
DFR combined net income attributable to commonldtolders after add

backs $ 76,08
Calculation of DFR combined common stock shares ostianding:
DFR historical common stock shares outstan—diluted 6,763,08!
Issuance of common stor 4,545,45!
Dilutive impact from issuance of new warra 7,258
Dilutive impact of Conversion Shar 4,132,23
Weighted average common stock shares used in ditaeputatior 15,448,02
Net income per common sh—diluted $ 4.9t

In addition, in connection with the Termination A&gment, the Company agreed to cancel three milinmested warrants that had
not been included in diluted net income per shaabse the issuance of the warrants was contimgenthe contingency had not
yet been resolved.
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INFORMATION ON OUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND ITS COMMI TTEES
Our Process for Nominating Director Candidates

The charter of the Nominating Committeeviles that the Nominating Committee shall consitlexctor nominations from our stockholders.
Generally, the nominating stockholder must delixernomination to our Corporate Secretary at l&a8tdays before we mail the proxy materials
for the annual stockholders meeting for which tbenmation is proposed, and the stockholder mustigeoa detailed statement of the nominee's
qualifications and the nominee's written consernegsired by our Bylaws and the Exchange Act. Haevelf the date of the annual meeting is
advanced or delayed by more than 30 days fromittsteainniversary of the preceding year's annualtimgeas is the case this year, then the
nomination must be delivered not earlier than th@til day prior to the date of such annual meetidyreot later than 5:00 p.m., Eastern time, on
the later of (i) the 120th day prior to the datesa€h annual meeting or (ii) the 10th day followthg day on which public announcement of the
date of such meeting is first made. We first anmednthe date of the Meeting on May 11, 2010; tleeegfin order to be eligible to be considered
for the Meeting, nominations must be delivered bgyN21, 2010.

The Nominating Committee has not estabis$gecific minimum qualifications, or specific qiials or skills, for directors. The Nominating
Committee recommends candidates based on its basssEssment of their skills and characteristicstha composition of our Board as a whole,
including the nominee's independence under ougosdteal independence standards and director diyersills and experience in the context of
our Board's needs. The Nominating Committee's ot identifying and evaluating director nomineebased on various factors, including
recommendations from our directors and officers paudicipants in the industry in which we operdtke nominees for director listed in Proposal
2 above were recommended by the Nominating Comenittdich is composed entirely of independent dinect

Directors Not Standing For Election

The following table lists the name, agemtef office, business background and specificvittlial qualifications and skills of each of our
incumbent directors:

Name Age Biography
Class | Directors

Peter W. May 67 Mr. May has been a member of our Board since Deee@®07. Mr. May has also been a director of
Tiffany & Co. since May 2008 and of Wendy's / Abgroup, Inc. (formerly known as Triarc Companles,)
since April 1993. Since that time, he has also leeditector or manager and officer of certain aafa’'s
subsidiaries. Additionally, Mr. May has been Presidand a founding partner of Trian Fund ManagemeRt
since November 2005. From its formation in Jand£&§9 to April 1993, Mr. May was President and Chief
Operating Officer of Trian Group. He was Presidemd Chief Operating Officer and a director of Tgkn
Industries, Inc. from 1983 to December 1988. MryMas also served as a director of Encore Capi@lg Inc.
since February 1998. Mr. May has extensive busiaedsnvestment experience obtained from leadership
positions at Trian and service on the boards @fatiars of other public companie
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Name

Peter H. Rothschild

Class Il Directors

Robert E. Fischer

Age

Biography

54

80

Mr. Rothschild has been a member of our Board ddeeember 2004 and the interim Chairman of our Boar
since April 2007. Mr. Rothschild has been the Mangdviember of Daroth Capital LLC, a financial sexas
company, since its founding in 2001 and the Predgided CEO of its wholly-owned subsidiary, Darotap@al
Advisors LLC, a securities broker-dealer, since2@®ior to founding Daroth Capital, Mr. Rothschiles a
Managing Director and Co-Head of the Leveragediéraand Industrial Finance groups at Wasserstei||B,
the predecessor company to Dresdner Kleinwort Wstgse and was with the organization from 1996202
From 1990 to 1996, Mr. Rothschild was a Senior Mgmz Director and Head of the Natural Resourceu fat
Bear, Stearns & Co. Inc. and was one of the fousxdethe firm's Leveraged Finance and FinancialeBuy
Coverage groups. From 1984 to 1990, Mr. Rothsckidd a Managing Director and Head of the Indus@ialup
at Drexel Burnham Lambert. Mr. Rothschild previgusérved on the board of directors of Wendy's
International, Inc. from March 2006 to Septembed@Mr. Rothschild has extensive investment banking
financial experience obtained from leadership rakeisvestment banking firms and service on thedmaf
directors of other public compani

Mr. Fischer has been a member of our Board sinaz=mBber 2004. Since May 2009, he has served as @fgeb
to the law firm of Cozen O'Connor. From 1998 to 200e served as Of Counsel to WolfBlock LLP (whissv
York office was acquired by Cozen O'Connor) whegesbrved as a senior member in the Corporate Beacti
Group. From 1961 to 1998, Mr. Fischer was managamgner of the law firm of Lowenthal, Landau, Fiscl&
Bring P.C., which merged with WolfBlock LLP in 1998ntil October 2008, Mr. Fischer served as a board
member of a trust established to oversee the l&igid of assets of Allegiance Telecom Inc. andutissidiaries.
He has also previously served on the board and eadimittee of the DLJ International Fund (from ur®95 to
November 2000), the DLJ Emerging Markets Fund (fdame 1995 to November 2000) and the DLJ High Y
Bond Fund (from July 1998 to November 2000). MedRier has extensive legal and financial experiebtainec
from leadership positions at law firms and sengoehe audit committees of investment fur
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Name Age

Biography

Stuart I. Oran 59 Mr. Oran has been a member of our Board since @@ 2He is the Managing Member of Roxbury Capital

Group LLC, a New York based merchant banking finatthe founded in April 2002. Mr. Oran is also a co
founder of Bond Street Holdings LLC, a bank holdamgnpany formed to acquire failed banks in FDICisied
transactions. Mr. Oran currently serves as the fGkdeninistrative Officer of Premier American BarikA, a
subsidiary of Bond Street. From 1994 to 2002, MarOheld a number of senior executive positionsdAlt
Corporation and its operating subsidiary, UnitediAés. During that period, Mr. Oran also serve@akrector of
United Airlines (the operating subsidiary) and saVef its subsidiaries and on the Management CdtemiRisk
Management Committee and Alternative Asset Investr@®mmittee of UAL. Prior to joining UAL and Unide
Mr. Oran was a corporate partner at the New Yonkfiam of Paul, Weiss, Rifkind, Wharton & Garristub.P,
with a corporate finance, M&A and restructuring gifee representing major corporations, private gofiims
and global financial institutions. Mr. Oran is cemtly a director of Red Robin Gourmet Burgers, [Daring the
past five years, Mr. Oran has also served on tlaedsoof directors of Wendy's International, Incofi March
2006 to September 2008), Spirit Airlines (from Ma&004 to present), Polaris Acquisition Corp. (néughes
Telematics) (from July 2007 to May 2009), Premienekican Bank, N.A. (from January 2009 to present) the
board of managers of Fontainebleau Resorts LL@n(ffanuary 2009 to present). Mr. Oran has extensive
business, legal, financial and transaction expedearbtained from leadership roles at merchant ingnfiims, law
firms and service on the boards of directors oéptfublic companie:
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Bounty Designees

The following table lists the name, agemtef office, business background and specificvittlial qualifications and skills of each of the
directors to be designated by Bounty and appoibjetthe Board upon consummation of the Transactions:

Name Age

Biography

Jason Epstein 36 Mr. Epstein has been a partner of Columbus Novmarily responsible for private investment actiegj since

February 2002. Columbus Nova manages over $2i01biif assets under management. In 1998, Mr. Epstei
founded eLink Communications, a provider of broadhanetworking and application services, and seagitis
Chief Executive Officer for three years, until Sspber 2001. Before founding eLink Mr. Epstein wis® @n
initial employee of Catalyst Health Solutions, Irefull-service pharmacy management company listethe
NASDAQ under the symbol "CHSI". Mr. Epstein hasdebeen a finalist for the Ernst & YouEntrepreneur of
the Year Awarcénd was named one of forty "Rising Stars" in thesitagton Business Forward's "The Next
Network." Since June 2006, Mr. Epstein served @nBbard of Directors of White Energy, Inc. In Ma0®,
White Energy filed for protection under Chapterdfthe US Bankruptcy Code. Mr. Epstein has extensiv
business and transaction experience obtained feadership roles in the telecommunications, heaithaad ass:
management sectors, as well as service on varimarsl f directors of portfolio companies. Mr. Epsteeceived
a B.A. from Tufts University and currently servasthe University's Board of Overseers of the Scloddliberal
Arts.
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Name Age Biography

Andrew Intrater 48 Mr. Intrater has been the Chief Executive OfficEColumbus Nova, a private investment firm withioés in
New York and Charlotte since January 2000. Coluniara manages over $2.0 billion of assets ul
management. Mr. Intrater is also a former direofdRenova Management, a global leader in energse bzetals
and mining industries, and also currently a menaféine Executive Board of Renova Management. Colusnb
Nova is the U.t-based affiliate of the Renova Group of comparoeg, of the largest Russian strategic investors
in the metallurgical, oil, machine engineering, m@) chemical, construction, housing & utilitiesdafinancial
sectors, with net assets of over $14 billion. Ren@voup of companies is a shareholder of leadingmiand
industrial entities in the Russian and global besgnhcommunities, such as TNK-BP and US RUSAL. RAvtarch
1993 until the end of 1999, Mr. Intrater servedPassident and Chief Operating Officer of Oryx Temlogy
Corp., and its predecessor, ATI, a leading manufactof semi-conductor testing equipment, basegilinon
Valley. Mr. Intrater also served as Chairman of Board of Directors of Moscow Cablecom Corp. frof®2 to
2007. Mr. Intrater is also a member of the Boar®éctors of Oryx Technology Corp., and Ethertouictal.
Since June 2006, Mr. Intrater served on the Bo&iirectors of White Energy, Inc. In May 2009, WiEnergy
filed for protection under Chapter 11 of the US Baptcy Code. Mr. Intrater has over 25 years ofegdgnce in
general management, including business and traosaetperience obtained from leadership roles é th
technology and asset management sectors, as walbad6 years of service on the boards of dirsadbother
public companies. Mr. Intrater received a B.S. frieotgers University

Daniel Schrupp 43 Mr. Schrupp has been the Senior Credit Officerwditla plc, a specialty UK insurance company foayisin the
growing pension buy-out market, since June 2008.utida, Mr. Schrupp is responsible for its appnoaiely
GBP 1.1 billion investment portfolio which is inted in a broad range of credit-related instrumerthiding
leveraged loans, high yield and investment gradelb@nd asset-backed securities. From July 2004dghrMay
2008, Mr. Schrupp was the Senior Portfolio Managfex $4.5 billion leveraged loan portfolio at Aoaor
Bank Ltd., a $60 billion in assets Japanese comaldyank, and at the bank's investment subsidiaogora
Investment Management Ltd., which he co-foundeibrRo that, Mr. Schrupp held investment bankingipons,
primarily focused on debt-capital raising acti\stiat Glocap Advisors, a boutique banking firm fedion the
middle market (2002-2004), CIBC World Markets Cq4®98-2001) and Salomon Brothers Inc. (1994-1997).
Mr. Schrupp has extensive creditated investment and corporate transaction espeei obtained from leaders
roles at investment managers and investment barfikmg. Mr. Schrupp received a B.A. in Economiasnfr Yale
University and an M.B.A. from The Tuck School atriaouth College
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Board Leadership Structure and Risk Oversight

The Board has separated the roles of Ghietutive Officer and Chairman of the Board; howetlee Board has not created the role of a
independent director. Peter H. Rothschild has seagethe interim Chairman of our Board since Apoi07. The Board believes Mr. Rothschild is
best suited to serve as Chairman of the Board Isecafuthe extensive knowledge of the Company helbasloped serving on the Board since
December 2004. The Board also believes that Mm$uitild's extensive investment banking and findreiperience obtained from leadership
roles at investment banking firms and service enttbard of directors of other public companiesveditiim a unique insight into both segments of
Company's business.

The Board is responsible for consideratiod oversight of risks facing the Company, an@ésponsible for ensuring that material risks are
identified and managed appropriately. As set fartthe Audit Committee charter, the Audit Committeeharged with the evaluation of risk
assessment and the Company's risk managemeniggolicifulfilling this role, the Audit Committeeaeives reports directly from our internal
audit function. In addition, the Audit Committeeviews and approves the internal audit plan onceaa gnd receives periodic reports from
members of senior management and internal audit@as of material risk to the Company, includingragional, financial, legal, regulatory and
strategic risks.

Majority Voting Bylaw

Under the laws of the State of Maryland, 8tate in which we are incorporated, a pluralftthe votes cast at a stockholders' meeting at
which a quorum is present is sufficient to elediractor unless the charter or bylaws of a corpongprovide otherwise.

Section 7 of Article 1l of our Bylaws pralés for the election of directors by a pluralityvotes cast at a stockholders' meeting at which a
guorum is present in person or by proxy. UnderdtXIV of our Bylaws, our Board has the excluspaver to adopt, alter or repeal any
provision of the Bylaws and to make new Bylaws.

Pursuant to the Stockholders AgreementAatidle XIV of our Bylaws, upon the consummationtbe Acquisition, the Board will adopt a
Majority Voting Bylaw to replace Sections 3 andf7Aaticle Il of our Bylaws in their entirety, sulesttially in the form attached as Annex D to-
Proxy Statement. The Majority Voting Bylaw shall ip@intained for so long as Bounty owns at leastotf%he Outstanding Common Stock.
Following its adoption:

. Our directors will be elected by a majority of thetes cast in an uncontested election (i.e. ifvibtes cast for such nominee's
election exceed the votes cast against or withfeelduch nominee's election); and

. Our directors will be elected by a plurality of thetes cast in a contested election, where the rumibnominees exceeds the
number of directors to be elected.

In the case of uncontested elections, brokavotes will have no effect on a director's electaon "withheld" votes will have the same ef
as a vote "AGAINST" the election of such directdrsthe case of contested elections, "withheld'esand broker nometes will have no effect ¢
a director's election.

In order for any incumbent director to b@eoa nominee for election to the Board, such inldial must submit an irrevocable resignation
prior to the stockholders' meeting at which direstare to be elected. Such resignation will beraat@ally effective if the incumbent director
does not receive a Majority Vote in an uncontestiedtion or a plurality of the votes in a contestéettion.
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Number of Board Meetings in 2009

Our Board held 12 meetings in 2009. Alediors attended at least 75% of the total meetifigsir Board and the committees of our Boar:
which they served.

Director Attendance at Annual Meetings

Our Board has not adopted a formal polegarding director attendance at our annual stodensimeetings, but encourages such attendance
All of our then-current directors attended our nrestent annual meeting held on December 15, 2009.

Committees of our Board

Our Board has established three standingmittees: (i) the Audit Committee, (ii) the Compatisn Committee and (iii) the Nominating
Committee. Our Board may form other committeesiasimstances warrant. Pursuant to the Stockholdigreement, at the Closing our Board
will establish the Strategic Committee. See "Prapdd. 1—Approval of the Stock Issuances—Stockhadegreement—Strategic Committee.”
The committees have such authority and resportsilidi our Board delegates. Each standing comniitisex written charter, a current copy of
which is available for review on our websitenatw.deerfieldcapital.comunder the section entitled "DFR Stockholder InfGerporate
Governance." The information on our website isinobrporated into this Proxy Statement.
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The following table sets forth certain infmtion for each standing committee of our Board:

Summary of
Number of Committee Functions
Committee (see committee
Committee Committee Committee Meetings in charters for
Name Members Chair 2009 full descriptions)
Audit Committee  Robert B. Machinist Robert B. Machinist 5 Assists the Board ir»eeing our accounting and financial
Stuart I. Oran reporting processes, the integrity and audits ofoonsolidated
Robert E. Fischer financial statements, our compliance with legal eeglilatory

requirements, the qualifications and independefficaio
accountants and the performance of those accograadtour
internal auditors; appoints our independent acanstand
reviews with the accountants the plans and resiilise audit
engagement; approves professional services provigele
accountants; determines the independence of tlruatants;
reviews the adequacy of our internal accountingrods)
establishes procedures for the submission andriegdatof
concerns and complaints relating to accountingemstinternal
controls and questionable accounting or auditingena
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Summary of
Number of Committee Functions
Committee (see committee
Committee Committee Committee Meetings in charters for
Name Members Chair 2009 full descriptions)
Compensation  Peter W. May Peter W. May 5 Evaluates performance of atdrthines and approves
Committee Robert E. Fischer compensation for CEO, executive officers, senionaggement an

Robert B. Machinist

Nominating & Robert E. Fischer Robert E. Fischer

Corporate Robert B. Machinist
Governance Stuart I. Oran
Committee
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other employees; produces compensation commitfgtre
required by the SEC; makes recommendations to tzed®
regarding our First Amended and Restated StocknthaPlan
and administers and approves grants under suchrnehaews
director compensation and makes related recommiendab the
Board.

Recommends to the Board qualified candidates fmtigin as
directors and recommends to the Board a slate mimees for
election as directors at the annual meeting ofkétolders; submit
to the Board selection criteria for director nongsgadvises the
Board on matters involving general operation ofBoard and our
corporate governance; annually recommends to tled3o
nominees for each Board committee; facilitatesatbeessment of
the Board's performance and of the individual doecand reports
thereon to the Boart
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In November 2009, our Board established3pecial Committee, a non-standing committee ctingi®f Messrs. Machinist, Fischer and
Oran, to consider and evaluate the potential tiiwawith Columbus Nova and Bounty.

Director Independence

Our Board has determined that the followimgmbers of the Board are "independent,” as thit i defined in our Corporate Governance
Guidelines and the general independence standatde BIASDAQ:

Name Class

Peter W. May | (term expires at the 2011 annual meeti
Stuart I. Orar Il (term expires at the 2012 annual meeti
Robert E. Fische Il (term expires at the 2012 annual meeti
Robert B. Machinis Il (term expires at the Meetiny

These four independent directors constiéwuteajority of our Board and are the only membérmsun three standing Board committees (the
Audit, Compensation and Nominating & Corporate Goaace committees). Our Board has also determimgdtiose four independent directors
have no material relationships with us that woulelvpnt them from qualifying as independent underNIASDAQ Listing Rules. Mr. May has
indicated that he intends to resign from the Bdalldwing the consummation of the Transactions #elBoard intends to fill the vacancy created
thereby with an individual who qualifies as an ipeiedent director.

Our Corporate Governance Guidelines alsosth our policies regarding the qualificatiorfsdirectors, the identification of candidates for
Board positions, the responsibilities of directdh® committees of the Board, director access tafficers, director orientation and continuing
education, director annual performance evaluatrahdirector compensation. A current copy of ourgooate Governance Guidelines is available
on our website avww.deerfieldcapital.comunder the section entitled "DFR Stockholder InfGerporate Governance." The information on our
website is not incorporated into this Proxy Statetne

Audit Committee and Audit Committee Financial Expert

As mentioned above, we have a separatdigdated standing Audit Committee of our Board. €heent members of the Audit Committee
are Robert B. Machinist, Stuart I. Oran and Rokeffischer. Our Board has determined that each reenftihe Audit Committee is independent,
as that term is defined under the enhanced indgpeedrequirements for audit committee membersostt in applicable SEC rules and in the
NASDAQ Listing Rules, and that each member of thifCommittee is able to read and understand fonestdial financial statements. T
members of the Audit Committee are responsiblegorong other things, assisting our Board in fffglits responsibilities in connection with ¢
accounting and financial reporting practices anersgeing the qualifications and performance ofridependent auditors. A copy of the charte
the Audit Committee is available free of chargeoon website atvww.deerfieldcapital.comunder the section entitled "DFR Stockholder Info—
Corporate Governance."

Our Board has determined that Robert B.\Ntast, the current chairperson of the Audit Conedt is "independent,” as that term is defined
in our Corporate Governance Guidelines and the NAQisting Rules, and is an "audit committee finahexpert," as that term is defined by
the SEC.
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Audit Committee Report

Our Audit Committee assists our Board imitaring our financial reporting process. Managetiteas primary responsibility for the financial
statements and the reporting process, includingyetem of internal controls. Deloitte, our indegent registered public accounting firm, is
responsible for expressing an opinion on the caonifiyrof our financial statements with accountingnpiples generally accepted in the U.S.

In this context, the Audit Committee herebports as follows:

1. The Audit Committee has reviewed disdussed the audited financial statements fofiskal year ended December 31, 2009
with management.

2. The Audit Committee has discusseth wur independent registered public accounting fine matters required to be discussed
by Statement on Auditing Standards No. Bdmmunication with Audit Committegas amended, and the independent registered public
accounting firm's independence from us and our igamant.

3. The Audit Committee has reviewedti®n disclosures and the letter from our independagistered public accounting firm
required by applicable requirements of the Pubben@any Accounting Oversight Board regarding thepehdent accountant's
communications with the Audit Committee concernimdependence, and has discussed with the indepeadesuntant the independent
accountant's independence.

4. Based on the review and discussiderred to in paragraphs (1) through (3) above Ahdit Committee recommended to the
Board, and the Board has approved, that the aufiitadcial statements be included in the Annuald®epn Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2009, filed with the SEC on K&R; 2010.

Respectfully submittec

Robert B. Machinist (Chairman)
Stuart I. Oran
Robert E. Fische

The foregoing report shall not be deemed incorpedédty reference by any general statement incorpugdty reference this Proxy Staterr
into any filing under the Securities Act or undee Exchange Act, except to the extent we spetyficalorporate this information by reference,
and shall not otherwise be deemed filed under $wath.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Parttipation

The current members of the Compensationr@itiee are Peter W. May, Robert E. Fischer and RdheMachinist. Our Board has
determined that each member of the Compensatiom@ibee is independent, as that term is definethénNASDAQ Listing Rules. No member
the Compensation Committee was an employee of oargany during the 2009 fiscal year or an officeoof Company during any prior period.
During 2009, no interlocking relationship existeztleeen any member of our Board and any memberoédmpensation committee of any other
company.
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Executive Officers

The following table lists our executiveioffrs and shows their names, ages, positions asiddas backgrounds for the last five years. They
serve at our Board's discretion.

Name Age Position(s) Held & Biography
Jonathan W. Trutter 52 Biographical Information for Jonathan W. Truttepi®vided above under "Proposal No. 2—Election of
Director—Information Concerning Director Nominee

Francis P. Straub I 36 Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer arréasurer. Mr. Straub has held these positiongsinc
November 2008. Mr. Straub is also the Chief FinalnOifficer and a Managing Director of DCM and |
held these positions since May 2008. Mr. StraubgdiDCM in August 2005 and has also served as Chief
Accounting Officer and as Manager of Financial Répg. Prior to joining DCM, Mr. Straub was the
Manager of Financial Reporting for Archipelago Eanbe LLC from August 2004 to August 2005.
Mr. Straub is a certified public accounta

Robert A. Contreras 40 Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Segrétar Contreras has held these positions since
November 2008. He is also the General Counsel aiidreaging Director of DCM. He has held the Gen
Counsel position at DCM since May 2008. Mr. Cordeelhas been employed by DCM since August 2000
and has also served as Deputy General Counsel ssatiate General Couns

Luke D. Knecht 56 Chief Operating Officer of DCM. Mr. Knecht has helids position since July 2005. Mr. Knecht is adso
Senior Managing Director of DCM. He has held thisifion since June 2006. Mr. Knecht joined DCM in
2002. Prior to joining DCM, Mr. Knecht was an extiee at DRCM Global Investors, CSI Asset
Management, Inc. and Harris Investment Managenhett

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compdince

Section 16 of the Exchange Act, requiresditectors, executive officers, and persons beraly owning more than 10% of our Common
Stock (reporting persons) to file with the SEC dpgcified due dates, reports of ownership of cackstind changes in that ownership, as well as
reports on SEC Form 3 of their becoming a reponpiagson whether or not they own any of our stockha date. They also must furnish us with
copies of these reports. We must report in this)@tatement any failure to file a required remorany failure to timely file any such report.
Based solely on our review of the filed reportswoitten representations from reporting persons dllaeportable transactions were reported, we
believe that during the fiscal year ended DecerBtie2009, our reporting persons timely filed apjogs they were required to file under
Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act.

Code of Ethics

We have adopted a code of ethics as defindm 406 of Regulation S-K. The code appliealt®f our employees and directors, including
our principal executive officer, principal finantificer, principal accounting officer or contretland persons performing similar functions. This
code, which is
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entitled Sarbanes-Oxley Code of Ethics (tf@ote of Ethic$), is available free of charge on our websiteavatw.deerfieldcapital.corand will be
provided free of charge to any stockholder requgsdi copy by writing to: Attn: Investor Relatiom¥gerfield Capital Corp., 6250 North River
Road, 9th Floor, Rosemont, lllinois 60018. Any waigranted by us to our principal executive offig@incipal financial officer, principal
accounting officer or controller under the Codeettics, or certain amendments to the Code of Ethiasare required to be disclosed pursuant to
the rules of the SEC or NASDAQ, will be disclosedaur website aivww.deerfieldcapital.comThe information on our website is not
incorporated into this Proxy Statement.
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EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
Compensation Discussion and Analysis
Overview
This Compensation Discussion and Analysiscdbes our compensation objectives, policiespradtices.

Prior to the completion of the Merger oncBmber 21, 2007, we did not have any employeesakuodl our executive officers were
employees of our external manager, DCM. We didpagt and were not involved in determining, comp&aedor any of our executive officers
prior to completion of the Merger. Upon completmirthe Merger, DCM became our subsidiary, and lerfirst time, we employed our executive
officers and other personnel. Since then, the cosg@n arrangements of our executive officersiegrat the time of the Merger have generally
remained in place, except as specified below.

Following the Merger, we were adverselyeeaféd by the severe global credit crisis and datating market conditions. These conditions
prompted multiple workforce reductions, includiregluctions affecting our named executive officeriléive believe these reductions have
streamlined our operations in the face of challeggnarket conditions, the retention of our remajnimmed executive officers has become even
more critical to our success as we have becomendepé¢ on fewer individuals. We have addressedctimieern primarily by entering into certain
retention arrangements with our named executiviearf, most recently for 2009, as discussed in rdetail below. Going forward, the
Compensation Committee intends to analyze, stracnd establish our executive compensation arraagesnbased on our philosophies and
objectives as described below in light of curremd anticipated market conditions. Further compeéosatecisions for our named executive
officers in 2010 will be addressed following thergaetion of the Acquisition described in this Prd3tatement. For more information regarding
potential compensation payable in connection withAcquisition, see "Proposal No. 1—Approval of 8teck Issuances—Interests of Certain of
Our Directors and Executive Officers in the Trarisams."

The primary functions of the Compensatiamittee are to (i) review our director compensastructure and, if appropriate, recommend
changes to our Board, (ii) administer our Amended Bestated Stock Incentive PlarS{ock Incentive Plal) and (iii) determine the
compensation of our Chief Executive OfficetGEQO™"), our other executive officers and, as the Consption Committee deems appropriate, our
non-officer employees, as well as to evaluate #réopmance of our executive officers.

Compensation Program Philosophy and Objectives

Our primary objective with respect to comgetion is to provide competitive compensation laeaefits that allow us to motivate, reward,
retain and, as necessary, attract high quality@kexofficers, portfolio managers and other emplkes. The Compensation Committee will review
the current compensation practices and establishgaterm compensation program that will seek toiege the Company's objectives. Our
philosophy reflects a belief that competitive comgetion programs will contain a mix of four elengern adequate base salary, an annual cash
bonus, which may be guaranteed or tied to relesantess measures, a long-term component thatneilige an ownership-like stake in the
longer-term success of the Company and a reteati@rd that encourages continued service. In 20@3compensation of our named executive
officers consisted of a base salary and a guardm@@mum cash bonus or cash retention award. Gloirvgard, we will strive to incorporate pay-
for-performance features in our employment arrareggswith our named executive officers. As sucheweect variable portions of
compensation to constitute a significant compowént
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each named executive officer's pay, and the agtgegaount of such variable compensation will reéftae achievement of specific corporate
objectives and individual performance goals.

Certain performance elements that we witisider in our variable bonus programs are nottirguantifiable and may include factors such
as responsiveness to unforeseen situations, openaiihin challenging business environments, cveatss, teamwork and demonstration of the
other values and work ethic that we believe aricatito our success. Other performance elementantieipate considering will be subject to
direct measurement and tied to the oversight respiities of the particular named executive officé/e will strive to design our compensation
programs to ensure that both qualitative and qtedivie measures of performance are aligned withahg-term interests of the Company and to
promote the interests of stockholders by focusimged executive officers on achieving improved penfmce.

In addition to rewarding employees for aefmig specific corporate and individual performagoals, our compensation program will be
designed to reward the level of responsibilityasfd the position undertaken by, our named execofiieers. We will also seek to reward
continued employment to support operations anddtept our institutional knowledge. As a mattepbflosophy, we believe compensation and
accountability should generally increase with gositand responsibility. As a result, we anticiptat total compensation will be higher for
individuals with greater responsibility and greagbility to influence our achievement of targetedults and strategic initiatives. Additionally, we
anticipate that as position and responsibility éases, a greater portion of the named executiveedf total compensation will be variable pay
contingent on the achievement of performance objstcontinued employment or both. While this may always be the case, we generally
intend that equity-based compensation will be hidbepersons with higher levels of responsibilityaking a portion of their total compensation
dependent on long-term increases in the valueso€Citmpany.

Finally, one of our key objectives will lensure that the compensation provided to ouredaaxecutive officers remains reasonable and
responsible, yet in line with our goals of retagimotivating, rewarding and, as necessary, attrgctur key personnel. We recognize that our
Company is navigating through a very difficult mess environment and that this situation placemesdinary demands on our named executive
officers and other employees. We remain cogniz&ntioneed to balance controlling costs with ousdhé offer competitive compensation
programs that are aligned with our corporate gaatsobjectives. Without competitive compensatiockpges and retention incentives,
particularly in a challenging public company enwineent, we believe that losses of management taldirtie more likely, and any such defectic
could cause serious short- and long-term challefayesur business and operations.

Process for Evaluating and Establishing Executive@@pensatior

In 2009, the Compensation Committee engdgbdson Associates, Inc., a compensation consultaprovide advice and recommendations
with respect to our executive compensation poliaied arrangements, including providing market pgovith respect to the Company's executive
officers and summarizing the competitive compewsatindscape in the markets. The compensation ttansalso provides perspectives on
market trends that may impact Compensation Comendtezisions. Johnson & Associates does not prangeother services to the Company.
Compensation Committee may also engage additiameuitants and other professionals to, if and aticgble, negotiate employment
agreements with our named executive officers, agvelr time- and performance-based incentive cosgt@n programs and structure our
director compensation program.
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The Role of the Compensation Committee

The Compensation Committee oversees alpemsation evaluations and decisions related tomanred executive officers. It will also review
the appropriateness of the financial measures insa&ly incentive plans and the degree of difficittychieving specific performance targets. The
Compensation Committee is responsible for establisbompensation levels for all our named executiffieers. The Compensation Committee
expects to work with our CEO concerning stratedijectives and performance targets and may use ktansito collect information regarding
competitive practices and to help devise and adit@nfair and equitable compensation programs goirsg-forward basis.

The compensation arrangements of our nawredutive officers have not been significantly nfiedi since the Merger. Pending completion
of the Acquisition, the Compensation Committeeneto work with its compensation consultant ariere the current compensation practices
and policies to craft a long-term executive compéina program that will achieve the Company's dijes. Currently, however, the
Compensation Committee seeks to retain flexibilitgxecutive compensation arrangements in lighhefchallenging market conditions. As a
general proposition, the Compensation Committekattémpt to determine the overall best mix of fixencentive and retention compensation for
each position. In making this determination, thenpensation Committee will be guided by the compgmsghilosophy described herein and,
among other things, historical compensation leuvks relative compensation levels among our namedutive officers and possibly the
competitive pay practices at other companies ussiimg-party compensation studies. The Compensation Caeenitay also consider industry ¢
market conditions, any unique challenges and britaposed on our named executive officers, corpgoatformance versus a peer group of
companies and the overall effectiveness of our @mation program in achieving desired performaecels.

The Compensation Committee has the abpitiysuant to its charter, to form and delegateaitthto subcommittees comprised entirely of
independent directors or its chair when appropriat has not done so to date.

The Role of Named Executive Officers in Compensatiecisions

Our CEO will play a significant role in ttempensation-setting process and will be respts&il evaluating the performance of our named
executive officers on an annual basis. Unless wfisercontractually provided, these evaluations béllused to determine discretionary bonuses, if
any, for the prior fiscal year, to establish theiwidual and corporate performance objectives fmmhenamed executive officer for the current fiscal
year, to set their base salaries for the nextlfigear, to determine the portion of total compeiosathat will be contingent or performance-based
pay, to recommend any retention bonus element@ndrtsider and approve any grants of equity ortgdikie incentive compensation. Based on
our CEO's review and evaluation, he will make conga¢ion recommendations to the Compensation Coemniticluding recommendations for
performance targets and objectives, salary adjugsnbonus levels, retention compensation and teng-equity-based incentive awards. In
performing these responsibilities, our CEO will mne&h and consider the opinion of our other exa@s prior to making final assessments about
performance. Final decisions with respect to totehpensation of our named executive officers \e#lide with the Compensation Committee.

Benchmarking

Although competitive information, or bencéwking, is extremely useful in our industry, weremtly do not believe that it is appropriate to
establish compensation levels primarily based archmarking. While we recognize that our compenggti@ctices must be competitive in the
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marketplace, such marketplace information is omlg of the many factors that we may consider inss$sg the reasonableness of compensation.
When we consider the total compensation packagearaiamed executive officers, our CEO and the Gamation Committee may consider
many factors, including the existence of employnagreements, historical compensation, market cimmdit company performance and
challenges, equity performance, liquidity, profitd, consultant studies and internal prioritiesensure that the compensation we award is
appropriate to our circumstances and competititbénmarketplace.

Elements of Named Executive Officer Compensation
Base Salan

We provide our named executive officerdwveitbase salary designed to provide each namedteseofficer with regular income that we
consider appropriate in light of the named exeeutfficer's qualifications, experience and indugmgwledge, the quality and effectiveness of
their leadership at our Company, the scope of tiesiponsibilities, the goals and objectives esthblil for the named executive officer, the named
executive officer's past performance and futurepiddl, the base salary paid to officers in combplergositions at companies considered as
competitors, internal pay equity, the tax dedubtibof base salary and their total compensatioarrgement. We do not apply any specific
weighting to these factors. The specific salary am® for our named executive officers also areugriced by the application of these factors it
negotiated terms of their past and/or continuingleyment or retention agreements, some of whichk tdatk to 2004, prior to the Merger. Base
salaries in 2009 generally remained at their 2@08lk other than nominal increases to reflect aljeists within specific departments. The
Compensation Committee, in its discretion, alsosaters the level of a named executive officer'slsmary in determining the potential annue
retention bonus, such that the total cash compiemsper year retains some level of parity from exee to executive for comparable positions
and responsibilities.

Annual Cash Bonus Plar

Pursuant to the employment agreement withTivutter, Mr. Trutter received a guaranteed boofu783,750 for services rendered during
2009 (an amount equal to his minimum guarantee® p@dus) and will receive a guaranteed bonus ol 3% for services rendered during 2010
(one-half of his minimum guaranteed 2008 bonusljeliese amounts were determined in connectioh thié negotiation of the amendment of
his employment agreement in 2009, pursuant to wikchlso committed to invest $500,000 in DPLC tacWithe Company had committed to
invest a certain minimum amount. Mr. Trutter's isiveent resulted in a corresponding reduction iratheunt of the Company's commitment.

Mr. Trutter's 2009 retention bonus is describethore detail below. In addition, Messrs. Straub @odtreras received bonuses for 2009 pursuant
to retention bonus arrangements discussed belowKMacht was paid a pro-rated guaranteed bonugi@® based on the terms of his
employment agreement that expired in July 2008hénfuture, we intend to give our named executifieers an opportunity to obtain annual ci
bonuses under an incentive bonus plan for achientofespecified performance objectives. We plamtike awards from an established bonus
pool. The Compensation Committee will determinettial size of our bonus pool by taking into acdooaur qualitative and financial

performance. We expect that our CEO will make rememdations as to the size of an award to any pdatinamed executive officer, other than
himself, by considering each individual's performamas measured against market benchmarks, prersetrpance targets and objectives and his
or her individual impact on our overall performanthe formal structure of the plan will be develdpander the supervision of the Compensation
Committee after consideration of advice providedbgsultants, legal counsel and the Interim Chairofeour Board.
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Equity-Based Compensation Arrangements

Although we had not made equity grantsithviidual employees in the past, on April 18, 2088,granted performance shares in the form of
restricted stock units Performance Sharé$ to certain of DCM's employees (including to eémtof our named executive officers) in lieu ofltas
as partial payment of their 2007 bonus. The Perfmge Shares represent the right to receive shames common stock on March 3, 2011,
subject to forfeiture and acceleration upon spediéivents.

We did not make any equity grants to namestutive officers in 2009. However, going forwana plan to structure individual equity-based
compensation arrangements that align the long-tetenests of our named executive officers withititerests of our stockholders. We expect to
work with consultants to develop the criteria thvat will use in structuring our equity-based compdias arrangements.

Retention Bonus Arrangement

As previously disclosed, Mr. Trutter's amnigd employment agreement with DCM, dated June2P64, provided for a retention bonus of
$2 million (the "Retention BonuY) if Mr. Trutter remained employed by DCM throudhne 25, 2009. In consideration for Mr. Truttegsegmen
to commit to invest $500,000 in DPLC, DCM agreed@¢aelerate the vesting of a portion of the RetenBonus equal to $400,000, after taxes, in
a letter agreement, dated May 11, 2009, between @@dMr. Trutter. Mr. Trutter received the $400,08fer taxes, within five days following
May 11, 2009 and the remainder of the RetentionuBamithin five days following June 25, 2009.

Pursuant to the terms of Mr. Straub's egplent agreement, dated as of May 9, 2008, Mr. Btraceived a retention bonus payment of
$200,000 on May 9, 2009, the day after the emplaoyragreement expired. On May 11, 2009, we entereda letter agreement (th&Straub
Retention Agreeme") with Mr. Straub, our senior vice president, ¢Hieancial officer and treasurer, providing centaissurances with respect to
Mr. Straub's 2009 compensation. The Straub Retedtgreement provided that Mr. Straub's 2009 aneakdry would be no less than his 2008
annual salary of $350,000 and guaranteed Mr. Sta2®09 cash bonus of $112,500 to be paid by Mat¢i2010, provided that he remained
employed by DCM on the date of such payment. Thaxanteed bonus amount was approved by the Contfmn&ommittee, in its discretion, at
a level that represented 75% of Mr. Straub's 2@figib.

On May 11, 2009, we also entered into @ietgreement (theContreras Retention Agreemenwith Mr. Contreras, our senior vice
president, general counsel and secretary, provickmgin assurances with respect to Mr. Contr@@®9 compensation. The Contreras Retention
Agreement provided that Mr. Contreras' 2009 ansakdry would be no less than his 2008 annual sala$200,000 and guaranteed Mr. Contre
a 2009 cash bonus of $187,500 to be paid by Mat¢2@®L0, provided that he remained employed by Ditithe date of such payment. This
guaranteed bonus amount was approved by the ComtpEan€ommittee, in its discretion, at a level ttegiresented 75% of Mr. Contreras' 2008
bonus.

Severance and Chantin-Control Arrangements

Except as set forth below, we do not haweseverance or change-in-control arrangementsautinamed executive officers. We expect that
the adoption of any such arrangement or the incatjpm of any such provisions in future agreemevilisbe approved by the Compensation
Committee. Severance or changezontrol provisions will in general only be approviadhose cases where the Compensation Committexybs
the benefits of such arrangements, including attrgor retaining key employees, outweigh the cobbe grant agreements with respect to the
Performance
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Shares include provisions that either acceleraelistribution of the underlying common stock aguiee cash distributions in lieu of common
stock upon the occurrence of certain changes-itrgbn

Pursuant to our existing employment agregméth Mr. Trutter, our CEO, which expires on Datdger 31, 2010, in the event that he is
terminated without "cause" or resigns for "goodsmd, Mr. Trutter will be entitled to receive (imadue but unpaid portion of his guaranteed
bonus payments of $783,750 for fiscal year 2009%881,875 for fiscal year 2010 in accordance withrmrmal bonus payment practices and
(ii) the base salary of $416,250 per year that belhave received through December 31, 2010 inrdemce with our normal payroll practices.
However, if such termination or resignation is énoection with a change of control, Mr. Trutteriié entitled to receive a guaranteed bonus
payment of $783,750 for fiscal year 2010. For mofermation regarding the terms of Mr. Trutter'spayment agreement, see "Potential
Payments Upon Termination or Change of Control."

Pursuant to the Straub Retention Agreenietiie event that Mr. Straub's employment had hiesninated without “cause" (as determine:
the Compensation Committee) prior to the paymemtigfuaranteed bonus for fiscal year 2009, he avhale been entitled to receive $150,000
in cash within 10 days of his termination date.

Pursuant to the Contreras Retention Agregnirethe event that Mr. Contreras' employment been terminated without "cause"” (as
determined by the Compensation Committee) pridhéopayment of his guaranteed bonus for fiscal 2688, he would have been entitled to
receive $250,000 in cash within 10 days of his teation date.

Additional Benefits

Our named executive officers participatetimer employee benefit plans generally availablalitemployees on the same terms, such as
medical, dental, life, disability insurance progeaamnd a 401(k) plan. We do not provide our namet@tkve officers with significant perquisites
or similar personal benefits.

Summary Compensation Table

The following Summary Compensation Tabkrliises the compensation information for each ohamed executive officers for the fiscal
years 2009, 2008 and 2007:

Stock All Other
Salary Bonus Awards(6) Compensation(7) Total
Name and Principal Position Year ($) $) ($) $) $
Jonathan W. Trutter(2 200¢ 450,00 2,783,75! — 14,31C 3,248,06!
Chief Executive Office 200¢ 450,00( 883,75( 635,30 7,82z 1,976,87.
200%(4) 12,32¢ 687,50( — 5,36¢ 705,19
Francis P. Straub(: 200¢ 350,00( 312,50( — 4,36¢ 666,86!
Chief Financial Officer
and 200¢ 297,39 150,00( 41,721 24C 489,35¢
Treasure 2007%(5)
Luke D. Knecht(3' 200¢ 400,00( 202,56: — 5,74( 608,30:
Chief Operating Officer
of DCM 200¢ 400,00( 375,00( — 24C 775,24(
200%(4) 10,95¢ 375,00( — 5,36¢ 391,32
Robert A. Contrera 200¢ 210,41° 187,50( — 4,36t 402,28:.
Senior Vice President,
Genera 200¢ 200,00( 250,00( 56,89: 24C 507,13:

Counsel and Secreta 2007%(5)

1) In accordance with an employment agreement withTvutter, entered into on June 26, 2004, Mr. Truttes entitled each
year to an annual guaranteed bonus of no less¥n@®, 750. Ir
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®)
(6)

)

addition, Mr. Trutter earned a retention bonus2fdillion in 2009, as a result of remaining empldy® DCM or any of its
affiliates through June 25, 2009. During 2009, $000 of Mr. Trutter's 2008 bonus amount was paithéform of a capite
contribution on his behalf into DPLC. Mr. Trutte2807 bonus consisted of $687,500 in cash and $887n Performance
Shares, which were granted in 2008.

In accordance with an employment agreement withSthaub, entered into on May 9, 2008, Mr. Straulned a retention
bonus of $200,000 in 2009, as a result of remairmgloyed by DCM or any of its affiliates throughaiv19, 2009.

Mr. Knecht was entitled to an annual guaranteedibarf no less than $208,561 for 2009, but Mr. Knegjieed to forego
$6,000 of this amount.

The 2007 salary earned by Mr. Trutter and Mr. Kneepresents the amounts from December 21, 208 & dte of the
Merger, through December 31, 2007. However, thieeefiscal year 2007 bonus and stock awards paibdgémamed
executive officers are reflected in the table.

Mr. Straub and Mr. Contreras became named execofficers in 2008.

The Performance Shares were granted in 2008, tnat avportion of the named executive officers' bdiougiscal year 2007
The dollar values of the awards to Messrs. Trugémub and Contreras were $837,500, $55,000 ab@@J, respectively,
and the number of shares granted was based oneagmi share of $17.533, which was the averageeoflbsing price of
our common stock on March 6, 7 and 10, 2008. Theegsfor these awards shown in the table are barsedprice per share
of $13.30, pursuant to ASC Topic 718—CompensatiotselSCompensation, which requires the price be kegpuhe
closing price of the common stock on the grant datdarch 10, 2008.

The following table identifies and quantifies edteim included in the All Other Compensation colufan2009:

401(k) Plan Company Paid

Matching Life Insurance
Contribution Premiums Other(a) Total
Name (%) $) $ $
Jonathan W. Trutte 5,50( 24C 8,57C 14,31(
Francis P. Straub | 4,12¢ 24C — 4,36¢
Luke D. Knecht 5,50( 24C — 5,74(
Robert A. Contrera 4,12°¢ 24C — 4,36¢

(a) Mr. Trutter's Other compensation of $8,570 relatedividends and interest associated with a rdettistock award
paid in March 20089

2009 Grants of Plan-Based Awards

There were no grants of plan-based awandsdr named executive officers in fiscal year 2009
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2009 Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End

Restricted Stock

Restricted Stock Units

No. of Shares Market Value of No. of Shares Market Value of
or Units of Stock Share or Units of Stock or Units of Stock Share or Units of Stock
That Have Not That Have Not Vested(2) That Have Not That Have Not Vested(2)
Name Vested(1) ($) Vested(3) ($)
Jonathan W.

Trutter 56,79( 261,23 433 1,992
Francis P.

Straub Il 3,72¢ 17,15: — —
Luke D. Knecht — — — —
Robert A.

Contreras 5,08¢ 23,39¢ — —

Q) Performance Shares in the form of restricted stotts were awarded to the named executive offiparsuant to our Stock
Incentive Plan as partial payment of their respedtionuses for fiscal year 2007, which would othisevhave been payable
in cash. Each Performance Share awarded reprdbkernight to receive one share of our Common Stsckarch 3, 2011,
subject to forfeiture only in the case of terminatfor cause or acceleration upon specified comti The number of
Performances Shares granted is subject to adjustoretividends or other distributions paid betwééarch 3, 2008 and
March 3, 2011 and may also be adjusted, as detedhiy our Board, in connection with any stock dévids, stock splits,
subdivisions or consolidations of shares (includienerse stock splits) or similar changes in ogitedization. The number
of Performance Shares was adjusted to reflectfioe-10 reverse stock split that we effected affter close of business on
October 16, 2008. The numbers of performance shapested include 9,023, 592 and 808 performanaeestfor
Messrs. Trutter, Straub and Contreras, respectittiedy were acquired in connection with the reitvesnt of dividend
equivalents when a dividend was paid to commorksimders of the Company in October 2008.

(2)  The market value is as of December 31, 2009.

()  The restricted stock vested on March 29, 2010, whidhe 4" business day following the Company's 10-K filing fiscal
year 2009, pursuant to the amended award agree

2009 Stock Vested

No. of Shares Value Realized

Acquired on on Vesting
Name Vesting ($)
Jonathan W. Trutte 433 433

122




Table of Contents

Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change of Gatrol

The table below reflects the amount of cengation that would have been payable to eacheafidmed executive officers of the Company in
the event of a termination of such executive's eyrpkent or upon a change in control of the Compangach case as of December 31, 2009.
There are no additional benefits paid upon retirgrparsuant to the employment agreements in effecf December 31, 2009.

Jonathan W. Francis P. Luke D. Robert A.

Trutter Straub Il Knecht Contreras
®)6) ®) ®) ®)
Discharge Without Cause
Or Resignation With Good
Reasor—No Change in Control
Salary Continuation(1 450,00( — — —
Bonus Continuation(z 1,175,62! — — —
Lump Sum Payment(: — 150,00( —  250,00(
Restricted Stock Vestin 1,99: — — —
Discharge Without Cause
Or Resignation With Good
Reasor—Change in Control
Salary Continuation(1 450,00( — — —
Bonus Continuation(z 1,567,50! — — —
Lump Sum Payment(: — 150,00( —  250,00(
Restricted Stock Vestin 1,992 — — —
Performance Shares Restrictions Laps 219,72¢ 14,43( — 19,67¢
Change in Control—No
Termination of Employment
Performance Shares Restrictions Laps 219,72¢ 14,43( — 19,67¢
Death of Disability
Restricted Stock Vestin 1,992 — — —

1) The employment agreement with Mr. Trutter provittessalary continuation payments through Decemiie2810 in
accordance with the Company's normal payroll paymeactices. Mr. Trutter is prohibited from perfang competing
investment management services following termimatibemployment until the earlier of (i) six montlelowing the last
salary continuation payment and (ii) July 1, 20H#.is also subject to certain other non-competifind non-solicitation
obligations until the earlier of (i) two years f@ling a termination of employment and (ii) Decem®&y 2012.

(2)  The employment agreement with Mr. Trutter provift@sbonus continuation payments of $783,750 for®80d $391,875
for 2010 (or $783,750 for 2010 in the event of argye of control) payable no later than March 13,28nd 2011,
respectively.

3) The Straub Retention Agreement and the ContrertenRen Agreement entitled Mr. Straub and Mr. Cerds to a lump
sum payment payable within ten days of termination.

(4)  The Performance Shares' restrictions lapse uptamge of control as defined in the agreement. Hfi@itlon of a change
of control for these purposes means (i) the ownpgmshacquisition by any person (other than a diediaffiliate) of more
than fifty percent (50%) of the Company's then autding voting securities; (ii) the merger or cdidation of the Compan
with or into any other person (other than a quatdifaffiliate), if, immediately following the merger
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consolidation, persons who did not own outstandioting securities immediately before the mergecansolidation direct!
or indirectly own more than fifty percent (50%)tbe outstanding shares of voting stock of the simgi entity; (iii) any one
or a series of related sales or conveyances t@arspn (other than any one or more qualified atf) of all or substantial
all of the assets of the Company; (iv) the compligigdation or dissolution of the Company; or ¢9ntinuing directors
cease to be a majority of the Board.

(5) Mr. Trutter's employment agreement defines "Caasg(l) his breach of any material provision therédf his commission
of a felony or violation of certain laws, (iii) hfailure to substantially comply, in certain circstances, with written rules,
regulations or policies of the Company, (iv) hiduiee to comply with the Company's policies wittspect to insider trading,
(v) his material misrepresentation at any timertp member of the Board or any superior executifieaf of the Company,
(vi) his willful failure or refusal to comply withis material obligations thereunder or a reasonaitlawful instruction of
the Board or (viii) his commission of certain acfdraud or gross negligence or other actions #@natdetrimental to the
Company. Mr. Trutter's employment agreement defiGeod Reason” as (i) a reduction in his base gafdy any adverse
change in his title or responsibilities, (iii) amgquirement that he be based anywhere more thamlg® outside of Chicago,
lllinois or (iv) a failure by the Company to paystiase salary or guaranteed bonus when

Compensation and Risk

We have reviewed our employee compensgiiticies and practices and have determined thaetpelicies and practices do not create risks
that are reasonably likely to have a material estveffect on the Company.

Compensation of our Non-Employee Directors

The table below describes the compensaiioned by our non-employee directors in 2009. Qoecgsses and procedures for considering and
determining the amount of compensation we pay oaremployee directors consist of an annual reviedirector compensation by the
Compensation Committee, based on factors suchrasx@iing compensation structure, the compensatig by comparable companies, the
amount of time expected to be devoted by our nopleyee directors to our matters and the complexiithose matters. Pursuant to its charter,
the Compensation Committee recommends to the Bbardompensation for the current year, and the Bowkes a determination. The charter
permits the Compensation Committee to delegatedhsideration of director compensation to one orensobcommittees of the Compensation
Committee, but to date, the Compensation Commiitssenot done so.

2009 Director Compensation(1)

Fees Earned ol
Name Paid in Cash(8)(9) Stock Awards(10) Total

Peter H. Rothschild(z $ 870,00( $ 50,00 $ 920,00(
Robert B. Machinist(3 $ 167,50( $ 50,00 $ 217,50(
Howard Rubin(4 $ 32,821 $ 0 $ 32,82
Robert E. Fischer(t $ 129,500 $ 50,00C $ 179,50(
Peter W. May(6 $ 103,00( $ 50,00 $ 153,00(
Stuart I. Oran(7 $ 71,67¢ $ 50,000 $ 121,67¢

Q) No director compensation was earned by Mr. Trutt2009.
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(10)

Mr. Rothschild, as our Interim Chairman and pursudarthe 2009 Rothschild Compensation Agreememhezha base fee
$500,000. Additionally, Mr. Rothschild earned anligidnal expense reimbursement of $120,000. Tha tmse fee and
reimbursement earned by Mr. Rothschild in 2009 $6&20,000. In addition, the Compensation Committearded a
$250,000 Fund Success Fee to Mr. Rothschild foy#ize ended December 31, 2009. See "TransactiotisR¢lated
Persons and Certain Control Persons" herein fais@ussion of the 2009 Rothschild Compensation Agesg and addition
information regarding Mr. Rothschild's compensation

Mr. Machinist, as the chairperson of the Audit Coitbee, earned an additional cash retainer of $25,f10 a total 2009 ca:
retainer of $90,000.

Mr. Rubin resigned from the Board on May 19, 2006 aarned a pro-rated cash retainer for 2009 equ##4,821.

Mr. Fischer, as the chairperson of the Nominatiogn@ittee, earned an additional cash retainer ofCELR for a total 2009
cash retainer of $80,000.

Mr. May, as chairperson of the Compensation Conemjtearned an additional cash retainer of $15f00@, total 2009 cas
retainer of $80,000.

Mr. Oran, as a director from May 19, 2009 to fispadr end earned a pro-rated cash retainer for 2§08l to $40,179.

In 2009, each independent director earned a caaimee of $65,000, a fee of $1,500 for each Boaegting attended (in
person or by telephone) and a fee of $1,000 fan eammittee meeting attended (in person or by telap) on a date that a
Board meeting was not held. Under our policy, th@80 committee meeting fee is also earned oneaatatvhich a Board
meeting is held if the additional preparation tifaethe committee meeting is significant. We alsonburse our independt
directors for their travel expenses related tonalitey Board and committee meetings. Each indepdmtiettor's total 2009
compensation consisted of the committee fees al stwards described herein and the cash retadestgibed in footnote
(3) through (7). The table above includes feeseazhin 2009 regardless of when those fees werelchsd.

In December 2009, we established the Special Coweniib review and evaluate the Transactions. W gech Special
Committee member a fee of $15,000 per month an€tarman of the Special Committee $45,000 per mont

In May 2009, we granted each director other thanTutter Performance Shares worth $50,000. ThéoReance Shares
vested on the date of the grant. Each of the Reefoce Shares represents the right to receive @re shiour Common
Stock on May 19, 2012, subject to forfeiture ancederation upon the occurrence of certain spec#ieshts. The closing
price on the NYSE Amex of our common stock on trengdate was $4.16 per share, resulting in 12frformance
Shares issued per director. As of December 31,,2009Rothschild, Mr. Machinist, Mr. Fischer, andMMay each own
17,188 Performance Shares. Mr. Oran and Mr. Rulim 52,019 and 5,169 Performance Shares, respegtaebf
December 31, 200!
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Compensation Committee Report

The Compensation Committee has revieweddisalissed the "Compensation Discussion and Argdlgsiction of this Proxy Statement with

management and, based on such review and discuisto@ompensation Committee recommended to thedBbat it be included in this Proxy
Statement.

Respectfully submitted,

Peter W. May (Chairman)
Robert E. Fischer
Robert B. Machinist

The foregoing report shall not be deemed incorpedédty reference by any general statement incorpugdty reference this Proxy Staterr
into any filing under the Securities Act or undee Exchange Act, except to the extent we spedyficalorporate this information by reference,
and shall not otherwise be deemed filed under swath
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SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
Persons That Beneficially Own More Than 5% of Our \bting Securities

The following table shows, as of the Reddede, the persons that are known to the Compabg the beneficial owners of more than 5% of
our Common Stock, which is the only class of votbgck we have issued. Each share of our Commark &@ntitled to one vote. As of the
Record Date, there were 6,455,357 shares of Con8tank outstanding. The table is based on informaiaailable to us, including stockholder
filings with the SEC under Section 13 of the Exalpa/\ct.

Amount and

Nature of

Beneficial Percent
Name and Address of Beneficial Owne Ownership of Class
The William and Claire Dart Foundation, Dart Contai Corporation, Coppg
Mountain Investments Ltd. and Robert C. Dart (adliely, the Dart
Entities),(1) 500 Hogsback Road, Mason, Michiga@5#B(for the William
and Claire Dart Foundation and Dart Container Cafon), P.O. Box 3136:
Grand Cayman, KY1-1206 Cayman Islands (for Coppeuiain
Investments Ltd.) and P.O. Box 30229, Grand Cayi{&i,-1201 Cayman
Islands (for Robert C. Dar 916,46! 14.2%
Joseph A. Jolson,(2) 600 Montgomery Street, SWl@2San Francisco,
California 94111 395,86¢ 6.1%
Harvest Capital Strategies LLC (formerly known BHRPJAsset
Management LLC),(3) 600 Montgomery Street, SuitéQ, ISan Francisco,
California 94111 369,84! 5.7%

1) Based on a Schedule 13G/A filed on March 26, 20p8dzh Dart Entity and other information. The Cintities file jointly
because they may be regarded as a group. Howayda(t Container Corporation, Copper Mountain Btweents Ltd. and
Robert C. Dart each disclaim beneficial ownersHithe shares owned by the William and Claire Dantiidation, (b) the
William and Claire Dart Foundation disclaims benifi ownership of the shares owned by Dart Conta@w@poration,
Copper Mountain Investments Ltd. and Robert C. Caartl (c) Dart Container Corporation and Copper Main
Investments Ltd. Each disclaim beneficial ownergifithe shares owned by the other. Each of the Batities disclaim
membership in a group.

2) Based on a Schedule 13G filed on February 18, B§1ibseph A. Jolson. Mr. Jolson has the sole vatimydispositive
power for 280,868 shares held by the Jolson 1984tT15,000 shares held by the Joseph Jolson IRA&0,000 shares
held by the Jolson Family Foundation. Mr. Jolsates in Schedule 13G that the filing shall not berded to constitute an
admission that any of such individuals is, for @uypose, the beneficial owner of any of the sei@sito which this Schedt
relates, and expressly disclaims beneficial owriprgh100,000 shares held by the Jolson Family Eation.

?3) Based upon a Schedule 13G filed on February 18) P§Harvest Capital Strategies LLCHCS"). HCS filed the
Schedule 13G because it acts as the investmergeadyione or more investment partnerships, poolegstment vehicles
and/or one or more client accounts that benefictadld common stock that equal the aggregate ansmtrforth in its
Schedule 13G (theSecurities’). As investment advisor, HCS has been grantedtitieority to dispose of and vote the
Securities. The investment partnerships, pooledstment vehicles and/or client accounts have ti# to receive (or the
power to direct the receipt of) dividends receiiredonnection with ownership of the Securities, #melproceeds from the
sale of the Securitie
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Ownership of Our Common Stock By Directors and Exegtive Officers

The following table shows, as of the Reddede, the beneficial ownership of our Common Stoglour directors, our executive officers and
all of our directors and executive officers as augr. None of the shares listed below has been ptedg security except as specifically described
in the footnotes to this table and none of theatimes or executive officers has the right to acgbieneficial ownership of any additional shares
within 60 days after the Record Date. Unless ingidatherwise in the footnotes, the address of gatitidual listed in the table is c/o Deerfield
Capital Corp., 6250 North River Road, 9th FloorsBmont, lllinois 60018.

Amount and Nature of Percent of
Name of Beneficial Owner Beneficial Ownership Class(1)
Robert E. Fischer(Z 1,14 *
Robert B. Machinist(2 80C *
Peter W. May(3 115,317 1.8%
Peter H. Rothschild(2)(« 2,097 *
Stuart I. Oran(5 1,82: *
Jonathan W. Trutte 25,96: *
Luke D. Knecht(6' 1,99¢ *
Francis P. Straub | 30C *
Robert A. Contrera 292 *
All directors and executive officers as a group (fersons) 149,730  2.3%

* Less than 1%.

Q) Based on 6,455,357 shares of our Common Stockamatistg as of April 19, 2010. Does not include 569,3hares of
Common Stock available for future issuance undeiStack Incentive Plan. As of April 19, 2010, 30&41of those availabl
shares are reserved for future issuance in commewtith the Performance Shares granted to DCM eyeel® on April 18,
2008 and to each of our independent directors oy #2008 and May 19, 2009.

(2) Includes 300 shares of stock granted to each oinol@pendent directors in May 2005 under our Stackntive Plan and
250 shares of stock granted to each of our indegdrdirectors in each of May 2006 and May 2007 uilazt Plan.

?3) Includes 2,155 shares of our Common Stock heldémiame of May Foundation. Mr. May disclaims besiafiownership c
these shares.

(4) Includes 564 shares of our Common Stock grantédrtdrothschild in December 2007 and 400 sharesiofGmmmon
Stock granted to Mr. Rothschild in July 2008 under Stock Incentive Plan for his services as oterim Chairman.
Includes 333 of our shares owned by Daroth InvedtbC, of which Mr. Rothschild is a member. Accardlly, he may be
deemed to beneficially own shares owned by Daidth Rothschild disclaims beneficial ownership ofsle shares.

(5) Includes 1,050 shares of our Common Stock heldémame of Roxbury Capital Group Incentive SaviRlgs, with respec
to which Mr. Oran is the sole trustee; 368 shafesio Common Stock held in the name of Roxbury @group Defined
Benefit Plan, with respect to which Mr. Oran is #ude trustee; 405 shares of our Common Stockihehie name of the
Stanley R. Becker Declaration of Trust, with reggeavhich Mr. Oran and his spouse are two of the trustees. Mr. Oran
disclaims beneficial ownership of these shares.

(6) Includes shares held jointly with spouse.
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TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PERSONS AND CERTAIN CONTR OL PERSONS
Transactions With Related Persons

For a description of the interests of owectors and executive officers in the Transactieee "Proposal No. 1—Approval of the Stock
Issuances—Interests of Certain of Our DirectorsExecutive Officers in the Transactions."

Since January 1, 2009, we have entereccittimin transactions, summarized below, that ede@&120,000 in amount and in which our
related persons—in general, our directors, exeeudfficers and their immediate family members—hadould have a direct or indirect material
interest.

. In connection with our previously announced cosirgginitiative, DCM entered into a transition emapinent agreement, effective
January 7, 2009, with Richard G. Smith, our forigef financial officer. Mr. Smith relinquished Hifle as chief financial officer
on November 6, 2008. In connection with his departi¥r. Smith was given the ability to select ofichvee compensatory optior
Per Mr. Smith's selection, his employment with D@/gs scheduled to terminate on February 25, 20@® auch earlier date as
Mr. Smith resigned. Mr. Smith resigned on Janu&y2D09. Mr. Smith continued to receive his basargand benefits through t
date of his resignation and also received a $30p@@®nent on February 1, 2009 and a $125,000 lummpEyment. In addition,
Mr. Smith also received an additional $30,000 paynire February 2010. He was also paid approximekélp35 for accrued but
unused vacation. Mr. Smith provided a general selda DCM for any claims he might have against D&M its affiliates. In
addition, Mr. Smith executed a second release s#lgdDCM and its affiliates from all claims that ynlaave arisen from
December 31, 2008 through January 29, 2009. Inideration of this release, Mr. Smith received aditiohal one week of salary
paid in accordance with DCM's normal payroll pa@i

. On March 5, 2009, we entered into a letter agreeiftee "2009 Rothschild Compensation Agreenigntith Mr. Rothschild
setting forth the fees payable to him for his seggias Interim Chairman of the Board for the yeaireg December 31, 2009. The
2009 Rothschild Compensation Agreement provides foase fee for 2009 of $500,000 and an expensduesement of $10,000
per month for expenses relating to office spaderination technology and other items that Mr. Rottilsl pays to his firm which
provides him with office space and related infrastire. The 2009 Rothschild Compensation Agreerakset provided for two
discretionary fees, a "Capital Transaction Sucéess not to exceed $1 million and a "Non-Capitangaction Success Fee" not to
exceed $500,000, which may be paid if certain digecconditions are met. The conditions for paynmafrthe discretionary fees
included, but were not limited to, Mr. Rothschilying an instrumental role in arranging and coniptgea strategic transaction tl
substantially increased shareholder value. The @msgtion Committee has complete discretion ovethendgo award the Capital
Transaction Success Fee and the Non-Capital Traos&uccess Fee and over the amount of the fektharportion payable as
cash or non-cash compensation. In addition, th® Zfihschild Compensation Agreement provided ftfund Success Fee" of
$250,000 relating to a proposed new investment,fpralided the closing of initial capital commitmeno the fund occurred on or
before June 30, 2009 and the total amount of saoindtments exceeded $50.0 million. The $250,000FBuccess Fee" was p
on April 17, 2009 as a result of the launch of DPLC

. On March 22, 2010, we entered into the 2010 Roilts€lompensation Agreement with Peter H. Rothscédtting forth the fees
payable to him for his services as Interim Chairraithe Board for the year ending December 31, 20he 2010 Rothschild
Compensation Agreement provides for a base feag@010 of $41,667 per month and an expense resament of $10,000 per
month for expenses relating to office space, infatian technology and other items which Mr. Rothktpays to his firm which
provides him with office
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space and related infrastructure. The 2010 Rotlis€nmpensation Agreement is subject to cancehatipon 30 days' notice at the
discretion of the Compensation Committee as well@m the occurrence of certain other specifiedesve he 2010 Rothschild
Compensation Agreement also provides for two dismmary fees, a "Capital Transaction Success Fettaexceed $1 million ar

a "Non-Capital Transaction Success Fee" not toex&500,000, which may be paid if certain specifiedditions are met. The
conditions for payment of the discretionary feedude, but are not limited to, Mr. Rothschild plagian instrumental role in
arranging and completing a strategic transactiahghbstantially increases shareholder value. Tdrepg@nsation Committee has
complete discretion over whether to award the @hpitansaction Success Fee and the Non-Capitak&ction Success Fee and
over the amount of the fees and the portion payableash or nonash compensation, and has not yet finally detexchthe amour
of fees to be paid in connection with consummatibthe Transactions.

. Peter W. May, a director of the Company since Ddmmm2007, is also a director and the vice-chairofahe board of
Wendy's/Arby's Group, Inc., a holder of approxinha®8.9 million principal amount of the Compan@sries A Notes plus
$115,767.08 of unpaid and accrued interest as of Ap, 2010. Since January 1, 2009, none of tlecjpal amount of the Series
Notes held by Wendy's/Arby's Group has been repaiti$3,550,620 has been paid in interest on thesS@rNotes held by
Wendy's/Arby's Group. The Series A Notes held byniyés/Arby's Group, Inc. are expected to be disphdifor an aggregate
amount of approximately $31 million plus all unpaiad accrued interest in cash by the Company #eedflosing date of the
Transactions. Mr. May took no part in the consitlereof the Acquisition or the Stock Issuances.

. Jonathan W. Trutter, our Chief Executive Officeda@amember of the Board, owns approximately $63¥i0@rincipal amount of
Series A Notes plus $1,536.51 of unpaid and accintedest as of April 15, 2010. Since January D®0one of the principal
amount of the Series A Notes held by Mr. Truttes haen repaid and $47,127 has been paid in intbeeSeries A Notes held by
Mr. Trutter. The Series A Notes held by Mr. Trutéee expected to be discharged for an aggregatargrnb$408,000 plus unpaid
and accrued interest in cash by the Company deedflbsing date of the Transactions.

. During April 2009, Mr. Trutter committed to invesp to $500,000 in DPLC, of which approximately $;08® was called by
DPLC. In connection with the DPLC Restructuring,l@Pwill make a distribution to Mr. Trutter equal lds entire capital account
balance.

Our Controls for Approving Transactions with Related Persons

Our policies and procedures for the reviapproval and ratification of our transactions withated persons consist of various conflict of
interest provisions in our Code of Ethics, inclugithat our directors report to the Board any cohfif interest they may have with respect to any
matter being considered by the Board and thatelated persons involved in our portfolio managenwdtain the prior approval of DCM's Chief
Compliance Officer for their personal purchaseseagfurities in private offerings.
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STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS FOR THE 2011 ANNUAL MEETING
We expect that our 2011 annual meeting lvélheld within 30 days of June 9, 2011.

A stockholder who wishes to introduce aposal for consideration at our next annual meatiag seek to have that proposal included in our
proxy statement and proxy card pursuant to Rule8ldader the Exchange Act. For stockholders whdnwaspresent a proposal to be considered
for inclusion in our proxy statement and for coesation at the 2011 annual meeting, pursuant te R4&-8 under the Exchange Act, the proposal
must be in writing and delivered to our Corporager8tary at our executive offices at 6250 NortheRRRoad, 9th Floor, Rosemont, lllinois 600
by personal delivery or U.S. Mail no later thanuany 11, 2011. The proposal must otherwise satisfyrequirements of Rule 14a-8. The
submission of a stockholder proposal does not gieeahat it will be included.

For stockholders who wish to present a psapfor nominations or other business for consitien at the 2011 annual meeting, but who do
not intend for the proposal to be included in onoxy statement, in compliance with applicable state and our Bylaws, the proposal must be in
writing and delivered to our Corporate Secretarguatexecutive offices at 6250 North River Roadh, Boor, Rosemont, Illinois 60018, by
personal delivery or U.S. Mail no earlier than Daber 12, 2010 and no later than 5:00 p.m., Easitewe on January 11, 2011. However, if the
date of the annual meeting is advanced or delayaddrse than 30 days from the first anniversaryhef preceding year's annual meeting, a
proposal or nomination by the stockholder must d&lesdred not earlier than the 150th day prior te date of such annual meeting and not later
than 5:00 p.m. EDT, on the later of (i) the 1208y grior to the date of such annual meeting ottl{ig) 10th day following the day on which public
announcement of the date of such meeting is fiexeanThe notice must also satisfy the other remergs with respect to such proposals and
nominations contained in our Bylaws.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH THE BOARD

Stockholders wishing to communicate with Board should send any communication to: Corpdsateretary, Deerfield Capital Corp., 6250
North River Road, 9th Floor, Rosemont, lllinois @80Any such communication must state the numbehafes beneficially owned by t
stockholder making the communication. Our CorpoSsteretary will forward the communication to th#é Board, to a committee of our Board or
to any individual director or directors, as appraf@. If a communication is unduly hostile, threwtg, illegal or similarly inappropriate, our
Corporate Secretary is authorized to discard timenconication or take appropriate legal action regaythe communication.

The Audit Committee has established prooesiuvhich are posted on our website, for directificers and interested parties to submit
concerns and complaints regarding our companyeredhenly, confidentially or anonymously. Intergsparties may use these procedures, which
include a toll-free telephone number, to commumicgith our non-management directors.

ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K

Our 2009 Annual Report will be mailed todtholders with this Proxy Statement. If you wolilke to receive an additional copy of our 2009
Annual Report, please follow the instructions setH under the heading "Where You Can Find Morermfation" below.

HOUSEHOLDING

Unless we have received contrary instrinstjave may send a single copy of our Annual Repuwtxy Statement and Notice to any house
at which two or more stockholders reside if we dadi the stockholders are members of the same faRalgh stockholder in the household will
continue to
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receive a separate proxy card. This process, krasvhouseholding," reduces the volume of dupligd@tamation received at your household and
helps to reduce our expenses.

If you would like to receive your own sétomur annual disclosure documents this year oufare years, follow the instructions described
below. Similarly, if you share an address with &meotstockholder and together both of you would tikeeceive only a single set of our annual
disclosure documents, follow these instructions.

If your shares are registered in your olmae, please contact us at our executive officé2%s® North River Road, 9th Floor, Rosemont,
lllinois 60018, Attention: Corporate Secretaryjriform us of your request. If a broker holds yohares, please contact your broker directly.

SOLICITATION OF PROXIES

The Company will pay the cost of solicitipgoxies, including the expenses related to thetipg and mailing of this Proxy Statement. In
addition to solicitation by mail and, without addital compensation for such services, proxies neagdiicited personally, or by telephone or
telecopy, by our directors, officers or other enyples. We will also pay approximately $9,500 (pkisnbursement of out-of-pocket expenses) to
Georgeson to assist with the solicitation of prexi@eorgeson may solicit proxies by telephone loerotlectronic means or in person. The
Company will also reimburse for routine out-of-petkxpenses in connection with this proxy soli@tat The Company will also request that
banking institutions, brokerage firms, custodidnsstees, nominees, fiduciaries and other likeiggforward the solicitation materials to the
beneficial owners of Common Stock held of recordsbgh persons, and the Company will, upon reqUesiah record holders, reimburse
forwarding charges and out-of-pocket expensesdttitian, the Company will indemnify Georgeson agaiany losses arising out of the firm's
proxy soliciting services on our behalf.

OTHER MATTERS

Our Board currently knows of no other besimto be presented for consideration at the Mgdfimny other matters properly come before
Meeting, the proxies will be voted on such matteraccordance with the judgment of the persons waaseproxies therein, or their substitutes,
present and acting at the Meeting. Under applicktaeyland law, our stockholders do not have disseshor appraisal rights in connection with
the matters being voted upon at the Meeting.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

We file annual, quarterly and current reépoproxy statements and other information with$iC under the Exchange Act. You may read
and copy such material at the SEC's Public Refer&uom located at 100 F Street, N.E., Washingto@, R0549. You may also obtain copies of
such material from the SEC at prescribed rates fityng to the Public Reference Room of the SEC, E®Xreet, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549.
You may obtain information on the operation of Bwlic Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-8BG-9330. You can also find the
Company's SEC filings at the SEC's websitbtit://www.sec.govYou may also obtain copies of this Proxy Statetna@id any other reports or
information that we file with the SEC, free of char by written request to Deerfield Capital CoAdtention: Investor Relations, 6250 North Riy
Road, 9th Floor, Rosemont, lllinois 60018 or bylingl(773) 380-1600.

Our website ibttp://www.deerfieldcapital.comThe information contained on our website is mabrporated into this Proxy Statement. The
following documents are posted on our website,@rdalso be obtained from us by written requeBteerfield Capital Corp., Attention: Investor
Relations, 6250 North River Road, 9th Floor, Rosetnktlinois 60018 or by calling (773) 380-1600:

. Our Charter;
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. Our Bylaws;
. The charters of each of our standing Board comestte
. Our Corporate Governance Guidelines;

. Our Code of Ethics; and

. The procedures of the Audit Committee for the swdsioin, receipt and handling of concerns and comiglaegarding internal
controls, auditing and compliance.

Within the time period required by the S&@l the NASDAQ Listing Rules, we will post on ouehsite any amendment to our Code of
Ethics and any waiver applicable to our seniorrfirial officers, executive officers or directors.dddition, information concerning purchases and
sales of our equity securities by our directors Sadtion 16 reporting officers is posted on our siteh

INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE

The SEC allows us to "incorporate by refiee into this Proxy Statement documents we filthilie SEC, meaning that we are disclosing
important information to you by referring you toctiner document filed separately with the SEC. Tiierimation that we incorporate by reference
is considered to be a part of this Proxy Statenaamd, later information that we file with the SEQlwipdate and supersede that information. This
Proxy Statement incorporates by reference the deatsrset forth below that have been previouslyl filéth the SEC:

. Our registration statement on Form 8-A (File Nol{B255) filed with the SEC on December 7, 2009;

. The financial statements, selected financial dabected quarterly financial data, changes in asagdeements with accountants,
management's discussion and analysis of finanoraition and results of operations and marketdisklosures and risk factors
contained in our 2009 Annual Report, filed with ®EC on March 23, 2010; and

. Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC onribta25, 2010.

We also incorporate by reference into Brisxy Statement additional documents that we mayfith the SEC from the date of this Proxy
Statement to the date of the Meeting. These indlafderts such as quarterly reports on Form 10-Qcanent reports on Form 8-K.

This Proxy Statement is accompanied bypy of the following document, which is incorporategreference into this Proxy Statement to
the extent set forth above:

. Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year eshid®cember 31, 2009, filed with the SEC on March23.0.

A copy of all documents incorporated irtistProxy Statement by reference will be provideithout charge, upon written or oral request, by
first class mail and within one business day of @eeipt of such request. Requests for such doctsnséiould be directed to Legal Department,
Deerfield Capital Corp., 6250 North River Road, Bthor, Rosemont, Illinois 60018, or you may ask tlegal Department by calling (773) 380-
1600.

THIS PROXY IS SOLICITED ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF D IRECTORS OF
DEERFIELD CAPITAL CORP.
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Report of Independent Public Accountants

To the Members
Columbus Nova Credit Investment Management, LLC

We have audited the accompanying balaneetsiof Columbus Nova Credit Investment Managenmér@, as of December 31, 2009, 2008
and 2007, and the related statements of operagiotisnembers' equity and cash flows for the yeamns émded. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the management of Columbus Noved@ Investment Management, LLC. Our responsipiitto express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance aatiiting standards generally accepted in the UrStates of America. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reabtinassurance about whether the financial statesnaea free of material misstatement. An a
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence stipgdhe amounts and disclosures in the finarsti@lements. An audit also includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significantestés made by management, as well as evaluatiraytrall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audits provide a reasonablésfasour opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statement®ned to above present fairly, in all materialpests, the financial position of Columbus Nova G
Investment Management, LLC as of December 31, 20008 and 2007, and its results of operations asti dows for the years then ended, in
conformity with accounting principles generally apted in the United States of America.

/s/ J.H. Cohn LLP
New York, New York
April 2, 2010
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COLUMBUS NOVA CREDIT INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT, LLC
(A Limited Liability Company)

STATEMENTS OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' EQUI TY
DECEMBER 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007

(Dollar Amounts In Thousands)

2009 2008 2007
ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 317 $ 51 $ 95
Management fees and accounts receiv 2,86¢ 1,401 1,33¢
Due from related part — 87¢ —
Other current asse 107 57 23€
Total current asse 3,28¢ 2,38t 1,667
Equipment and improvements, 1 20z 352 512
Other asset 11€ 11€ 11€
Totals $ 3,60¢ $ 2,85: $ 2,29t
LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expel $ 465 $ 386 $ 1,30¢
Interest payabl — — 1
Total current liabilities 465 38¢€ 1,31(
Loan payable to memb: — — 10t
Deferred ren 67 99 132
Total liabilities 532 48t 1,543
Commitments
Members' equit 3,07¢ 2,36¢ 74¢
Totals $ 3,606 $ 2,850 $ 2,29t

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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COLUMBUS NOVA CREDIT INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT, LLC
(A Limited Liability Company)

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND MEMBERS' EQUITY
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009, 2008, 2007

(Dollar Amounts In Thousands)

2009 2008 2007
Revenue! $ 7,74C $ 7,86¢ $ 7,98:
Operating expense
Staff costs 3,83( 3,22¢ 4,30(
Occupancy cosi 15& 142 93
Sales and marketir 35 54 74
Management fee 1,99( 1,10¢ 76
Depreciation and amortizatic 151 18C 152
General and administratiy 50z 66E 547
Totals 6,66: 5,361 5,24:
Income from operation 1,07 2,50z 2,741
Other income (expense
Interest incom 65 36 42
Interest expens — — (365)
Totals 65 36 (323
Net income 1,142 2,53¢ 2,41¢
Members' equity (deficiency), beginning of y 2,36¢ 74¢ (1,670
Contributions 50C 25C —
Distributions (93€) (1,16%) —
Members' equity, end of ye $ 3074 $ 2,36¢ $  74E

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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COLUMBUS NOVA CREDIT INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT, LLC
(A Limited Liability Company)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009, 2008, 2007

(Dollar Amounts In Thousands)

2009 2008 2007
Operating activities
Net income $ 1,14: $ 2,53t $ 2,41¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigenl by
operating activities
Depreciation and amortizatic 15C 18C 152
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Management fees receival (1,467) (65) (511
Due from related part 18¢€ (87€) 6
Other current asse (50) 17¢ (152
Other asset — — (26)
Accounts payable and accrued exper 79 (923) 28C
Interest payabl — (D) (337)
Deferred ren (32 (33 (23
Net cash provided by operating activit 12 99¢ 1,807
Investing activitie—purchase of equipment and improveme — (20 (162
Financing activities
Repayment of loans from members, — (105) (2,895
Contributions 50C 25C —
Distributions (24€) (2,169 —
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi 254 (1,029) (2,895
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis. 26€ (44) (2,250
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of 51 95 1,34t
Cash and cash equivalents, end of \ $ 317 $ 51 95
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow informati
Interest paic $ — $ — 701
Supplemental disclosure of noncash investing amehfiing
activities:
Distribution of related party receivak $ 69C $ — —

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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COLUMBUS NOVA CREDIT INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT, LLC
(A Limited Liability Company)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Dollar Amounts In Thousands)
Note 1—Organization and summary of significant accenting policies:
Organization and basis of accounting:

Columbus Nova Credit Investment Managemieo, ("CNCIM" or the "Company") was formed as a ited liability company in Delaware
on January 5, 2006 and has an unlimited life. Tom@any operates as a Collateralized Debt ObliggtiB®O") manager. As a CDO manager,
the Company works with independent and relatedypaviestors to acquire publicly-traded corporatni®, corporate debt and structured product
instruments ("Assets") that are held in leveragezt&l purpose vehicles ("SPVs").

The Company establishes the SPVs withrttent of achieving a targeted asset size (the '&arggenerally between $400 million and
$600 million). During the initial stages of the SPt¥le "Warehouse Period"), the Company arrangeg tron financing (generally between twc
four months) from commercial lending institutiontsliming warehouse lines of credit which account osignificant amount of the investment
capital of an SPV. Equity investors (the "Investpmovide the remaining capital. These Investoesia a first-loss position.

Once the SPV is near or has exceeded ttgefdhe Company replaces the warehouse linemitte permanent financing in the form of
public debt (the "Securitization Process"). Theusiization Process involves the Company engagiagarities underwriting firm to market,
issue and sell public securities ("CDO Debt") ohdléof the SPV. The proceeds from the sale ofGB®© Debt, net of underwriting fees, are used
to repay the warehouse line of credit and to pamaaagement fee to the Company. As part of the 8zation Process, the SPV Investors can
convert to CDO equity holders or new Investors tede their place.

The Company has full discretionary investtrauthority and is responsible for making spedicisions to purchase or sell assets under its
management. As of December 31, 2009, 2008 and 200 Company serves as the CDO Manager for foursSPV

Use of estimates:

The preparation of financial statementsdnformity with accounting principles generally apted in the United States of America requires
management to make estimates and assumptiondfinatt@ertain reported amounts and disclosuresoAtingly, actual results could differ from
those estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents include cashrik bccounts and deposits in money market accotagh equivalents are considered to be short-
term, highly liquid investments with maturitiestbfee months or less when purchased. At times, swastments may exceed Federally insured
limits. CNCIM reduces its exposure to credit riskrbaintaining such deposits with major financiatitutions and monitoring their credit ratings.
As of December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, the Compasyo cash and cash equivalents in excess ofdfigdasured limits.
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COLUMBUS NOVA CREDIT INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT, LLC
(A Limited Liability Company)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(Dollar Amounts In Thousands)
Note 1—Organization and summary of significant accenting policies: (Continued)
Equipment and improvements, net:

Computer equipment, office furniture andipqent and leasehold improvements are statedsatBepreciation is primarily computed using
straight-line method over the estimated usefuldisbéthe assets. Amortization of leasehold improsets is computed using the straight-line
method over the lesser of the estimated usefu lofehe assets or the lease terms.

Income taxes:

The Company is a limited liability corpdmat and is treated as a partnership for incometapose. Because its income or loss is allocated tc
the individual members for tax reporting purposesprovision for income taxes was recorded.

The Company adopted the new accountingricertainty in income taxes guidance on Janua®9Q9. The adoption of that guidance did not
result in the recognition of any unrecognized taréfits and the Company has no unrecognized tagfiteeat December 31, 2009. The Compa
U.S. Federal and state income tax returns prifistal year 2006 are closed and management cofiifireialuates expiring statutes of limitations,
audits, proposed settlements, changes in tax lawaw authoritative rulings.

The Company recognizes interest and pesadissociated with tax matters as operating expemkincludes accrued interest and penalties
with accrued expenses in the statements of asdisditities and members' equity.

Revenues:

The Company has an agreement with eacht8P"y the Company, on a quarterly basis, an asapgement fee calculated as a percentage
of assets under management once the securitizatimess is complete. In addition, the Company @an eertain additional fees associated with
the formation of a CDO.

Subsequent events:

The Company has evaluated events and thosa for potential recognition or disclosure thgh April 2, 2010, which is the date the
financial statements were available to be issued.

Note 2—Employee benefit plan:

The Company sponsors a defined contributidh(k) savings plan for the benefit of its eligi@mployees (the "Plan"). Contributions to the
Plan are made at the discretion of the Companytheoyears ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 266%jbutions to the Plan were $53, $59
and $145, respectively.

Note 3—Lease commitments:

The Company leases its premises under aratipg lease that calls for the payment of fixezhthly rental payments plus its proportionate
share of real estate taxes. In addition, the Compas
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COLUMBUS NOVA CREDIT INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT, LLC
(A Limited Liability Company)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(Dollar Amounts In Thousands)

Note 3—Lease commitments: (Continued)

sublet a portion of its facilities to Columbus Ndveal Estate Acquisition Group, LLC ("CRAG"), aatdd party. The lease and the sublease
expire on October 31, 2011. Rent expense and ritiaine are recognized on a straight-line basis theeterms of the respective leases.
Minimum future rental commitments under the nonedaltle lease, net of sublease rental income irsyaarsequent to December 31, 2009 are as
follows:

Year Ending December 31 Lease Sublease Net
2010 $ 19 $ (43) $ 15€
2011 17C (37) 13z

Totals $ 365 $ (80) $ 28¢

Rent incurred under the noncancelable diperéease, net of rental income for the years dridecember 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 were as
follows:

Year Ending December 31 Expense Income

2009 $ 112 $ (59
2008 11C (50)
2007 79 (31)

Note 4—Equipment and improvements, net:
Equipment and improvements, net of deptiecieand amortization, are as follows:

Useful
Life 2009 2008 2007

Computer equipmer 3years $ 19¢ $ 19¢ $ 18t
Office furniture and equipme 5 years 264 264 23t
Leasehold improvemen 5 years 294 294 317

757 757 737

Less accumulated depreciati
and amortizatiol 55E 40t 22F

Totals $ 20z $ 35z $ 51z

Depreciation and amortization for the yesrded December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 was $180,a&hd $152, respectively.
Note 5—Other related party transactions:

The Company has entered into a loan withrBp Investment, Ltd., ("Bounty") a member, whiatoyides the Company with up to
$5.5 million to be used for its working capital deeThe loan bears interest at LIBOR plus 1,00@shzsnts, is due in January 2013 and can be
pre-paid at any time without penalty. There wadbalance outstanding as of December 31, 2009 an8l. Z&0of December 31, 2007, the balance
outstanding was $105. Interest expense duringehe gnded December 31, 2007 was $365.
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COLUMBUS NOVA CREDIT INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT, LLC
(A Limited Liability Company)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(Dollar Amounts In Thousands)
Note 5—Other related party transactions: (Continued

In connection with securitizations that weced during the year ended December 31, 2007%tsting fees aggregating $1,005 were earned
and received from Renova U.S. Holding, Ltd. ("RU$HI{'company which generated revenues from sezatiitins and management fees from
SPVs that had previously been entities owned by RUS

The Company has an operating agreementRatiova U.S. Management, LLC ("RUSM") to perforwaaiety of services for which it pays
management fee. Among the services provided by RittSitde Company are administration, accountingglleigeasury management, portfolio
administration, due diligence and strategic investhservice. The management fee is based on RUgMHsiting expenses. For 2009, 2008 and
2007, management fees totaled $1,990, $1,100 ahd&Spectively.

During 2008, the Company advanced $851eiodRa, Inc. pursuant to a loan agreement that lie@rest at 8% and matures in December
2012. Interest accrued on the loan was $65 andi@iBg the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2888ctively. During 2009, the Company
received payments of $251 and distributed its sgbtthe remaining balance of $690 to Bounty.

Note 6—Subsequent event:
Subsequent to year end, Bounty enteredaintagreement pursuant to which it agreed to Belf &s equity interests in the Company.
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Exhibit A

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

We consent to the inclusion in this DefirgtProxy Statement of Deerfield Capital Corp. of ceport dated April 2, 2010 relating to the

financial statements of Columbus Nova Credit Investt Management LLC as of December 31, 2009, 2668807 and for the years then
ended.

/s/ J.H. Cohn LLP

New York, New York
May 10, 2010
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Annex A
EXECUTION VERSION
ACQUISITION AND INVESTMENT AGREEMENT
BY AND AMONG
DEERFIELD CAPITAL CORP.
BOUNTY INVESTMENTS, LLC
AND
COLUMBUS NOVA CREDIT INVESTMENTS MANAGEMENT, LLC

DATED AS OF MARCH 22, 2010
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ACQUISITION AND INVESTMENT AGREEMENT

ACQUISITION AND INVESTMENT AGREEMENT, dateds of March 22, 2010 (thisAgreement), by and among Deerfield Capital
Corp., a Maryland corporation (theCbmpany'), Bounty Investments, LLC, a Delaware limitedbliity company (the ‘Investor") and Columbus
Nova Credit Investments Management, LLC, a Delaiariged liability company and wholly owned subsidy of the Investor (the Manager"”
and collectively with the Investor and the Compahg, " Parties").

WHEREAS, the Investor currently owns allloé issued and outstanding Equity Interests oMhaager (the Units");

WHEREAS, the Investor desires to sell, trelCompany desires to purchase, upon the termsaitions stated in this Agreement, all of
the Units (the 'Unit Purchasé’) in consideration for the issuance by the Compafighares of common stock of the Company, parev@u001
per share (the Common StocK) in an amount equal to the Stock Consideration;

WHEREAS, concurrently with this Agreemethe Company desires to sell senior subordinatedastible notes (the Convertible Notes)
upon the terms and conditions stated in that ce@anior Subordinated Convertible Notes Purchaseekgent (the Convertible Notes
Agreemen") by and between the Company and the other pasiigstory thereto, convertible into the Conversgtrares in accordance with the
Convertible Notes Agreement;

WHEREAS, Deerfield & Company LLC, an llliisdimited liability company and indirect wholly oved subsidiary of the Company (the "
Senior Note Issuél), desires to repurchase the Series A Senior 8ddiotes (the Series A Senior Noté} and Series B Senior Secured Notes
(the "Series B Senior Notesand together with the Series A Senior Notes,"tBenior Note$) upon the terms and conditions stated in thataas
Payment Agreement and Release (tRayment Agreemefit dated as of March 22, 2010, by and between &rmédB Note Issuer, the Company
and each holder of the Senior Notes (such tramsgdtie "Debt Buyback);

WHEREAS, the proceeds of the Convertibleddshall be used to finance, in part, the Debtaual;

WHEREAS, concurrently with this Agreemethe Manager and the Company are entering intocévdain Transition Services Agreement,
dated as of the date hereof;

WHEREAS, a special committee of the BodrDioectors of the Company (theSpecial Committe® has unanimously determined that this
Agreement and the transactions contemplated henebgdvisable and in the best interests of the @ompnd its stockholders and has
unanimously recommended to the Board of Directbti® Company that the Board of Directors of therpany approve this Agreement and the
transactions contemplated hereby;

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Canp has determined that this Agreement and thsadaions contemplated hereby are
advisable and in the best interests of the Companlyits stockholders and has approved this Agreearghthe transactions contemplated hereby
and resolved to recommend that the stockholdetisso€ompany approve the issuance of the Stock @eradion pursuant to this Agreement and
the Conversion Shares issuable pursuant to theettiole Notes; and

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to make cerggimesentations, warranties, covenants and agresfimeconnection with the transactions
contemplated hereby and also to prescribe certaiditions to the transactions contemplated byAlgreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the naltcovenants, representations, warranties ancagnats set forth in this Agreement, the
receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby ackremged,
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upon the terms and subject to the conditions af Mlgreement, and intending to be legally boundtherthe Parties agree as follows:

ARTICLE 1
DEFINITIONS

Section 1.1 Defined Terms.
() For all purposes of this Agreemeimg, following terms shall have the respective megsset forth in this Section 1.1:

"Advisory Contract means any Contract (including any fund managed Berson or its Affiliates, and any side lettaramy other similar
written agreements relating to such Contract) umdech any Person or its Affiliates provide Investmh Management Services to any other
Person.

" Affiliate " means, with respect to any Person, any otheroRedirectly or indirectly through one or more imediaries, controlling,
controlled by or under common control with suchg®er The term "control” (including, with correlagivneaning, the terms "controlled by" and
"under common control with"), as applied to any$®er means the possession, directly or indireoflyhe power to direct or cause the directio
the management and policies of such Person, whetiargh the ownership of voting or other secusitiey contract or otherwise.

"Ancillary Document$ means the Stockholders Agreement substantiaftigerform of Exhibit A hereto, the Registration Rigg Agreement
substantially in the form of Exhibit B hereto, theansition Services Agreement and the Convertiliéesl Agreement.

"Assumed Liabilitie$ means all Liabilities (whether absolute, accrumhtingent, fixed or otherwise, or whether du¢odbecome due)
whenever occurring and arising out of, relatingrésulting from or incurred in connection with ttie Manager CLO Management Agreements
(including any claim or actions relating theretrnination of, removal for cause of the ManagethasCollateral Manager (including pursuant to
any "key man" provision) thereunder or the accéi@naliquidation or optional redemption of secig@i#t by a Manager CLO Issuer or any loss or
deferral of revenue streams under such Manager Ka@agement Agreements) or the performance thereafipaction taken pursuant thereto,
(ii) the Employment Agreements, (iii) Manager Shaweh Liabilities, and (iv) any action taken or cadise be taken by or on behalf of the
Company or Manager at the direction of the Companis Affiliates, agents or contractors pursuantite Transition Services Agreement.

"Books and Recordsmeans all files, documents, instruments, pagmrsks and records relating to the business of sdAemcluding
financial statements, Tax Returns and related ywagers and letters from accountants, budgetsngriiidelines, ledgers, journals, deeds, title
policies, minute books, stock certificates and tspakock transfer ledgers, contracts, customes, kkstmputer files and programs, retrieval
programs, operating data and plans and environmsidies and plans.

"Business Day means a day other than Saturday, Sunday or drey day on which banks located in New York, NewRkyare authorized or
obligated by Law to close.

"CFTC" means the Commodity Futures Trading Commissioangrsuccessor entity thereto.

"Client" means any Person to whom Investment Managemenvic8s are providedyrovided, that no investor in any such Person shall be
deemed a Client.

"CLO Administrator* means any administrator under any administragigreement with a CLO Issuer.
"CLO Indenture' means the Company CLO Indentures and the Mar@gérIndentures.
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"CLO Investor' means an investor in any securities issued biz@ Gsuer or a Person entitled to exercise votigigts of such investor.
"CLO Issuer' means each of the Company CLO Issuers and theygarCLO Issuers.
"CLO Truste€ means any trustee under any CLO Indenture.
"Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amdend

"Commodity Exchange Atimeans the Commodity Exchange Act of 1936, as a@e@nand the rules and regulations promulgated
thereunder.

"Company Alternative Proposaimeans any offer or proposal by any Person otiean the Investor or any of its Affiliates concegeny
(a) merger, consolidation, other business comhnaii similar transaction involving the Companyaay of its Subsidiaries, (b) sale, lease,
license or other disposition directly or indireclly merger, consolidation, business combinatioarekexchange, joint venture or otherwise, of
assets of the Company (including Equity Intere$tny of its Subsidiaries) or any Subsidiary of @@mpany representing 10% or more of the
consolidated assets, revenues or net income @ahgpany and its Subsidiaries, (c) issuance oraradther disposition (including by way of
merger, consolidation, business combination, seacbange, joint venture or similar transactionfqfiity Interests representing 10% or more of
the voting power of the Company, (d) transactiosaries of transactions in which any Person wiljui@ beneficial ownership or the right to
acquire beneficial ownership or any group (as defim Section 13(d) of the Exchange Act) has beeméd which beneficially owns, or has the
right to acquire beneficial ownership of, Equitydrests representing 10% or more of the voting pafthe Company or (e) any combination of
the foregoing.

"Company Articles of Incorporatidhshall mean the Articles of Amendment and Restatdrof the Company, as amended and supplem
as of the date hereof.

"Company Benefit Plarfsmeans all "employee benefit plans" (within theamieg of Section 3(3) of ERISA, including multierogér plans
within the meaning of Section 3(37) of ERISA), albdequity purchase, equity option, severance, egtpkent, change-in-control, fringe benefit,
bonus, incentive, deferred compensation (includiogqualified deferred compensation), employee krzhall other employee benefit plans,
agreements, programs, policies or other arrangesnehiether or not subject to ERISA (including angding mechanism therefor now in effec
required in the future as a result of the transasticontemplated hereby or otherwise), whethetewrior oral, under which (i) any current or
former employee, director or consultant of the Campor any of its Subsidiaries has any presentitoré right to benefits and which are
contributed to, maintained or sponsored by the Gomr any of its Subsidiaries or (ii) the Companyny of its Subsidiaries has any present or
future Liability.

"Company Bylaws shall mean the Bylaws of the Company, as ameadédsupplemented as of the date hereof.

"Company CLO Issuérmeans Bridgeport CLO Ltd., Bridgeport CLO Il Lt&uckingham CDO Ltd., Buckingham CDO Il Ltd.,
Buckingham CDO llI Ltd., Burr Ridge CLO Plus Lt@FR Middle Market CLO Ltd., Cumberland Il CLO Ltdzprest Creek CLO Ltd., Gillespie
CLO PLC, Knollwood CDO Ltd., Knollwood CDO II LtdL,ong Grove CLO Ltd., Market Square CLO Ltd., Magtpe Park CLO Ltd., Mid Ocei
CBO 2000-1 Ltd., Mid Ocean CBO 2001-1 Ltd., NortkeaCDO |, Limited, Oceanview CBO I, Ltd., Pinett@®0O Ltd., River North CDO Ltd.,
Rosemont CLO, Ltd., Schiller Park CLO Ltd., Valewéstment Grade CDO Ltd., Valeo Investment Grad®©dD td., Robeco CDO Il Limited,
Mayfair Euro CDO | B.V. and Aramis CDO.

"Company CLO Issuer Documetfitsmeans each final or supplemental offering memduwam indenture and supplemental indenture (each a
Company CLO Indentureand collectively the
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" Company CLO Indenturé$, management agreement, trust agreement, caladministration agreement, insurance agreemedgée
agreement and swap agreement entered into, oriusednection with an offering of securities, b€ampany CLO Issuer.

"Company CLO Management Agreeniemteans the collateral management agreement betihegbompany or applicable Subsidiary of the
Company and each Company CLO Issuer.

"Company Material Adverse Effécineans any effect, event, circumstance or chamafe(a) is or would be reasonably likely to be,
individually or in the aggregate, materially adwets the business, financial condition or resultgperation of the Company and its Subsidiaries,
taken as a whole, (it being agreed that in the eofa cancellation of, notice of cancellation tei;mination of, removal for cause of the Company
as the collateral manager (including pursuant {o"&ey person" provision) under or the acceleratl@uidation or optional redemption of
securities issued by a Company CLO Issuer witheesip the Company CLO Management Agreements otlaerwith respect to Oceanview
CBO |, Ltd., it shall be deemed to be materiallyede to the Company and its Subsidiaries, takenvasole, only if the loss of the expected
future revenue stream would decrease the net greakme of the Company CLO Management Agreemengxaess of $6,000,000 and for
purposes of this calculation, the net present vafueanagement fees will be based upon the assongpdietailed in Section 1.1 of the Company
Disclosure Schedulejprovided, however, that none of the following effects, events orraes shall be deemed in themselves, either aloime or
combination, to constitute, and none of them dhallaken into account in determining whether tte®been or will be, a Company Material
Adverse Effect: (i) any change in general economiditical or financial market conditions (inclugjrconditions in the stock markets or other
capital markets and changes in interest or excheatge), (ii) any change in the market price oditrg volume of the Common Stock after the ¢
hereof (it being understood that the underlyinguinstances, events or reasons giving rise to acty guange can be taken into account in
determining whether a Company Material Adverse &ffes occurred or would reasonably be expecteddar), (iii) any effect, event,
circumstance or change resulting from a chang@iGble Law or accounting or principal after thete of this Agreement, (iv) any effect, eve
circumstance or change resulting from failure kyy @ompany to meet any projections, forecasts, re&or earning predictions, estimates or
budgets for any period prior to, on or after theedzf this Agreement (it being understood thatuhderlying circumstances, events or reasons
giving rise to any such change can be taken intowtt in determining whether a Company Material émwe Effect has occurred or would
reasonably be expected to occur) or (v) an outboeascalation of war, armed hostilities, actseofdrism, political instability, natural catastr@ph
or other national or international calamity, crisisemergency, or any governmental or other resptmany of the foregoing, in each case,
whether occurring within or outside the United 8saprovided, that, in the case of clauses (i), (iii) and (v) suckwtence, condition, change,
development, event or effect shall only be excluttetthe extent it does not have a disproportioadterse effect on the business, financial
condition, or results of operation of the Compang ds Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, as comparether Persons engaged in the investment
management business or (b) would prevent the comsdion of the transactions contemplated hereby.

"Computer Softwarémeans the computer software set forth in Se@®id2(a) of the Manager Disclosure Schedule.

"Confidentiality Agreemeritmeans that certain Confidentiality Agreementedas of September 15, 2009, by and between thadéamn:
the Company.

"Consents means all consents, notices, authorizations, thmvs, Orders, waivers, approvals, licenses, adatizhs, certificates,
declarations, filings or expiration of waiting paufs, non-objection or confirmation by a rating agethat an action or event will not result in the
reduction or withdrawal of a rating.
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"Constituent Documentsmeans, with respect to any Person that is a catjom, its articles or certificate of incorporatior memorandum
and articles of association, as the case may lgehydaws, with respect to any Person that is angaship, its certificate of partnership and
partnership agreement, with respect to any Pefsarid a limited liability company, its certificaté formation and limited liability company or
operating agreement, with respect to any Persdnglzatrust or other entity, its declaration oresment of trust or constituent document, and
respect to any other Person, its comparable orgtoimal documents, in each case, as amended ataést

"Contract" means any written or oral contract, agreemeagdelicense, indenture, note, bond, mortgage, lnatrument, conditional sale
contract, guarantee commitment or other arrangemenderstanding, undertaking or obligation.

"Conversion Sharésmeans the Common Stock issuable upon conversitredConvertible Notes in accordance with the teand
conditions of Convertible Notes and the Convertitges Agreement.

"DCM " means Deerfield Capital Management LLC, a Delawemnited liability company and indirect wholly owd Subsidiary of the
Company.

"Employment Agreemertsneans the employment agreements between the Manad each of the Key Employees, dated as ofateaf
this Agreement.

"Environmental Law means any Law relating to the protection of peibiealth or the environment, the release or thneateelease of
Hazardous Material, natural resources or natuslueee damages, or occupational safety or health.

"Equity Interest’' means any type of equity ownership in an entiitgluding partnership interests in a general pastme or limited
partnership, membership interests in a limitediliigbcompany, stock or similar security in a corption or the comparable instruments for any
other entity or any other interest entitling thédeo thereof to participate in the profits of suettity, the proceeds or the disposition of suclitent
or any portion thereof or to vote for the governbgly of such entity.

"ERISA" means the Employee Retirement Income Securityofhd974, as amended.

"Estimated Manager Shutdown Liabilitiesneans the good faith estimate by the InvestaghefManager Shutdown Liabilities in the
categories set forth on Schedule 2.3(a) as ofldseof business on the Closing Date.

"Exchange Act means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, asxdeth and the rules and regulations promulgata@tineler.
"FINRA" means the Financial Industry Regulatory Authodtyany successor entity thereto.

"Form ADV" means SEC Form ADV under the Investment Advigers

"GAAP" means United States generally accepted accouptingiples, as amended from time to time.

"Governmental Approvalsmeans all Consents of a Governmental Authoriguieed in connection with the transactions contextgul
hereby.

"Governmental Authority means any foreign, federal, state or local goremntal, judicial, legislative, regulatory or adnsimative agency,
commission or authority, and any court, tribunahdsitrator(s) of competent jurisdiction, includiBglf-Regulatory Organizations.

"Hazardous Material means any material, substance, waste, constjtaempound, pollutant or contaminant including pketam (including
crude oil or any fraction thereof or any petrolepraduct or waste) subject to regulation or whichldaive rise to Liability under Environmental
Law.
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"IFRS" means the International Financial Reporting Séadsd, as amended from time to time.

"Indebtednes$ means (i) all Liabilities for borrowed money, wther current or funded, secured or unsecured péityations evidenced by
bonds, debentures, notes or similar instruments afirLiabilities in respect of mandatorily rededsteaor purchasable Equity Interests or secur
convertible into Equity Interests; (ii) all Liakikes for the deferred purchase price of propeiiiy;all Liabilities in respect of any lease of (other
arrangement conveying the right to use) real osqual property, or a combination thereof, whichbllities are required to be classified and
accounted for under IFRS or GAAP, as applicableagital leases; (iv) all indebtedness of othecsised by a Lien on any asset of a Person other
than a Permitted Lien; (v) to the extent not othisewincluded by clauses (i) through (iv), any gasydy a Person of any indebtedness of any
other Person; (vi) all Liabilities or obligation§the type referred to in clauses (i) through (pther Persons secured by any Lien on any property
or assets of a Person (whether or not such Lighititobligation is assumed by such Person) othaar thPermitted Lierprovidedthat
Indebtedness shall exclude obligations under rdéyase agreements and related hedging transactidrnsbéigations due to brokers and broker-
dealers in the ordinary course of business.

"Intellectual Property’ means all (i) foreign and domestic trademarksyise marks, brand names, certification marks,exive marks,
Internet domain names, logos, symbols, trade desssimed names, fictitious names, trade namesthedindicia of origin; (ii) patents;
(iii) confidential and proprietary information, tta secrets and know-how; and (iv) copyrights, wleffublished or unpublished, including
copyrights in computer software.

"Intervening Event means a material event, development or changedaomstance that occurs, arises or becomes knowhetBoard of
Directors of the Company or the Special Committ#fving the date of this Agreement and that hasoeourred or is unknown to the Board of
Directors and the Special Committee as of the dbtkis Agreementprovided, howeverthat a Company Alternative Proposal or Superior
Proposal shall in no event be considered an IntémgeEvent.

"Investment Advisers Atineans the Investment Advisers Act of 1940, asrated, and the rules and regulations promulgateetneler.
"Investment Company Attmeans the Investment Company Act of 1940, as dedrand the rules and regulations promulgatectimeier.

"Investment Management Serviteseans any services (including sub-advisory sesjievhich involve (i) the management of an invesime
account or fund (or portions thereof or a grouneestment accounts or funds) of any third partycimmpensation, and performing activities
related or incidental thereto, or (ii) the rendgrof advice with respect to the investment andvesitment of assets or funds (or any group of a
or funds) of any third party (including any "busésaedevelopment company" under the Investment Coynfat) or any "real estate investment
trust") for compensation, and performing activitiekted or incidental theretprovided, that with respect to a third party that is aritgnt
Investment Management Services shall not be de@meided to any owner of the third party unlessdbevices in (i) or (ii) above are provided
to such owner separate and apart from such sempicsged to the third party.

"Investor Representativehas the meaning given to it in Section 5.9.
"Key Employeesmeans William Hayes and Glenn Duffy.

"Knowledge of the Compafiyneans the actual knowledge (without due inquifyjonathan Trutter, Robert Contreras, Frank Straabon
Peck, Luke Knecht and Dan Hattori.
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"Knowledge of the Managéror " Known to the Managerheans the actual knowledge (without due inquiryPatl Lipari, Jason Epstein,
Ham, William Hayes, Glenn Duffy, Jackson Carneind dichael Sloan.

"Law" means any statute, code, Order, law, ordinande, regulation or other requirement of any Govegntal Authority.

"Legal Proceeding means any judicial, legislative, administrativeagbitral actions, suits, investigations, claimother proceedings by or
before a Governmental Authority.

"Liabilities " means any and all debts, liabilities, commitmeartd obligations of any kind, whether fixed, cogént or absolute, matured or
unmatured, liquidated or unliquidated, accruedairatcrued, asserted or not asserted, known orawrkndetermined, determinable or otherwise,
whenever or however arising (including, whethesiag out of any contract or tort, based on neglgeor strict liability) and whether or not the
same would be required by GAAP or IFRS, as appléab be reflected in financial statements orldsed in the notes thereto.

"Lien" means any lien, pledge, encumbrance, mortgagel detrust, security interest, equity, claim, kd&ense, charge, option, adverse
right, right of first or last negotiation, offer cefusal, easement or transfer restriction of ang lor nature whatsoever, whether arising by
agreement, operation of Law or otherwise.

"Loss" means any and all judgments, liabilities, amouygatisl in settlement, damages, fines, penaltiescidaties, diminution in value,
losses and expenses (including interest, courscosasonable fees of attorneys, accountants &ed experts or other reasonable expenses of
litigation or other proceedings or of any claimfaldt or assessment), but only to the extent sasbds are not covered by a payment from some
third party or by insurance or otherwise recovezdibm third partiesprovided, that in no event shall Losses include any logfis,
consequential, indirect, incidental, punitive, Spkor other similar damages, other than any swrhates awarded to any third party against an
indemnified party.

"Manager Alternative Proposdlmeans any offer or proposal by any Person otiem the Company or any of its Affiliates concernamy
(a) merger, consolidation, other business comtonati similar transaction involving the Managey), gble, lease, license or other disposition
directly or indirectly by merger, consolidation,diness combination, share exchange, joint venturetherwise, of assets of the Manager,
(c) issuance or sale or other disposition (inclgdiy way of merger, consolidation, business contlinashare exchange, joint venture or similar
transaction) of Equity Interests representing 10%more of the voting power of the Manager (inclugdlBquity Interests issuable upon conversion
or exercise of any other security of the Manageh)transaction or series of transactions in whiof Person will acquire beneficial ownership or
the right to acquire beneficial ownership or angugr (as defined in Section 13(d) of the Exchang® BAas been formed which beneficially owns
or has the right to acquire beneficial ownershipEafuity Interests representing 10% or more ofvibiing power of the Manager or (e) any
combination of the foregoing.

"Manager Benefit Plansmeans all "employee benefit plans" (within theamiag of Section 3(3) of ERISA, including multierogér plans
within the meaning of Section 3(37) of ERISA), albdequity purchase, equity option, severance, egtpkent, change-in-control, fringe benefit,
bonus, incentive, deferred compensation (includiogqualified deferred compensation), employee kzhall other employee benefit plans,
agreements, programs, policies or other arrangesnehiether or not subject to ERISA (including angding mechanism therefor now in effec
required in the future as a result of the transasticontemplated hereby or otherwise), whethetewrior oral, under which (i) any current or
former employee, director or consultant of the Mgarehas any present or future right to benefitswahidh are contributed to, maintained or
sponsored by the Manager or (ii) the Manager hagagsent or future Liability.
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"Manager CLO Issu€et means each of ColumbusNova CLO Ltd. 2006-I, CddusNova CLO Ltd. 2006-II, ColumbusNova CLO Ltd. Z60
| and ColumbusNova CLO Ltd. 2007-II.

"Manager CLO Issuer Documeritsneans each final or supplemental offering memduam indenture and supplemental indenture (each a "
Manager CLO Indentur" and collectively the Manager CLO Indenture§, management agreement, trust agreement, calladministration
agreement, insurance agreement, hedge agreemesivapdagreement entered into, or used in connewfitnan offering of securities, by a
Manager CLO Issuer.

"Manager CLO Management Agreemémteans the collateral management agreement betivedvianager and each Manager CLO Issuer.

"Manager Financial Informatiofi means (i) audited balance sheets of the Managef Becember 31, 2009, December 31, 2008 and
December 31, 2007 and the related statements odibpes, cash flows and member's equity for theafigears ended December 31, 2009,
December 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007 in eaetmddisan audit report of J.H. Cohn and in eacte gagonformity with GAAP and in
compliance with Regulation S-X under the Exchangéd&pplied on a consistent basis throughout thegeicovered thereby and (ii) any other
Manager Financial Information or disclosure reqgite be included in the Proxy Statement.

"Manager Material Adverse Effetmeans any effect, event, circumstance or chamage(a) is or would be reasonably likely to be,
individually or in the aggregate, materially adwets the business, financial condition or resultsperations of the Manager, (it being agreed that
in the event of a cancellation of, notice of calatiin of, termination of removal for cause of tlanager as the collateral manager (including
pursuant to any "key person” provision) under erdbceleration, liquidation or optional redemptidrsecurities issued by a Manager CLO Issuer,
it shall be deemed to be materially adverse tdvieaager, taken as a whole, only if the loss ofekgected future revenue stream would decrease
the net present value of the Manager CLO Managewgrgements in excess of $3,000,000 and for puspofthis calculation, the net present
value of management fees will be based upon thexgstions detailed in Section 1.1 of the ManagecbBsure Schedulejrovided, however,
that none of the following effects, events or ctemghall be deemed in themselves, either alome@mbination, to constitute, and none of them
shall be taken into account in determining whethere has been or will be, a Manager Material Adediffect: (i) any change in general
economic, political or financial market conditiofiscluding conditions in the stock markets or otbapital markets and changes in interest or
exchange rates), (ii) any effect, event, circumstaor change resulting from a change in applickhie or accounting regulation or principle after
the date of this Agreement, (iii) any effect, eyamtcumstance or change resulting from failuregti®y Manager to meet any projections, forecasts,
revenues or earning predictions, estimates or ltadgeany period prior to, on or after the dateta$ Agreement (it being understood that the
underlying circumstances, events or reasons giigegto any such change can be taken into accawgtermining whether a Manager Material
Adverse Effect has occurred or would reasonablgxmected to occur) or (iv) an outbreak or escatatiowar, armed hostilities, acts of terrorism,
political instability, natural catastrophe or otimational or international calamity, crisis or egeicy, or any governmental or other response to
any of the foregoing, in each case, whether oaegmiithin or outside the United Statgspvided, that in the case of clauses (i), (i) and (iv) such
occurrence, condition, change, development, eveetfect shall only be excluded to the extent itslmot have a disproportionate adverse effect
on the business, financial condition or resultspérations of the Manager as compared to otheoRgengaged in the investment management
business or (b) would prevent the consummatiom@ftansactions contemplated hereby.

"Manager Operating Liabilities means all Liabilities (whether absolute, accrumahtingent, fixed or otherwise, or whether du¢oor
become due) of the Manager relating to, arisingnfar resulting from the operation of the Managewooprior to the Closing Date (and regardless
of (x) the
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Knowledge of the Manager or the Company or lackabiwith respect to such Manager Operating Li&ibgior (y) the disclosure of such
Manager Operating Liabilities herein in the ManaDeclosure Schedules or otherwise), other tharAdsumed Liabilities and Liabilities for any
and all Taxes.

"Manager Shutdown Liabilitiesmeans the costs, expenses and Liabilities oMbaeager, in the categories set forth on Sched@®flthe
Manager Disclosure Schedule to terminate the ojpasabf the Manageprovided, that for the avoidance of doubt Manager Shutdbiabilities
shall not include any costs, expenses and Liadslitif the Manager owed or payable to Deloitte & chmuProducts Company LLC with respect to
the software system known as CDO Suite which inksbell either be paid by the Manager or assumetidynvestor prior to Closing.

"MGCL" means the Maryland General Corporation Law.
"NASDAQ' means the NASDAQ Stock Market LLC.

"New Leased Premis&sneans the New Premises as defined in that certase Agreement, dated July 11, 2005, as amebdbsleen the
Company (as successor-in-interest to Deerfield &@any LLC) and GLL US Office, LP (as successorrteiest to Prentiss Properties
Acquisition Partners, L.P.).

"NFA" means the National Futures Association or angessor entity thereto.

"Order" means any judgment, order, injunction, stipulatidecree, writ, doctrine, ruling, assessment bitration award or similar order of
any Governmental Authority.

"Per Share Pricé means $5.50.

"Permitted Liens means (i) statutory Liens of mechanics, mater@aipworkmen, repairmen, warehousemen, carriersredun the
ordinary course of business for amounts which atedalinquent or which are being contested in gaditth by appropriate proceedings, (ii) Liens
for Taxes not yet due and payable or that are bedmgested in good faith by appropriate proceedargkfor which adequate reserves have been
established in accordance with GAAP or IFRS, adiegige, (iii) all defects, exceptions, restrictreasements, rights of way and encumbrances
disclosed in policies of title insurance that haeen delivered to the Company or the Investorpatiaable, (iv) zoning, building, planning,
entittlement and other land use and regulationslatigg use or occupancy of the activities conductedeal property imposed by any
Governmental Authority having jurisdiction over sueal property which are not violated by the cotrgse or occupancy of such real property or
the operation of the business of the Manager o€dmapany, as applicable, or any violation of whighot material to the use of or value of such
real property, (v) Intellectual Property licens@sd) minor defects or irregularities in title thab not in the aggregate, materially affect the gaiu
current use of the underlying asset, (vii) purchasaey liens on assets incurred in the ordinarysmof business, (viii) Liens in connection wit
deposit account bank's right of set-off, (ix) Liemsmortgage securities or U.S. Treasury secuiiti@srred in connection with repurchase
agreements in the ordinary course of businessridéns on cash and cash equivalents securingihgadpligations.

"Person” means any individual, corporation, partnershipjted liability company, limited liability partnehip, firm, joint venture,
association, joint-stock company, trust, unincogped organization, Governmental Authority or otbetity.

"Pre-Closing Taxe$ shall mean any Taxes of the Manager, the Investtheir direct or indirect equity holders for ataxable period (or
portion thereof) ending on or prior to the ClosDate arising from or related to the operation @f blusiness of the Managerpvided, however,
that, for the avoidance of doubt, "Pre-Closing &b&hall not include (i) any Taxes that are thgextiof Section 5.12(band (ii) any Taxes for
which Manager (or the Investor or their directrdirect equity holders) could be held liable asralemnitor, guarantor, surety or in a similar
capacity under any Manager CLO Management Agreement
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"Retained Fee$means all Manager CLO Issuer management feeg@aaccrued or received by the Manager after Fepa& 2010
(including any fee the payment of which is deferpedsuant to any Manager CLO Indenture with resfiestich Manager CLO Issuer).

"SEC" means the United States Securities and Exchaongatission or any successor entity thereto.
"Securities Act means the Securities Act of 1933, as amendedttenclles and regulations promulgated thereunder.

"Self-Regulatory Organizatidhmeans each national securities exchange in tlieed)States of America or other commission, boag&ncy
or body that is charged with the supervision outatjon of brokers, dealers, securities underwgitim trading, stock exchanges, commodities
exchanges, insurance companies or agents, investoi@panies or investment advisers, or to thediecteon of which any Party or any of their
respective Subsidiaries is otherwise subject.

"Short Sale$ means all "short sales" as defined in Rule 2@muigated under Regulation SHO under the Excharged all types of
direct and indirect stock pledges, forward saletr@mts, options, puts, calls, swaps and similaarggements (including on a total return basis), and
sales and other transactions through non-US bidéalers or foreign regulated brokers.

"Stockholder Approval means the approval of the issuance of the Stamisideration and the Conversion Shares by thenafive vote of
majority of the total votes cast by the holder&ofmmon Stock at a Stockholders Meeting (or anywdjment or postponement thereof).

"Straddle Period means any taxable period beginning before ormad,ending after, the Closing Date.

"Strategic Financing Agreemehimeans any side letter agreement, trust agreeroenfiymation, pledge agreement, guaranty or ahgrot
agreement and/or instrument pursuant to which adhds obligated to pay, pledge, subordinate oanyother manner, relinquish its rights to
receive compensation (whether in the form of mansage fees, incentive fees, equity dividends or i) under any Advisory Contract in
respect of any investment.

"Subsidiary' means, with respect to any Person, a corporatia@iher Person of which more than 50% of the \ypfiower of the outstandil
voting Equity Interests or more than 50% of thestariding economic Equity Interest is held, direotlyndirectly, by such Person.

"Superior Proposal means a bona fide written Company Alternativep@sal (except the references therein to "10%" $ieateplaced by
"30%") made by a third party which was not soliditey the Company, any Subsidiary of the Company,Gompany Representative or any other
Affiliate of the Company and which, in the goodtifigjudgment of the Board of Directors of the Comypéafter consultation with its financial
advisor and outside counsel), taking into accoo@tarious legal, financial and regulatory aspettse proposal, including the financing terms
thereof, and the Person making such proposal égciépted, is reasonably likely to be consummated ,(b) if consummated would result in a
transaction that is more favorable to the Compastgskholders, from a financial point of view, thifwe Transaction (after giving effect to all
adjustments to the terms thereof which may be effdry Investor (including pursuant$&ction 5.10(c)).

"Tax Returns means any and all reports, returns, declaratidasns for refund, elections, disclosures, esteasainformation reports or
returns or statements supplied or required to pel&d to a taxing authority in connection with Eaxincluding any schedule or attachment
thereto or amendment thereof.

"Taxes' means (i) any and all federal, state, provind@al, foreign and other taxes, levies, fees, istpaduties, and similar governmental
charges (including any interest, fines, assessmpetmlties
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or additions to tax imposed in connection therewithvith respect thereto) including, without limtitan (x) taxes imposed on, or measured by,
income, franchise, profits or gross receipts, andd valorem, value added, capital gains, salesgdg and services, use, real or personal property,
capital stock, license, branch, payroll, estimatétiholding, employment, social security (or simjlaunemployment, compensation, utility,
severance, production, excise, stamp, occupatr@mipm, windfall profits, escheat, transfer andhgaaxes, and customs duties, and (ii) any
Liability in respect of any items described in dayi) above as a transferee or successor, pursudntasury Regulation §1.1502-6 (or any
similar provision of state, local or foreign Lavas an indemnitor, guarantor, surety or in a sint&gacity under any contract, arrangement,
agreement, understanding or commitment (whethémonaritten) or as a result of successor liabibtyotherwise.

"Termination Agreemefitmeans the termination agreement, dated as ofiM2tc 2010, entered into by and among PegasusiBleerf
(AlV), LLC, a Delaware limited liability company,&S Management, LLC, a Delaware limited liabilityngwany, the Company, Deerfield Capital
Management, LLC, a Delaware limited liability coormyaDPLC General Partner LLC, a Delaware limitedliiity company, Deerfield Loan
Manager LLC, a Delaware limited liability companydaDeerfield Pegasus Loan Capital LP, a Delawang&dd partnership.

"Third Party Consents means all consents or waivers or notices to amygother than a Governmental Authority) to arpn€act to whict
any of the Parties hereto is a party or by whichafrtheir respective assets or properties are thoun

"Transaction' means the transactions contemplated by this Agegg.

"Trust Preferred Exchangemeans the exchange by the holders of at leas080®00 in aggregate principal amount of the auting trust
preferred securities issued by indirect Subsidéaniethe Company for a like aggregate principal am@f Subordinated Notes due 2035 pursuant
to the Trust Preferred Exchange Agreement.

"Trust Preferred Exchange Agreemémheans that certain Exchange Agreement dated kkanath 4, 2010 between the Company and
Taberna Capital Management, LLC providing for thrast Preferred Exchange.
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(b) The following capitalized terms aefided in the section set forth opposite such term:

Term Section

2007 Financial Statemer 3.6(a
Agreemen Preambl
Alternative Acquisition Agreemel 5.10(c)(ii)
Balance Sheet Da 3.7
Cap 7.3(a
Change of Board Recommendat 5.10(a
Closing 2.2
Closing Date 2.2
Common Stocl Recitals
Company Preambl
Company Client Consen 5.7(@
Company CLO Indentur 1.1
Company Consen 57(a
Company Disclosure Schedt Art. IV
Company Financial Statemer 4.7(a
Company Indemnified Partie 7.2(a
Company Material Contrac 4.12(a
Company Recommendati 4.2
Company Representativ 5.10(a
Company SEC Documen 4.7(a
Convertible Note! Recitals
Convertible Notes Agreeme Recital:
Debt Buyback Recital:
Deductible 7.3(@
End Date 8.1(b;
FCPA 3.5(b;
Investor Preambl
Investor Representativi 5.¢
Managel Preambl
Manager Client Consen 57(a
Manager Consen 5.7(a
Manager Disclosure Schedt Art. [l
Manager Financial Statemet 3.6(a
Manager Material Contrac 3.11(a
Notice Perioc 5.10(c)(ii)
Other Filings 4.€
Parties Preambl
Payment Agreemel Recital:
Preferred Stoc 4.4
Proxy Statemer 4.€
Registered Investment Compa 3.9(b
Rule 144 3.21
Section 4094 3.16(b.
Senior Note Issue Recitals
Senior Note¢ Recital:
Series A Senior Note Recital
Series B Senior Note Recitals
Special Committe Recital
Stock Consideratio 2.1(b
Stockholders Meetin 4.2
Survival Perioc 7.3(a
Termination Fet 8.2(c
Third Party Claimr 7.4(@
Unaudited Financial Statemer 3.6(a
Unit Purchast Recitals
Units Recital
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Section 1.2 Construction. Unless the context of this Agreement cleartyurees otherwise: (i) references to the pluraludel the singular
and vice versa; (ii) references to one gender dehil genders; (iii) whenever the words "includétludes" or “including” are used in this
Agreement they will be deemed to be followed byghease "without limitation;" (iv) the words "herfigo’herein,” "hereby," "hereunder" and
similar terms in this Agreement refer to this Agremt as a whole and not to any particular provisibthis Agreement; (v) when a reference is
made in this Agreement to a Section, Schedule,liixbi Annex, such reference shall be to a Sectmhedule, Exhibit or Annex of this
Agreement unless otherwise indicated; (vi) all refees in this Agreement to "$" are intended terred U.S. dollars; (vii) unless otherwise
specifically provided for herein, the term "or" #het be deemed to be exclusive; and (viii) arfgrence to Law shall include any amendment
thereof or any successor thereto and any ruleseandations promulgated thereunder. The table oferds and headings contained in this
Agreement are for reference purposes only and sbatffect in any way the meaning or interpretatd this Agreement.

ARTICLE 2
ACQUISITION OF THE MANAGER
AND PURCHASE OF THE CONVERTIBLE NOTES

Section 2.1 Acquisition of the Manager.

(@) Purchase and Sale of the Units At the Closing, on the terms and subject &odbnditions of this Agreement and in reliance
upon the representations, warranties, covenantagmegments set forth herein, the Investor shhjltsznsfer, assign and convey to the
Company, and the Company shall purchase and afroepthe Investor, all of the Units, free and cle&all Liens (other than restrictions
under applicable federal and state securities Laagginst payment by the Company of the Stock @enation. At the Closing, the
Investor shall deliver, or cause to be deliveredhe Company, a transfer document, in a form messly satisfactory to the Company,
evidencing the sale, transfer, assignment and gamoe of the Units to the Company.

(b) Stock Consideration for the Units At the Closing, on the terms and subject todbnditions of this Agreement and in reliance
upon the representations, warranties, covenantagmgments set forth herein, in considerationtHferUnits, the Company shall issue and
deliver to the Investor a number of shares of Com®twck (rounded to the nearest whole share), équa) $25,000,000dividedby
(y) the Per Share Price (thé&tock Consideratiol), free and clear of all Liens (other than resitoics under applicable federal and state
securities Laws and the Stockholders Agreement).

(c) Cash Consideration for the Units In addition to the Stock Consideration, therany shall pay to the Investor the following
cash amounts (theDeferred Purchase Price Paymefi}sby wire transfer in immediately available funds the dates and in the amounts
set forth below:

Date Amount

Six month anniversary of the Closing D $ 1,500,001
Eighteen month anniversary of the Closing C $ 1,500,001
Thirty month anniversary of the Closing Di $ 1,500,001
Forty two month anniversary of the Closing D $ 1,500,001
Sixty six month anniversary of the Closing D $ 1,500,00!

Section 2.2 Closing. The closing of the transactions contemplateeéle(the "Closing") shall take place at 10:00 a.m. (New York City
time) at the offices of Schulte Roth & Zabel LLA,9Third Avenue, New York, New York 10022 no latiean the third Business Day following
the satisfaction or waiver of each of the condgiset forth in Article 6 hereof (other than thoseditions that by their
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nature are to be satisfied by actions taken a€thsing, but subject to the satisfaction or waieksuch conditions), or at such other time ande
as may be mutually agreed to by the Parties. Soehdnd date are referred to in this Agreemenh@s€losing Date."

Section 2.3 Purchase Price Adjustment.

(@) Closing Estimates At least five days prior to the Closing Dates Manager shall cause to be prepared and dediterine
Company the Estimated Manager Shutdown Liabilifigepared in accordance with the classification$osth onSection 2.3(apf the
Manager Disclosure Schedule.

(b) Post-Closing Statement By June 30, 2011, the Company shall cause torépared and delivered to the Investor a statemen
(the "Final Shutdown Statemeftsetting forth the Manager Shutdown Liabilitiesaf the date of such statement (tHérial Manager
Shutdown Liabilities). The Final Shutdown Statement shall be prepareatcordance with the definition of "Manager Stovtd
Liabilities" as set forth in this Agreement.

(c) Dispute. Within 60 days following receipt by the Invesbf the Final Shutdown Statement, the Investatlsteliver written
notice to the Company of any dispute the Invesésr\ith respect to the preparation or contentefimal Shutdown Statement. If the
Investor does not notify the Company of a dispuith wespect to the Final Shutdown Statement wighich 60 day period, such Final
Shutdown Statement will be final, conclusive anadiig on the parties. In the event of such notifacaof a dispute, the Company and the
Investor shall negotiate in good faith to resoluetsdispute. If the Company and the Investor, nbisténding such good faith effort, fail
resolve such dispute within fifteen days afterltinestor advises the Company of the Investor'satigjes, then the Company and the
Investor jointly shall select and engage an acdogrfirm to resolve such dispute (thérbitration Firm"); provided, however, if the
Company and the Investor are unable to jointly agne such Arbitration Firm within fifteen days, tha partner or group of partners of
Ernst & Young that does not have a current mateelationship with any of the parties shall be sedd as the Arbitration Firm. As
promptly as practicable thereafter, the Companythadnvestor shall each prepare and submit a ptasen to the Arbitration Firm. As
soon as practicable thereafter, the Company anthttestor shall cause the Arbitration Firm to chmose of the parties' positions based
solely upon the written presentations by Buyer tnedSeller Representative. The party whose posisioot accepted by the Arbitration
Firm shall be responsible for all of the fees axpemses of the Arbitration Firm. All determinationside by the Arbitration Firm will be
final, conclusive and binding on the parties.

(d) Access For purposes of complying with the terms setfin thisSection 2.3 each party shall cooperate with and make
available to the other parties and their respectpeesentatives all information, records and datd, shall permit access to its personnel
during normal business hours, as may be reasonadplyred in connection with the preparation andyesis of the Final Shutdown
Statement and the resolution of any disputes tineleu

(e) Upward Adjustment If the aggregate Final Manager Shutdown Litiéd (as finally determined pursuant3ection 2.3(c) are
less than the aggregate Estimated Manager Shutmiiities, then the Purchase Price will be adgdstipward by the amount of such
shortfall, and the Investor will be entitled to @ae an amount equal to such shortfall in accoreamith Section 2.3(g)
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() Downward Adjustment If the aggregate Final Manager Shutdown Litibd (as finally determined pursuant3ection 2.3(c)
are greater than the aggregate Estimated Final §darighutdown Liabilities, then the Purchase Pridebs adjusted downward by the
amount of such excess, and the Investor shall paguse to be paid an amount equal to such exaeks Company in accordance with
Section 2.3(g)

(g) Payments The amount, if any, owed by the Company toltivestor pursuant t8ection 2.3(e) on the one hand, or by the
Investor to the Company pursuant3ection 2.3(f) on the other hand, shall be paid in full by wiansfer of immediately available funds
(unless otherwise agreed by the party receivingttygnent) within five Business Days of the datemnich such amount is finally
determined.

ARTICLE 3
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF
THE MANAGER AND THE INVESTOR

Except as set forth in the correspondirggises of the disclosure schedule (thddnager Disclosure Schedulgdelivered by the Manager
the Company concurrently herewith, the Managerasgmts and warrants as to itself and the Invesfwesents and warrants as to itself and only
as toSections 3.1-3.43.6(c), 3.17, 3.18and3.20as of the date hereof and as of the Closing t&€Cthrapany as follows:

Section 3.1 Organization. (a) Each of the Investor and the Manager ig ¢hrimed, validly existing and in good standing anthe Laws
of Delaware with all requisite power and authoriguired to conduct its business as presently adeduThe Manager has heretofore made
available to the Company true and complete coi¢iseoConstituent Documents of the Manager and sach Constituent Document is in full
force and effect.

(b) Each of the Investor and the Manageluly qualified or licensed to transact busir@sd is in good standing in all jurisdictions
where the ownership or operation of its respedssets and properties or the conduct of its busireegiires such qualification, except
where the failure to be so licensed or in goodditanwould not have a Manager Material Adverse &ffe

Section 3.2 Authorization; Enforceability. Each of the Investor and the Manager has qllisite limited liability company power and
authority to execute and deliver this Agreement @ach applicable Ancillary Document that it is atyp&o and to perform its obligations
hereunder and thereunder. The execution and dglbsethe Investor and the Manager of this Agreenagct each applicable Ancillary Document
that it is a party to and the performance by thestor and the Manager of its obligations hereuadedrthereunder have been duly authorized by
all requisite limited liability company action dfeé Investor and the Manager. No other limited ligbcompany action on the part of the Investor
or the Manager or any respective member of theslioveor Manager is necessary to authorize the éxeguelivery and performance by the
Investor and the Manager, respectively, of thise&gnent and each applicable Ancillary Documentehah is a party to and the consummatiol
the Investor and the Manager of the transactionsecoplated hereunder and thereunder. This Agreeheenibeen and each applicable Ancillary
Document that the Investor or the Manager will gy to will be duly executed and delivered bg thvestor and the Manager and, assuming
that this Agreement and each applicable Ancillaociiment has been duly authorized, executed andeded by each of the other parties hereto
and thereto, constitutes or, when executed andeateli by the Investor or the Manager, as applicatileconstitute the legal, valid and binding
obligation of the Investor and the Manager, enfabte against the Investor and the Manager in aeomel with their respective terms, except to
the extent that the enforceability thereof mayibstéd by (i) applicable bankruptcy, insolvencyaddulent conveyance, reorganization,
moratorium or similar Laws from time to time in et affecting generally the enforcement of creditaghts and
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remedies; and (ii) general principles of equitgliring principles of reasonableness, good faithfair dealing (regardless of whether
enforcement is sought in equity or at law).

Section 3.3 Title; Capitalization and Subsidiaries. The Investor owns one hundred percent of thatigdnterests of the Manager which
consist exclusively of the Units. The Investor ovaeseficially and of record, and has good, valid ararketable title to, the Units, free and clear
of all Liens (including any restriction on the righ vote, sell or otherwise dispose of such Unitk) other Equity Interests in the Manager are
authorized, issued or outstanding. There are nstanding options, warrants, calls, rights, committagagreements, arrangements or underta
of any kind, obligating the Investor or the Manatgeissue, deliver or sell, or cause to be issdetiyered or sold Equity Interests in the Manager
or obligating the Investor or the Manager to isgrant, extend or enter into any such securityipoptarrant, call, right, commitment, agreem:
arrangement or undertaking. There are no outstgralimuthorized appreciation, phantom, profit ggwttion or similar rights with respect to the
Equity Interests of the Manager. There are no antihg contractual obligations of the Investort@ Manager to repurchase, redeem or othel
acquire any of the Equity Interests of the Managenake any material investment (in the form obanl, capital contribution or otherwise) in any
Person. The Units are being sold by the Investe® &nd clear of all Liens, and, upon payment fehdunits by the Company pursuant to the te
of this Agreement, the Company will acquire gooaljd’zand marketable title to such Units free arehcbf all Liens, other than those arising from
the Company's ownership thereof. The Manager h&ubsidiaries and the Manager does not own or theveght to acquire any security or
interest in any other Person.

Section 3.4 Non-Contravention; Consents and Approvalga) The execution and delivery of this Agreetrisnthe Investor and the
Manager and the Ancillary Documents to which they @arties, the consummation by the Investor aadvthnager, as applicable, of the
transactions contemplated hereby and thereby,tengddrformance by the Investor and the Managédreif tespective obligations hereunder and
thereunder: (i) does not violate any provisionhef €onstituent Documents of the Investor or the &gan or any Manager CLO Issuer; and (ii)(A)
does not conflict with or violate any applicableA_af any Governmental Authority having jurisdictiomer the Investor, the Manager or any
Manager CLO Issuer or any part of the propertieassets of the Investor, the Manager or any Man@ger Issuer, (B) does not require the
Consent of any Person under, violate, result inehmination or acceleration of or of any right endyive rise to or modify any right or obligation
under (whether or not in combination with any oteeent or circumstance), or conflict with, breacktonstitute a default under (in each case with
or without notice, the passage of time or bothy, lianager CLO Management Agreement, (C) does mptire the Consent of any Person under,
violate, result in the termination or acceleratidror of any right under, give rise to or modifyyamght or obligation under (whether or not in
combination with any other event or circumstanoe)onflict with, breach or constitute a defaulden (in each case with or without notice, the
passage of time or both), any Contract other thislaaager CLO Management Contract to which, the dtore the Manager or any Manager CLO
Issuer is a party or by which any of their respexproperties or assets is bound, (D) does nottriestine creation or imposition of any Lien on
any part of the properties or assets of the Inveite Manager or any Manager CLO Issuer, (E) datwviolate any Order binding on the Inves
the Manager or any Manager CLO Issuer or any fddheir respective properties or assets, and (Eyamt otherwise require any Governmental
Approvals or any Third Party Consents in each ctiser than the Manager CLO Consents (as defineziel

Section 3.5 Compliance with Laws. (a) The Manager is not in material violation afid has not violated in any material respect, any
applicable Law affecting or related to the Managreany Manager CLO Issuer and any of their busemssperations, assets or employees. To the
Knowledge of the Manager, no investigation or revi®y any Governmental Authority with respect to Manager or any Manager CLO Issuer is
pending or threatened and no Governmental Authbatyindicated an intention to conduct the same.
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(b) None of the Manager, any Manager Q&sdier, or any of their managers, directors orcef acting for or on their behalf, or, to
the Knowledge of the Manager, any employee or agktite Manager, any Manager CLO Issuer or anydPeasting for or on their beha
has, directly or indirectly, (i) used any funds torawful contributions, gifts, gratuities, entént@ent or other unlawful expenses related to
political activity, (ii) made any payment or offellgoromised or authorized the payment of anythingatue, regardless of form, whether in
money, property or services, to or for the berafiiny U.S. or non-U.S. government official or enyae, any official or employee of a
public international organization, or any politigedrty or candidate for political office for therpose of influencing any act or decision of
such individual or of any Governmental Authoritypublic international organization, or securing amproper advantage, in order to
obtain or retain business or direct business toRergon in violation of applicable Law, (iii) madey other unlawful payment, regardless
of form, whether in money, property or servicesunding any payment which constitutes criminal bripunder applicable Law or
(iv) violated any applicable export control, morayndering or anti-terrorism law or regulation, theS. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act of
1977, as amended FCPA™), or any other applicable arttribery law or regulation, of any applicable juiigtbn, or any applicable Law
similar effect.

Section 3.6 Financial Statements. (a) The Manager has previously made availabteé Company copies of the unaudited balance sheet
of the Manager as of December 31, 2009 and Dece&ihe2008 and the related unaudited statementparfitions for the fiscal years ended
December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008 (thedudited Financial Statementsand audited balance sheet as of December 37, 200
related audited statement of operations, cash flovdsmember's equity for the fiscal year ended Bibe 31, 2007 (the 2007 Financial
Statement$ and collectively with the Unaudited Financial @ments, the Manager Financial Statements The Manager Financial Statements
fairly present in all material respects the finahgiosition of the Manager as of the respectivesitiiereof, and the results of the operationsier t
respective fiscal periods covered thereby, in gmeof the Unaudited Financial Statements in aecmel with IFRS consistently applied during
periods presented and in the case of the 2007 Eimle®tatements in accordance with GAAP consisyeaqblied during the periods presented, and
(i) have been prepared from the Books and RecdrttedVianager and (ii) are complete and currermlimaterial respects.

(b) There are no material off balancessti@ansactions, arrangements, obligations, otioglships to which the Manager is a party or
bound (or has any commitment to be a party or bdwy)dncluding any joint venture, partnership agneat or similar Contract relating to
any transaction, arrangement or relationship betveeemong the Manager on the one hand, and argnsotidated Affiliate (including
any structured finance, special purpose or limfetpose entity, on the other hand).

(c) Neither the Manager nor the Inves$ias received any complaint, allegation, assertiaziaom in writing regarding a material
aspect of the accounting practices, proceduredjadetogies or methods of the Manager's internabating controls, including any such
complaint, allegation, assertion or claim that Menager has engaged in questionable accountingdit gractices. The Investor has made
available to the Company any management lettersther formal communications, including with redpecproposed adjustments, from
any of the Investor's auditors to the Investor, afficer of the Investor or the board of managerseguivalent body) of the Investor, in €
case regarding (1) any significant deficiencies araderial weaknesses in the design or operatiatisafosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Rule 13a-15(e) of the Exchange Act)fanternal control over financial reporting (as ishefd in Rule 13a-15(f) of the Exchange
Act) which have adversely affected or are reasgnifsly to adversely affect the ability of the Meager to record, process, summarize and
report financial date, (2) any fraud, whether or material, that involves management or other egrg#s who have a significant role in the
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Manager's internal control over financial reportorg3) any other deficiencies in the accountingtesn of the Manager.

Section 3.7 Absence of Certain Changes and EventSince December 31, 2009 (thBdlance Sheet Datg, (a) the Manager has
conducted its business only in the ordinary coars#consistently with past practice; (b) the Mamdmges not suffered any event, change,
occurrence, facts or circumstance that, indiviguallin the aggregate with any other events, chenggcurrences or circumstances, has had or
would reasonably be expected to have a Managerribtalverse Effect; and (c) there has not beenamtion, omission or event that would be
prohibited by or require consent of the Companyspant toSection 5.1had such action, omission or event been taken raator arisen after the
date of this Agreement.

Section 3.8 No Undisclosed Liabilities. (a) Except for (i) those Liabilities that aeflected on or reserved against in the Manager
Financial Statements or (ii) those Liabilities in@ad in the ordinary course of business consistéthit past practice since the Balance Sheet Date,
and that are not in each case, individually ohmaggregate, material to the Manager, the Mardges not have any Liabilities of any kind or
nature whatsoever, whether known or unknown, ackroentingent, absolute, determined, or determanadal whether otherwise due or to become
due, and there is no existing condition, situatioset of circumstances that could reasonably pea®d to result in such a Liability.

(b) The Manager is not liable for anyebtedness for borrowed money.

Section 3.9 Regulatory Compliance. (a) None of the Manager nor, to the Knowledfyhe Manager, any other Person "associated" (as
defined under the Investment Advisers Act) with ki@nager during the preceding ten years, has beeviated of any crime or is or has been
subject to any disqualification that would be aibésr denial, suspension or revocation of regigireof an investment adviser under Section 203
(e) of the Investment Advisers Act or Rule 206(4))4ahereunder or has engaged in any conduct, ineetved in any Legal Proceeding or is or
was subject to any Order that is required to belasged on a Form ADV (assuming for this purposé¢ khanager is required to file a Form ADV).

(b) Neither the Manager nor any Managle®dssuer is registered as, or is required to lpéstered as, an "investment company"
under the Investment Company Act (Régistered Investment Compaiyand no other Person to whom the Manager rernideestment
Management Services is a Registered Investment @oynp

(c) No exemptive Orders, "no-action"destor similar exemptions or regulatory relief h&seen obtained, and no requests are
pending therefor, by or with respect to the Manageany Manager CLO Issuer or any employee of aich £erson in connection with the
business of the Manager or any Manager CLO Issuer.

(d) The Manager is not, has not beenha®dnot ever been required to be registered askabdealer with the SEC and is not a
member of FINRA.

(e) The Manager (i) is not and has nanben "investment adviser" required to registereurtde Investment Advisers Act or any
other applicable Laws and (ii) is not required éorbgistered, licensed or qualified as an investradniser under the Investment Advisers
Act or any other applicable Laws.

(f) The Manager is not registered with CFTC as a "commodity pool operator” (as suah isrdefined in the Commodity
Exchange Act) or a member of the NFA. Neither thenisiger nor any of its Affiliates, during the preicgdten years, has been convictet
any crime, or is or has been subject to any disfigetion that would be a basis for a denial, surgien or revocation
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of registration with the CFTC or the NFA as a "coattity pool operator” (as such term is defined ima @ommodity Exchange Act).

(g) None of the Manager or any of itilafted persons"” (as defined in the Investment @any Act), during the preceding ten ye
has been convicted of any crime, or is or has ebject to any disqualification that would causehsBerson to be ineligible pursuant to
Section 9 of the Investment Company Act to servaabin the capacity of employee, officer, directmember of an "advisory board,"
"investment adviser," or "depositor" of any "regr&d investment company," or "principal underwtifer any "registered open-end
company,” "registered unit investment trust," @agdistered face amount certificate company,"” as sach term is used in the Investment
Company Act, and, to the Knowledge of the Manathere is no basis for any such ineligibility attrible to the Manager or its "affiliat
persons" (as defined in the Investment Company. Act)

Section 3.10 Manager CLO Issuers.

(@) The Manager does not have any Clietlitsr than the Manager CLO Issuers. The Managsatia party to any Advisory
Contracts or Strategic Financing Agreements otan the Manager CLO Management Agreements. To tteevi€dge of the Manager,
the most recent trustee report under each Mandg@rl@denture accurately reflects each asset thalifigs as a "Defaulted Obligation" or
a "Defaulted Security" (each as defined in the igpple Manager CLO Indenture) as of the date ofisaport and to the Knowledge of the
Manager there have been no material misstatemedtr @ny such trustee reports.

(b) Set forth on Schedule 3.10(b) of Memnager Disclosure Schedule is the manner of Camegnired for the "assignment” (or
deemed assignment) under applicable Law, inclutiegnvestment Advisers Act and the Manager CLO agment Agreements, by the
Manager of each Manager CLO Management Agreemesdrinection with the transactions contemplatechizyAgreement, in each case
so that any such Consent will be duly and validiyained in accordance with all applicable Law amelterms of any Contracts relating
thereto.

(c) Except as set forth@ection 3.10(cpf the Manager Disclosure Schedule and expressgriteed thereon, as of the date hereof,
there are no Contracts pursuant to which the Mamaa® undertaken or agreed to cap, waive, offsehlbiurse or otherwise reduce any or
all fees or charges payable by or with respechtoad the Manager CLO Issuers. Except as set farBection 3.10(cpf the Manager
Disclosure Schedule, (i) no Manager CLO Issuerliegiple CLO Investor, applicable CLO Trustee orlaggble CLO Administrator has
notified the Manager that the Manager CLO Issuwl(iding after giving effect to the Closing) has, (eith the giving of notice or the
passage of time, or both, will have) the rightaortinate the Manager or reduce or defer the fegaljpa to the Manager under any
Manager CLO Management Agreement, (ii) to the Krealgle of the Manager, there is no fact with resfeany relationship the Manager
has with any Manager CLO Issuer that materiallyemslely affects or could reasonably be expectedaiemnally adversely affect any
Manager CLO Management Agreement, and (iii) no M@n&LO Issuer, applicable CLO Investor, applicabl€ Trustee or applicable
CLO Administrator has notified the Manager thahiy cause, either individually or collectively wibkhers, a redemption of any securi
issued by such Manager CLO Issuer or terminaticangfManager CLO Management Agreement.

(d) No Manager CLO Issuer is (i) an enyplo benefit plan, as defined in Section 3(3) of &RIthat is subject to Title | of ERISA,;
(ii) a Person acting on behalf of such a planjigrgn entity whose assets include the assetsidi & plan, within the meaning of ERISA
and applicable regulations.
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(e) Section 3.10(e9f the Manager Disclosure Schedule sets forthe, tarrect and complete list of the Manager CLQéss
Documents relating to the Manager CLO Issuers.NMlhrager has provided the Company with true andecoropies of all Manager CLO
Issuer Documents relating to the Manager CLO Issward the offering circulars or memoranda incluideslich Manager CLO Issuer
Documents relating to the Manager CLO Issuers dicahthe time such Manager CLO Issuer issued aoyrgies related to such Manager
CLO Issuer Documents contain any untrue statenfemtmaterial fact concerning the Manager or omitete a material fact concerning
the Manager necessary in order to make the statsroentained therein, in the light of the circumsis under which they were made, not
misleading. Each Manager CLO Issuer Document tefwtlie Manager is a party is in full force and efffend binding upon the Manager
and, to the Knowledge of the Manager, the othetigmthereto, except as (i) limited by applicatdakruptcy, insolvency, reorganization,
moratorium, fraudulent conveyance and other sintélars of general application affecting enforcemantreditors' rights generally and
(i) the availability of the remedy of specific f@mance or injunctive or other forms of equitat#éef may be subject to equitable
defenses and would be subject to the discretidgheotourt before which any proceeding therefor imayprought. To the Knowledge of the
Manager, no Default (as defined in the applicabniyer CLO Indenture) has occurred and is continuider any Manager CLO
Indenture, no Event of Default (as defined in thplizable Manager CLO Indenture) has occurred armbntinuing under any Manager
CLO Indenture.

(f) The Manager has not provided notités resignation as the manager under any Manag& Management Agreement.

(g) Other than the Manager CLO Managemgmneements and the Manager CLO Indentures, threra@Contracts pursuant to
which the Manager receives fees or payments inextion with its services under any Manager CLOdsddocument. The Manager has
not entered into any Contract providing for thersfgaof fees, delegation of any obligations or gssient or pledge of any rights under
Manager CLO Management Agreeme®eéction 3.10(gpf the Manager Disclosure Schedule set forth a tagect and complete list of
any securities of each Manager CLO Issuer ownetthédyManager, the Investor or any of their respecéffiliates.

(h) No Manager CLO Issuer has or is regflito file federal, state, local or foreign Taxtitas or pay any Taxes or is otherwise
subject to taxation in any jurisdiction except floe filing of Tax Returns and payment of Taxeshia €Cayman Islands. Each Manager CLO
Issuer (i) has materially complied with all requir€ax information reporting requirements to whitksisubject by timely filing such Tax
information reporting returns and reports in a fahat is accurate and complete in all material @etpand (ii) has complied in all material
respects with the operating guidelines set fortthénapplicable Manager CLO Management Agreemeltastager CLO Indentures to
avoid engaging, or deemed to be engaging, in & tradhusiness within the United States for Unit&ate3 federal income tax purposes or
subject to United States federal, state or locadtime tax on a net income basis.

(i) No event or circumstance has ocalipeexists which constitutes "cause" under any &¢@n CLO Management Agreement, or,
with the passage of time or giving of notice, woatthstitute "cause” under any Manager CLO Managéwmgreement and no Manager
CLO Issuer, investor in any security issued by andper CLO Issuer, applicable CLO Trustee or apple&€LO Administrator has stated
that such event or circumstance has occurred stexi
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Section 3.11 Contracts.

(a) Section 3.11(apf the Manager Disclosure Schedule lists, and taeadger has provided to the Company true, compiete a
correct copies of, the following Contracts (inclogliall material amendments, modifications, extemsioenewals, guarantees, schedules,
exhibits or ancillary agreements with respect tteerer in the case of oral Contracts, written diggiems of the material terms thereof) to
which the Manager is a party or is bound by ahefdate hereof (collectively, thelanager Material Contract¥):

(i) each Manager CLO Management Agregmen

(i) any Contract relating to (x) the eggment of any financial institution (other thathaany rating agency, trustee or
routine service provider) in respect of engagemeatyet completed or (y) in respect of the warediog of securities not yet
completed, in each case, in connection with them&tion or offering of any securities of any Mana@eiO Issuer;

(i) any Contract for the purchase of aata, assets, material or equipment, other thgrsach Contract in an amount not
exceeding $25,000 annually;

(iv) any Contract for the sale or dispiasitof assets of the Manager in excess of $25,80€rahan financial assets in the
ordinary course of business;

(v) any Contract relating to the acquasit(by merger, share exchange, consolidation, deation or purchase of Equity
Interests or assets or otherwise) by the Managanyfcorporation, partnership, limited liabilityrapany, or other business
organization, division or operating business orariat assets or the capital stock or other equitgrests of any other Person;

(vi) any Contract relating to Indebtednetthe Manager;

(vii) any Contract, excluding any Managemifit Plan, with any (A) current officer, directonember or Affiliate of the
Manager or (B) any former officer, director, membeAffiliate of the Manager pursuant to which tlianager has any continuing
obligations thereunder;

(viii) any Contract imposing a Lien (othéanh Permitted Liens) on any of the assets of thedder;

(ix) any Contract with any Governmentaltiaerity (other than a Contract relating to an irtwesnt by a Governmental
Authority in a Manager CLO Issuer);

(x) any Contract for the placement, disttion or sale of any interests in the Managectl(iding any agreement with respect
to the referral or solicitation of prospective ist@s in any Manager CLO Issuers) in respect afgateents, distributions or sales
not yet completed;

(xi) any Contract pursuant to which theridger licenses third-party Intellectual Properthéo than Contracts granting rights
to use "off-the-shelf," “click-wrap," or "shrink-a&p" software, as well as other commercially avddaftware licenses with
royalties or license fees not exceeding $25,00Qalty);

(xii) any Contract that (A) provides foraaterial earn-out or similar contingent obligatwfithe Manager or (B) contains a
"clawback" or similar undertaking requiring the tdoution, reimbursement or refund by the Manadearty prior distribution,
return of capital or fees (whether performance dasetherwise) paid to the Manager;
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(xiii) any Contract requiring that the MaeagA) co-invest with any other Person; (B) prov&sed capital or similar
investment; or (C) invest in any investment proditiuding, any such Contract requiring additioaal'follow-on" capital
contributions by the Manager);

(xiv) any Contract that contains any of tbibowing rights provided by the Manager to a Ctiadvised by the Manager:
(A) special withdrawal or redemption rights; (B)séimation rights regarding advisory boards or similrovisions; (C) anti-dilution
rights; (D) special notice or reporting requirengfE) a "most favored nation" or similar provisiam (F) early termination rights
with respect to a Manager CLO Issuer; and

(xv) any other Contract not otherwise ftised pursuant to thBection 3.11(ahaving a duration in excess of one year and not
terminable without penalty upon 90 days or leserpmbtice by the Manager that requires future egiares of money in excess of
$125,000.

(b) (i) Each Manager Material Contracinigull force and effect, in all material respedssa valid and binding obligation of the
Manager and, to the Knowledge of the Manager, e#todr party thereto, except to the extent thaetiferceability thereof may be limited
by (A) applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, frauduleanveyance, reorganization, moratorium or sinliawvs from time to time in effect
affecting generally the enforcement of creditoghts and remedies; and (B) general principlesqoiitg, including principles of
reasonableness, good faith and fair dealing (régssdf whether enforcement is sought in equitgtdaw), (ii) the Manager is not in
material breach or violation of, or default undemy Manager Material Contract and, to the Knowledigidne Manager, no event exists that
with notice, the passage of time or both would titute a material default by Manager under any MgmaMaterial Contract, (iii) to the
Knowledge of the Manager, it has not received ariftem claim of default under or cancellation ofyfdlanager Material Contract, and
(iv) to the Knowledge of the Manager, no other pastin breach or violation of, or default undemyavlanager Material Contract.

(c) (i) Each Manager CLO Management Agrest is in full force and effect in all materiabpeects and is a valid and binding
obligation of the Manager, and to the Knowledg¢hef Manager, no event or circumstance exists tioatdvconstitute a material breach or
violation of, or default under a Manager CLO Managat Agreement or cause for termination by a Man&g® Issuer of a Manager
CLO Management Agreement, (ii) the Manager hasoperéd all of the material obligations required performed by it under each
Manager CLO Management Agreement, and is not ireri@toreach or violation of, or default under aginager CLO Management
Agreement or Manager CLO Indenture and (iii) thenliger has not received any written claim of defantter or cancellation of or that
cause for termination or removal exists under amndger CLO Management Agreement or Manager CLOninde and (iv) to the
Knowledge of the Manager, no other party is in bhear violation of, or default under, any Manageathtial Contract.

Section 3.12 Intellectual Property

(a) The Manager owns and possesseghll title and interest in and to the Computer Baft, free and clear of any Liens other
than Permitted Liens.

(b) To the Knowledge of the Manager, ke of the Computer Software in the business oMtheager as currently conducted does
not infringe, misappropriate, or otherwise violdte Intellectual Property rights of any Person.

Section 3.13 Litigation. (a) There is no material Legal Proceeding psgdior, to the Knowledge of the Manager, threateagainst the
Manager or the Manager CLO lIssuers before any Gavental Authority, (b) none of the Manager or thardger CLO Issuers is a party to or is
subject to any Order or other arrangement with@ayernmental Authority and none of the Manager
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or the Manager CLO Issuers has been notified by@myernmental Authority to the effect that such &wwmental Authority is contemplating
issuing or requesting any such Order or other gearent, and (c) none of the Manager or the Man@g€r Issuers is in default under, or has
failed to comply with, any material Order applicalbd it.

Section 3.14 Taxes. (a) The Manager has timely filed or causeddditmely filed all material Tax Returns requiredo® filed with respe:
to any assets of the Manager and all such Tax Retuhen filed were true, correct and complete limalerial respects, (b) the Manager has paid,
or caused to be paid, all material Taxes due agdhpe with respect to any assets of the Managehasdnade or caused to be made adequate
provision in accordance with GAAP or IFRS for angterial Taxes not yet due and payable with resjpeathy assets of the Manager, (c) no Tax
Liens other than Permitted Liens are in effectarehbeen filed and are still outstanding with respe any assets of the Manager and no claims or
adjustments are being asserted or threatened fimgyrin each case with respect to any materiallamhof Taxes with respect to any assets of the
Manager, (d) the Manager has not received writt#tit@ of any outstanding Tax audit or inquiry wilspect to a material amount of Taxes which
the Manager has not made available to the Comgahthe Manager has complied in all material retpesith all applicable Laws relating to the
payment and withholding of Taxes, (f) there areontstanding waivers or comparable consents regattim application of the statute of
limitations with respect to any Taxes or Tax Resumith respect to any assets of the Manager, ggMhanager is not a party to any outstanding
agreement providing for the allocation or sharifig axes, other than customary commercial agreemmittprimarily related to Tax and other tl
the limited liability company agreement of the Mgag (h) the Manager is properly classified for tddiStates federal income and applicable
United States state and local income Tax purposasdisregarded entity and the Manager has beelassified, or has been classified as a
partnership for such purposes, since the commenteshés operations and (i) the Manager has naigpated in any "listed transaction" within
the meaning of Treasury Regulation Section 1.60b)(4). The representations and warranties of t@dger made in thSection 3.14efer only
to the past activities of the Manager and are mgnided to serve as representations to or warsarggarding, or a guarantee of, nor can they be
relied upon with respect to, Taxes attributablarig taxable periods (or portions thereof) beginrafigr, or Tax positions taken after, the Closing
Date.

Section 3.15 Affiliate Transactions. Except as set forth fBection 3.1%f the Manager Disclosure Schedule, since Janua29d9, the
Manager has not engaged in any transactions amat jgarty to any agreements, arrangements or uagelings between the Manager, on the one
hand, and the Investor and its Affiliates (otherththe Manager), on the other hand, that woulcehaired to be disclosed under Item 404 of
Regulation S-K if the Manager were subject thereto.

Section 3.16 Employee Benefit Plans(a) Section 3.16(adf the Manager Disclosure Schedule identifies édahager Benefit Plan. The
Manager has delivered or made available to the @Gomprue and complete copies of each Manager Bdplain and all amendments thereto (and
for any Manager Benefit Plan that is not in writimgwritten description of the material terms tlo€recurrent summary plan descriptions (and all
summaries of material modifications thereto) ofteatthe Manager Benefit Plans subject to ERISA sindlar descriptions of all other Manager
Benefit Plans, the trust agreement, insurance aohdrr other documentation of any funding arrangegmedated to each Manager Benefit Plan,
material communications to and from any Governmiehtghority or to or from any participant of a Magexr Benefit Plan (or a written description
of any material oral communications), the most ie¢®rm 5500 and related schedules for each MarBerefit Plan subject to ERISA's report
requirements, the two most recent actuarial regortsaudited financial statements, and the moshtetetermination or opinion letter from
Internal Revenue Service (the "IRS") with respedhe qualified status of each of the Manager BeRédins that is intended to meet the
requirements of a "qualified plan” under Sectiod @) of the Code. The Manager Benefit Plans haea lestablished, maintained, operated and
administered in all material respects in
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accordance with their terms and are in compliana@limaterial respects with the applicable Lave)uding ERISA and the Code. Each Manager
Benefit Plan which is intended to meet the requésts of a "qualified plan" under Section 401(a)haf Code has been determined by the IRS to
be a qualified plan (in form) by the issuance ¢dwrable determination or opinion letter by the&SIR here is no pending or, to the Knowledge of
the Manager, threatened material legal actionss,duiens, complaints or claims relating to any ldger Benefit Plan and no circumstances which
could cause the loss of such qualification of argnifiger Benefit Plan intended to be qualified urgkmtion 401(a) of the Code. To the
Knowledge of the Manager, in the two years immedyapreceding the Closing Date, the Manager hagngaged in a transaction in connection
with which the Manager would be subject to eitheid penalty pursuant to Section 502(i) of ERI®ATax pursuant to Section 4975 of the Code
that could reasonably be expected to have a MarMgtarial Adverse Effect. No material action, spitpceeding, hearing or investigation with
respect to the administration of the investmerthefassets of any of the Manager Benefit Plang(dtian routine claims for benefits) is pending
or, to the Knowledge of the Manager, threatenedMdoager Benefit Plan is subject to Section 30BRfSA, Title IV of ERISA or Section 412

of the Code and neither the Manager nor any memwibiiieir Controlled Group (defined as any organaatvhich is a member of a controlled
group of organizations within the meaning of Sewid14(b), (c), (m) or (0) of the Code) has at timy in the five years immediately prior to the
Closing Date sponsored or contributed to, or hasamy Liability or obligation with respect to, aplan subject to Section 302 of ERISA, Title IV
of ERISA or Section 412 of the Code. The Managersdwt have any present or future Liability under af the Manager Benefit Plans to prov
death, medical, life or other health and welfaredfiés with respect to any of its employees or pservice providers (or their spouses,
beneficiaries, or dependents) subsequent to tiremregnt or other termination of service of any saanfployee or service provider, other than
continuation coverage as described under ParfTétlefl of ERISA. The Manager does not maintairotrerwise have any Liability with respect
any deferred compensation, excess benefit or oibrerqualified supplemental retirement plan, prog@rarrangement. Neither the execution and
delivery of this Agreement nor the consummatiotheftransactions contemplated hereby (whether aloireconjunction with any other event),
will (i) result in (or any material increase in)yacompensation or payment (including severancemph@yment compensation, golden parachu
otherwise) becoming due to any current or formegdor, officer, partner, member, consultant or knyge of the Manager under any of the
Manager Benefit Plans or otherwise from the Mana@i¢materially increase any benefits otherwisgable or result in any new obligation under
any Manager Benefit Plans, (iii) result in any nmatleacceleration of the time of payment, fundimgresting of any such benefit (whether through
a grantor trust or otherwise), or (iv) result irydimitation or restriction on the right of the Mager to amend or terminate any Manager Benefit
Plan. All material contributions and other paymeetguired to be made by the Manager to any of thedder Benefit Plans with respect to any
period ending at the Closing Date have been madeserves adequate for such contributions or gghgments have been set aside therefor and
have been reflected in the Manager Financial Stamgsrin accordance with GAAP. There are no materitdtanding Liabilities of any of the
Manager Benefit Plans other than Liabilities fonéfits to be paid to participants and their benafies in accordance with the terms of such
Manager Benefit Plan. The Manager does not mairtaynManager Benefit Plan outside of the UnitedeStaf America. Except as provided by
applicable Law, there are no restrictions on thbts of the Manager to amend or terminate any@Manager Benefit Plans.

(b) With respect to the agreements, eat$;, plans and other arrangements to which thealylamis a party, each such agreement,
contract, plan or other arrangement that is orfitrans a part of a non-qualified deferred compensaatlan described in Section 409A of
the Code (‘Section 409A) has been operated in compliance with SectiorAM&8d is in documentary compliance with SectionA.09
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Section 3.17 Employment Matters. There are no employment or consulting Contrectshich the Manager is a party or by which it is
bound or otherwise has any present or future Litglother than as listed dBection 3.10f the Manager Disclosure Schedule, true and caeple
copies (and any amendments thereto) of which haee made available to the Company. The Managertjsand has not in the past five years
been, a party to any labor or collective bargairdggeement and there are no labor or collectivgdiaing agreements which pertain to employees
of the Manager. To the Knowledge of the Manageardtare no organizing activities involving the Mgeapending or threatened with any labor
organization or group of employees of the Managerthere are no representation or certificatiorcpealings or petitions seeking a representation
proceeding presently pending or, to the Knowledghe® Manager, threatened to be brought or filetth wie National Labor Relations Board or
any other labor relations tribunal or authorityatéig to the Manager. There have not been in thefpe years and are not currently any pending,
or, to the Knowledge of the Manager, threatenduhriatrikes, disputes, walkouts, work stoppagesydbwns, demonstrations, leafleting,
picketing, boycott, work-to-rule campaign, sit-gick-out, union election, governmental investigatio lockout with respect to employees of the
Manager. There are no material unfair labor praatitarges or complaints, grievances, arbitratiorsgtatration demands, lawsuits or
administrative or other proceedings pending othtoKnowledge of the Manager, threatened by oredralf of any employee or group of
employees of the Manager or brought or filed, vaitty authority or arbitrator based on, arising dutroconnection with, or otherwise relating to
the employment or termination of employment of ardividual by the Manager or any basis for anyhaf foregoing. There are no material
charges or complaints alleging sexual or otherdwment or other discrimination the Manager or dnjs@mployees or agents pending or, to the
Knowledge of the Manager, threatened in each cgaimst the Manager. The Manager is in complianalimaterial respects with all Laws
governing the employment of labor, including akklsu.aws relating to wages, hours, collective barigaj, discrimination, civil rights, safety and
health, labor relations, working conditions, em@eyscheduling, family and medical leave, employnaeidt reemployment of members of the
uniformed services, employment terminations, cfasdion of Persons as independent contractorskersr compensation disability, employee
benefits, severance payments, unemployment ancbtleztion and payment of withholding and/or Tadeg under the U.S. Old-Age, Survivors,
and Disability Insurance program, and similar TaXdg Manager has complied in all material respeitts the Worker Adjustment and
Retraining Notification Act or any state or locaw regarding the termination or layoff of employéeallectively, "WARN") and has not incurr
any Liability or obligation which remains unsatedi under WARN.

Section 3.18 Information Provided. The written information to be supplied by orlwehalf of the Investor and the Manager for in@uasi
in the Proxy Statement to be sent to the stockislofthe Company in connection with the Stockhdddeeting shall not, on the date the Proxy
Statement is first mailed to stockholders of thenpany, at the time of the Stockholders Meetingtdha Closing, contain any statement that, at
such time and in light of the circumstances undeictvit shall be made, is false or misleading wébpect to any material fact, or omit to state
material fact necessary in order to make the stt¢srmade in the Proxy Statement not false or ad#hg; or omit to state any material fact
necessary to correct any statement in any eadimntunication with respect to the solicitation obxies for the Stockholders Meeting that has
become false or misleading. If at any time priothte Stockholders Meeting any fact or event regatothe Investor, the Manager or any of their
respective Affiliates or the Manager's business shauld be set forth in a supplement to the Pi®tatement should be discovered by the Investor
or should occur, the Investor shall promptly aliecoming aware thereof, inform the Company of dachor event.
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Section 3.19 Independent Investigation. The Investor hereby acknowledges and affirms itthas conducted and completed its own
investigation, analysis and evaluation of the Comypand its Subsidiaries, that it has made all saglews and inspections of the financial
condition, business, results of operations, progerassets and prospects of the Company andhsdtaries as it has deemed necessary or
appropriate, that it has had the opportunity taiest all information it has deemed relevant toftliegoing from the Company and has received
responses it deems adequate and sufficient toell equests for information, and that in makisgliécision to enter into this Agreement and to
consummate the transactions contemplated herdtagitelied solely on its own investigation, ana\aid evaluation of the Company and its
Subsidiaries and is not relying in any way on apresentations and warranties, including any irdplkarranties, made by the Company or on
behalf of the Company by any other Person othar tha representations and warranties made expregshe Company in this Agreement and
each applicable Ancillary Document.

Section 3.20 Brokers. Other than Natixis Capital Markets, no broKerger, agent or similar intermediary is acting has acted, for, or
on behalf of, the Manager or any Manager CLO Isguepnnection with this Agreement or the transatticontemplated hereby, and no broker,
finder, agent or similar intermediary is entitl@dany broker's, finder's or similar fee or othemeoaission in connection therewith based on any
agreement, arrangement or understanding with thealgker or any Manager CLO Issuer or any action télethe Manager or any Manager CLO
Issuer.

Section 3.21 Legends. The Investor understands that until such tisitha resale of the Common Stock has been registerder the
Securities Act as contemplated by the Stockholdgreement, the stock certificates representingbmmon Stock, except as set forth below,
shall bear any legend as required by the "blue Ey% of any state and a restrictive legend in wutiglly the following form (and a stop-transfer
Order may be placed against transfer of such stedificates):

THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE HAVEOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT
OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIHRAWS. THE SECURITIES MAY NOT BE OFFERED FOR SALE,
SOLD, TRANSFERRED OR ASSIGNED (I) IN THE ABSENCE @#&) AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT FOR THE
SECURITIES UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMEED, OR (B) AN OPINION OF COUNSEL, REASONABLY
SATISFACTORY TO DEERFIELD CAPITAL CORP., THAT REGITRATION IS NOT REQUIRED UNDER SAID ACT OR

(I UNLESS SOLD PURSUANT TO RULE 144 OR RULE 144/M\DER SAID ACT.

The legend set forth above shall be removed an@tmepany shall issue a certificate without sucketebto the holder of the Common Stock u
which it is stamped, if, unless otherwise requingdstate securities laws, (i) Common Stock is tegéxl for resale under the Securities Act, (ii) the
Investor provides the Company with reasonable asserthat the Common Stock can be sold, assignedrsferred pursuant to Rule 144 or

Rule 144A promulgated under the Securities Acgragnded, (or a successor rule thereto) (collegtivdRule 144"), or (iii) in connection with a
sale, assignment or other transfer, the Investiges the Company with an opinion of counsel, foren reasonably satisfactory to the Comps

to the effect that the legend is no longer necgdsaprotect the Company against a violation ofithe Securities Act upon any sale, assignment
or transfer of the Common Stock made without regi&in under the applicable requirements of theuStes Act.

ARTICLE 4
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE COMPANY

Except as set forth in the correspondirgjises of the disclosure schedule (theédmpany Disclosure Schedu)ewhich is being delivered k
the Company to the Investor concurrently herewitth except as disclosed in, and reasonably appficent the Company SEC Documents
publicly
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available prior to the date of this Agreement anly @s and to the extent disclosed therein (oth@n disclosures in any schedules thereto or i
documents incorporated by reference therein aner dttan any forward looking disclosures set fontlamy risk factor section, any disclosures in
any section relating to forward looking statemeartd any other disclosures included therein to ten they are primarily predictive or forward-
looking in nature), the Company represents andamsrto the Investor as of the date hereof and tedClosing, as follows:

Section 4.1 Organization. (a) The Company is duly incorporated, validkjséing and in good standing under the Laws of N&rg with
all requisite power and authority required to cartdts business as presently conducted. The Comipasyeretofore made available to the
Investor true and complete copies of the ConstitDertuments of the Company and its Subsidiarieseauth such Constituent Document is in full
force and effect.

(b) The Company and each Subsidiary @Gbmpany is duly qualified or licensed to trandatiness and is in good standing in all
jurisdictions where the ownership or operationtefassets and properties or the conduct of itseasirequires such qualification, except
where the failure to be so licensed or in goodditanwould not have a Company Material Adverse &ffe

Section 4.2 Authorization; Enforceability. The Company has all requisite corporate powdrauthority to execute and deliver this
Agreement and each applicable Ancillary Documeat ihis a party to and to perform its obligatidreseunder and thereunder. The execution and
delivery by the Company of this Agreement and esgmblicable Ancillary Document that it is a partyaied the performance by the Company ¢
obligations hereunder and thereunder have beenaduifhyorized by all requisite corporate action & @ompany, subject only to obtaining
Stockholder Approval at a duly held meeting of satdtkholders (the Stockholders Meetin) or any adjournment or postponement thereof. The
Board of Directors of the Company has determined€ld on the recommendation of the Special Comnitte¢ this Agreement and the
transactions contemplated hereby are in the biseists of the Company and its stockholders, radved to recommend that holders of Common
Stock vote in favor of the issuance of the shaféSammon Stock comprising the Stock Consideratiod thhe Conversion Shares, and has dire
that the issuance of the Stock Consideration aadCtnversion Shares be submitted to the Compatogkholders for approval at the
Stockholders Meeting (theCompany Recommendatitynand has taken any required action to make aaiy ffice,” "moratorium,” "control sha
acquisition" or other similar anti-takeover statataegulation enacted under the MGCL inapplicablthe transactions contemplated hereby. No
other corporate action on the part of the Comparifsstockholders is necessary to authorize tleewtion, delivery and performance by the
Company of this Agreement and each applicable AargiDocument that it is a party to and the consatiom by it of the transactions
contemplated hereunder and thereunder. This Agneehas been and each applicable Ancillary Documéhbe duly executed and delivered by
the Company and, assuming that this Agreementar sach applicable Ancillary Document has been dulhorized, executed and delivered by
the other parties hereto and thereto, constitut@glbconstitute the legal, valid and binding adtion of the Company, enforceable against the
Company in accordance with its terms, except teettient that the enforceability thereof may be tediby (i) applicable bankruptcy, insolvency,
fraudulent conveyance, reorganization, moratoriursimilar Laws from time to time in effect affeagirgenerally the enforcement of creditors'
rights and remedies; and (ii) general principlesaiity, including principles of reasonablenesadyfaith and fair dealing (regardless of whether
enforcement is sought in equity or at law).

Section 4.3 Subsidiaries; Investments.

(a) Section 4.3(apf the Company Disclosure Schedule sets forth #menand jurisdiction of organization of each Sulbsjdof the
Company. Each of the Company's Subsidiaries istity@uly organized, validly existing and (to thetent the concept of good standing
exists in the applicable jurisdiction) in good steny under the laws of its jurisdiction of orgartina. Each of
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the Company's Subsidiaries has all requisite catpasr other similar organizational power and atith®o own, lease and operate its
properties and to carry on its business as nowgb@nducted except where the failure to be so $iedror in good standing would not h:
a Company Material Adverse Effect.

(b) Other than any interests in the ComyfmSubsidiaries and, except as set fortBdntion 4.3(bpf the Company Disclosure
Schedule, neither the Company nor any of its Sidosés owns any Equity Interests in any Person Ejllity Interests in each Subsidiary
of the Company are owned by the Company or an@hbsidiary of the Company free and clear of any&j®ther than Permitted Liens.

Section 4.4 Capitalization. The Company is authorized to issue 500,000db@0es of Common Stock and 100,000,000 shares of
preferred stock of the Company, par value $0.00Xpare (the Preferred Stock). As of the date of this Agreement, (i) 6,454, %ares of
Common Stock are issued and outstanding, (ii) moeshof Preferred Stock are issued and outstanfiifghe Company has reserved 308,164
shares of Common Stock for issuance pursuant tgréme of outstanding restricted stock units afi3,000 shares of Common Stock for
issuance pursuant to exercise of outstanding wigrtarpurchase Common Stock and (iv) no other shafr€ommon Stock, other voting securi
of the Company or shares of Preferred Stock haee ssued, reserved for issuance or outstandings#led and outstanding shares of Common
Stock have been duly authorized and are validlyadsfully paid, nonassessable and not subjeateterpptive rights. There are no other
outstanding calls, rights, commitments, agreememtangements or undertakings of any kind, obligathe Company to issue, deliver or sell, or
cause to be issued, delivered or sold Equity Isterim the Company, or obligating the Company $aés grant, extend or enter into any such
security, option, warrant, call, right, commitmeagreement, arrangement or undertaking. There@moaitstanding or authorized stock
appreciation, phantom stock, profit participatiarsonilar rights with respect to the Equity Intemesf the Company. There are no outstanding
contractual obligations of the Company to repurehasdeem or otherwise acquire any of its Equitgrests or make any material investment (in
the form of a loan, capital contribution or othes®)i in any Person.

Section 4.5 Compliance with Laws. (a) Except as disclosed $ection 4.%f the Company Disclosure Schedule, the Companyitand
Subsidiaries are not in material violation of, dr@Ve not violated in any material respect, anyiapple Law affecting or related to the Company,
any of its Subsidiaries or any Company CLO Issuetr any of their businesses, operations, assetsniplogees. To the Knowledge of the
Company, no investigation or review by any GoverntakAuthority with respect to the Company, anyitefSubsidiaries or any Company CLO
Issuer is pending or threatened and no Governm@athlority has indicated an intention to condue game.

(b) None of the Company, any of its Sdizsies, any Company CLO Issuer, or any of theinaggers, directors or officers acting for
or on their behalf, or, to the Knowledge of the Qamy, any employee or agent of the Company, aiitg &ubsidiaries or any Company
CLO Issuer or any Person acting for or on theirdifelhas, directly or indirectly, (i) used any funfibr unlawful contributions, gifts,
gratuities, entertainment or other unlawful expsnstated to political activity, (i) made any pagm or offered, promised or authorized
the payment of anything of value, regardless afiffowhether in money, property or services, to ottffie benefit of any U.S. or non-U.S.
government official or employee, any official or plmyee of a public international organization, ay golitical party or candidate for
political office for the purpose of influencing aagt or decision of such individual or of any Gowaental Authority or public
international organization, or securing any improg@vantage, in order to obtain or retain busimestirect business to any Person in
violation of applicable Law, (iii) made any otherlawful payment, regardless of form, whether in eygrproperty or services, including
any payment which constitutes criminal bribery uralgplicable Law or (iv) violated any applicablgiext control,
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money laundering or anti-terrorism law or regulatior any other applicable anti-bribery law or redgion, of any applicable jurisdiction,
or any applicable Law of similar effect.

Section 4.6 Non-Contravention; Consents and ApprovalsThe execution and delivery of this Agreementtey Company and the
Ancillary Documents to which it is a party, the sammation by the Company of the transactions copiiEed hereby and thereby, and the
performance by the Company of its obligations hedew and thereunder, except as set fortBdation 4.®f the Company Disclosure Schedule:
(i) does not violate any provision of the ConstituBocuments of the Company or any of its Subsiearand (ii)(A) does not conflict with or
violate any applicable Law of any Governmental Awity having jurisdiction over the Company or arfyite Subsidiaries or any part of the
properties or assets of the Company or its Sub#dia(B) does not require the Consent of any Peusaler, violate, result in the termination or
acceleration of or of any right under, give risetanodify any right or obligation under (whethemmt in combination with any other event or
circumstance), or conflict with, breach or congéta default under (in each case with or withouiceg the passage of time or both), any Contract
to which the Company or any of its Subsidiariea garty or by which any of their respective projsrbr assets is bound, (C) does not result i
creation or imposition of any Lien on any partlod fproperties or assets of the Company or anyg @ubsidiaries, (D) does not violate any Order
binding on the Company or any of its Subsidiarieary part of its or their properties or assets, @) except for the Stockholder Approval and
the filing with the SEC of a Proxy Statement iniditifve form relating to the Stockholders Meetinbd " Proxy Statemen) and any other
document to be filed with the SEC in connectiorhwtitis Agreement and the Ancillary Documents (ti@tHer Filings"), does not otherwise
require any Governmental Approvals or any Thirdy@onsents other than the Company Consents, extép case of (B), (C), (D) or (E) for
any of the foregoing, that, individually or in thggregate would not have a Company Material AdvEffet.

Section 4.7 SEC Reports and Financial Statements.

(@) Since December 31, 2008, the Combasytimely filed or otherwise furnished (as apgiliea all registration statements,
prospectuses, forms, reports, definitive proxyestants, schedules, statements and documents rtpioe filed or furnished by it under
the Exchange Act, (such documents as amendedyadkan supplemented, modified or amended sincéntieeof filing so long as such
supplement, modification or amendment has occuried  the date of this Agreement, collectivelyet' Company SEC Documerijs As
of their respective filing dates (and if so amendeduperseded, then on the date of such subsefijia)tthe Company SEC Documents
(i) did not (or with respect to Company SEC Docutadited after the date hereof, will not) contaimyauntrue statement of a material fact
or omit to state a material fact required to béestdherein or necessary in order to make theratatées made therein, in light of the
circumstances under which they were made, not aedsdg and (i) complied in all material respectshwthe applicable requirements of 1
Exchange Act and the applicable rules and reguiataf the SEC thereunder. None of the Company 8iatois is currently required to
make any filings with the SEC other than DCM indépacity as a registered investment advisor. #the audited consolidated financial
statements and unaudited consolidated interim Giehstatements of the Company and its Subsididgmidaded in the Company SEC
Documents (collectively, theCompany Financial Statemeri§s(A) have been or will be, as the case may bepared from the Books and
Records of the Company and its Subsidiaries, (B teeen or will be, as the case may be, preparaddordance with GAAP applied on a
consistent basis during the periods involved (ekespnay be indicated in the notes thereto ohéncase of interim financial statements,
for normal and recurring year-end adjustmentsdh@tnot material in amount or nature and as mgyebmitted by the SEC on Form 10-Q,
Form 8-K or any successor or like form under thetaxnge Act) and (C) fairly present in all mater&dpects the consolidated financial
position and the consolidated results of operatioash flows and changes
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in stockholders' equity of the Company and its 8liages as of the dates and for the periods refeto therein.

(b) Without limiting the generality &ection 4.7(a) (i) Deloitte & Touche LLP has not resigned or eksmissed as independent
public accountant of the Company as a result @fi @onnection with any disagreement with the Conypama matter of accounting
principles or practices, financial statement disale or auditing scope or procedure, (ii) no exgeutfficer of the Company has failed in
any respect to make, without qualification, thetiieations required of him or her under Sectior230 906 of the Sarban@xley Act with
respect to any form, report or schedule filed By @mpany with the SEC since December 31, 200&i@ndo enforcement action has
been initiated or, to the Knowledge of the Compdhseatened against the Company by the SEC reltidgsclosures contained in any
Company SEC Document.

(c) The Company has not received any daimfp allegation, assertion or claim in writinggezding a material aspect of the
accounting practices, procedures, methodologiesethods of the Company's internal accounting ctsjthocluding any such complaint,
allegation, assertion or claim that the Companydramged in questionable accounting or audit pregtiThe Company has made availi
to the Company any management letters, or othardbcommunications, including with respect to prega adjustments, from any of the
Company's auditors to the Company, any officehef€ompany or the Board of Directors, in any cagarding (1) any significant
deficiencies and material weaknesses in the desigperation of disclosure controls and proced(aeslefined in Rule 13a-15(e) of the
Exchange Act) or of internal control over finandigporting (as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) of the Exwge Act) which have adversely
affected or are reasonably likely to adverselydiffhe ability of the Company to record, processnmarize and report financial date,

(2) any fraud, whether or not material, that inesvmanagement or other employees who have a sagnifiole in the Company's internal
control over financial reporting, or (3) any otlieficiencies in the accounting system of the Corgpan

Section 4.8 Absence of Certain Changes and EventSince the Balance Sheet Date (a) the Compasigdraducted, and has caused its
Subsidiaries to conduct, their respective busireeesdy in the ordinary course and consistently \piist practice; (b) the Company and its
Subsidiaries have not suffered any event, chargrireence, facts or circumstance that, individualyn the aggregate with any other events,
changes, occurrences or circumstances, has hadubd weasonably be expected to have a Company Mbgaiverse Effect; and (c) there has not
been any action, omission or event that would lodipited by or would have required consent of teektor pursuant tBection 5.had such
action, omission or event been taken, occurredisem after the date of this Agreement.

Section 4.9 No Undisclosed Liabilities. (a) Except (i) for those Liabilities that aeflected on or reserved against in the Company's
December 31, 2009 balance sheet or disclosed indtes thereto, and (ii) for those Liabilities in@d in the ordinary course of business
consistent with past practice since the BalanceSbate, and not, individually or in the aggregataterial to the Company and its Subsidiaries,
the Company and its Subsidiaries do not have aakilities of any kind or nature whatsoever, whetkrewswn or unknown, accrued, contingent,
absolute, determined, or determinable, or whetttegravise due or to become due, and there is ndigisondition, situation or set of
circumstances that could reasonably be expectesbtdt in such a Liability.

Section 4.10 Regulatory Compliance. (a) None of the Company, any of its Subsid&dg to the Knowledge of the Company, any other
Person "associated" (as defined under the InvestAubrisers Act) with the Company or any of its Sidlisries during the preceding ten years, has
been convicted of any crime or is or has been stibjeany disqualification that would be a basisdenial, suspension or revocation of
registration of an investment adviser under Sei@®(e) through (4) and 203(e)(7) through (9) ef hvestment Advisers Act or Rule 206(4)-4
(b) thereunder or has engaged in any conduct, €xaefhe investigation described 8ection 4.10(adpf the Company Disclosure Schedule,
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been involved in any Legal Proceeding or is or suggect to any Order that is required to be diszlosn a Form ADV.

(b) Each of the Company and its Subsieisarequired to be registered as an investmensaduinder the Investment Advisers Act
and the rules and regulations thereunder is regidt@s such and has completed notice filings foh state listed isection 4.10(bdf the
Company Disclosure Schedule, which jurisdictiorestae only jurisdictions wherein such Person isimegl to make such filings.

(c) Each Subsidiary of the Company teatpgistered as an investment adviser under thestment Advisers Act has filed a Form
ADV with the SEC in accordance with the Investmadtisers Act, which Form at the time of filing wéand with respect to Form ADV
Part Il, was as of its date), and as amended gmpleamented as of the date hereof is, in effectyansto and in material compliance with
the requirements of the Investment Advisers Ace Tompany has heretofore made available to thestav&ue and correct copies of the
Forms ADV for 2008 and 2009 as amended or suppleedeas of the date hereof. Each of the investmemagement entities and each of
its investment adviser representatives (as such iedefined in Rule 203A-3(a) under the Investmidiisers Act) has, and until the time
of the Closing will have, all Governmental Approvaéquired in order for them to lawfully conduce ihvestment advisory services of the
Company and its Subsidiaries in the manner preseatiducted, and all such Governmental Approvasrafull force and effect and are
being complied with in all respects, in each casmpt to the extent the failure to have such Gawemtal Approvals or the failure to
comply with any such Governmental Approval hashaat and would not reasonably be expected to had®jdually or in the aggregate
Company Material Adverse Effect. DCM is not subjecany material limitation relating to the investnt adviser activities of DCM
imposed in connection with one or more of the Gomegntal Approvals. Except as set forttSiection 4.10(cdf the Company Disclosure
Schedule, none of the Company or any of its Sudsés or, in connection with their service to thenpany and its Subsidiaries, any of
their respective directors, officers or employeeregistered or required to be registered as aebmmkdealer, a commaodity trading adviser,
a commodity pool operator, a futures commissionamant, an introducing broker, a transfer agentgistered representative or associated
person, a counseling officer, an insurance agesdles person or in any similar capacity with tB€Sthe Commodity Futures Trading
Commission, the NFA, FINRA, the securities comnuasdf any state or any other self-regulatory body @each such Person set forth on
Section 4.10(cdf the Company Disclosure Schedule is duly regestexrs required by Law. None of the Company, arigs@ubsidiaries o
in connection with their service to the Company @s®ubsidiaries, any of their respective direstoifficers or employees, during the
preceding ten years, has been convicted of anyecrimis or has been the subject of a denial, sisspe or revocation of registration with
the CFTC or the NFA as a "commodity pool operatas’'such term is defined in the Commodity Exchahcfg.

(d) None of the Company, any Subsidiaryany Company CLO Issuer is registered as, agqsired to be registered as Registered
Investment Company, and no other Person to whor@tmepany or any Subsidiary renders Investment Mamagt Services is a
Registered Investment Company.

(e) No person, other than employees @fGbmpany or any of its Subsidiaries, renders linvest Management Services to or on
behalf of Clients or solicits Clients with respézthe provision of Investment Management Servimethe Company or any of its
Subsidiaries.

(f) DCM has adopted a written policy aeding insider trading and a code of ethics, wltichnplies in all material respects with all
applicable provisions of the Advisers Act (inclugliwith respect to insider trading and personalitgdinder Section 204A thereof and
Rule 204A-1
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thereunder), copies of which have been made avaitalihe Investor. All of the employees of the Qamy and its Subsidiaries have
executed acknowledgments that they are bound bgrthésions of the applicable insider trading pelgcand code of ethics. DCM has
adopted a written compliance program regardingatssfaction of the requirements of Rule 206(4ader the Advisers Act. To the
Knowledge of the Company, during the past threesye¢here have been no material violations or atiegs of material violations of such
codes of ethics or insider trading policies. Eavkektment Management Entity has adopted a writtempliance program regarding such
Investment Management Entity's satisfaction ofréguiirements of Rule 206(4)-7 under the Advisers Ac

(g) No exemptive Orders, "no-action"destor similar exemptions or regulatory relief heen obtained, and no requests are
pending therefor, by or with respect to the Compamy of its Subsidiaries or any Company CLO Issueany employee of any such
Person in connection with the business of the Company of its Subsidiaries or any Company CLO éssu

Section 4.11 Company CLO Issuers. (a) To the Knowledge of the Company, the mesent trustee report under each Company CLO
Indenture accurately reflects each asset thatfipsalis a "Defaulted Obligation” or a "Defaultect@dty" (each as defined in the applicable
Company CLO Indenture) as of the date of such tepud to the Knowledge of the Company there haes lb® material misstatements under any
such trustee reports.

(b) Section 4.11(bdf the Company Disclosure Schedule is the mann@oofsent required for the "assignment” (or deemed
assignment) under applicable Law, including theebtinent Advisers Act and the Company CLO Managemgrgements, by the
Company of each Company CLO Management Agreemeatrinection with the transactions contemplatedhiz/Agreement, in each
case so that any such Consent will be duly andilyatibtained in accordance with all applicable Lawd the terms of any Contracts
relating thereto.

(c) Except as set forth$ection 4.11(cpf the Company Disclosure Schedule and expressgriteed thereon, as of the date hereof,
there are no Contracts pursuant to which the Cosnpas undertaken or agreed to cap, waive, offsghburse or otherwise reduce any or
all fees or charges payable by or with respechtoad the Company's CLO Issuers or Clients. Exesptet forth irBection 4.11(cdf the
Company Disclosure Schedule, (i) no Company CL@Qdssapplicable CLO Investor, applicable CLO Trastpplicable CLO
Administrator or other Client of the Company hasfied the Company that such Person (includingrafteing effect to the Closing) has
(or, with the giving of notice or the passage pfdj or both, will have) the right to terminate tBempany or reduce or defer the fees
payable to the Company under any Company CLO ManageAgreement or Advisory Contract, (ii) to thedwledge of the Company,
there is no fact with respect to any relationship €Company has with any Company CLO Issuer tha¢riadlyy adversely affects or could
reasonably be expected to materially adverselyctéiey Company CLO Management Agreement, andn@iCompany CLO Issuer,
applicable CLO Investor, applicable CLO Trusteapplicable CLO Administrator has notified the Compa#hat it may cause, either
individually or collectively with others, a redenmot of any securities issued by such Company ClsDdsor termination of any Company
CLO Management Agreement.

(d) No Company CLO Issuer is (i) an emypi benefit plan, as defined in Section 3(3) of &RIthat is subject to Title | of ERISA,
(ii) a Person acting on behalf of such a planjigrgn entity whose assets include the assetsich s plan, within the meaning of ERISA
and applicable regulations.

(e) Section 4.11(e9f the Company Disclosure Schedule sets forthe, trarrect and complete list of the Company CLQéss
Documents relating to the Company CLO Issuers.tmpany has provided the Manager with true andecbropies of all Company
CLO Issuer Documents relating to the Company CLsDdss, and the offering circulars or memoranda
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included in such Company CLO Issuer Documentsingdab the Company CLO Issuers did not at the thmeh Company CLO Issuer
issued any securities related to such Company Gls@er Documents contain any untrue statement @tarral fact concerning the
Company or omit to state a material fact concertiirgCompany necessary in order to make the statsmentained therein, in the light
of the circumstances under which they were mademigleading. Each Company CLO Issuer Documenthiziivthe Company is a party
is in full force and effect and binding upon then@many and, to the Knowledge of the Company, thergbarties thereto, except as

() limited by applicable bankruptcy, insolvencgprganization, moratorium, fraudulent conveyanag@ther similar laws of general
application affecting enforcement of creditorshtigygenerally and (ii) the availability of the resiyeof specific performance or injunctive
other forms of equitable relief may be subjectdaitable defenses and would be subject to theeliser of the court before which any
proceeding therefor may be brought. Except asostt bnSection 4.11(edf the Company Disclosure Schedule, to the Knowdealthe
Company, no Default (as defined in the applicaldenfany CLO Indenture) has occurred and is contguimder any Company CLO
Indenture, no Event of Default (as defined in thplizable Company CLO Indenture) has occurred arabntinuing under any Company
CLO Indenture.

(f) Each Company Consent obtained iroest@nce withSection 5.1including each of the Consents included in thedrination of
whether the condition contained $ection 6.2(hhas been satisfied) will, as of the Closing Datajehbeen duly obtained under all
applicable Law and the requirements of the apple&@ompany CLO Management Agreement.

(g) Neither the Company nor any of ithSdiaries has provided naotice of its resignatisithe manager under any Company CLO
Management Agreement.

(h) Other than the Company CLO Managemameements, Company CLO Indentures and the Sicakégancing Agreements of
the Company, there are no Contracts pursuant tohathe Company receives fees or payments in coionegith its services under any
Company CLO Issuer Document. Except for the Stiatémancing Agreements of the Company, the Compesynot entered into any
Contract providing for the sharing of fees, delegabf any obligations or assignment or pledgerof aghts under any Company CLO
Management Agreemergection 4.11(hpf the Company Disclosure Schedule set forth g tagect and complete list of any securities of
each Company CLO Issuer owned by the Company ophity Affiliates.

(i) Except as disclosed$ection 4.11(ipf the Company Disclosure Schedule, no event ounistance has occurred or exists wi
constitutes "cause" under any Company CLO Managemgreement, or, with the passage of time or givehgotice, would constitute
"cause" under any Company CLO Management Agreearehtio Company CLO Issuer, investor in any secisiyed by a Company
CLO Issuer, applicable CLO Trustee or applicablédCAdministrator has stated that such event or mistance has occurred or exists.

(i) No Company CLO Issuer has or is iegflito file federal, state, local or foreign TagtRrns or pay any Taxes or is otherwise
subject to taxation in any jurisdiction except floe filing of Tax Returns and payment of Taxeshia €ayman Islands. Each Company
CLO Issuer (i) has materially complied with all végd Tax information reporting requirements to evhit is subject by timely filing such
Tax information reporting returns and reports fioran that is accurate and complete in all mategapects and (ii) has complied in all
material respects with the operating guidelinedath in the applicable Company CLO Managemente®gnent or Company CLO
Indentures to avoid engaging, or deemed to be eénggaig a trade or business within the United Stdite United States federal income tax
purposes or subject to United States federal, stdt@al income tax on a net income basis.
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Section 4.12 Contracts.

(a) Section 4.12(apf the Company Disclosure Schedule lists, and écetttent not filed as an exhibit to an SEC Docunmtiiet
Company has provided to the Manager, true, compledecorrect copies of, the following Contractliding all material amendments,
modifications, extensions, renewals, guarantedsgdides, exhibits or ancillary agreements with eesghereto, or in the case of oral
Contracts, written descriptions of the materiaitgithereof) to which the Company or any of its $libses is a party or is bound by as of
the date hereof (collectively, theCbmpany Material Contracty:

(i) each Company CLO Management Agreedmen

(i) any Contract relating to (x) the eggment of any financial institution (other tharthaany rating agency, trustee or
routine service provider) in respect of engagemeatyet completed or (y) in respect of the warediog of securities not yet
completed, in each case, in connection with theé&tion or offering of any securities of any Comp&iO Issuer;

(iif) any Contract for the purchase of atata, assets, material or equipment, other thgrsach Contract in an amount not
exceeding $25,000 annually;

(iv) any Contract for the sale or dispiasitof assets of the Company or any of its Subsikan excess of $250,000 other tl
financial assets in the ordinary course of business

(v) any Contract relating to the acquasit(by merger, share exchange, consolidation, deation or purchase of Equity
Interests or assets or otherwise) by the Compamypof its Subsidiaries of any corporation, pathé, limited liability company,
or other business organization, division or opatpbusiness or material assets or the capital stookher equity interests of any
other Person;

(vi) any Contract relating to Indebtednttes Company or any of its Subsidiaries in excé$260,000;

(vii) any Contract, excluding any Compangnigfit Plan, with any (A) current officer, directonember or Affiliate of the
Company or any of its Subsidiaries (B) any formgicer, director, member or Affiliate of the Compaar any of its Subsidiaries
pursuant to which the Company or such Subsidiasyamy continuing obligations thereunder;

(viii) any Contract imposing a Lien (othéan Permitted Liens) on any of the assets of thegamy in excess of $100,000;

(ix) any Contract with any Governmentaltidarity (other than a Contract relating to an irtmeant by a Governmental
Authority in a Company CLO Issuer);

(x) any Contract for the placement, disttion or sale of any interests in the Compangmy of its Subsidiaries (including
any agreement with respect to the referral or gation of prospective investors in any Company Gk8uers) in respect of
placements, distributions or sales not yet comglete

(xi) any Contract pursuant to which then@any or any of its Subsidiaries licenses thuedty Intellectual Property (other th
Contracts granting rights to use "off-the-shel€lick-wrap," or "shrink-wrap" software, as well ather commercially available
software licenses with royalties or license feesaxzgeeding $25,000 annually);

(xii) any Contract that (A) provides fonmaterial earn-out or similar contingent obligatmfithe Company or any of its
Subsidiaries or (B) contains a "clawback" or similadertaking requiring the contribution, reimburgat or refund by the
Company or any of its
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Subsidiaries of any prior distribution, return afpial or fees (whether performance based or otisejypaid to the Company or any
such Subsidiary;

(xiii) any Contract requiring that the Compaor any of its Subsidiaries (A) co-invest withyasther Person; (B) provide seed
capital or similar investment; or (C) invest in anyestment product (including, any such Contraquiring additional or "follow-
on" capital contributions by the Company or sucbstdiary);

(xiv) any Contract that contains any of tbikowing rights provided by the Company or anyitsfSubsidiaries to a Client
advised by the Company or such Subsidiary: (A) ish@dthdrawal or redemption rights; (B) designatiaghts regarding advisory
boards or similar provisions; (C) anti-dilution htg; (D) special notice or reporting requireme(i;a "most favored nation" or
similar provision; or (F) early termination rightsth respect to a Company CLO Issuer; and

(xv) any other Contract not otherwise diseld pursuant to thi8ection 4.12(alpaving a duration in excess of one year and not
terminable without penalty upon 90 days or lessrpmbtice by the Company or any of its Subsidiatied requires future
expenditures of money in excess of $250,000.

(b) (i) Each Company Material Contracinigull force and effect, in all material respedtsa valid and binding obligation of the
Company or a Subsidiary of the Company and, td&ih@wvledge of the Company, each other party theestoept to the extent that the
enforceability thereof may be limited by (A) applite bankruptcy, insolvency, fraudulent conveyaneerganization, moratorium or
similar Laws from time to time in effect affectiggnerally the enforcement of creditors' rights erdedies; and (B) general principles of
equity, including principles of reasonableness,dfagth and fair dealing (regardless of whetheioecgment is sought in equity or at law),
(i) the Company and its Subsidiaries are not iiemal breach or violation of, or default undery@ompany Material Contract and, to the
Knowledge of the Company, no event exists that witice, the passage of time or both would constitumaterial default by the
Company or any of its Subsidiaries under any Compaaterial Contract, (iii) to the Knowledge of t@®mpany neither it nor any of its
Subsidiaries has received any written claim of diéfander or cancellation of any Company Materiah@act, and (iv) to the Knowledge
of the Company, no other party is in breach oratioh of, or default under, any Company Materiahtact.

(c) (i) Each Company CLO Management Agreet is in full force and effect in all materiabpects and is a valid and binding
obligation of the Company or a Subsidiary of thexpany, and to the Knowledge of the Company, no eeeaircumstance exists that
would constitute a material breach or violation@fdefault under a Company CLO Management Agre¢mrecause for termination by a
Company CLO Issuer of a Company CLO Managementégaemt, (ii) the Company and its Subsidiaries haréopmed all of the materi
obligations required to be performed by it undeshe@ompany CLO Management Agreement, and is notaterial breach or violation of,
or default under any Company CLO Management Agre¢meCompany CLO Indenture, (iii) neither the Canp nor any of its
Subsidiaries received any written claim of defaumtler or cancellation of or that cause for termamabr removal exists under any
Company CLO Management Agreement or Company CL@ritde and (iv) to the Knowledge of the Companyotier party is in breac
or violation of, or default under, any Company MatkeContract.

Section 4.13 Litigation. Except as disclosed 8Bection 4.1®f the Company Disclosure Schedule, (a) there imaterial Legal
Proceeding pending nor, to the Knowledge of the gamy, threatened against the Company, its Submdiar the Company CLO Issuers before
any Governmental Authority, (b) none of the CompatsySubsidiaries or the Company CLO Issuersgargy to or is
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subject to any Order or other arrangement with@ayernmental Authority and none of the CompanySitbsidiaries or the Company CLO
Issuers has been notified by any Governmental Aitthto the effect that such Governmental Authoritycontemplating issuing or requesting any
such Order or other arrangement, and (c) noneeo€thimpany, its Subsidiaries or the Company CLOelssis in default under, or has failed to
comply with, any material Order applicable to it.

Section 4.14 Taxes. (@) Each of the Company and its Subsidiariastinzely filed or caused to be timely filed all regil Tax Returns
required to be filed by it. All such Tax Returnsevhfiled were true, correct and complete in alleniat respects. Each of the Company and its
Subsidiaries has paid all material Taxes due agdhda by it and has made adequate provision inrdecae with GAAP for any material Taxes
not yet due and payable by it.

(b) No Tax Liens other than Permittedrisare in effect or have been filed and are atittanding and no claims or adjustments are
being asserted or threatened in writing, in eadle eéth respect to any material amount of Taxeangfof the Company or its Subsidiaries.

(c) None of the Company or any of its Sdiaries has received written notice of any outdiiag Tax audit or inquiry with respect to
a material amount of Taxes which the Company hasvaale available to the Investor.

(d) There are no outstanding waiversasngarable consents regarding the application ofthtite of limitations with respect to any
Taxes or Tax Returns of any of the Company or utss&liaries.

(e) None of the Company or any of its Sdiaries has participated in any "listed trangactwithin the meaning of Treasury
Regulation Section 1.6011-4(b)(4).

(f) Neither the Company nor any of itsSidiaries is a party to or bound by any outstagpdigreement or understanding providing
for the allocation or sharing of Taxes, other tbastomary commercial agreements not primarily eelab Taxes.

(g) Since December 31, 2009, neitheiGbmpany nor any of its Subsidiaries has incurrgdlaability for Taxes outside the
ordinary course of business or inconsistent witt paactice.

(h) Neither the Company nor any of itbSidiaries has any Liability for Taxes of any otRerson (other than the Company and its
Subsidiaries) pursuant to Treasury Regulation 8ecti1502-6 (or any similar provision of federahts, local or foreign Law), as a
transferee or successor, by Contract or otherwise.

(i) Neither the Company nor any of itdSidiaries will be required to include any itemiredome in, or exclude any item of
deduction from, taxable income for any period (ay portion thereof) ending after the Closing Dageaaesult of any installment sale,
Section 467 rental agreement, accounting methodgehar prepaid amount received on or prior to tlesiGg Date.

(i) Neither the Company nor any of itdSidiaries nor any of their Affiliates or predesess by merger or consolidation has within
the past two (2) years been a party to a transaatiended to qualify under Section 355 of the Codander so much of Section 356 of
Code as relates to Section 355 of the Code.

(k) For (i) U.S. Federal income tax pwses and (ii) U.S. State income tax purposes, thepgaoy and its Subsidiaries will have net
operating loss carryovers, after application of applicable limitations, sufficient to offset angncellation of indebtedness income that
may be recognized by the Company and any of itsiflissies upon consummation of the Debt Buybackuiesng that net operating los:
are applied to fully offset other taxable incom@pto offsetting any such cancellation of indelstesls income.
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() The Company is not and has not dythre previous five years been a United Statespreglerty holding corporation within the
meaning of Section 897(c)(2) of the Code.

Section 4.15 Employee Benefit Plans. (a) Section 4.15(apf the Company Disclosure Schedule identifies éaampany Benefit Plan.
The Company has delivered or made available tdntbestor true and complete copies of each Compameft Plan and all amendments thereto
(and for any Company Benefit Plan that is not iiting, a written description of the material terthereof), current summary plan descriptions
(and all summaries of material modifications theyetf each of the Company Benefit Plans subje&R&SA and similar descriptions of all other
Company Benefit Plans, the trust agreement, inggranntract or other documentation of any fundimgregement related to each Company
Benefit Plan, any material communications to andifany Governmental Authority or to or from anytf@pant of a Company Benefit Plan (or a
written description of any material oral communicas), the most recent Form 5500 and related sdbedor each Company Benefit Plan subject
to ERISA's reporting requirements, the two moseéné@ctuarial reports and audited financial statésjend the most recent determination or
opinion letter from the IRS with respect to the lfieal status of each of the Company Benefit Pldnad is intended to meet the requirements of a
"qualified plan" under Section 401(a) of the Cotlee Company Benefit Plans have been establisheidtaireed, operated and administered in all
material respects in accordance with their terntsar in compliance in all material respects whth applicable Law, including ERISA and the
Code. Each Company Benefit Plan which is intendeti¢et the requirements of a "qualified plan" urlection 401(a) of the Code has been
determined by the IRS to be a qualified plan (imfpby the issuance of a favorable determinatioapinion letter by the IRS. There is no penc
or, to the Knowledge of the Company, threateneceriatiegal actions, suits, Liens, complaints @ims relating to any Company Benefit Plan
and no circumstances which could cause the losadf qualification of any Company Benefit Plan imited to be qualified under Section 401(a)
of the Code. To the Knowledge of the Company, ettho years immediately preceding the Closing D Company and its Subsidiaries have
not engaged in a transaction in connection withcwhihe Company or any of its Subsidiaries wouldlgiect to either a civil penalty pursuant to
Section 502(i) of ERISA or Tax pursuant to Sec@75 of the Code that could reasonably be expaotbdve a Company Material Adverse
Effect. No material action, suit, proceeding, hegrbr investigation with respect to the administrabf the investment of the assets of any of the
Company Benefit Plans (other than routine claimmsbfmefits) is pending or, to the Knowledge of @@mpany, threatened. No Company Benefit
Plan is subject to Section 302 of ERISA, Title IMERISA or Section 412 of the Code and neitherGoenpany, any of its Subsidiaries, nor any
member of their Controlled Groups (defined as amanization which is a member of a controlled grofiprganizations within the meaning of
Sections 414(b), (c), (m) or (o) of the Code) havany time in the five years immediately priothie Closing Date sponsored or contributed to, or
had any Liability or obligation with respect to aphan subject to Section 302 of ERISA, Title IVERISA or Section 412 of the Code. The
Company and its Subsidiaries do not have any ptesdnture Liability under any of the Company B&nPBlans to provide death, medical, life or
other health and welfare benefits with respectpaf their employees or other service providerslieir spouses, beneficiaries, or dependents)
subsequent to the retirement or other terminatf@eovice of any such employee or service provid#rer than continuation coverage as desci
under Part 6 of Title | of ERISA. The Company atdSubsidiaries do not maintain or otherwise hawelaability with respect to any deferred
compensation, excess benefit or other non-qualgfigzblemental retirement plan, program or arrangéniNeither the execution and delivery of
this Agreement nor the consummation of the tramsastcontemplated hereby (whether alone or in autjan with any other event), will (i) res
in (or any material increase in) any compensatiopayment (including severance, unemployment corsgiion, golden parachute or otherwise)
becoming due to any current or former directoriceff, partner, member, consultant or employee @Gbmpany or any of its Subsidiaries under
any of the Company Benefit Plans or otherwise ftbemCompany or any of its Subsidiaries, (ii) matyiincrease any benefits otherwise
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payable or result in any new obligation under aoynpany Benefit Plans, (i) result in any mategaateleration of the time of payment, funding
or vesting of any such benefit (whether throughemtpr trust or otherwise), or (iv) result in amyitation or restriction on the right of the
Company or any of its Subsidiaries to amend or irggite any Company Benefit Plan. All material cdmitions and other payments required to be
made by the Company and its Subsidiaries to algeo€Company Benefit Plans with respect to any geeiading at the Closing Date have been
made or reserves adequate for such contributionther payments have been set aside thereforeamddeen reflected in the Company Finar
Statements in accordance with GAAP. There are rtemahoutstanding Liabilities of any of the CompaBenefit Plans other than Liabilities for
benefits to be paid to participants and their bierefes in accordance with the terms of such Camenefit Plan. The Company and its
Subsidiaries do not maintain any Company BeneéihRlutside of the United States of America. Exespprovided by applicable Law, there are
no restrictions on the rights of the Company asditbsidiaries to amend or terminate any of the gz Benefit Plans.

(b) With respect to the agreements, @mts; plans and other arrangements to which thep@oynor any of its Subsidiaries is a pe
each such agreement, contract, plan or other araegt that is or that forms a part of a rpralified deferred compensation plan descr
in Section 409A, has been operated in compliantie 8&ction 409A and is in compliance with Secti@8A, except for any failure that
would not, individually or in the aggregate, imp@smaterial Liability.

Section 4.16 Employment Matters. There are no employment or consulting Contrerctshich the Company or any of its Subsidiariea is
party or by which it is bound or otherwise has prgsent or future Liability other than as listedSettion 4.1®f the Company Disclosure
Schedule, true and complete copies (and any amendriereto) of which have been made availablegdrivestor. The Company and its
Subsidiaries are not, and have not in the pastyias been, a party to any labor or collectivghing agreement and there are no labor or
collective bargaining agreements which pertainmpleyees of the Company or any of its Subsidiaf@sthe Knowledge of the Company, there
are no organizing activities involving the Compamyany of its Subsidiaries pending or threatenet amy labor organization or group of
employees of the Company or any of its Subsidiaiebthere are no representation or certificatimeg@edings or petitions seeking a
representation proceeding presently pending dheédnowledge of the Company, threatened to bedrbar filed with the National Labor
Relations Board or any other labor relations tréduwr authority relating to the Company or anytefSubsidiaries. There have not been in the past
five years and are not currently any pending,@the Knowledge of the Company, threatened, latvikes, disputes, walkouts, work stoppages,
slowdowns, demonstrations, leafleting, picketingydntt, work-to-rule campaign, sit-in, sick-out,iom election, governmental investigation or
lockout with respect to employees of the Compangryr of its Subsidiaries. There are no materiaaindébor practice charges or complaints,
grievances, arbitrations or arbitration demandsstats or administrative or other proceedings pegdir, to the Knowledge of the Company,
threatened by or on behalf of any employee or gafigmployees of the Company or any of its Subsieeor brought or filed, with any authority
or arbitrator based on, arising out of, in conrattvith, or otherwise relating to the employmentesmination of employment of any individual
by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries or argishfor any of the foregoing. There are no mateati@rges or complaints alleging sexual or
other harassment or other discrimination by the @amy, any of its Subsidiaries or any of their resipe employees or agents pending or, to the
Knowledge of the Company, threatened in each cgamst the Company or any of its Subsidiaries. Chenpany and its Subsidiaries are in
compliance in all material respects with all Lavesrgrning the employment of labor, including all sl@ws relating to wages, hours, collective
bargaining, discrimination, civil rights, safetycahealth, labor relations, working conditions, eaygle scheduling, family and medical leave,
employment and reemployment of members of the tmiéal services, employment terminations, classificabf Persons as independent
contractors, workers' compensation disability, empek benefits, severance
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payments, unemployment and the collection and paywfewithholding and/or Taxes due under the U.Bl-8ge, Survivors, and Disability
Insurance program, and similar Taxes. The Compaudyita Subsidiaries have complied in all materéspects with WARN and have not incurred
any Liability or obligation which remains unsatedi under WARN.

Section 4.17 Information Provided. The written information to be supplied by ortwghalf of the Company for inclusion in the Proxy
Statement to be sent to the stockholders of thepgaomin connection with the Stockholders Meetinglishot, on the date the Proxy Statement is
first mailed to stockholders of the Company, attthee of the Stockholders Meeting or at Closingjtain any statement that, at such time and in
light of the circumstances under which it shallhb&de, is false or misleading with respect to anien fact, or omit to state any material fact
necessary in order to make the statements madie iRroxy Statement not false or misleading; or emdtate any material fact necessary to
correct any statement in any earlier communicatigh respect to the solicitation of proxies for tBckholders Meeting that has become false or
misleading. If at any time prior to the Stockhokl®&teeting any fact or event relating to the Compangny of its Affiliates that should be set fc
in a supplement to the Proxy Statement should $moudered by the Company or should occur, the Cognphall, promptly after becoming aware
thereof, inform the Investor of such fact or event.

Section 4.18 Issuance of Common StockThe Common Stock to be issued to the Investdha Stock Consideration has been duly
authorized by the Company and, when issued andetell by the Company against delivery of the Uinithe manner contemplated by this
Agreement, will be validly issued, fully paid andmassessable, free from all Taxes and Liens w#pect to the issue thereof.

Section 4.19 Independent Investigation. The Company hereby acknowledges and affirmisithas conducted and completed its own
investigation, analysis and evaluation of the Manamnd the Manager CLO Issuers, that it has mddeieh reviews and inspections of the
financial condition, business, results of operajgroperties, assets and prospects of the Mameagethe Manager CLO Issuers as it has deemed
necessary or appropriate, that it has had the &ymor to request all information it has deemeevaht to the foregoing from the Investor and has
received responses it deems adequate and sufftoiatitsuch requests for information, and thatiaking its decision to enter into this Agreement
and to consummate the transactions contemplatedyérhas relied solely on its own investigatianalysis and evaluation of the Manager and
the Manager CLO Issuers and is not relying in aay wn any representations and warranties, incluaimgimplied warranties, made by the
Investor, the Manager, the Affiliates of the Inwesdr the Manager, or made on behalf of the Manhgemy other Person other than the
representations and warranties made expresslyebintlestor and the Manager in this Agreement antl agplicable Ancillary Document.

Section 4.20 Brokers. Other than UBS Securities LLC, (i) no brokénger, agent or similar intermediary is actinghas acted, for, or
on behalf of, the Company or any of its Subsid&nreconnection with this Agreement, the transatioontemplated hereby or the Ancillary
Documents, and (i) no broker, finder, agent oriimintermediary is entitled to any broker's, famt$ or similar fee or other commission in
connection therewith based on any agreement, a¥naegt or understanding with the Company or anysobubsidiaries or any action taken by
Company or any of its Subsidiaries. The fees ameeses of UBS Securities LLC shall be paid by then@any.

Section 4.21 Registration Rights, Voting Rights.

(@) Except as provided in the Registraitights Agreement, the Company has not grantedy@ed to grant, and is not under any
obligation to provide, any rights to register unttex Securities Act any of its presently outstagdiacurities or any of its securities that
may be issued subsequently.
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(b) Except as provided in the Stockhddegreement, to the Knowledge of the Company'stackholder of the Company has
entered into any agreement with respect to thengaif equity securities of the Company.

Section 4.22 Other Investment Advisory Activities.

(@) Section 4.22(apf the Company Disclosure Schedule sets forthe@and complete list showing each Client of the Camypand
its Subsidiaries as of the date hereof, other tharCompany CLO Issuers listed in Section 4.12(af(the Company Disclosure Schedule.

(b) The Company has made available tdrthiestor prior to the date hereof copies of (§reAdvisory Contract in effect, as of the
date hereof, a true and complete list of whichsateforth atSection 4.22(bdf the Company Disclosure Schedule, other tharCrapany
CLO Management Agreements listedSaction 4.12(a)(ipf the Company Disclosure Schedule.

(c) Each Advisory Contract and any ameenitncontinuance or renewal thereof, in each dasffect as of the date hereof, (i) has
been duly authorized, executed and delivered byttrapany or its applicable Subsidiary, (i) is didband legally binding agreement,
enforceable against the Company or its applicablesifliary and, each other party thereto, subjebattkruptcy, insolvency, fraudulent
transfer, reorganization, moratorium and similawkaf general applicability relating to or affeginreditors' rights and to general equity
principles, and (iii) to the extent any Investm@uviser Entity is a party to such Advisory Contraamplies with the Investment Advisers
Act, in each case, other than the Company CLO Mamagt Agreements iBection 4.12(a)(ipf the Company Disclosure Schedule.

(d) None of the Company, any of its Sdizsies or any other person "associated" (as defimeler the Investment Advisers Act)
with the Company or any of its Subsidiaries hastmeject to disqualification pursuant to Sectiod(@)(2) through (4) and 203(e)(7)
through (9) of the Investment Advisers Act to semgean investment adviser or as an associatedrpefsoregistered investment adviser,
or subject to disqualification pursuant to Rule )&3, or the subject of a rebuttable presumptiorspant to Rule 206(4)-4(b), under the
Investment Advisers Act or subject to disqualificatto serve as a broker-dealer under Section 3gW) through (E) or Section 15(b)(4)
(B), (C), (F), (G) or (H) or Section 15 of the Exatyge Act unless, in each case, the Company orwtySubsidiary or associated person
has received exemptive relief from the SEC witlpees to any such disqualification. The Investor hasn provided with, prior to the date
hereof, a copy of any exemptive order issued byStRE or its staff prior to the date of this Agreeia respect of any such
disqualification. As of the dat